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VIRGINIA REGISTER 

The Virginia Register is an official state publication issued 
every other week throughout the year. Indexes are published 
quarterly, and the last index of the year is cumulative. 

The Virginia Register has several functions. The full text of all 
regulations, both as proposed and as finally adopted or changed 
by amendment are required by law to be published in the 
Virginia Register of Regulations. 

In addition, the Virginia Register is a source of other 
information about state government, including all Emergency 
Regulations issued by the Governor, and Executive Orders, the 
Virginia Tax Bulletin issued periodically by the Department of 
Taxation, and notices of all public hearings and open meetings of 
state agencies. 

ADOPTION, AMENDMENT, AND REPEAL OF REGULATIONS 

AP a~l;lncy wisllin~ to adovt, amend, or repeal regulations must 
first publi:sh ip the Virginia Register a notice of proposed action; 
a basis, purpose, impact and summary statement; a notice giving 
the public an opportunity to comment on the proposal, and the 
text of the proposed regulations. 

Under the provisions of the Administrative Process Act, the 
Registrar has the right to publish a summary, rather than the full 
text, of a regulation which is considered to be too lengthy. In 
such case, the full text of the regulation will be available for 
public inspection at the office of the Registrar and at the office 
of the promulgating agency. 

Following publication of the proposal in the Virginia Register, 
sixty days must elapse before the agency may take action on the 
proposal. 

During this time, the Governor and the General Assembly will 
review t\11;! proposed re~ul:;ttiom;. The Governor will transmit his 
cornrpen1;i on the regq.lations tQ the Registrar and the agency and 
su~h comments will be published in the Virginia Register. 

Upon receipt of the Governor's comment on a proposed 
regulation, the agency (i) may adopt the proposed regulation, if 
the Governor has no objection to the regulation; (ii) may modify 
and adopt the proposed regulation after considering and 
incorporating the Governor's suggestions, or (iii) may adopt the 
regulation without changes despite the Governor's 
recommendations for change. 

The appropriate standing committee of each branch of the 
General Assembly may meet during the promulgation or final 
adoption process and file an objection with the Virginia Registrar 
and the promulgating agency. The objection will be published in 
the Virginia Register. Within twenty-one days after receipt by the 
agency of a legislative objection, the agency shall file a response 
with the R@,&istrar, the objecting legislative Committee, and the 
Governor 

When final action is taken, the promulgating agency must again 
publish the text of the regulation, as adopted, highlighting and 
explaining any substantial changes in the final regulation. A 
thirty-day final adoption period will commence upon publication in 
the Virginia Register. 

The Governor will review the final regulation during this time 
and if he objects, forward his objection to the Registrar and the 
agency. His objection will be published in the Virginia Register. If 
the Governor finds that changes made to the proposed regulation 
are substantial, he may suspend the regulatory process for thirty 
days and require the agency to solicit additional public comment 
on the substantial changes. 

A regl).lation becomes effective at the conclusion of this 
thirty-day final adoption period, or at any other later date 
specified by the promulgating agency, unless (i) a legislative 
objection has been filed, in which event the regulation, unless 
withdrawn, becomes effective on the date specified, which shall 

be after the expiration of the twenty-one day extension period; or 
(ii) the Governor exercises his authority to suspend the regulatory 
process for solicitation of additional public comment, in which 
event the regulation, unless withdrawn, becomes effective on the 
date specified which date shall be after the expiration of the 
period for which the Governor has suspended the regulatory 
process. 

Proposed action on regulations may be withdrawn by the 
promulgating agency at any time before the regulation becomes 
final. 

EMERGENCY REGULATIONS 

If an agency determines that an emergency situation exists, it 
then requests the Governor to issue an emergency regulation. The 
emergency regulation becomes operative upon its adoption and 
filing with the Registrar of Regulations, unless a later date is 
specified. Emergency regulations are limited in time and cannot 
exceed a twelve-months duration. The emergency regulations will 
be published as quickly as possible in the Virginia Register. 

During the time the emergency status is in effect, the agency 
may proceed with the adoption oi permanent regulations through 
the usual procedures (See "Adoption, Amendment, and Repeal of 
Regulations," above). If the agency does not choose to adopt the 
regulations, the emergency status ends when the prescribed time 
limit expires. 

STATEMENT 

The foregoing constitutes a generalized statement of the 
procedures to be followed. For specific statutory language, it is 
suggested that Article 2 of Chapter 1.1:1 (§§ 9-6.14:6 through 
9-6.14:9) of the Code of Virginia be examined carefully. 

CITATION TO THE VIRGINIA REGISTER 

The Virginia Register is cited by volume, issue, page number, 
and date. 1:3 VA.R. 75-77 November 12, 1984 refers to Volume 1, 
Issue 3, pages 75 through 77 of the Virginia Register issued on 
November 12, 1984. 

"The Virginia Register of Regulations" (USPS-001831) is 
published bi-weekly, except four times in January, April, July and 
October for $100 per year by the Virginia Code Commission, 
General Assembly Building, Capitol Square, Richmond, Virginia 
23219. Telephone (804) 786-3591. Second-Class Postage Rates Paid 
at Richmond, Virginia. POSTMASTER: Send address changes to 
the Virginia Register of Regulations, 910 Capitol Street, 2nd Floor, 
Richmond, Virginia 23219. 

The Virginia Register of Regulations is published pursuant to 
Article 7 of Chapter Ll:l (~ 9-6.14:2 et seq.) of the Code of 
Virginia. Individual copies are available for $4 each from the 
Registrar of Regulations. 

Members Qf the Virginia Code Commission: Joseph V. Gartlan, 
Jr. , Chairman, W. Tayloe Murphy, Jr., Vice Chairman; Russell 
M. Carneal; Bernard S. Cohen; Frank S. Ferguson; E. M. Miller, 
Jr.; Theodore V. Morrison, Jr.; William F. Parkerson, Jr.; 
Jackson E. Reasor, Jr. 

Staff Qf the Virginia Register: Joan W. Smith, Registrar of 
Regulations; Jane D. Chaffin, Assistant Registrar of Regulations. 
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PROPOSED REGULATIONS 

For information concerning Proposed Regulations, see information page. 

Symbol Key 
Roman type indicates existing text of regulations. Italic type indicates proposed new text. Language which has 
been stricken indicates proposed text for deletion. 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (STATE BOARD OF) 

Title Qf Regulation: VR 270 92 0609 VR 270-01-0009 
Regulations Governing Literary Loan Applications in 
Virginia. 

Statutory Authority: Article Vlll, § 8 of the Constitution of 
Virginia; §§ 22.1-140 and 22.1-142 et seq. of the Code of 
Virginia. 

Public Hearing Date: September 29, 1994 - 8:30 a.m. 
Written comments may be submitted through October 
7, 1994. 

(See Calendar of Events section 
for additional information) 

Basis: Article VIII, Section 8 of the Constitution of Virginia 
gives the Board of Education responsibility and authority 
over the administration of the Literary Fund. Further, §§ 
22.1-142 through 22.1-154 of the Code of Virginia give the 
board general authority over literary loan applications and 
management of the fund. Section 22.1-147 specifically 
permits the board to impose a maximum limit of not 
more than $5 million on the amount of any loan from the 
fund. 

Purpose: The proposed amendments provide more funds to 
local school divisions for school construction. Previously, 
the regulations only provided $2,500,000 for Literary Fund 
applications. Based on rising cost, it is recommended that 
$5,000,000 be approved in accordance with § 22.1-147 of 
the Code of Virginia. In addition, the regulations are being 
amended in accordance with § 22.1-140 of the Code of 
Virginia, which requires that plans and specifications be 
certified by the division superintendent and are 
accompanied by a statement by an architect or 
professional engineer. This certification replaces the 
previous approval process in place by the Department of 
Education. Also, the regulations are being amended in 
accordance with § 22.1-146 of the Code of Virginia, which 
allows literary funds to be used to refinance or redeem 
long-term debt under certain conditions. Further, the 
regulations are being formally amended to incorporate 
changes which were required by the 1989 and 1990 
sessions of the General Assembly through appropriation act 
provisions. The required changes increased the ceiling on 
indebtedness to the fund, increased consolidation 
incentives, and provided priority funding for projects 
resulting from consolidation of school divisions. The Board 
of Education adopted the required changes on July 26, 
1990. However, they were never published in The Virginia 
Register of Regulations. 

Vol. 10, Issue 23 

These regulations do not address the health, safety, or 
welfare of affected entities. The regulations, in accordance 
with the statutes, set forth the procedures to be followed 
in order to apply for a Literary Loan. The procedures 
ensure that all localities are treated equally in the 
administration of the fund. 

Substance: The majority of changes are being made to 
bring the regulations into conformance with statutes and 
appropriation act provisions. The only change other than 
those required is increasing the maximum loan amount 
from $2.5 million to $5 million. Current practices have 
allowed localities to receive multiple loans for the 
construction of one school through a phased approach. The 
amended regulations will disallow the phased approach 
and address the need for additional funding in a 
straightforward manner by increasing the loan amount 
available. 

Issues: The revised regulations are not controversial in 
nature. The changes have been supported by local school 
division personnel and local government officials. The only 
issue surrounding the Literary Fund at this time is the 
limited amount of funding to make loans. That is not an 
issue which can be addressed by the State Board of 
Education, but rather is in the purview of the Governor 
and the General Assembly. Significant steps were taken 
during the 1994 Session to address this issue. 

Allowing localities to borrow additional funds at lower 
interest rates is an advantage to the tax payers of the 
locality involved. At lower rates, the annual debt service 
will be less and funding can be redirected to other 
priorities. 

A. Cost to Affected Entities: The proposed regulations 
would allow localities to borrow additional funds at the 
lower interest rates provided through the Literary Fund. 
Therefore, the fiscal impact to affected entities would be 
positive over the 20 years of debt service required to the 
Literary Fund. There are no direct costs attributable to 
the local education agencies for compliance with these 
regulations. No localities will be particularly affected by 
this regulation. 

B. Cost to Agency: There are no direct costs attributable 
to the State Board of Education or the Department of 
Education. Increasing the loan amount has no impact on 
the procedures used to make loans. 

C. Cost of Compliance: There will be no additional cost 
of compliance attributable to the regulation. The regulation 
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Proposed Regulations 

would be advantageous to the puble due to the lower 
interest rates provided. 

Summary: 

The proposed amendments provide more funds to 
local school divisions for school construction. 
Previously, the regulations only provided $2,500,000 for 
Literary Fund applications. Based on rising cost, it is 
recommended that $5,000,000 be approved in 
accordance with § 22.1-147 of the Code of Virginia. In 
addition, the regulations are being amended in 
accordance with § 22.1-140 of the Code of Virginia, 
which requires that plans and specifications be 
certified by the division superintendent and are 
acco:npanied by a statement by an architect or 
professional engineer. This certification replaces the 
previous approval process in place by the Department 
of Education. Also, the regulations are being amended 
in accordance with § 22.1-146 of the Code of Virginia, 
which allows literary funds to be used to refinance or 
redeem Iong~term debt under certain conditions. 
Further, the regulations are being formally amended 
to incorporate changes which were required by the 
1989 and 1990 sessions of the General Assembly 
through Appropriation Act provisions. The required 
changes increased the ceiling on indebtedness to the 
fund, increased consolidation incentives, and provided 
priority funding for projects resulting from 
consolidation of school divisions. The Board of 
Education adopted the required changes on July 26, 
1990. However, they were never published in The 
Virginia Register of Regulations. 

VR 270-01-0009. Regulations Governing Literary Loan 
Applications in Virginia. 

§ 1.1. Policy. 

PART I. 
POLICY. 

It is the policy of the Board of Education to assist 
localities in borrowing from the Literary Fund to the 
greatest extent feasible, taking into consideration, the size 
of the Literary Fund, the availability to school divisions of 
alternative financing, the number and repayment ability of 
school divisions desiring to borrow from the Literary Fund, 
and the sense of the General Assembly for the 
administration and equitable distribution of the Literary 
Fund. 

PART II. 
DEFINITIONS. 

§ 2.1. Definitions. 

The following words and terms, when used in these 
regulations, shall have the following meaning: 

"Approved Application List" means the list maintained 

by the Department of Education of those Literary Loan 
applications which initially have been approved as to form 
by the Board of Education but have not been placed on 
the "Waiting List." 

"Board" means the State Board of Education. 

"Department" means the State Department of Education. 

"Project" means capital construction for the purpose of 
erecting, altering, or enlarging a school building in a 
public school division of Virginia, or a regional center 
operating under a Board of Control as defined by board 
regulations. 

"Waiting List" means the list maintained by the 
department of those Literary Loan applications which the 
board has placed on the Waiting List of loans anticipating 
the release of loan funds from the Literary Fund. 

PART Ill. 
APPLICATION APPROVAL. 

§ 3.1. Application form. 

A school division applying for a Literary Loan shall 
meet the statutory requirements for such a loan as set 
forth in §§ 22.1-142 through 22.1-161 of the Code of 
Virginia and the Appropriations Act. The application shall 
be submitted to the department on Form V.A. 005, 
completed, signed and sealed by the appropriate local 
officials and examining attorney certifying to the 
information contained in the application. 

§ 3.2. Application review. 

After examination and review of the contents of the 
application by the staff of the department and review of 
the application and the certifications by the Office of the 
Attorney General, the department shall recommend to the 
board the approval of those applications which are in 
proper form for further consideration by the board and 
for placement on the Approved Application List. 

§ 3.3. Application approval. 

Upon approval of a Literary Fund loan application, a 
Memorandum of Lien form, properly executed, and 
recorded in the appropriate circuit court is to be returned 
to the department f& reeer<latiea, afleF wl>iel> tt will be 
forwarded 1ft tbe £tale TreasHrer f& Fe€BFtl kee~ing . It is 
recognized that the lien is not effective until the Board of 
Education approves the initial release/commitment of 
funds against the project. Section 22.1-157 of the Code of 
Virginia provides that no recordation tax shall be 
assessable. 

§ 3.4. Nonapprova1 of application. 

Applications for Literary Fund loans shall not be 
approved by the board if the project already has been bid 

Virginia Register of Regulations 

5646 



prior to receipt of the application in the department, 
except in the case of a documented emergency. 

PART !V. 
APPROVED APPLICATION LIST. 

~ 4.1. Placement on list. 

The board shall place applications on the Approved 
Application List upon the recommendation of the 
department made by the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction or his designee. 

~ 4.2. Qualification for placement. 

For applications on the Approved Application List to 
qualify for placement on the Waiting List, school divisions 
shall submit areRHeeh:lral aM eagiaeering J*aHS ffi tfte 
departmeat fa< Fe¥lew frft<l appreval by !he !lepartmea! a 
copy of the plans and specifications with a letter of 
approval by the division superintendent, accompanied with 
a statement by an architect or professional engineer 
licensed by the Virginia Board for Architects, Professional 
Engineers, Land Surveyors and Landscape Architects that 
such plans and specifications are, to the best of his 
knowledge and belief, in compliance with the regulations 
of the Board of Education and the Uniform Building Code 

t +.ih Ypoo aelifiee!iea !ita! plans suami!ted l±R<leF t ~ 
lltwe beef> appFeved by !he !lepar!meat, sellool !livisieas oo 
!he ,\ppreved t.pplieatien blst lffi!S! re<jtltlSf ifl wffiiflg ifl 
be j>laeetl M lfte Waiting bisto 

§ +.+. 4.3. Removal from list. 

El<eej}! as pFevided ifl 1 1{8, Applications which remain 
on the Approved Application List for three years shall be 
removed from the list. Localities shall be notified at the 
end of the second year of the three-year cancellation 
policy. 

PART V. 
RANGE AND DURATION OF LOANS. 

§ 5.1. Maximum loan amount. 

~ as flFB'IiEle€1: ffi -§ ~ The maximum loan amount 
available for any single project through the Literary Fund 
is $H; FHiltieft $5 mi11ion (effective for all applications 
approved by the board subsequent to the effective date of 
these regulations). 

t !>+. In !he event !he applieaat sellool divisiea(s) eertifies 
frft<l !he - <letenRiaes !ita! !he ~ wHI FeS-!tlt ifl 
!he el6siftg eJ' !we er TOOFe sebeel buildings ffiie !e fit 
inaf:.lility -te meet- eElHeatisnal re&uirements, -fiB- struetural 
Elefieie:aeies, &F -fi#1 eest ineffieieaeics, tfte aflfllieaRt se1Te€H­
!Iivisiea (s) sftall be eligible fa< "" Bffl6iiftt tlJ7 !e aft 
aeldilieaal $} FHiltieft M a Li!erar) l'l!ru! lean fa< S\lel> 

~ 
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% ~ In !he event tfta4 !we er mere seltool aivisieas are 
eeaselidated iH!e a siflgle sellool divisiea, !he eeaselida!e!l 

- - - be eligible fa< "" - tlj7 !e aft a!l!litieaal $} FHiltieft 6ft a Literary l'l!ru! lean fa< llliY 
~ resulting <lire€lly ffem saM eeaseli!latien. 

§ 5-:-+. 5.2. Minimum loan amount. 

The minimum loan amount available for any single 
project through the Literary Fund is $50,000 (eflee!ive ffir 
aH applieatieas appreve!l by !he - suase~ueat te !he 
effeetive Hate el tbese reg1:1:latisns The several 
applications to fund a regional project shall be combined 
for the purpose of meeting this minimum amount. 

§ &+ 5.3. Duration of loans. 

Literary Fund loans shall be made for a period of not 
less than five years nor more than 20 years. Literary 
Fund loans in an amount between $50,000 and $100,000 
shall be for a period of five years. 

PART VI. 
INTEREST RATES. 

~ 6.1. Composite index. 

Except as modified by § 6.3 be!ew , the interest rate for 
a Literary Loan shall be based on the school division's 
Composite Index, used for distribution of State Basic Aid, 
in effect when the board places the project on the Waiting 
List ; "*""'* wltl> nspeet !e !he lft!erest ffile "" these 
applieatiens "" !he ,\ppreve!l i.pplieatiea blst !*'ffir te 
Marelr :!3; W&'t; wiHeft lft!erest sftall ft6l be iaerease!l . 

§ 6.2. Determination of interest rate. 

The interest rate for a loan generally shall be 
determined on the basis of a composite index of the 
applying school division as follows: 

Step 1. Composite Index between 

Step 2. Composite Index between 

Step 3. Composite Index between 

Step 4. Composite Index between 

Step 5. Composite Index between 

§ 6.3. Fixed rate. 

.2 and :We- .2999 

.3 and :o3-00 .3999 

.4 and ;499- .4999 

.5 and .5999 

.6 and :& .8000 

Per Annum 
Interest Rate 

2.0% 

3.0% 

4.0% 

5.0% 

6.0% 

The board reserves its option under § 22.1-150 of the 
Code of Virginia to fix the actual rate for a Literary Loan, 
on the date funds for the Literary Loan are approved for 
release, at one percentage point above or below the rate 
applicable on the date the application was placed on the 
Waiting List. 
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PART VII. 
WAITING LIST. 

§ 7.1. Placement on Waiting List. 

After a loan application initially has been approved by 
the department and the division re~Hes!s ffi writfflg te l>e 
J'laee<l "" lite wai#!lg 'blst l'eF Literary Flffi<l Hffitll!!g 
submits a copy of the plans, approval by the division 
superintendent and architect , the board shall consider 
placement of the application on the Waiting List. 

§ 7.2. Priorities. 

Applications shall be placed into priorities on the 
Waiting List as follows: 

Priority 1: Applications placed on the Waiting List by 
the Board of Education from school divisions having a 
composite index less than .6000, and an outstanding 
indebtedness (including the application considered for 
release of funds by the Board of Education) to the 
Literary Fund less than $Hi $20 million. 

Priority 2: Applications placed on the Waiting List by 
the Board of Education from school divisions having a 
composite index of .6000 or above, or an outstanding 
indebtedness (including the application considered for 
release of funds by the Board of Education) to the 
Literary Fund greater than $Hi $20 million. 

§ 7.3. Eligibility for release of funding. 

Within each priority, applications shall become eligible 
for release of funding in the same relative order as 
having been approved by the board as having met all 
conditions for a Literary Fund loan. 

§ 7.4. Eligibility of Priority 2 applications. 

Applications in Priority 2 shall be eligible for funding 
only when the board eeFtifies determines that all 
applications, current and anticipated, and the applications 
to be added from Priority 2 can be funded within one 
year. 

§ 7.5. Reassignment of application. 

The board may place an individual application ahead of 
its position assigned by § 7.3, if the board finds that the 
best interest for the education in the state is served by 
such placement. Reasons for such placement may include, 
but are not limited to (i) asbestos containment or removal; 
(ii) natural disasters; (iii) unique circumstances that may 
be detrimental to education in the absence of a Literary 
Fund loan. Such placement shall be acted on by the board 
on an individual application basis when all requirements 
for release of a Literary Fund loan have been met by the 
school division. 

.9 7.6. Priority funding. 

The board shall provide priority funding for any 
application resulting directly from the consolidation of two 
or more divisions into a single school division. 

PART VIII. 
RELEASE OF LITERARY FUNDS. 

§ 8.1. Unencumbered sum available. 

The release of Literary Funds shall be approved by the 
board for an application when the Literary Fund has an 
unencumbered sum available that is at least equal to the 
amount of the application. 

§ 8.2. Expenditure of other funds. 

All other funds committed to a Literary Fund project 
shall be expended before the Literary Fund loan shall be 
available for disbursement to the locality for the approved 
project. 

§ 8.3. Actual disbursements. 

Actual disbursements charged to the approved Literary 
Fund loan shall be subject to the submission of actual 
invoices or other evidence of bills paid or due and 
payable by the locality. 

§ 8.4. Award of construction contract. 

Upon the award of the construction contract for an 
application in Priority I on the Waiting List, funds shall be 
released for the reimbursement of the design phase of 
architectural and engineering services for the project. 
Applications in Priority 2 shall be eligible for 
reimbursement of the design phase of architectural and 
engineering services only when the application has been 
certified to be eligible for funding by the board under § 
7.4. 

§ 8.5. Conditions. 

After the departmeat's approval ef !'iftal j>laffi afttl 
speeifieatisas l±fttler t 22.1 119, submission to the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction of a copy of the plans 
and specifications with a letter of approval by the division 
superintendent, accompanied with a statement by an 
architect or professional engineer licensed by the Virginia 
Board for Architects, Professional Engineers, Land 
Surveyors and Landscape Architects that such plans and 
specifications are, to the best of his knowledge and belief, 
in compliance with the regulations of the Board of 
Education and the Uniform Building Code, the leealities 
locality may proceed with a Literary Fund project and 
still qualify for reimbursement from the Literary Fund 
flFeviEieEi tftaf under the following conditions: 

1. A formal declaration is made by the governing 
body of intent to reimburse itself for prior 
expenditures paid for out of its general fund or to 
refinance debt that was used to pay or to reimburse 
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itself for prior expenditures. 

2. Short term financing , or advances from other fund 
balances and current operating funds, is used for that 
portion of the project to be financed by a Literary 
Fund loan (§ 22.1-148.B of the Code of Virginia) , A 
tem~erary laal; which shall be subject to the 
restrictions found in § 22.1-110 of the Code of Virginia 
, Sl>erl term fiflaaeiag als6 may iReltttle a<lvaftees 
ffi>rR etliffl' - ~alaaees afl<! elH'l'efl! a~eratiflg -
If ; or permanent financing such as bond funds 
authorized through locally approved referenda, by 
local charter, eF the Virginia Public School Authority , 
or other funding mechanisms are used for the 
Literary Fund portion of the project, Literary FlHt<ls 
shaH flet 6e releasee ffir t6e j'lf6je€t whefl t6e 
aft~lieatieH FHtWeS ffi t6e ~ ef t6e Waitiflg bist and 
tile literary funds can be ueed for the refinancing or 
redemption of such negotiable notes, bonds, or other 
evidences of indebtedness or obligations . 

§ 8.6. Returning application to Approved Application List. 

An application which has been approved for release of 
funds and which has not been bid within two months of 
the board action to release funds will be returned to the 
Approved Application List. Upon the written request by the 
locality for reinstatement, any application so returned shall 
be reinstated by the board at the bottom of the 
appropriate priority (§ 7.2) of the Waiting List. The date 
of the board's reinstatement on the Waiting List by this 
S!=lCtion shall determine the relative order for eligibility of 
funding. 

PART IX. 
PROPERTY TRANSFER. 

§ 9.1. Property transfer. 

When a school board or a local governing body sells or 
transfers property on which there is an outstanding 
balance on a Literary Loan, such balance becomes due 
and must be paid before title to the property is conveyed 
to the new owner. In no event, however, shall this 
provision be applicable where a court of competent 
jurisdiction decrees otherwise in an annexation settleme.nt, 
or where fee simple title, after sale or transfer, remams 
in either the school board or its governing body. 

PAR'f *' 
TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS. 

* w+. Ali laal; a~~lieatieHs wftielr, jli'iel' ffi Mareft ;!3, 
l-98'1-; were oo t6e e\ffl'efl! "iaae!ive lis!" maiHtaiHe<l by t6e 
ae~artmeat ~ laal; ap~liea!iens - were a~~reve<l by 
t6e 1>eftFt11 afl<! - were flet oo t6e Waitiflg his!, shaH 
6e jllaee<l aulematieally oo t6e "A~~reve<l A~plieatieH 

List,!' 'File eF<!eF ffi - ""'"' a~plieatieas are jllaee<l oo 
t6e Waitiflg bist shaH 6e governed by t6e ~re·;isieHS ef 
these eFAeFgeH:ey Fegttlatiens. 
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f -HI+. LiteraFy leftfl ·~~lieatiefls oo t6e "iHaetive lis!" 
tlfltetl Mareft l-; HJ8-1 shaH !lave ooe yeaF Hera Mareft ;!3, 
HJ8-1 ffi - #Hal ~ afl<! s~eeifieatieas ffi t6e 
aepartmeat eF 6e Femevetl frerR t6e Ap~revea Applieatiea 
bist {:uflless t6e ap~lieatieH was a~~reve<l by t6e l>eartl 
su~se~aeHt ffi Mareft l-; HJ8&r. 

% ~ Literary leftfl ·~~lieatieH FeFrH '1-d>r. 00& shaH 
remaifl t6e l'ffli'€F farrH !ar Hliflg " Literary leftfl 
a~~lieatieH, afl<! is ebtaiHa~le Hera t6e tle~aFtffteHt. 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-1118; Filed July 18, 1994, 11:36 a.m. 

DEPARTMENT OF GAME AND INLAND FISHERIES 
(BOARD OF) 

NOTICE: Toe !loard of Game and Inland Fisheries is 
exfini:)Cfrom the Administrative Process Act pursuant to § 
9-6.14:4.1 A of the Code of Virginia when promulgating 
wildlife management regulations; however, it is required 
by § 9-6.14:22 to publish all proposed and final regulations. 

Title Qj' Regulations: VR 325·02. Game. 
VR 325·02·27. Permits, 

Statutory Authority: §§ 29.1·501 and 29.1-502 of the Code of 
Virginia. 

Notice !Q the Public: 

The Board of Game and Inland Fisheries has ordered 
to be published, pursuant to §§ 29.1-501 and 29.1-502 
of the Code of Virginia, the following proposed 
amended board regulations. A public hearing on the 
advisability of adopting, or amending and adopting, the 
proposed regulations, or any part thereof, will be held 
in the Board Room at the Department of 
Environmental Quality, 4900 Cox Road, Richmond, 
Virginia, beginning at 9 a.m. on Thursday, August 25, 
1994, at which time any interested citizen present 
shall be heard. If the board is satisfied that the 
pfoposed regulation, or any part thereof, is advisable, 
in the form in which published or as amended as a 
result of the public hearing, the board may adopt such 
proposal at that time, acting upon the proposals 
separately or in block. 

Summary· 

Summaries are not provided since, in most instances, 
the summary would be as long as or longer than the 
full text. 

VR 325-02. GAME, 

VR 325-02-27. Permits. 

§ 1. Poisoning of wild birds and wild animals destroying 
crops or property. 
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Notwithstanding the provisions of VR 325-02-1, § 5, the 
department may issue permits authorizing the putting out 
of poison for the purpose of killing wild birds and wild 
animals where they are destructive to crops or other 
property. Where such permits are issued, the poisoning 
shall be under the supervision of employees of the 
department. 

§ 2. Collection of specimens of wild birds for scientific 
purposes. 

Holders of permits issued under § 29.1-418 of the Code 
of Virginia to collect specimens of wild birds and their 
nests, with the eggs or young found therein, for scientific 
or museum purposes, shall report to the department on 
January ~ of each year the number of each species taken 
and the purpose for which collected. 

§ 3. Breeding game birds and game animals for 
propagation and stocking; records. 

Holders of permits issued under § 29.1-417 of the Code 
of Virginia to breed and rear wild game birds and wild 
animals in captivity and to sell and ship them alive for 
propagation or stocking shall keep a record showing the 
number of each species on hand, the number acquired 
and the number sold. 

§ 4. Breeding game birds and game animals for 
propagation and stocking; labeling packages. 

Packages containing wild birds and wild animals raised 
under a permit for propagation purposes shall bear labels 
showing the name and address of the breeder and the 
contents of the package. 

§ 5. Breeding game birds and game animals for 
propagation and stocking; confinement; inspection. 

Birds and animals raised under a permit for propagation 
purposes must be confined in a sanitary escape-proof 
enclosure. Such enclosure shall be open to inspection by 
representatives of the department at all times. 

§ 6. Holding wild birds or wild animals for exhibition or 
advertising purposes. 

Where an exhibit is educational and purposeful in 
nature, wild game birds and wild game animals may be 
exhibited under a permit provided for in § 29.1-417 of the 
Code of Virginia, under such restrictions and conditions as 
the board may prescribe. Where such a permit is issued 
for an exhibit which is not educational or purposeful in 
nature, such permit shall authorize the person to whom 
issued to hold only nongame wild animals and nongame 
wild birds as are listed in the application for the permit. 

§ 7. Stuffing or mounting birds and animals; possession of 
game legally taken. 

A holder of a permit to stuff and mount birds and 

animals or parts thereof for compensation or sale, as 
provided for in § 29.!-415 of the Code of Virginia may 
have in possession for such purpose only birds and 
animals which were legally taken. 

§ 8. Stuffing or mounting birds and animals - records; 
inspections. 

A. A holder of a permit to stuff or mount birds and 
animals shall keep a complete record of all transactions. 
Such records shall include the species to be mounted or 
tanned; the date of receipt; the name, address and 
telephone number of the person for whom the work is 
being performed; the name of the person who killed the 
specimen (if different from above); the hunting license or 
Virginia driving license number of such person; the county 
where the specimen was taken or, if taken out-of-state, the 
slate in which it was taken; and the date the completed 
work was returned to the customer. Such records shall be 
retained for three years. These records, and the premises 
where such business is conducted, shall be open to 
inspection by representatives of the department during 
normal business hours. 

B. Upon receipt of any specimen of wildlife, a holder of 
a permit shall immediately affix to such specimen a tag 
bearing the designation of the species, the name and 
address of the customer and the date the specimen was 
killed. Such tag shall remain affixed to the specimen, 
except when the specimen is actually in the process of 
being worked on, until it is delivered to the customer. A 
numbered tag, with numbers corresponding to the number 
of the line entry of the records required in subsection A 
of this section, may be used in lieu thereof. 

§ 9. Breeding pheasants; records. 

The holder of a permit provided for by §§ 29.1-417 and 
29.1-514 of the Code of Virginia to breed pheasants in 
captivity and to sell and ship the same alive for breeding, 
or to kill, sell and ship the same for use as food shall 
keep a record of the number raised or acquired, number 
sold and the number on hand. 

§ 10. Breeding pheasants; labeling packages. 

Packages containing pheasants raised under a permit 
from the department shall bear a label giving the name 
and address of the breeders and the contents of the 
package. 

§ 11. Breeding pheasants; confinement; inspection. 

Pheasants raised under a permit from the department 
shall be confined in sanitary escape-proof enclosures, 
which shall be open to inspection by representatives of the 
department at all times. 

§§ 12, 13. Repealed. 

§ 14. Slleetiag wikl l>ift!s aft<! wikl aaimals from statieaary 

Virginia Register of Regulations 

5650 



Yeltlele by flisablefl j}efS6fu Repealed. 

Aey j}efS6fu - a~~lieatian !a a game wtlft!eft anfl llle 
presen!a!ioa a* a meflieal fleeter's wffllea statement lbai 
S\lelt peffl6ll Is permaaeatly ltftftble !a wall<; may, ift llle 
fllseretien a* S\lelt game warflen, be lsst!ed a pefffll! !a 
shoot wild hlrtls anfl wild animals lreffi a sta!ieaary 
Yeltlele <klfiftg es!ab!ishefl 8flCI' !Hffi!iag SBaS8ftS anfl ift 
aeeerflanee wlti> eti>er el<!stiag laws anfl regHiatiaas. 5!teh 
pefffll! witi be lsst!ed an a faml praviflefl by llle 
flepartmeat, wlHeft may aH!aeri•e sheetiag lreffi a 
stationary Yeltlele oot less lllen 300 feet lreffi aar ftCftlSS 

any j>llblie ranfl 6F lligh'Nay, anB 8Rly Wbefl lfte bearer Is 
properly lieeasea !a lltmh 5!teh pefffll! shaH be 
aea!raas!erable, anfl any pefffll! !aanfl ift llle pessessiea e! 
any persan oot - !a S\lelt pefffll! - be 5\tbjeet !a 
imHle!liate eealiseatiea by a game ·.vareea. BeeF a* eUber 
ll1ll! may be tal!eR ~ llle prwlisiens e! !!tis pefffll! ift 
t1tese eeHn!ies wbefe <lee< IHmtlag Is perffiittefl. 

§ 15. Duty to comply with permit conditions. 

A permit holder shall comply with all terms and 
conditions of any permit issued by the Department of 
Game and Inland Fisheries pursuant to Title 29.1 of the 
Code of Virginia and the regulations of the board 
pertaining to hunting, fishing, trapping, taking, attempting 
to take, possession, sale, offering for sale, transporting or 
causing to be transported, importing or exporting of any 
wild bird, wild animal or fish. 

§ 1 a. Possession and display of a validation card or permit 
to bunt. 

Every person required to obtain a validation card or 
permit to hunt must carry the validation card and permit 
on his person when hunting and shall present it 
immediately upon demand of any officer whose duty it is 
to enforce the game and inland fish laws. Penalty for 
violation of this section is prescribed by § 29.1·505 of the 
Code of Virginia. 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-ll35; Filed July 20, 1994, 11:56 a.m. 

BOARD FOR HEARING AID SPECIALISTS 

Title Qf Regulation: VR 375-01-02. Board for Hearing Aid 
Specialists Regulations. 

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1·201 of the Code of 
Virginia. 

Public Hearing Date: September 12, 1994 · 9 a.m. 
Written comments may be submitted until October 8, 
1994. 

(See Calendar of Events section 
for additional information) 

Basis: Section § 54.1-201 of the Code of Virginia provides 
the board with the legal authority to amend these 
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regulations. Specifically, subdivision 5 of § 54.1-201 directs 
"regulatory boards" to promulgate regulations in 
accordance with the Administrative Process Act (§ 9·6.14:1 
et seq.) necessary to assure continued competency, to 
prevent deceptive or misleading practices by practitioners, 
and to effectively administer the regulatory system 
administered by the board. The regulations shall not be in 
conflict with the purposes and intent of this chapter or of 
Chapters 1 and 3 of this title. 

Purpose: Pursuant to § 54.1-201 of the Code of Virginia, 
the Board for Hearing Aid Specialists is proposing to 
amend its existing regulations governing the licensure of 
hearing aid specialists to include new definitions; clarify 
entry criteria for licensure, renewal, and reinstatement; 
and to develop examination provisions. In addition, the 
flearing Aid Specialists Board is adjusting fees for 
application, examination, and renewal in order to assure 
that the variance between the revenue and expenditures 
does not exceed 10% in any biennium as required by § 
54.l-ll3 of the Code of Virginia. Such amendments are to 
simplify and maintain minimum standards in order to 
ensure public health, and apply to approximately 435 
hearing aid specialists. 

Substance and Issues: The proposed regulation incorporates 
additional definitions in Part I to include affidavit, board, 
department, reciprocity, reinstatement, and renewaL Also, 
the proposed regulation defines the specific term "hearing 
aid specialist" which is currently not defined in the Code 
of Virginia or the board's existing regulations. 

The current entry requirements for licensure are amended 
to require an applicant to provide additional information 
with his application to include: any current or licensing 
information as a hearing aid specialist, any convictions of 
a misdemeanor or felony, a physical address, and the 
completion of an irrevocable consent if a nonresident 
applying for a hearing aid specialists license. 

The provisions regarding temporary permits are 
substantially the same with the amendment requiring a 
temporary permit holder to sit for the examination upon 
the expiration date of the extended temporary permit. 

The proposed regulation allows a physician applying for 
licensure to provide verification of successful completion 
of a residency or training program or verification of 
certification by the American Board of Otolaryngology. 
Initially, the board required only the certification. 

Examination provisions are clarified and incorporate board 
policy. Applicants for licensure shall pass a two part 
examination, of which Part I is a written examination and 
Part II is a practical examination. The proposed regulation 
eliminates the passing score of 75 on each section as 
stated in the current regulations. Provisions regarding 
reexamination of failed sections are addressed. 

The proposed regulation incorporates staggered renewals in 
which the license will expire 24 months from the last day 
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of the month in which it is issued as indicated on the 
license. 

The proposed regulation addresses procedures and 
requirements for renewal and reinstatement, and the 
board's discretion to deny such. The late penalty fee in 
the existing regulations has been eliminated. The proposed 
regulation requires a licensee to submit the required 
renewal fee within one calendar month (grace period) of 
the expiration date on the license. One calendar month 
after the license expires, the licensee is eligible for 
reinstatement and shall apply accordingly. After 12 months 
reinstatement is no longer possible and the former 
licensee must apply anew meeting all current entry 
requirements. 

Additional provisions regarding the Standards of Practice 
and Conduct are included in the proposed regulations, 
specifically regarding maintenance of a license. 

The proposed regulation incorporates board policy 
regarding the use of purchase agreement terminology to 
comply with the Model Purchase Agreement provided by 
the board. 

The proposed regulations have been amended for clarity, 
simplicity, and readability. The primary advantage 
resulting from the adoption of the proposed regulations is 
that persons will be able to more readily identify and 
comprehend provisions. The Hearing Aid Specialists Board 
does not anticipate any disadvantage to the public or 
agency. 

Estimated Impact: 

A. Numbers and Types of Regulated Entities/Persons 
Affected. 

These regulations apply to approximately 435 licensed 
hearing aid specialists. The economic and regulatory 
impact of the proposed changes on the regulants is 
estimated to be minimal. 

No localities particularly affected by the proposed 
regulations have been identified. 

~ Projected Costs i.Q the State lor Implementation and 
Enforcement. 

Costs are shown in the regulations in the form of fees 
for initial application, examination fees, and renewal 
of licenses. The fees were established in accordance 
with § 54.1-113 of the Code of Virginia and were 
based on the current regulated population with 
approximately a 95% renewal rate. The fees have 
been set to ensure the sufficient revenues cover the 
expenditures of the program including administrative 
costs. 

~ Projected Costs for Printing and Distribution. 

Costs for implementation of the amended regulations 
are estimated to be limited to the costs of printing 
and mailing of the proposed and final regulations to 
those currently licensed and those on the board's 
Public Participation Guidelines list. The board will 
notify all regulated entities and interested parties 
regarding the proposed regulations, the public hearing, 
and comment period by mail and will forward a copy 
of the proposed regulations upon request The final 
regulations will be distributed to affected parties. The 
estimated cost lor printing and mailing is $1.020. 

. D. Projected Costs 1Q Regulated Entities. 

The proposed fee increases are recommended to 
ensure sufficient revenues are available to cover 
administrative costs of the program. The proposed fee 
structure is as follows: 

Currf'nt Proposecd 
Fee~ Fee Fee Inc~ 

Application Fee for Exam/Temporary $60 $130 +$70 
Pf'rmi l 

£xami na lion Foe $40 $110 1$70 

Temporary Permit Fee $60 $130 +$70 

*Fee foe Licensure b, RPc i proc i ty $120 $Hl0 +$70 

Fee foe L j Cf-'nsurH for Physician. $120 $1:\0 +$10 

• *Ri'- exam ina t ion Fee (Per Part) $25 $95 +$70 

License Renewal Fee $1 10 $175 +$65 

Reinstatement $220 $350 +$130 

*Fee includHs f'xamination foe if applicant rcoquirf'd to sit for <'xam 
as a condition of approval for reciprocity. 

•~Fee is based per Hxaminal ion part (1 and/or Tl) rE'gardless of the 
number or sections needed to be retaken. 

The board has also proposed three new fees: a) bad 
check lee ($25) for those individuals checks that are 
dishonored by a financial institution; b) a certificate of 
licensure fee ($25) for a licensee requesting a letter 
of good standing; and c) duplicate wall certificate fee 
($25) for those licensees requesting an additional 
certificate. Currently, the board and the department 
absorb these costs. 

E. Projected Expenditures and Revenues for the 1992~94 
Biennium. 

Projected Expenditures 1992-94 Biennium 

Projected Revenues for 1992m94 Biennium 

$101.928 

$ 64,105 

Projected Revenue Balance 0 6/30/94 (Carryforward) 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... ($37,823) 

Under New Fee Structure: 

Projected Expenditures 1994-96 Biennium 

Projected Revenues lor 1994-96 Biennium 

$ 90.081 

$136,061 
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Biennium Surplus/ (Shortfall) ........... $ 45,980 

Cumulative Projected Revenue Balance (a; 6/30/96 
....................................... ' .... '.' .... $ 8,157 

Projected % Revenue Iii• 6/30/96 ............. .. 6.00% 

E Sources Qf Funds lQ Address Fiscal Impact. 

This program is fully supported by the fees received 
for licensure and renewal. 

Summary: 

The proposed regulation is divided into five parts, 
and establish additional definitions, clarify entry 
requirements, provide information regarding 
~~aminations, implement new provisions for renewal 
and reinstatement, and clanfy standards of practice 
and conduct. 

The proposed regulation defines the following 
terminology which is not defined in the current 
regulations governing hearing aid specialists: affidavit, 
board, department, reciprocity, reinstatement, renewal 
and hearing aid specialist. 

The proposed regulation establishes additional entry 
requirements for licensure. An applicant shall indicate 
whether he is a licensed hearing aid specialist in good 
standing in another jurisdiction, shall disclose any 
disciplinary action pending or taken in connection 
with such license, and shall disclose any convictions 
of a misdemeanor or felony. Also, an applicant shall 
indicate zf he has been previously licensed as a 
Virginia hearing aid specialist, disclose his physical 
address and sign an affidavit certifying that he has 
read and understands the law and regulations of the 
board. The proposed regulation allows the board to 
make further inquiries and investigations with respect 
to the qualifications of an applicant. 

Nonresidents applying for a license via reciprocity 
will be required to file an irrevocable consent for the 
department to serve as service agent for any actions 
file¢ in a Virginia court. 

The provisions regarding temporary permits are 
substantially the same with the amendment requiring 
a temporary permit holder to sit for the examination 
upon the expiration date of the extended temporary 
permit. 

The proposed regulation allows a physician applying 
for licensure to provide verification of successful 
completion of a residency or training program or 
venfication of certification by the American Board of 
Otolaryngology. 

Examination provisions have been 
incorporate existing board policy. 
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licensure shall pass a two part examination, of which 
Part I is a written examination and Part II is a 
practical examination. The current passing score of 75 
on each section as stated in the existing regulations 
has been eliminated. Candidates falling more than one 
section of the written examination wlll be required to 
retake both sections. Candidates failing one or more 
sections of the practical examination wzll be required 
to retake only those sections failed. Also, the board 
proposes to allow candzdates three successive 
scheduled examinations to pass the examination. 
Those candidates who fail upon the third attempt will 
be required to apply anew and repeat the entire 
examination. Temporary permit holders permits will 
expire upon receipt of the examination fazlure letter 
resulting from the third attempt. Current regulations 
!lilow <;andid!ltes two attempts to pass the licensing 
examination. 

The proposed regulation addresses the increase in fees 
for initial application, examination, renewal and 
reinstatement. Such increases have been established in 
accordance with § 54.1-/13 of the Code of Virginia. 

The proposed regulation incorporates staggered 
renewals in which the license will expire 24 months 
from the last day of the month in which it was 
issued. Therefore, not all licenses will expire in 
December of even~numbered years. 

Requirements and procedures for renewal and 
reinstatement are clarified in Part III and Part IV 
The proposed regulation eliminates the late penalty 
fee and amends the time period in which a licensee 
may apply for reinstatement. Licensees failing to 
renew their license within one calendar month after 
its expiration date shall be required to apply for 
reinstatement. Twelve months after the expiration 
date on the license reinstatement is no longer possible 
and the former licensee shall reapply for licensure 
meeting all entry requirements in the regulations. 
Provisions regarding the status of a license during the 
period before reinstatement are addressed. 

The standards of practice and conduct have been 
amended to include provisions for license maintenance 
and for promptly producing business records to the 
board or its agent upon request. 

The proposed regulation incorporates board policy 
regarding the use of purchase agreement terminology 
to comply with the Model Purchase Agreement 
provided by the board. 

All other proposed amendments are for clarity, 
simplicity, and readability in order for persons to 
more readzly identify and comprehend provisions. 

VR 375-01-02. Board for Hearing Aid Specialists 
Regulations. 
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PART I. 
GENERAL DEFINITIONS. 

§ LL Definitions. 

The following words and terms, when used in these 
regulations, shall have the following meaning, unless the 
context clearly indicates otherwise: 

"Afftdavtt" means a wrdten statement of facts, made 
voluntarily, and confirmed by the oath or affirmation of 
the party making it, taken before a notary or other 
person having the authority to administer such oath or 
affirmation. 

"Audic!ogist" means any person who accepts 
compensation for examining, testing, evaluating, treating or 
counseling persons having or suspected of having disorders 
or conditions affecting hearing and related communicative 
disorders or who assists persons in the perception of sound 
and is not authorized by another regulatory or health 
regulatory board to perform any such services. 

"Board" means the Board for Hearing Aid Specialists. 

"Department" means the Department of Professional 
and Occupational Regulation. 

"Hearing aid specialist" means a person who engages in 
the practice of fitti'ng and dealing in hearing aids or who 
advertises or displays a sign or represents himself as a 
person who practices the fitting and dealing of hearing 
aids. 

"Licensed sponsor means a licensed hearing aid 
specialist who is responsible for training one or more 
individuals holding a temporary permit. 

"Licensee" means any person holding a valid license 
lffi<ler !his eliaj>!er issued by the Board for Hearing Aid 
Specialists for the practice of fitting and dealing in 
hearing aids, as defined in § 54.1-1500 of the Code of 
Virginia . 

"Otolaryngologist" means a licensed phySician 
specializing in ear, nose and throat disorders. 

"Otologist" means a licensed physician specializing in 
diseases of the ear. 

"Reciprocity.. means an agreement between two or 
more states that will recognize and accept one another's 
regulations and laws for privzleges for mutual benefit. 

"Reinstatement" means having a license restored to 
effectiveness after the expiration date has passed. 

"Renewal" means continuing the effectiveness of a 
license for another period of time. 

"Temporary permit holder'' means any person who holds 

a valid temporary permit under this chapter. 

§ 1.2. Explanation of terms. 

Each reference in these regulations to a person shall be 
deemed to refer, as appropriate, to the masculine and the 
feminine, to the singular and the plural, and to the 
natural persons and organizations. 

PART IL 
ENTRY REQUIREMENTS. 

§ 2.1. Eitffy feqairements. Basic qualifications for 
liCensure. 

The a~~lieaat - meet !l;e fsllawiag efttfy 
FeEj:l::l:iremeats: A. Every applicant to the board for a 
license shall provide information on his application 
establishing that: 

lc 'fhe a~plieaH! SOOil - an applieatiaH fee af 

* 
'k I. The applicant - ae is at least 18 years of 
age. 

-3-;- 2. The applicant sftaH: fta.v.e- has a good reputation 
for honesty, truthfulness, and fair dealing, and be is 
competent to transact the business of a hearing aid 
specialist in such a manner as to safeguard the 
interests of the public. 

3. The applicant iS in good standing as a licensed 
hearing ald specialist in every jurisdiction where 
licensed. The applicant must disclose if he has had a 
license as a hearing aid specialist which was 
suspended, revoked, surrendered in connection with a 
disciplinary action or which has been the subject of 
discipline in any jurisdiction prior to applying for 
licensure in Virginia. At the time of application for 
licensure, the applicant must also disclose any 
disciplinary action taken in another jurisdiction in 
connection with the applicant's practice as a hearing 
aid specialist. The applicant must also disclose 
whether he has been previously licensed in Virginia 
as a hearing aid speciali'it. 

4. The applicant SOOil !iftve has successfully completed 
high school or a high school equivalency course. 

5. The applicant is fit and suited to engage in the 
practice of fitting and dealing in hearing aids. The 
applicant SOOil ft8t !iftve must disclose if he has been 
convicted in any jurisdiction of a misdemeanor 
involving fft&ftl- tl::I:Ff)itHcle lying, cheating, stealing, 
sexual offense, drug distnbution, physical injury, or 
relating to the practice of the profession or of any 
felony. Any plea of nolo contendere shall be 
considered a conviction for purposes of this paragraph. 
The record of a conviction authenticated in such form 
as to be admissible in evidence under the laws of the 
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jurisdiction where convicted shall be admissible as 
prima facie evidence of such conviction. 

6. The applicant illltlll have has training and 
experience which covers the !ollowlng subjects as they 
pertain to hearing aid fitting and the sale of hearing 
aids, accessories and services: 

a. Basic physics of sound; 

b. Basic maintenance and repair of hearing aids; 

c. The anatomy and physiology of the ear; 

d. Introduction to psychological aspects of hearing 
loss; 

~. The fllnc!iml gf l!e~rin~ aids aM amplification; 

f. Visible disorders of the ear requiring medical 
referrals; 

g. Practical tests of proficiency in the required 
techniques as they pertain to the fitting of hearing 
aids; 

h. Pure tone audiometry, including air conduction, 
bone conduction, and related tests; 

L Live voice or recorded voice speech audiometry, 
inclllctin~ speech receptiml. tnre~notd te~ting and 
~peeeh cti§criminatioo t@§!ing. 

j. Masking when indicated; 

k. Recording and evaluating audiograms and speech 
audiology to determine the proper selection and 
adaptation of hearing aids; 

I. Taking earmold impressions; 

m. Proper earmold selection; 

n. Adequate instr~~tipn in proper hearing aid 
orfen.tatjon; 

o. Necessity of proper procedures in after-fitting 
checkup; and 

p. Availability of social service resources and other 
special resources for the hearing impaired. 

7. The applicant illltlll f'ffl"l<<e has provzded one of the 
following as verification of completion of the abe¥e 
training and experience as described in subdivision 6 
of this subsection : 

~· An ~!Mavit on ~ fPrm prgvi<led by the board 
~~~fi~Q IJy tlle lieense!l sppnsor certifying that the 
requiremenm have peen met; or 
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b. A certified true copy of a transcript of courses 
completed at an accredited college or university, or 
other notarized documentation of completion of the 
required experience and training. 

8. The applicant has disclosed his physical address. A 
post office box is not acceptable. 

9. The nonresident applicant for a license has filed 
and maintained with the department an irrevocable 
consent for the department to serve as service agent 
for all actions filed in any court in the 
Commonwealth. 

10. The applicant has signed, as part of the 
application, an affidavit certifying that the applicant 
has read and 11nderstands Chapter 15 (§ 54.1-1500 et 
seq) of Title 54.1 of the Code of Virginia and the 
regulations of the board. 

B. The board may make further inquiries and 
investigations with respect to the qualifications of the 
applicant or require a personal interview with the 
applicant or both. Failure of an applicant to comply with 
a written request from the board for additional 
information within 60 days of receiving such notice, 
except in such instances where the board has determined 
ineligibility for a clearly specified period of time, may be 
sufficient and just cause for disapproving the application. 

§ 2.2. Qualifications for a temporary permit. 

An individual seeking a temporary permit shall submit 
an application and the proper fees as listed in § 2.5. On 
the application for a temporary permit, the licensed 
sponsor shall certzfy that he assumes full responsibility for 
the competence and proper conduct of the temporary 
permit holder and will not assign the permit holder to 
carry out independent field work without on~site direct 
supervision until he is adequately trained for Such 
independent activity. 

I. A temporary permit shall be issued for a period of 
12 months and will be extended once for not longer 
than six months. After a period of 18 months an 
extension is no longer possible and the former 
temporary permit holder shall sit for the examination 
in accordance with this section. 

2. The temporary permit holder's licensed sponsor 
shall return the temporary permit to the board should 
the training program be discontinued for any reason. 

§ 2.3. Qualifications for licensure by reciprocity. 

An individual who is currently licensed as a hea.ring aid 
specialist in good standing in another jurisdiction may be 
granted a Virginia license provided the requirements and 
standards under which the license was issued are 
substantially equivalent to and not conflicting with the 
provisions of these regulations. Upon receipt of the 
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application for reciprocity and fee, and after _a review of 
the application, the board may grant a lzcense upon 
successful completion of specified sections of the 
examination. 

§ 2.4. License for physicians. 

An individual who is a physician licensed to practice in 
Virginia and certified by the American Board of 
Otolaryngology or eligible for such certification may apply 
for a hearing aid specialist license. The licen~ed physzczan 
shall not be required to pass an exammatwn as a 
prerequisite to obtaining a licen~e as a ~ea~ing ~id 
specialist. The licensee shall submzt an appllcCfliOn wzth 
either verzfication of certzfication by the Amencan Boa_rd 
of Otolaryngology or venfication of successful completwn 
of residency or training program, and submtt the proper 
fee referenced in § 2.5. 

§ 2.5. Fees. 

A. Ail fees are nonrefundable and shall not be prorated. 
The date of receipt by the board or its agent is t~e . date 
which wlil be used to determine whether or not zt zs on 
time. 

B. Application and examination fees must be submitted 
with the application for licensure. 

C. In the event that a check, money draft, or similar 
instrument for payment of a fee required by statute or 
regulation is not honored by the bank or financial 
institution named, the applicant or regulant shall be 
required to remit fees sufficient to cover the original fee, 
plus the additional processing charge shown below. 

The following fees apply: 

FEE TYPE 

Appl !cation FeP For Examination 
Candidates & Temporary Permit 
Candidates 

Examination Fee 

l.icensure F'PP for Reciprocity 
(includes exam fee) 

Licensure Fee for Physicians 

Temporary Permit Fee 

/leexamination Fee (per part) 
(Written or Practical) 

IIL'newa I 

Reinstatement 

Duplicate Wall Cr•rtit'icate 

Certificate of Licensure 

Dislwnored Check 

AMOUNT 
DUE WHEN DUE 

$130 1\'i th application 

$110 With application 

$190 With application 

$130 With application 

$130 k'i th application 

$ 95 With application 

$175 Up to the expiration 
date on the 1 i censc 
plw; 1 calendar 
month grace period 

$350 1-12 months after the 
expiration date 
on the I icense 

$ 25 With written request 

$ 25 Witl! written request 

$ 2$ Upon noiification from 

§ n. ElfamiHatiaa. 2.6. Exanunations. 

the financial 
institution 

A. All examinations required' /Or licensure shall be 
approved by the board and administered by the board, a 
testing service acting on behalf of the board, or another 
governmental agency or organization. 

B. The candidate for examination shall follow all rules 
established by the board with regard to conduct at the 
examination. Such rules shall include any written 
ir.zstructions communicated prior to the examination date 
and any instructions communicated at the site, either 
written or oral, on the date of the examination. Failure to 
comply with all rules established by the board and testing 
service with regard to conduct at the examination shall 
be grounds for denial of application. 

C. Applicants for licensure shall pass a two part 
examination, of which Part I is a written examination 
and Part II is a practical examination. 

It 1. The applicant shall pass ftft each section of the 
written and practical examination administered by the 
board with a minimam seare 6f '7fr oo eaelt see!ioo 6f 
tfte examiRatieH . Candidates failing one section of the 
written examination will be required to retake both 
sections. Candidates failing one or more sections of 
the practical examination will be required to retake 
only those sections failed. 

&. 2. Any applieaat candidate failing to achieve a 
passing score on all sections in Ew& three successive 
attempts tt> talfe H>e eJ<amiaatioa scheduled 
examinations must reapply as a new applicant for 
licensure and repeat all sections of the written and 
practical examination . 

&. 3. If the temporary permit holder fails to achieve a 
passing score on any section of the examination in 
twe- three successive attemiJts t:e talre tfte eJfBffiiHatiaH 
scheduled examinations , the temporary permit shall 
expire upon receipt of the examination failure letter 
resulting from the seeeat1 third attempt. 

I}.- +lie eJmminatiaR fee sftaH: Be -$4{h Bte FeeJramiH:atiaR 
fee - be m fur eaelt 6f - three seetioas lRI<eir. 

E-: PliysieiaRs lieeH:seB. te praetiee in Virginia anft 
eertiliea by H>e Amerieaa - 6f O!olaryHgology "" 
eHgihle fur sueh eertifiea!ian sllall oo! be re~Hirea te pass­
an: exaffiiRatien as a flFere€J:l.lisite te abtainiag a li€eftse as 
a beartftg ait! speeialist. 

s :!+. Temporary ~ 

k A temporary l"'fff'* sllall be isstlet! fur a pefie<l 6f 
H mooths arul will be el<tea<led ooee fur oo! loogef tftaft 
si7t ffiaHtft:s. 
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&. 'ffte a~~lieatiaa !ar a tem~erary pefffii-1 shall lftelt!de 
8ft aflilla•;it siglle<l by tile licesseEI SjfflflS8f cerlilyisg I!HH 
he assumes fuH respeasibili!y !ar tile eempeteaee RHEI 
Jlf6llCI' e<ffltltle! el tile temporary pefffii-1 fteldel' RHEI wffi 
RBI !lssigH the pefffii-1 l>a!EieF Ia ear<y aut iade~endeat Held­
W6flt \ffi!ll ftc ls a!le~uately !ra!aetl !ar sueb la!le~eallea! 
activity. 

&. 'ffte lieeaseEI SjfflflS8f shall - the temporary 
pefffii-1 Ia the fteartl sfteulEI tile traiHiftg ~regram ftc 
EliseeatiaueEI !ar aay reas-. 

% H. bieeHse by eallersemeat. 

Mp!ieaat§ ~ 11 efffeft! licease/cerliticate aa a 
fteafil>g aid specialist Ia aae!ller stale ffi' terri!ery ef tile 
Yfli!etl 5IH!es; baaeEI eft re~uiremeats e~uivaleat Ia RHEI RBI 
ceallieliag wi!lt the pravisieas ef !ftese regulalieas, may ftc 
gf8ft!eEI a lieeftse \ljl6ft sueeesslul eemplelien ef speei!ieEI 
seetieH:s ef Hie examieatieR at tfte Eliseretiea ef the beftffi 
alter a review ef the a~~licaliea. 'ffte fee !ar eallersemeat 
-ftc $6Go 

% 2+. bieeHse !ar pllysieiaas. 

1>c 'ffte fee !ar a lieeftse !ar ~11ysieiaas shall ftc $6Go 

&. 'ffte lieeasee shall alse aliael1 ¥CFilicatiea ef 
certiliealiea by the Amerieaa Illlard w Olela!)·agalagy. 

PART Ill. 
RENEWAL. 

§ 3.1. License renewal required. 

A; Licenses issued under these regulations shall expire 
eft December tH- ef eael1 evea aumbere!l l"'ftt' 'ffte 
Departmeat ef Cemmeree shall ffiftil a reaewal RB!Iee Ia 
the lieensee EH:ltliaing fue f)FeeeElures fef reaewal. FaffiH:.e 
Ia reeei¥e lllis RB!Iee shall RBI relie¥e the lieeasee ef the 
ab!igalien Ia ~ 24 months from the last day of the 
month in which they were fss.ued1 as indicated on the 
license. 

&. Eael> liceasee applyiag !ar reaewal shall - the 
reaewal RB!Iee RHEI a fee ef ~ Ia the Deparlmeal ef 
Cammeree pl16f Ia the CJ[piraliea dale 8ftewft eft the 
lieease, H the liceasee faHs Ia reeei¥e the reaewal neliee; 
a enpy ef the lieeftse may ftc submilieEI wi!lt the re~uireEI 
!ceo 

&. H the lieeasee faHs Ia reaew the lieeftse wi!ltiH ;N 
<lays alter the expiraliea tla!e; eft aEIEiitieaal fee ef ~ 
shall ftc re~aire<l. 

:&. H the lieeasee faHs Ia reaew wi!ltiH six maa!l>s ef 
the el<piratiea dale eft tile ~ the liceasee HH!SI "f''''Y 
Ia l>eve tile lieeftse feias!ale<l by submi!!iag a 
reiastatemeal !arm RHEI a reaewal fee ef ~ pffis eft 
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a<l!lilieaal ~ !ceo 

&. Uj><lft reeeiJ* ef the applieatiea l6f reiastatemeal aM­
the ke; the fte6fEI may grRB! reiastateraeat ef lfte lieeftse 
if the fteartl ls satis!ie<l I!HH tile applieaat eeatiaues Ia 
meel the re~uiremea!s !ar the ~ 'ffte fte6fEI ffiftY 
~ reEJ:Halifieatien, reexamiRatieR, er b€tfft; befere 
graRtiag t:fte reiHstatement. 

~ 'ffte fte6fEI may EleHy renewal ef a lieeftse !ar tile 
same reasetlS as H mey refHse if1.ili.a.l- lieeRS\:I:fe & 

<liseipliae a eurrea! !ieeasee. Uj><lft sueb <leftial; tile 
·~~lieaat ffiftY fCii:liCSl I!HH a fte6f!ag ftc ltelfr. 

&. All fees are aearelua<laele. 

§ 3.2. Procedures for renewal. 

The board wtll mail a renewal application form to the 
licensee at the last known address. Failure to receive tht:'i 
notice shall not relieve the licensee of the obligation to 
renew. Prior to the expiration date shown on the license, 
each licensee desiring to renew hiS license must return to 
the board all required forms and the appropriate fee as 
outlined in § 2.5 of these regulations. 

§ 3.3. Fees for renewal. 

Licensees shall be required to renew their license by 
submitting the proper fee made payable to the Treasurer 
of Virginia. Any licensee who fails to renew within one 
calendar month after the license expires shall be required 
to apply for reinstatement. 

§ 3.4. Board discretion to deny renewal. 

The board may deny renewal of a license for the same 
reasons as it may refuse initial licensure or discipline a 
licensee. The licensee is entitled to a review of such 
action. Appeals from such actions shall be in accordance 
with the provisions of the Administrative Process Act (§ 
9-6.14:1 et seq. of the Code of Virginia). 

Failure to timely pay any monetary penalty, 
reimbursement of cost, or other fee assessed by consent 
order or final order shall result in delaying or withholding 
service provided by the department, such as, but not 
limited to, renewal, reinstatement, processing of a new 
application, or examination administration. 

§ 3.5. Qualifications for renewal. 

Applicants for renewal of a license shall continue to 
meet the standards of entry as set forth in §§ 2.1 A 2, 2.1 
A 3, 2.1 A 5, 2.1 A 8 and 2.1 A 9 of these regulations. 

PART IV. 
REINSTATEMENT. 

§ 4.1. Reinstatement required. 
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If a licensee fails to meet the requirements for renewal 
and submit the renewal fee within one calendar month 
after the expiration date on the license, the licensee must 
app(v for reinstatement on a form provided by the board. 

I. Applicants for reinstatement shall continue to meet 
the standards of entry in §§ 2.1 A 2, 2.1 A 3, 2.1 A 5, 
2.1 A 8 and 2.1 A 9 of these regulations. 

2. Applicants for reinstatement shall submit the 
required fee referenced in § 2.5 of these regulations. 

3. Twelve months after the expiration date on the 
license, reinstatement is no longer possible. To resume 
practice as a hearing aid specialist, the former 
licer~see must apply as a new applicant for licensure, 
meeting all educational, examination, and experience 
requirements as liSted in the regulations current at 
the time of reapplication. 

4. Any hearing aid specialist activity conducted 
subsequent to the expiration date of the license may 
constitute unlicensed activity and may be subftxt to 
prosecution under§ 54.1-Jl1 of the Code of Virginia. 

§ 4.2. Board discretion to deny reinstatement. 

The board may deny reinstatement of a license for the 
same reasons as it may refuse initial licensure or 
discipline a licensee. The licensee is entitled to a review 
of such action. Appeals from such actions shall be in 
accordance with the provisions of the Administrative 
Process Act(§ 9-6.14:1 et seq. of the Code of Virginia). 

Failure to timely pay any monetary penalty, 
reimbursement of cost, or other fee assessed by consent 
order or final order shall result in delaying or withholding 
services proVided by the department, such as, but not 
limited to, renewal, reinstatement, processing of a new 
application, or examination administration. 

§ 4.3. Status of license during the period prior to 
reinstatement. 

A. When a licensee is reinstated, the license shall 
continue to have the same license number and shall be 
assigned an expiration date two years from the previous 
expiration date of the license. 

B. A licensee who reinstates his license shalf be 
regarded as having been continually licensed without 
interruption. Therefore, the licensee shall remain under the 
dtSciplinary authority of the board during the entire 
period and may be held accountable for his activities 
during this period. Nothing in these regulations shall 
divest the board of its authority to discipline a licensee 
for a violation of the law or regulations during the period 
of licensure. 

PART We V 
STANDARDS OF PRACTICE AND CONDUCT . 

§ 5.1. Fines; revocation or suspension of license. 

The board may fine a licensee, or revoke or suspend a 
license, or both, when a licensee has been found to have 
violated or cooperated with others in violating any 
provision of Chapter 15 (§ 54.1-1500 et seq.) of Title 54.1 
of the Code of Virginia, or any regulation of the board. 

§ 5.2. Maintenance of licenses. 

A. Notice in writing shall be given to the board in the 
event of any change of business or individual name or 
address. Such notice shall be mailed to the board within 
30 days of the change of the name or location. The board 
shall not be responsible for the licensee's failure to receive 
notices, communiCations and correspondence caused by 
the licensee's failure to promptly notify the board in 
writing of any change of name or address. 

B. All licensees shall operate under the name in which 
the license is issued. 

C. All licenses issued by the board must be visibly 
displayed in such a manner that the public can easily 
read the name of the licensee. 

§ 4±- 5.3. Business records and practice. 

'ffte following regalatieas A. This section shall apply 
with reference to the licensee's official records and public 
access. 

It B. The licensee shall keep on record with the board 
the location of the licensee's records, which shall be 
accessible to the board, with or without notice, during 
reasonable business hours. Bie lieensee sftaH: £tetHy tfte 
l3eaffi iH Wfi!iHg 6f any €l!aHge 6f ~hysical a<!tlress -
;J{) <lays 6f SHeb el>aflgeo A j36SE effiee b6lf is Het 
eaflsielefeel a f)fiysieal afi6Fess. The licensee must promptly 
produce to the board or any of its agents, upon request 
or demand, any document, book, record or copy thereof in 
the licensee's possession or control concerning a 
transaction covered by these regulations or for which the 
licensee is required to maintain records. 

&. C. The licensee shall be accessible to the public for 
expedient, reliable and dependable services, repairs, and 
accessories. 

§ 4-;-l-;- 5.4. Documentation provided to each purchaser. 

The licensee shall deliver to each purchaser at the time 
of a sale, repair or service: 

I. A receipt signed by the licensee 
licensee's business address, license 
business telephone number, and 

and showing 
number and 

a. The make and model of the hearing aid to be 
furnished, repaired or serviced and, in addition, 
serial numbers on models to be repaired and 
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serviced; and 

b. The full terms of the sale clearly stated. 

2. If an aid which is not new is sold or rented, the 
purchase agreement and the hearing aid container 
shall be clearly marked "used" or "reconditioned," 
whichever is applicable, with terms of warranty, if 
any. 

§ 4± 5.5. Measures to take when first contact is 
established with any purchaser or potential purchaser. 

A. When first contact is established with any purchaser 
or prospective purchaser outside the hearing aid 
wecia/ist's office ' the licensee shall ' t provide a 
disclosur~ form prescribed by the board containing 
information that the person will need to obtain 
service/maintenance wlteft lfte ...ae. is lal<eft ootside lfte 
speeiolisl's effiee . The disclosure form shall include: 

tt 1. Address and telephone number where the 
hearing aid specialist can be reached. 

IT. 2. Days and hours contact can be made; 

e: 3. Whether service/maintenance will be provided in 
the office or in the person's home; 

d; 4, )f the hearing aid specialist llas an office, name 
qnd address of the office as listed with the board; and 

e; 5. If the hearing aid specialist has no office in 
Virginia, a clear statement that there is no office in 
Virginia ; . 

B. When first contact is established with any purchaser 
or prospective purchaser inside the hearing aid specialist's 
office, the licensee shall: 

'!, 1. Advise that person that hearing aid specialists 
are not licensed to practice medicine; and 

&.- 2. Advise that person that no examination or 
representation made by the specialist should be 
regarded as a medical examination, opinion, or advice. 

a. A statement that this initial advice was given to 
the purchaser shall be entered on the purchase 
agreement in print as large as the other printed 
matter on the receipt. 

b. Exemption: Hearing aid specialists who are 
physicians licensed to practice medicine in Vfrginia 
are exempt from the requirements of subaivisieRs ~ 
aoo 6 ef 1f +.6 this subsection . 

§ +.+.- 5.6. Purchase agreement terminology. 

The following terminology shall be used on all purchase 
agreements in accordance with the Model Purchase 
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Agreement provided b_v the board : 

1. The undersigned seller agrees to sell and the 
undersigned purchaser agrees to purchase hearing 
aid(s) and accessories, according to terms set forth 
below: 

a. The purchaser was advised that the seller is not 
a physician licensed to practice medicine; and 

b. No examination or representation made by the 
seller should be regarded as a medical examination, 
opinion, or advice. 

2. Exemption: Hearing aid specialists who are 
physicians licensed to practice medicine in Virginia 
are exempt from the requirements of subdivisions 1 a 
and b of * +.4 this section . 

§ 4+ 5.7. Fitting and sale of hearing aids for children. 

Any person engaging in the fitting and sale of hearing 
aids for a child under 18 years of age shall: 

1. Ascertain whether such child has been examined by 
a otolaryngologist for recommendation within six 
months prior to fitting; and 

2. No child shall be fitted without such 
recommendation. 

§ 4-:-6-: 5.8. Physician statement regarding adult client's 
medical evaluation of hearing loss. 

A. Each licensee or holder of a temporary permit, in 
counseling and instructing adult clients and prospective 
adult clients related to the testing, fitting, and sale of 
hearing aids, shall be required to recommend that the 
client obtain a written statement signed by a licensed 
physician stating that the patient's hearing loss has been 
medically evaluated within the preceding six months and 
that the patient may be a candidate for a hearing aid. 
Should the client decline the recommendation: 

1. A statement of such declination shall be obtained 
from the client over his signature. 

2. Fully informed adult patients (18 years of age or 
older) may waive the medical evaluation because of 
personal or religious beliefs. 

3. The hearing aid specialist is prohibited from 
actively encouraging a prospective user to waive a 
medical examination. 

* tt B. The information provided in subdivisions 1 and 
2 of * 4-:-6- subsection A of tht:'i section must be made a 
part of the client's record kept by the hearing aid 
specialist. 

§ +.& 5.9. Testing procedures. 
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It shall be the duty of each licensee and holder of a 
temporary permit engaged in the fitting and sale of 
hearing aids to use appropriate testing procedures for each 
hearing aid fitting. All tests and case history information 
must be retained in the records of the specialist. The 
established requirements shall be: 

1. Air Conduction Tests A.N.S.L standard frequencies 
of 500-1000-2000-4000 Hertz. Appropriate masking must 
be used if the difference between the two ears is 40 
dB or more at any one frequency. 

2. Bone Conduction Tests are to be made on every 
client-A.N.S.l. standards at 500-1000-2000-4000 Hertz. 
Proper masking is to be applied if the air conduction 
and bone conduction readings for the test ear at any 
one frequency differ by 15 dB or if lateralization 
occurs. 

3. Speech testings shall be made before and after 
fittings, and the type of test(s), method of 
presentation, and results noted. 

4. The specialist shall check for the following 
conditions and, if they are found to exist, shall refer 
the patient to a physician unless the patient can show 
that his present condition is under treatment or has 
been treated: 

a. Visible congenital or traumatic deformity of the 
ear. 

b. History of active drainage from the ear within 
the previous 90 days. 

c. History of sudden or rapidly progressive hearing 
loss within the previous 90 days. 

d. Acute or chronic dizziness. 

e. Unilateral hearing loss of sudden or recent onset 
within the previous 90 days. 

f. Audiometric air bone gap equal to or greater than 
15 dB at 500 Hertz, 1000 Hertz, and 2000 Hertz. 

g. Visible evidence or significant cerumen 
accumulation or a foreign body in the ear canaL 

h. Tinnitus as a primary symptom. 

i. Pain or discomfort in the ear. 

5. All tests shall have been conducted no more than 
six months prior to the fitting. 

§ +.9-: 5.10. Calibration statement required. 

A. Audiometers used in testing the hearing impaired 
must be in calibration. 

B. Calibration must be done once a year or more often, 
if needed. 

C. A certified copy of an electronic audiometer 
calibration made within the past 12 months must be 
submitted to the board annually no later than November 1 
of each year. 

§ +.14 5.11. Grounds for discipline. 

The board may fine any licensee , or suspend or revoke 
any license issued under the provisions of Chapter 15 of 
Title 54.1 of the Code of Virginia and the regulations of 
the board at any time af!eF a lleaHHg eoHEIHeteel , or both, 
pursuant to the provisions of the Administrative Process 
Act, Chapter 1.1:1 of Title 9 of the Code of Virginia when 
the licensee has been found in violation of: 

1. Improper conduct, including but not limited to: 

a. Obtaining or renewing a license by false or 
fraudulent representation; 

b. Obtaining any fee or making any sale by fraud or 
misrepresentation; 

c. Employing any person to fit and sell hearing aids 
frHj" l*ffl6ft who does .'lOt hold a valid license or a 
temporary permit, or whose license or temporary 
permit is suspended; 

d. Using, causing, or promoting the use of any 
misleading, deceptive, or untruthful advertising 
matter, promotional literature, testimonial, guarantee, 
warranty, label, brand, insignia, or any other 
representation, whether disseminated orally or 
published; 

e. Advertising a particular model or type of hearing 
aid for sale when purchasers or prospective 
purchasers responding to the advertisement cannot 
purchase the advertised model or type; 

f. Representing that the service or advice of a 
person licensed to practice medicine or audiology 
will be used in the selection, fitting, adjustment, 
maintenance, or repair or hearing aids when that is 
not true; or using the words "physician," 
"audiologist," "clinic," "hearing service," "hearing 
center," or similar description of the services and 
products provided when such use is not accurate; or 

g, Direetly "" imlireetly gWiHg; "" efferiag te gWe, 
flw6fs er aeytlliag ei va1tte te any !><'fSOO wlffi te 
tlleif prefessieeal eapaeity HSeS tlleif pesilioo te 
iBflHenee tlii-ffi f*iFHes te puFeftase flFeElueEs e#eretl: 
leT sale by a lleaHHg aid speeialist; "" 

lt g. Failing to provide expedient, reliable and 
dependable services when requested by a client or 
client's guardian. 
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2. Failure to include on the sales contract a statement 
regarding home solicitation, as required by federal 
and state law. 

3. Incompetence or negligence in fitting or selling 
hearing aids. 

4. Failure to provide required or appropriate training 
resulting in incompetence or negligence by a 
temporary permit holder under the licensee's 
sponsorship. 

5. Violation of any other requirement or prohibition of 
Part IV of these rules. 

6. Violating or cooperating with others in violating any 
provisions of Chapter 15 of Title 54.1 of the Code of 
Virginia or any regulation of the board. 

7. Having been convicted or found guilty regardless of 
adjudication in any jurisdiction of the United States of 
any felony or of a misdemeanor involving moral 
turpitude there being no appeal pending therefrom or 
the time for appeal having elapsed. Any pleas of nolo 
contendere shall be considered a conviction for the 
purpose of this paragraph. The record of a conviction 
certified or authenticated in such form as to be 
admissible in evidence of the law of the jurisdiction 
where convicted shall be admissible as prima facie 
evidence of such guilt. 

AH ~revieus !'Hies af lite BeaRi fef IleariRg Ai<l 
S~eeialists are re~ealed. 

§ 5.12. Accountability of licensee. 

A licensee shall be responsible for the acts or omissions 
of his staff in the performance of the fitting and 
dispensing of hearing azd services. 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94·1132; Filed July 20, 1994, 11:57 a.m. 

Vol. 10, Issue 23 

5661 

Proposed Regulations 

Monday, August 8, 1994 



::;: .., 
"" ;;· 
s· 
;o 
"' cro 

~I 
c;;· 
~ 

"' .., 
0 -;o 
"' "" " 0 
6· 
" "' 

1994 Commonwealth of Virginia 
Board for Hearing Aid Specialists 

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation 
P.O. Box 11066 . , "., 

Richmond, VA 23230-1066 , __ .'_-'\ 
(804) 367~2039 --.' 

-:._.:··V: 

APPLICATION FOR A HEARING AID SPECL<\LISTS LICENsE'""'-Zt.) 

Applicants applying for licensure Applicants applying for licensure by 
examination and/or for a temporary 
permit shall submit the required fees: 

via reciprocity/physicians check 
appropriate category and submit the 
required fee: 
_Licensure by Reciprocity- $190 

(includes exam fee) 

Application Fee- $130 
Examination Fee - $110 
Temporary Permit Fee - $130 Licensure for Physicians- $130 

Make all checks or money orders payable to the Treasurer of Virginia. All fees are 
nonrefundable. 

PART I GENERAL INFORMATION (To be completed by all applicants) 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

Full Name 

Date of Birth S.S.N. ---------

Street Address 

City------- State Zip Code-------

Phone No. 

Business Address 

Phone No. L-l--------

Have you ever pleaded guilty, entered a plea of nolo contendere or been convicted of 
a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, sexual offense, drug diS!flbUlion. or physical 
injury, or any felony? Yes No 
If yes. please explain =-----::-~-=------------------

!Arroch opf}ropriol" dacumMI~<•MI 

Have you ever had a license/registration as a hearing a1d spec+al+st revoked. 
suspended. or subject to diSCiplinary actwn !including probation. fine. repnmand. or 
surrender! in Virg+ma or any other jurisdiction? __ '"' __ No 
If yes. please expla1n 

Have _vou ever hnd a license as a hearing aid speci<JIISt in the Commonwealth of 
VIIQinia or in any other jurisdiCt+on;> Yes No If "ves", {liVe l+ccnse No. 

nnd the years held ~ ~ !Arloch copy of l•c~n-•~ d wrrenl/ 

2 

PART ll EDUCATION/EXPERIENCE 

A. Attach certification of high school graduation or equivalency. 

B. PROFESSIONAL HEARING AID RELATED EXPERIENCE 

Employer's Name and Name of Dept. 
Dates Address Description of Duties Head/Supervisor 

To: I From: 

To: 
From: 

To: 
From: 

C. Are you certified by the National Institute of Hearing Instruments Specialists 

D. 

E. 

(NIHISI? Yes No II yes, attach copy of your curre"r NIHIS cerMic~re. 

PHYSICIANS ONLY- Are you certified by the American Board of Otolaryngology? 
Yes No (If yes, fltr~ch copy of current cerMic,.te; If no, fltrach letter vorifyinfl completion 

of residency/lr~ming pror;rom! 

What is your primary purpose in applying for this license and where will you 
practice upon being licensed? 

PART U1 IRREVOCABLE DESIGNATION OF AGENT FOR THE SERVICE OF 
PROCESS (Complete if non-resident applicant applying for reciprocity) 

KNOW All MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

The undersigned, , being an applicant for licensure as a 
non-res•dent hearing aid specialist of the Commonwealth of Virginia, does hereby irrevocably 
designata and appoint the Director of the Department of Professional and Occupational 
Regulation as his/her agent for the purpose of accepting service of any and all processes as 
issued by any court 1n the Commonwealth of Virginia, as well as service ot all plead1ngs and 
other papers, relating in any way to any action. suit or legal proceeding ansing out of or 
pertn1ntng to his/her duties or responsibilities as a hearing a1d specialist in Virgin1a. The 
undersigned further consents, stipulates and agrees that any lawful process served upon the 
aforesaid agent shall have the same leg;;~l force and val+dity as if served upon the unders•gned 
personally within the tsrare of LeQal R~s,aence/ and that the 
authority conta•ned here1n sh<JII continua 1n force and effect so long as any li<Jbllity Cl(]iHnst the 
undersigned remains outstanding in the Commonwealth of Virg,ma. 

This--------- d<Jy of. , 19 

Signature of Hea11ng Aid Specwltsl 

"tt .., 
= 'Q 

= r:ll 
("!) 
Q. 

~ 
("!) 

C1Cl 

= -~ ..... ..... 
= = r:ll 
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Proposed Regulations 

Commonwealth of Virginia ,,''> ~" 
Board for Hearing Aid Specialist~--.,""-

Department of Professional & Occupational-RCg1,11ation 
P. 0. Box 11066 '' . .() 
Richmond, Virginia 23230-1106 
(804) 367~8593 

APPLICATION FOR REEXAAUNATION 

1994 

FOR OFFICE 
USE ONLY 

Pend.l __ , .. 
Cl~•·---

Lie.# 
08!8 

Coda 

Please check appropriate examination(s) and submit the appropriate fees. Make check or money order payable 
to the Treasurer of Virginia. All fees are nonrefundable. 

Part 1: Board Written Examination· $95 

Section 1 - NIHIS Exam 
Section II - VA Rules and Regs 

PART I: CANDIDATE INFOIU\.-lATION 

A. NAME 

Part II: Board Practical Examination • $95 

Section I - Administration of Audiometric Tests 
Section II - Taking of Earmold Impression 

=Section Ill- Trouble Shooting of Hearing Aid Problems 

STREET ADDRESS----------------------

CITY ________ STATE---- ZIP _______ _ 

PHONE DATE OF BIRTH---------

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER---------

B. DATE OF LAST EXA1HNATION TAKEN:---------------

DATE OF EXAMINATION APPLYING FOR:----------------

C. SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT:----------------

DATE: _____ _ 
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DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES 
(BOARD OF) 

Title Q1 Regulation: State Plan lor Medical Assistance 
Relating to Balloon Loan Financing. 
VR 460-03-4.1940:1. Nursing Home Payment System. 

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia. 

Public Hearing Date: N I A - Written comments may be 
submitted through October 7, 1994. 

(See Calendar of Events section 
for additional information) 

Basis and Authority: Section 32.1-325 of the Code of 
Virginia grants to the Board of Medical Assistance Services 
(BMAS) tM authority to administer and amenrl the Plan 
for Medical Assistance. The Code also provides. in the 
Administrative Process Act (APA) § 9-6.14:7.1. for this 
agency's promulgation of proposed regulations subject to 
the Governor's reviews. The agency's Notice of Intended 
Regulatory Action was published in the September 6, 1993, 
Virginia Register. There were no respondents. 

Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 447, 
regulates the reimbursement for Medicaid covered 
services. 

Puroose: The purpose of this action is to amend the State 
Plan for Medical Assistance to specificqlly a<\<!ress existing 
reimbursement policies relating ·to [>glloon lQ!lQ financing 
in light of regulations addressing refinancing for nursing 
facilities. Nursing home providers render care to the 
benefit of the health, safety and welfare of their Medicaid 
patients. This amendment is the result of policies adopted 
by the Board of Medical Assistance Services on December 
14, 1992, regarding refinancing of balloon loans in 
response to requests by providers that DMAS establish a 
policy for balloon loan financing based on current State 
Plan language. This action incorporates the specific 
language of the balloon loan financing policy into the State 
Plan. 

Summary and Analysis: The section of the State Plan 
affected by this action is Attachment 4.19D to the State 
Plan (VR 460-03-4.1940:1). 

The Nursing Home Payment System (NHPS) provides that 
costs incurred due to a refinancing cannot exceed the total 
costs that would have been allowable had the refinancing 
not occurred. This could be interpreted to prohibit 
reimbursement for the refinancing of a balloon loan at the 
expiration of the term of the original note since payment 
of the balloon principal would eliminate the debt on the 
nursing facility and the associated interest cost to the 
Medicaid program. 

Providers were asking for a specific policy to address 
balloon loan financing due to the reluctance of financial 
institutions to make long-term loans to the health care 
industry. 

Vol. 10, Issue 23 
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The department developed this policy in 1992 to 
accommodate the needs of the provider community at a 
minimum cost to the Medicaid program. Under this policy 
as promulgated, § 2.4 of the NHPS would permit the 
refinancing of a balloon loan as limited by the procedures 
outlined below. 

The application of the policy provides that a balloon loan 
will be considered a variable interest rate loan with an 
amortization schedule computed on 27 years for financing 
of construction or purchase of a nursing facility or 15 
years for financing of furniture, fixtures, and movable 
equipment. For each cost reporting period, the provider 
will be paid the lesser of the actual interest incurred or 
interest computed on the amortization schedule and the 
lesser of actual loan costs or loan costs computed on the 
amortization schedule. To the extent that there is a credit 
created by the actual interest and loan costs being less 
than the interest and loan costs computed on the 
amortization schedule in some periods, the provider may 
recover interest and loan costs (otherwise allowable except 
for having exceeded the amounts computed on the 
schedule) in subsequent cost reporting periods up to the 
amount of the cumulative interest credit 

Issues: The principle advantages of this action are that 
treatment of this financing mechanism will now be defined 
and that all NF providers' balloon loans will receive 
consistent treatment. Additionally, this will allow providers 
to obtain financing through balloon loans and refinance 
balloon loans knowing the refmbursement effects in 
advance. The agency projects no negative issues involved 
in implementing this proposed change. 

The disadvantage of this policy is that there could be a 
timing difference between the incurring of costs and the 
reimbursement to the provider of those incurred costs. 

Impact: Providers have indicated to DMAS that they are 
unable to obtain long-term conventional financing, 
including variable rate loans, due to the reluctance of 
financial institutions to make long-term loans to the health 
care industry. The Virginia Health Care Association and 
several affected providers with balloon note financing 
objected to DMAS' policy of limiting refinancing 
amortization periods to that contained in the original 
balloon loan document Their objections were based upon 
the fact that the balloon notes and amortization periods 
were subject to change and the allegation that balloon 
notes sometimes have unreasonably short amortization 
schedules, especially on the original loan. The industry 
representatives proposed to DMAS a standard 30-year 
allowable amortization period for all balloon note 
refinancings. 

DMAS analyzed providers' filed cost reports from 1987 to 
May 1992 and determined they had the following types of 
financings: 

Number Avg of "' A"g Avg Fi Xf'd 

Loan Loans >y Loan Amort Loan ' ~ ~ Years Years Amount l..f shown 
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Balloon 8 28 2,497,777.78 11 

Conven !6 35 35 3,269,685.52 10 

lOA 32 7,752,7104.29 

Private 30 30 300' 000- ()() 

Two additional balloon loans were excluded since one had 
a balloon payment of $8.8 million which distorted the 
average loan amount and one had a projected amortization 
period of 142 years which distorted the average 
amortization period. 

As indicated, of 41 new facility financings during this 
approximately 4.5 year period, only 11 facilities (27%) 
were financed with balloon loans. 

To attempt to accommodate the needs of the provider 
community at minimum cost to the Commonwealth without 
encouraging the use of balloon note financing, DMAS 
considered, and consequently accepted, the use of a 
standard 27-year amortization schedule versus the 
industry's proposed 30-year schedule. The 27-year schedule 
is believed to be equitable for the entire provider 
community while granting those few providers with this 
type of financing sufficient time, at least 23 more years 
for the earliest known balloon notes, to make any required 
business decisions regarding refinancing or sale. 

Because this action more clearly delineates policies which 
have been in effect since December, 1992, its funding is 
provided for in the agency's current base appropriation. 
This action represents no new expenditures or savings. 

There are no recipients affected by this regulation. There 
are no additional projected costs or differences in program 
administration due to the proposed regulation. There are 
no localities which are uniquely affected by these 
regulations as they apply statewide. There are no 
additional costs of compliance to the public associated with 
this proposed regulation. 

Forms: No new forms will be required for implementation 
of this regulation. The existing forms required to 
administer the regulation are included in the cost report. 

Summary: 

The purpose of this action is to amend the State Plan 
for Medical Assistance to speczfically address existing 
reimbursement policies relating to balloon loan 
financing in light of regulations addressing refinancing 
for nursing faczlities. This amendment is the result of 
policies adopted by the Board of Medical Assistance 
Services on December 14, 1992, regarding refinancing 
of balloon loans in response to requests by providers 
that DMAS establish a policy for balloon loan 
financing based on current State Plan language. This 
action incorporates the specific language of the 
balloon loan financing policy into the State Plan. 

The section of the State Plan affected by this action 

is Attachment 4.19D to the State Plan (VR 
460-03-4.1940:1). 

The Nurs111g Home Payment System (NHPS) provides 
that costs incurred due to a refinancing cannot 
exceed the total costs that would have been allowable 
had the refinancing not occurred. This could be 
interpreted to prohibit reimbursement for the 
refinancing of a balloon loan at the expiration of the 
term of the original note since payment of the balloon 
principal would eliminate the debt on the nursing 
facility and the associated interest cost to the 
Medicaid program. 

Providers were asking for a specific policy to address 
balloon loan financing due to the reluctance of 
financial institutions to make long-term loans to the 
health care industry. 

The department developed this policy in 1992 to 
accommodate the needs of the provider community at 
a minimum cost to the Medicaid program. Under thiS 
policy as promulgated, § 2.4 of the NHPS would 
permit the refinancing of a balloon loan as limited by 
the procedures outlined below. 

The application of the policy proVIdes that a balloon 
loan will be considered a variable interest rate loan 
with an amortiZation schedule computed on 27 years 
for financing of construction or purchase of a nursing 
facility or 15 years for financing of furniture, fixtures, 
and movable equipment. For each cost reporting 
period, the provider will be paid the lesser of the 
actual interest incurred or interest computed on the 
amortization schedule and the lesser of actual loan 
costs or loan costs computed on the amortization 
schedule. To the extent that there is a credit created 
by the actual interest and loan costs being less than 
the interest and loan costs computed on the 
amortization schedule in some periods, the provider 
may recover interest and loan costs (otherwise 
allowable except for having exceeded the amounts 
computed on the schedule) in subsequent cost 
reporting periods up to the amount of the cumulative 
interest credit. 

The principle advantages of this action are that 
treatment of this financing mechanism will now be 
defined and that all NF providers' balloon loans will 
receive consistent treatment. Additionally. this will 
allow providers to obtain financing through balloon 
loans and refinance balloon loans knowing the 
reimbursement effects in advance. The agency projects 
no negative tSsues involved in implementing this 
proposed change. 

The disadvantage of this policy is that there could be 
a timing difference between the incurring of costs and 
the reimbursement to the provider of those incurred 
costs. 
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Providers have indicated to DMAS that they are 
unable to obtain long-term conventional financing, 
includ1ng variable rate loans, due to the reluctance of 
financial institutions to make long·term loans to the 
health care industry. The Virginia Health Care 
Association and several affected providers with 
balloon note financing objected to DMAS' policy of 
limiting refinancing amortization periods to that 
contained in the original balloon loan document. Their 
objections were based upon the fact that the balloon 
notes and amortization periods were subject to 
change and the allegation that balloon notes 
sometimes have unreasonab(v short amortization 
schedules, especially on the original loan. The industry 
representatives proposed to DMAS a standard 30-year 
allowable amortization period for all balloon note 
refin(lflr:ing$. 

DMAS analyzed providers' filed cost reports from 
1987 to May 1992 and determined they had the 
following types of financings: 

Number Avg cf A~g Avg Avg Fixed 
Loan Loans "' Loan Amort Loan ' Ii:.E..f. :!1::..2f. YC'ar>; ~ Amount i..f shown 

Balloon 6 28 2,497,777.7H ll 

Conven. 16 35 3~ 3. 269 ,08~. 52 10 

IDA 14 32 7,752,764.29 8 

Private 30 30 300.000.00 ll 

Two additional balloon loqns were excluded since one 
had a balloon payment of $8.8 million which distorted 
the average loan amount and one had a projected 
amortization period of 142 years which distorted the 
average amortization period. As indicated, of 41 new 
facility financings during th1s approximately 4.5 year 
period, only l1 facilities (27%) were f1nanced with 
balloon loans. To attempt to accommodate the needs 
of the provider community at minimum cost to the 
Commonwealth without encouraging the use of 
balloon note financing, DMAS considered, and 
consequently accepted, the use of a standard 27~year 
amortization schedule versus the industry's proposed 
30-year schedule. The 27-year schedule is believed to 
be equitable for the entire provider community while 
granting those few providers with this type of 
financing sufficient time, at least 23 more years for 
the earliest known balloon notes, to make any 
required business decisions regarding refinancing or 
sale. Because this action more clearly delineates 
policies which have been in effect since December, 
1992, its funding is provided for in the agency's 
current base appropriation. This action represents no 
new expenditures or savings. There are no recipients 
affected by this regulation. There are no additional 
projected costs or differences ln program 
administration due to the proposed regulation. There 
are no localities which are uniquely affected by these 
regulations as they apply statewide. 
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VR 460·03·4.1940: 1. Nursing Home Payment System. 

PART I. 
INTRODUCTION. 

§ 1.1. Effective October I, 1990, the payment methodology 
for Nursing Facility (NF) reimbursement by the Virginia 
Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) is set 
forth in the following document. The formula provides for 
incentive payments to efficiently operated NFs and 
contains payment limitations for those NFs operating less 
efficiently. A cost efficiency incentive encourages cost 
containment by allowing the provider to retain a 
percentage of the difference between the prospectively 
determined operating cost rate and the ceiling. 

S 1.2. Three separate cost components are used: plant cost, 
operating cost and nurse aide training and competency 
evaluation program and competency evaluation program 
(NATCEPs) costs. The rates, which are determined on a 
facility-by~facility basis, shall be based on annual cost 
reports filed by each provider. 

§ 1.3. In determining the ceiling limitations, there shall be 
direct patient care medians established for NFs in the 
Virginia portion of the Washington DC-MD-VA Metropolitan 
Statistical Area (MSA), the Richmond-Petersburg 
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), and in the rest of the 
state. There shall be indirect patient care medians 
established for NFs in the Virginia portion of the 
Washington DC-MD-VA MSA, and in the rest of the state. 
The Washington DC·MD·VA MSA and the 
Richmond-Petersburg MSA shall include those cities and 
counties as listed and changed from time to time by the 
Health Care Financing Administration (HCF A). A NF 
located in a jurisdiction which HCF A adds to or removes 
from the Washington DC-MD-VA MSA or the 
Richmond-Petersburg MSA shall be placed in its new peer 
group, for purposes of reimbursement, at the beginning of 
its next fiscal year following the effective date of HCF A's 
final rule. 

§ 1.4. Institutions for mental diseases providing nursing 
services for individuals age 65 and older shall be exempt 
from the prospective payment system as defined in §§ 2.6, 
2.7, 2.8, 2.19, and 2.25, as are mental retardation facilities. 
All other sections of this payment system relating to 
reimbursable cost limitations shall apply. These facilities 
shall continue to be reimbursed retrospectively on the 
basis of reasonable costs in accordance with Medicare and 
Medicaid principles of reimbursement. Reimbursement to 
Intermediate Care Facilities for the Mentally Retarded 
(ICF /MR) shall be limited to the highest rate paid to a 
state ICF /MR institution, approved each July I by DMAS. 

§ L5. Except as specifically modified herein, Medicare 
principles of reimbursement, as amended from time to 
time, shall be used to establish the allowable costs in the 
rate calculations. Allowable costs must be classified in 
accordance with the DMAS uniform chart of accounts (see 
VR 460-03·4.1941, Uniform Expense Classification) and 
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must be identifiable and verified by contemporaneous 
documentation. 

All matters of reimbursement which are part ot· the 
DMAS reimbursement system shall supercede Medicare 
principles of reimbursement. Wherever the DMAS 
reimbursement system conflicts with Medicare principles 
of reimbursement, the DMAS reimbursement system shall 
take precedence. Appendices are a part of the DMAS 
reimbursement system. 

PART II. 
RATE DETERMINATION PROCEDURES. 

Article I. 
Plant Cost Component. 

s 2.1. Plant cost. 

A. Plant cost shall include actuai allowable depreciation, 
interest, rent or lease payments for buildings and 
equipment as well as property insurance, property taxes 
and debt financing costs allowable under Medicare 
principles of reimbursement or as defined herein. 

B. To calculate the reimbursement rate, plant cost shall 
be converted to a per diem amount by dividing it by the 
greater of actual patient days or the number of patient 
days computed as 95% of the daily licensed bed 
complement during the applicable cost reporting period. 

C. For NFs of 30 beds or less, to calculate the 
reimbursement rate, the number of patient days will be 
computed as not less than 85% of the daily licensed bed 
complement. 

D. Costs related to equipment and portions of a 
building/facility not available for patient care related 
activities are nonreimbursable plant costs. 

§ 2.2. New nursing facilities and bed additions. 

A. L Providers shall be required to obtain three 
competitive bids when (i) constructing a new physical 
plant or renovating a section of the plant when 
changing the licensed bed capacity, and (ii) 
purchasing fixed equipment or major movable 
equipment related to such projects. 

2. All bids must be obtained in an open competitive 
market manner, and subject to disclosure to DMAS 
prior to initial rate setting. (Retated parties see § 
2.10.) 

B. Reimbursable costs for building and fixed equipment 
shall be based upon the 3/4 (25% of the surveyed projects 
with costs above the median, 75% with costs below the 
median) square foot costs for NFs published annually in 
the R.S. Means Building Construction Cost Data as adjusted 
by the appropriate RS. Means Square Foot Costs "Location 
Factor" for Virginia for the locality in which the NF is 

located. Where the specific location is not listed in the 
R.S. Means Square Foot Costs "Location Factor" for 
Virginia, the facility's zip code shall be used to determine 
the appropriate locality factor from the U.S. Postal 
Services National Five Digit Zip Code for Virginia and the 
R.S. Means Square Foot Costs "Location Factors." The 
provider shall have the option of selecting the construction 
cost limit which is effective on the date the Certificate of 
Public Need (COPN) is issued or the date the NF is 
licensed. Total cost shall be calculated by multiplying the 
above 3/4 square foot cost by 385 square feet (the 
average per bed square footage). Total costs for building 
additions shall be calculated by multiplying the square 
footage of the project by the applicable components of the 
construction cost in the R.S. Means Square Foot Costs, not 
to exceed the total per bed cost for a new NF. Reasonable 
limits for renovations shall be determined by the 
appropriate costs in the R.S. Means Repair and 
Remodeling Cost Data, not to exceed the total R.S. Means 
Building Construction Cost Data 3/4 square foot costs for 
nursing homes. 

C. New NFs and bed additions to existing NFs must 
have prior approval under the state's Certificate of Public 
Need Law and Licensure regulations in order to receive 
Medicaid reimbursement. 

D. However in no case shoJI atlowable reimbursed costs 
exceed 110% of the amounts approved in the original 
COPN, or 100% of the amounts approved in the original 
COPN as modified by any "significant change" COPN, 
where a provider has satisfied the requirements of the 
State Department of Health with respect to obtaining prior 
written approval for a "significant change" to a COPN 
which has previously been issued. 

* 2.3. Major capital expenditures. 

A. Major capital expenditures include, but are not 
limited to, major renovations (without bed increase), 
additions, modernization, other renovations, upgrading to 
new standards, and equipment purchases. Major capital 
expenditures shall be any capital expenditures costing 
$100,000 or more each, in aggregate for like items, or in 
aggregate for a particular project. These include purchases 
of similar type equipment or like items within a one 
calendar year period (not necessarily the provider's 
reporting period). 

B. Providers (including related organizations as defined 
in § 2.10) shall be required to obtain three competitive 
bids and if applicable, a Certificate of Public Need before 
initiating any major capital expenditures. All bids must be 
obtained in an open competitive manner, and subject to 
disclosure to the DMAS prior to initial rate setting. 
(Related parties see § 2.10.) 

C. Useful life shall be determined by the American 
Hospital Association's Estimated Useful Lives of 
Depreciable Hospital Assets (AHA). If the item is not 
included in the AHA guidelines, reasonableness shall be 
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applied to determine useful life. 

D. Major capital additions, modernizaUon, renovations, 
and costs associated with upgrading the NF to new 
standards shall be subject to cost limitations based upon 
the applicable components of the construction cost limits 
determined in accordance with § 2.2 B. 

§ 2.4. Financing. 

A. The DMAS shall continue its policy to disallow cost 
increases due to the refinancing of a mortgage debt, 
except when required by the mortgage holder to finance 
expansions or renovations. Refinancing shall also be 
permitted in cases where refinancing would produce a 
lower interest rate &nd result in a cost savings. The total 
net aggregate allowable costs incurred lor all cost 
reporting periods related to the refinancing cannot exceed 
the total net aggregate costs that would have been 
allowable had the refinancing not occurred. 

l. Refinancing incentive. Effective July 1, 1991, for 
mortgages refinanced on or after that date, the DMAS 
will pay a refinancing incentive to encourage nursing 
facilities to refinance fixed-rate, fixed-term mortgage 
debt when such arrangements would benefit both the 
Commonwealth and the providers. The refinancing 
incentive payments will be made for the 1 0-year 
period following an allowable refinancing action, or 
through the end of the refinancin~ period should the 
loan be less than 10 years, subject to a savings being 
realized by application of the refinancing calculation 
for each of these years. The refinancing incentive 
payment shall be computed on the net savings from 
such refinancing applicable to each provider cost 
reporting period. Interest expense and amortization of 
loan costs on mortgage debt applicable to the cost 
report period for mortgage debt which is refinanced 
shall be compared to the interest expense and 
amortization of loan costs on the new mortgage debt 
for the cost reporting period. 

2. Calculation of refinancing incentive. The incentive 
shall be computed by calculating two index numbers, 
the old debt financing index and the new debt 
financing index. The old debt financing index shall be 
computed by multiplying the term (months) which 
would have been remaining on the old debt at the 
end of the provider's cost report period by the 
interest rate for the old debt. The new debt index 
shall be computed by multiplying the remaining term 
(months) of the new debt at the end of the cost 
reporting period by the new interest rate. The new 
debt index shall be divided by the old debt index to 
achieve a savings ratio for the period. The savings 
ratio shall be subtracted from a factor of 1 to 
determine the refinancing incentive factor. 

3. Calculation of net savings. The gross savings for the 
period shall be computed by subtracting the allowable 
new debt interest for the period from the allowable 
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old debt interest for the period. The net savings for 
the period shall be computed by subtracting allowable 
new loan costs for the period from allowable gross 
savings applicable to the period. Any remaining 
unamortized old loan costs may be recovered in full 
to the extent of net savings produced for the period. 

4. Calculation of incentive amount. The net savings for 
the period, after deduction of any unamortized old 
loan and debt cancellation costs, shall be multiplied by 
the refinancing incentive factor to determine the 
refinancing incentive amount. The result shall be the 
incentive payment for the cost reporting period, which 
shall be included in the cost report settlement, subject 
to per diem computations under § 2.1 B, 2.1 C, and 
2.14 A. 

5. Where a savings is produced by a provider 
refinancing his old mortgage for a longer time period, 
the DMAS shall calculate the refinancing incentive and 
payment in accordance with §§ 2.4 A 1 through 2.4 A 
4 for the incentive period. Should the calculation 
produce both positive and negative incentives, the 
provider's total incentive payments shall not exceed 
any net positive amount for the entire incentive 
period. Where a savings is produced by refinancing 
with either a principal balloon payment at the end of 
the refinancing period, or a variable interest rate, no 
incentive payment will be made, since the true savings 
to the Commonwealth cannot be accurately computed. 

6. All refinancings must be supported by adequate and 
verifiable documentation and allowable under DMAS 
regulations to receive the refinancing savings 
incentive. 

B. Interest rate upper limit. 

Financing for all NFs and expansions which require a 
COPN and all renovations and purchases shall be subject 
to the following limitations: 
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1. Interest expenses for debt financing which is 
exempt from federal income taxes shall be limited to: 

The average weekly rates for Baa municipal rated 
bonds as published in Cragie Incorporated Municipal 
Finance Newsletter as published weekly 
(Representative reoffering from general obligation 
bonds), plus one percentage point (100 basis points), 
during the week in which commitment for construction 
financing or closing for permanent financing takes 
place. 

2. a. Effective on and after July 1, 1990, the interest 
rate upper limit for debt financing by NFs that are 
subject to prospective reimbursement shall be the 
average of the rate for 10-year and 30-year U.S. 
Treasury Constant Maturities, as published in the 
weekly Federal Reserve Statistical Release (H.l5), plus 
two percentage points (200 basis points). 
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This limit (i) shall apply only to debt financing 
which is not exempt from federal income tax, and 
(ii) shall not be available to NF's which are eligible 
for such tax exempt financing unless and until a NF 
has demonstrated to the DMAS that the NF failed, 
in a good faith effort, to obtain any available debt 
financing which is exempt from federal income tax. 
For construction financing, the limit shall be 
determined as of the date on which commitment 
takes place. For permanent financing, the limit shall 
be determined as of the date of closing. The limit 
shall apply to allowable interest expenses during the 
term of the financing. 

b. The new interest rate upper limit shall also 
ar~ly, effective July I, 1990, to construction 
financing committed to or permanent financing 
closed after December 31, 1986, but before July I, 
1990, which is not exempt from federal income tax. 
The limit shall be determined as of July I, 1990, 
and shall apply to allowable interest expenses for 
the term of the financing remaining on or after July 
l, !990. 

3. Variable interest rate upper limit 

a. The limitation set forth in §§ 2.4 B I and 2.4 B 2 
shall be applied to debt financing which bears a 
variable interest rate as follows. The interest rate 
upper limit shall be determined on the date on 
which commitment for construction financing or 
closing for permanent financing takes place, and 
shall apply to allowable interest expenses during the 
term of such financing as if a fixed interest rate for 
the financing period had been obtained. A "fixed 
rate loan amortization schedule" shall be created for 
the loan period, using the interest rate cap in effect 
on the date of commitment for construction 
financing or the date of closing for permanent 
financing. 

b. If the interest rate for any cost reporting period 
is below the limit determined in subdivision 3 a 
above, no adjustment will be made to the f}raviElers 
provider's interest expense for that period, and a 
"carryover credit" to the extent of the amount 
allowable under the "fixed rate loan amortization 
schedule" will be created, but not paid. If the 
interest rate in a future cost reporting period is 
above the limit determined in subdivision 3 a above, 
the provider will be paid this "carryover credit" 
from prior period(s), not to exceed the cumulative 
carryover credit or his actual cost, whichever is 
less. 

c. The provider shall be responsible for preparing a 
verifiable and auditable schedule to support 
cumulative computations of interest claimed under 
the "carryover credit," and shall submit such a 
schedule with each cost report. 

4. The limitation set forth in § 2.4 B I, 2, and 3 shall 
be applicable to financing for land, buildings, fixed 
equipment, major movable equipment, working capital 
for construction and permanent financing. 

5. Where bond issues are used as a source of 
financing, the date of sale shall be considered as the 
date of closing. 

6. The aggregate of the following cosls shall be 
limited to 5.0% of the total allowable project costs: 

a. Examination Fees 

b. Guarantee Fees 

c. Financing Expenses (service fees, placement fees, 
feasibility studies, etc.) 

d. Underwriters Discounts 

e. Loan Points 

7. The aggregate of the following financing costs shall 
be limited to 2.0% of the total allowable project cosls: 

a. Legal Fees 

b. Cost Certification Fees 

c. Title and Recording Costs 

d. Printing and Engraving Costs 

e. Rating Agency Fees 

C. DMAS shall allow costs associated with mortgage life 
insurance premiums in accordance with § 2130 of the 
HCFA-Pub. 15, Provider Reimbursement Manual (PRM-15). 

D. Interest expense on a debt service reserve fund is an 
allowable expense if required by the terms of the 
financing agreement. However, interest income resulting 
from such fund shall be used by DMAS to offset interest 
expense. 

E. Balloon loan reimbursement. 

This subsection applies to the construction and 
acquisition of nursing facilities (as defined in §§ 2.2 and 
2.5) and major capital expenditures (as defined in § 2.3) 
that are financed with balloon loans. A balloon loan 
requires periodic payments to be made that do not fully 
amortize the principal balance over the term of the loan; 
the remaining balance must be repazd at the end of a 
specified time period. Demand notes and loans with call 
provisions shall not be deemed to be balloon loans. 

I. Incurred interest. Reimbursement for interest of a 
balloon loan and subsequent refinancings shall be 
considered a variable interest rate loan under § 2.4 B. 
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a, A standard amortization period of 27 years. from 
the inception date of the original balloon loan. must 
be computed by the provider and submitted to 
DMAS and used as the amortization period for 
loans for renovation. construction, or purchase of a 
nursing facility. 

b. A standard amortization period of 15 years, from 
the inception of the original balloon loan, must be 
used as the amortization period for loans on 
furniture, fixtures, and equipment. 

c. A loan which is used partially for the acquisition 
of buildings. land. and land improvements and 
partially for the purchase of furniture, fixtures, and 
equipment must be prorated for the purpose of 
determimng the amortization period. 

2. The allowable interest rate shall be limited to the 
interest rate upper limit in effect on the date of the 
original balloon loan, unless another rate is allowable 
under § 2.4 B. 

3. The limitations on financing costs set forth lfz § 2.4 
B shall apply to balloon loans. Financing costs 
exceeding the limitations set forth in these sections 
shall be allowed to the extent that such excess 
financing costs may be offset by any avmlable 
interest savings. 

(1. A 27-year amortization period must !Je used for 
deferred financing costs associated with the 
construction or purchase of a nursing facility. 

b. A 15-year amortization period must be used for 
deferred financing costs associated with financing of 
furniture, fixtures, and movable equipment. 

c. Financing costs associated with a loan used 
partially for the acquisition of buildings, land, and 
land improvements and partially for the purchase of 
furniture, fixtures, and equipment must be prorated 
for determination of the amortization period. 

4. The computation of allowable interest and 
financing costs for balloon loans shall be calculated 
using the following procedures: 

a. A standard amortization schedule of allowable 
costs based upon the upper limits for interest and 
financing costs shall be computed by the provider 
and submitted to DMAS for the applicable 27-year 
or 15-year periods on the original balloon loan. 

b. For each cost reporting period, the provider shall 
be allowed the lesser of loan costs (interest and 
financing costs) computed in accordance with 
subdiviSion 4 a of this subsection, or the actual 
loan costs incurred during the period. 

c. To the extent that there is a "credit" created by 
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the actual loan costs being less than the loan costs 
computed on the amortization schedule in some 
periods. the provider ma_v recover any otherwise 
allowable costs which result from the refinancing. 
extension. or renewal of the balloon loan, and any 
loan costs which have been disallowed because the 
loan costs are over the limitation for some periods. 
However, the cumulative actual loan cost 
reimbursement may not exceed the cumulative 
allowable loan cost as computed on the 
amortization schedule to that date. 

d. In refinancing or refinancings of the original 
balloon loan which involve additional borrowings in 
excess of the balance due on the original balloon 
loan, the excess over the balance due on the 
balloon loan shall be treated as new debt subject to 
the DMAS financing policies and regulations. Any 
interest and financing costs incurred on the 
refinancing shall be allocated pro rata between the 
refinancing of the balloon loan and the new debt. 

e. In the event of a sale of the facllity, any unused 
balance of cumulative credit or cumulative provider 
excess costs would follow the balloon loan or the 
refinancing of the balloon loan 1/ the balloon loan 
or its refinancing is paid by the buyer under the 
same terms as previously paid by the seller. 
Examples of this are: the buyer assumes the 
existing instrument containing the same rates and 
terms by the purchaser; or the balance of the 
balloon loan or its refinancings is financed by the 
seller to the buyer under the same rates and terms 
of the existing loan as part of the sale of the 
facility. lf the loan is otherwise paid in full at any 
time and the facility is sold before the full 27-year 
or 15-year amortization period has expired, the 
balance of unused cumulative credit or cumulative 
provider excess costs shall expire and not be 
considered an allowable cost. 

5. In accordance with § 2.4 A, no refinancing 
incentive shall be available for refinancings, 
extensions, or renewals of balloon loans. 

6. The balloon loan and refinancing of the balloon 
loan shall be subject to all requirements for allowable 
borrowing, except as otherwise provided by this 
subsection. 

§ 2.5. Purchases of nursing facilities (NF). 

A. In the event of a sale of a NF, the purchaser must 
have a current license and certification to receive DMAS 
reimbursement as a provider. 

B. The following reimbursement principles shall apply to 
the purchase of a NF: 

1. The allowable cost of a bona fide sale of a facility 
(whether or not the parties to the sale were, are, or 
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will be providers of Medicaid services) shall be the 
lowest of the sales price, the replacement cost value 
determined by independent appraisal, or the 
limitations of Part XVI - Revaluation of Assets. 
Revaluation of assets shall be permitted only when a 
bona fide sale of assets occurs. 

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of s 2.10, where 
there is a sale between related parties (whether or 
not they were, are or will be providers of Medicaid 
services), the buyer's allowable cost basis for the 
nursing facility shaH be the seller's allowabie 
depreciated historical cost (net book value), as 
determined for Medicaid reimbursement. 

3. F ,)f purposes of Medicaid reimbursement, a "bona 
fide" sale shall mean a transfer of title and possession 
for consideration between parties which are not 
related. Parties shall be deemed to be "related" if 
they are related by reasons of common ownership or 
control. If the parties are members of an immediate 
family, the sale shaH be presumed to be between 
related parties if the ownership or control by 
immediate family members, when aggregated together, 
meets the definitions of "common ownership" or 
"control." See § 2.10 C for definitions of "common 
ownership," "control," "immediate family," and 
"significant ownership or control." 

4. The useful life of the fixed assets of the facility 
shall be determined by AHA guidelines. 

5. The buyer's basis in the purchased assets shall be 
reduced by the value of the depreciation recapture 
due the state by the provider-seller, until 
arrangements for repayment have been agreed upon 
by DMAS. 

6. In the event the NF is owned by the seller for less 
than five years, the reimbursable cost basis of the 
purchased NF to the buyer, shall be the seller's 
allowable historical cost as determined by DMAS. 

C. An appraisal expert shall be defined as an individual 
or a firm that is experienced and specializes in 
multi-purpose appraisals of plant assets involving the 
establishing or reconstructing of the historical cost of such 
assets. Such an appraisal expert employs a specially 
trained and supervised staff with a complete range of 
appraisal and cost construction techniques; is experienced 
in appraisals of plant assets used by providers, and 
demonstrates a knowledge and understanding of the 
regulations involving applicable reimbursement principles, 
particularly those pertinent to depreciation; and is 
unrelated to either the buyer or seller. 

D. At a minimum. appraisals must include a breakdown 
by cost category as follows: 

1. Building; fixed equipment; movable equipment; land; 
land improvements. 

2. The estimated useful life computed in accordance 
with AHA guidelines of the three categories, building, 
fixed equipment, and movable equipment must be 
included in the appraisaL This information shall be 
utilized to compute depreciation schedules. 

E. Depreciation recapture. 

l. The provider-seller of the facility shall make a 
retrospective settlement with DMAS in instances where 
a gain was made on disposition. The department shall 
recapture the depreciation paid to the provider by 
Medicaid for the period of participation in the 
Program to the extent there is gain realized on the 
sale of the depreciable assets. A final cost report and 
refund of depreciation expense, where applicable, shall 
be due within 30 days from the transfer of title (as 
defined below). 

2. No depreciation adjustment shall be made in the 
event of a loss or abandonment. 

F. Reimbursable depreciation. 

l. For the purpose of this section, "sale or transfer" 
shall mean any agreement between the transferor and 
the transferee by which the former, in consideration 
of the payment or promise of payment of a certain 
price in money, transfers to the latter the title and 
possession of the property. 

2. Upon the sale or transfer of the real and tangible 
personal property comprising a licensed nursing 
facility certified to provide services to DMAS, the 
transferor or other person liable therein shall 
reimburse to the Commonwealth the amount of 
depreciation previously allowed as a reasonable cost 
of providing such services and subject to recapture 
under the provisions of the State Plan for Medical 
Assistance. The amount of reimbursable depreciation 
shall be paid to the Commonwealth within 30 days of 
the sale or transfer of the real property unless an 
alternative form of repayment, the term of which 
shall not exceed one year, is approved by the 
director. 

3. Prior to the transfer, the transferor shall file a 
written request by certified or registered mail to the 
director for a letter of verification that he either does 
not owe the Commonwealth any amount for 
reimbursable depreciation or that he has repaid any 
amount owed the Commonwealth for reimbursable 
depreciation or that an alternative form of repayment 
has been approved by the director. The request for a 
letter of verification shall state: 

a. That a sale or transfer is about to be made; 

b. The location and general description of the 
property to be sold or transferred; 

Virginia Register of Regulations 

5672 



c. The names and addresses of the transferee and 
transferor and all such business names and 
addresses of the transferor for tlle last three years; 
and 

d. Whether or not there is a debt owing to the 
Commonwealth for the amount of depreciation 
charges previously allowed and reimbursed as a 
reasonable cost to the transferor under the Virginia 
Medi.cal Assistance Program. 

4. Within 90 days after receipt of the request, the 
director shall determine whether or not there is an 
amount due to the Commonwealth by the nursing 
facility by reason of depredation charges previously 
allowed and reimbursed as a reasonable cost under 
DMAS and shall notify the transferor of such sum, if 
any. 

5. The transferor shall provide a copy of this section 
and a copy of his request for a letter of verification 
to the prospective transferee via certified mail at least 
30 days prior to the transfer. However, whether or not 
the transferor provides a copy of this section and his 
request for verification to the prospective transferee 
as required herein, the transferee shall be deemed to 
be notified of the requirements of this law. 

6. After the transferor has made arrangements 
satisfactory to the director to repay the amount due 
or if there is no amount due, the director shall issue 
a letter o£ verification to the transferor in recordable 
form stating that the transferor has complied with the 
provisions of Hlis section and setting forth the term of 
any alternative repayment agreement. The failure of 
the transferor to reimburse to the Commonwealth the 
amount of depreciation previously allowed as a 
reasonable cost of providing service to DMAS in a 
timely manner renders the transfer of the nursing 
facility ineffective as to the Commonwealth. 

7. Upon a finding by the director that such sale or 
transfer is ineffective as to the Commonwealth, DMAS 
may collect any sum owing by any means available by 
law, including devising a schedule for reducing the 
Medicaid reimbursement to the transferee up to the 
amount owed the CommonVilealth for reimbursable 
depreciation by the transferor or other person liable 
therein. Medicaid reimbursement to the transferee 
shall continue to be so reduced until repayment is 
made in full or the terms of the repayment are 
agreed to by the transferor or person liable therein. 

8. In the event the transferor or other person liable 
therein defaults on any such repayment agreement the 
reductions of Medicaid reimbursement to the 
transferee may resume. 

An action 
transferee's 
attachment 

brought or initiated to reduce the 
Medicaid reimbursement or an action for 
or levy shall not be brought or initiated 
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more than six months after the date on which the 
sale or transfer has taken place unless the sale or 
transfer has been concealed or a letter of verification 
has not been obtained by the transferor or the 
transferor defaults on a repayment agreement 
approved by the director. 

Article 2. 
Operating Cost Component. 

~ 2.6. Operating cost. 

A. Operating cost shall be the total allowable inpatient 
cost less plant cost and NATCEPs costs. See Part VII for 
rate determination procedures for NATCEPs costs. To 
calculate the reimbursement rate, operating cost shall be 
converted to a per diem amount by dividing it by the 
greater of actual patient days, or the number of patient 
days computed as 95% of the daily licensed bed 
complement during the applicable cost reporting period. 

B. For NFs of 30 beds or less, to calculate the 
reimbursement rate the number of patient days will 
continue to be computed as not less than 85% of the daily 
licensed bed complement. 

~ 2. 7. Nursing facility reimbursement formula. 

A. Effective on and after October I, 1990, all NFs 
subject to the prospective payment system shall be 
reimbursed under a revised formula entitled "The Patient 
Intensity Rating System (PIRS) ." PIRS is a patient based 
methodology which links NF's per diem rates to the 
intensity of services required by a NF's patient mix. Three 
classes were developed which group patients together 
based on similar functional characteristics and service 
needs. 

1. Any NF receiving Medicaid payments on or after 
October I, 1990, shall satisfy all the requirements of § 
19!9(b) through (d) of the Social Security Act as they 
relate to provision of services, residents' rights and 
administration and other matters. 

2. In accordance with ~ 1.3, direct patient care 
operating cost peer groups shall be established for the 
Virginia portion of the Washington DC-MD-VA MSA, 
the Richmond-Petersburg MSA and the rest of the 
state. Direct patient care operating costs shall be as 
defined in VR 460-03-1491. Indirect patient care 
operating cost peer groups shall be established for the 
Virginia portion of the Washington DC-MD-VA MSA 
and for the rest of the state. Indirect patient care 
operating costs shall include all other operating costs, 
not defined in VR 460-03-4.1941 as direct patient care 
operating costs and NATCEPs costs. 

3. Each NF's Service Intensity Index (SII) shall be 
calculated for each semiannual period of a NF's fiscal 
year based upon data reported by that NF and 
entered into DMAS' Long Term Care Information 
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System (LTCIS). Data will be reported on the 
multidimensional assessment form prescribed by DMAS 
(now DMAS-95) at the time of admission and then 
twice a year for every Medicaid recipient in a NF. 
The NF's Sll, derived from the assessment data, will 
be normalized by dividing it by the average for an 
NF's in the state. 

See VR 460-03-4.1944 for the P!RS class structure, the 
relative resource cost assigned to each class, the 
method of computing each NF's facility score and the 
methodology of computing the NF's semiannual Slls. 

4. The normalized Sll shall be used to calculate the 
initial direct patient care operating cost peer group 
med~ans. It shall also be used to calculate the direct 
patient care operating cost prospective ceilings and 
direct patient care operating cost prospective rates for 
each semiannual period of a NF's subsequent fiscal 
years. 

a. The normalized SII, as determined during the 
quarter ended September 30, 1990, shall be used to 
calculate the initial direct patient care operating 
cost peer group medians. 

b. A NF's direct patient care operating cost 
prospective ceiling shall be the product of the NF's 
peer group direct patient care ceiling and the NF's 
normalized SII for the previous semiannual period. 
A NF's direct patient care operating cost prospective 
ceiling will be calculated semiannually. 

c. An SSI rate adjustment, if any, shall be applied to 
a NF's prospective direct patient care operating cost 
base rate for each semiannual period of a NF's 
fiscal year. The SII determined in the second 
semiannual period of the previous fiscal year shall 
be divided by the average of the previous fiscal 
year's SIIs to determine the SII rate adjustment, if 
any, to the first semiannual period of the subsequent 
fiscal year's prospective direct patient care 
operating cost base rate. The SII determined in the 
first semiannual period of the subsequent fiscal year 
shall be divided by the average of the previous 
fiscal year's SIIs to determine the SII rate 
adjustment, if any, to the second semiannual period 
of the subsequent fiscal year's prospective direct 
patient care operating cost base rate. 

d. See VR 460-03-4.1944 for an illustration of how 
the SII is used to adjust direct patient care 
operating ceilings and the semiannual rate 
adjustments to the prospective direct patient care 
operating cost base rate. 

5. An adjustment factor shall be applied to both the 
direct patient care and indirect patient care peer 
group medians to determine the appropriate initial 
peer group ceilings. 

a. The DMAS shall calculate the estimated gross NF 
reimbursement required for the forecasted number 
of NF bed days during fiscal year 1991 under the 
prospective payment system in effect through 
September 30, 1990, as modified to incorporate the 
estimated additional NF reimbursement mandated 
by the provisions of § 1902(a) (!3)(A) of the Social 
Security Act as amended by § 4211 (b) (l) of the 
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1987. 

h. The DMAS shall calculate the estimated gross NF 
reimbursement required for the forecasted number 
of NF bed days during FY 1991 under the PIRS 
prospective payment system. 

c. The DMAS shall determine the differential 
between a and b above and shall adjust the peer 
group medians within the PIRS as appropriate to 
reduce the differential to zero. 

d. The adjusted P!RS peer group medians shall 
become the initial peer group ceilings. 

B. The allowance for inflation shall be based on the 
percentage of change in the moving average of the Skilled 
Nursing Facility Market basket of Routine Service Costs, as 
developed by Data Resources, Incorporated, adjusted for 
Virginia, determined in the quarter in which the NF's 
most recent fiscal year ended. NFs shall have their 
prospective operating cost ceilings and prospective 
operating cost rates established in accordance with the 
following methodology: 

L The initial peer group ceilings established under § 
2. 7 A shall be the final peer group ceilings for a NF's 
first full or partial fiscal year under PIRS and shall 
be considered as the initial "interim ceilings" for 
calculating the subsequent fiscal year's peer group 
ceilings. Peer group ceilings for subsequent fiscal 
years shall be calculated by adjusting the initial 
"interim" ceilings by a "percentage factor" which 
shall eliminate any allowances for inflation after 
September 30, 1990, calculated in both §§ 2.7 A 5 a 
and 2. 7 A 5 c. The adjusted initial "interim" ceilings 
shall be considered as the final "interim ceiling." Peer 
group ceilings for subsequent fiscal years shall be 
calculated by adjusting the final "interim" ceiling, as 
determined above, by 100% of historical inflation from 
October 1, 1990, to the beginning of the NFs next 
fiscal year to obtain new "interim" ceilings, and 50% 
of the forecasted inflation to the end of the NFs next 
fiscal year. 

2. A NF's average allowable operating cost rates. as 
determined from its most recent fiscal year's cost 
report, shall be adjusted by 50% of historical inflation 
and 50% of the forecasted inflation to calculate its 
prospective operating cost base rates. 

C. The PIRS method shall still require comparison of 
the prospective operating cost rates to the prospective 
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operating ceilings. The provider shall be 
lower of the prospective operating 
prospective operating ceilings. 

reimbursed the 
cost rates or 

D. Nonoperating costs. 

1. Allowable plant costs shall be reimbursed in 
accordance with Part II, Article 1. Plant costs shall 
not include the component of cost related to making 
or producing a supply or service. 

2. NA TCEPs cost shall be reimbursed in accordance 
with Part VII. 

E. The prospective rate for each NF shall be based 
upon operating cost and plant cost components or charges, 
whichever is lower, plus NATCEPs costs. The disallowance 
of nonreimbursable operating costs in any current fiscal 
year shall be reflected in a subsequent year's prospective 
rate determination. Disallowances of nonreimbursable plant 
costs and NATCEPs costs shall be reflected in the year in 
which the nonreimbursable costs are included. 

F. For those NFs whose operating cost rates are below 
the ceilings, an incentive plan shall be established whereby 
a NF shall be paid, on a sliding scale, up to 25% of the 
difference between its allowable operating cost rates and 
the peer group ceilings under the PIRS. 

1. The table below presents four incentive examples 
under the PIRS: 

Allowable 
Peer Group Cost 
Ce i ! i ng~ Per Day 

$30.00 
30.00 
30.00 
30.00 

$27.00 $3 00 
22.50 7.50 
20 00 10.00 
30 00 0 

Difference Scale 
%of Sliding % Dif-
Ceiling Scale Ference 

$ . 30 
1.88 
2.50 

0 

10% 
25% 
25% 

2. Separate efficiency incentives shall be calculated 
for both the direct and indirect patient care operating 
ceilings and costs. 

G. Quality of care requirement. 

A cost efficiency incentive shall not be paid to a NF for 
the prorated period of time that it is not in conformance 
with substantive, non waived life, safety, or quality of care 
standards. 

H. Sale of facility. 

In the event of the sale of a NF, the prospective base 
operating cost rates for the new owner's first fiscal period 
shall be the seller's prospective base operating cost rates 
before the sale. 

I. Public notice. 

To comply with the requirements of § 1902(a)(28)(c) of 
the Social Security Act, DMAS shall make available to the 
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public the data and methodology used in establishing 
Medicaid payment rates for nursing facilities. Copies may 
be obtained by request under the existing procedures of 
the Virginia Freedom of Information Act. 

~ 2.8. Phase-in period. 

A. To assist NFs in converting to the PIRS methodology, 
a phase-in period shall be provided until June 30, 1992. 

B. From October I, 1990, through June 30, 1991, a NF's 
prospective operating cost rate shall be a blended rate 
calculated at 33% of the PIRS operating cost rates 
determined by § 2.7 above and 67% of the "current" 
operating rate determined by subsection D below. 

C. From July I, 1991, through June 30, 1992, a NF's 
prospective operating cost rate shall be a blended rate 
calculated at 67% of the PIRS operating cost rates 
determined by § 2.7 above and 33% of the "current" 
operating rate determined by subsection D below. 

D. The following methodology shall be applied to 
calculate a NF's "current" operating rate: 

l. Each NF shall receive as its base "current" 
operating rate, the weighted average prospective 
operating cost per diems and efficiency incentive per 
diems if applicable, calculated by DMAS to be 
effective September 30, 1990. 

2. The base "current" operating rate established above 
shall be the "current" operating rate for the NF's first 
partial fiscal year under PIRS. The base "current" 
operating rate shall be adjusted by appropriate 
allowance for historical inflation and 50% of the 
forecasted inflation based on the methodology 
contained in § 2. 7 B at the beginning of each of the 
NF's fiscal years which starts during the phase~in 
period, October I, 1990, through June 30, !992, to 
determine the NF's prospective "current" operating 
rate. See VR 460-03-4.1944 for example calculations. 

§ 2.8. Nursing facility rate change. 

For the period beginning July I, 1991, and ending June 
30, 1992, the per diem operating rate for each NF shall be 
adjusted. This shall be accomplished by applying a 
uniform adjustment factor to the rate of each NF. 

Article 3. 
Allowable Cost Identification. 

§ 2.9. Allowable costs. 

Costs which are included in rate determination 
procedures and final settlement shall be only those 
allowable, reasonable costs which are acceptable under the 
Medicare principles of reimbursement, except as 
specifically modified in the Plan and as may be subject to 
individual or ceiling cost limitations and which are 
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classified in accordance with the DMAS uniform chart of 
accounts (see VR 460-03-4.1941, Uniform Expense 
Classification). 

A. Certification. 

The cost of meeting all certification standards for NF 
requirements as required by the appropriate state 
agencies, by state laws, or by federal legislation or 
regulations. 

B. Operating costs. 

1. Direct patient care operating costs shall be defined 
in VR 460-03-4.1941. 

2. Allowable direct patient care operating costs shall 
exclude (i) personal physician fees, and (ii) pharmacy 
services and prescribed legend and nonlegend drugs 
provided by nursing facilities which operate licensed 
in-house pharmacies. These services shall be billed 
directly to DMAS through separate provider 
agreements and DMAS shall pay directly in 
accordance with subsections e and f of Attachment 
4.19 B of the State Plan for Medical Assistance (VR 
460-02-4.1920). 

3. Indirect patient care operating costs include all 
other operating costs, not identified as direct patient 
care operating costs and NATCEPs costs in VR 
460-03-4.1941, which are allowable under the Medicare 
principles of reimbursement, except as specifically 
modified herein and as may be subject to individual 
cost or ceiling limitations. 

C. Allowances/goodwill. 

Bad debts, goodwill, charity, courtesy, and all other 
contractual allowances shall not be recognized as an 
allowable cost. 

D. Cost of protecting employees from blood borne 
pathogens. 

Effective July I, 1994, reimbursement of allowable costs 
shall be adjusted in the following way to recognize the 
costs of complying with requirements of the Occupational 
Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) for protecting 
employees against exposure to blood borne pathogens. 

1. Hepatitis B immunization. The statewide median of 
the reasonable acquisition cost per unit of 
immunization times the number of immunizations 
provided to eligible employees during facility fiscal 
years ending during SFY 1994, divided by Medicaid 
days in the same fiscal period, shall be added to the 
indirect peer group ceiling effective July I, 1994. This 
increase to the ceilings shall not exceed $.09 per day 
for SFY 1995. 

2. Other OSHA compliance costs. The indirect peer 

group ceilings shall be increased by $.07, effective 
July 1, 1994, to recognize continuing OSHA compliance 
costs other than immunization. 

3. Data submission by nursing facilities. Nursing 
facilities shall provide for fiscal years ending during 
SFY 1994, on forms provided by DMAS, (i) the names, 
job titles and social security numbers of individuals 
immunized, the number of immunizations provided to 
each and the dates of immunization; and (ii) the 
acquisition cost of immunization. 

§ 2.10. Purchases/related organizations. 

A. Costs applicable to services, facilities, and supplies 
furnished to the provider by organizations related to the 
provider by common ownership or control shall be 
included in the allowable cost of the provider at the cost 
to the related organization, provided that such costs do not 
exceed the price of comparable services, facilities or 
supplies. Purchases of existing NFs by related parties shall 
be governed by the provisions of § 2.5 B 2. 

Allowable cost applicable to management services 
furnished to the provider by organizations related to the 
provider by common ownership or control shall be lesser 
of the cost to the related organization or the per patient 
day ceiling limitation establb:hed for management services 
cost. (See VR 460-03-4.1943, Cost Reimbursement 
Limitations.) 

B. Related to the provider shall mean that the provider 
is related by reasons of common ownership or control by 
the organization furnishing the services, facilities, or 
supplies. 

C. Common ownership exists when an individual or 
individuals or entity or entities possess significant 
ownership or equity in the parties to the transaction. 
Control exists where an individual or individuals or entity 
or entities have the power, directly or indirectly, 
significantly to influence or direct the actions or policies 
of the parties to the transaction. Significant ownership or 
control shall be deemed to exist where an individual is a 
"person with an ownership or control interest" within the 
meaning of 42 CFR 455.101. If the parties to the 
transaction are members of an immediate family, as 
defined below, the transaction shall be presumed to be 
between related parties if the ownership or control by 
immediate family members, when aggregated together, 
meets the definitions of "common ownership" or "control," 
as set forth above. Immediate family shall be defined to 
include, but not be limited to, the following: (i) husband 
and wife, (ii) natural parent, child and sibling, (iii) 
adopted child and adoptive parent, (iv) step-parent, 
step-child, step-sister, and step-brother, (v) father-in-law, 
mother-in~law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, son-in-law and 
daughter-in-law, and (vi) grandparent and grandchild. 

D. Exception to the related organization principle. 
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l. Effective with cost reports having fiscal years 
beginning on or after July 1, 1986, an exception to the 
related organization principle shall be allowed. Under 
this exception, charges by a related organization to a 
provider for goods or services shall be allowable cost 
to the provider if all four of the conditions set out 
below are met. 

2. The exception applies if the provider demonstrates 
by con·vincing evidence to the satisfaction of DMAS 
that the following criteria have been met: 

a. The supplying organization is a bona fide separate 
organization. This means that the supplier is a 
separate sole proprietorship, partnership, joint 
venture, association or corporation and not merely 
an operating division of the provider organization. 

b. A substantial part of the supplying organization's 
business activity of the type carried on with the 
provider is transacted with other organizations not 
related to the provider and the supplier by common 
ownership or control and there is an open, 
competitive market for the type of goods or services 
furnished by the organization. In determining 
whether the activities are of similar type, it is 
important to also consider the scope of the activity. 

For example, a full service management contract 
would not be considered the same type of business 
activity as a minor data processing contract. The 
requirement that there be an open, competitive 
market is merely intended to assure that the item 
supplied has a readily discernible price that is 
established through arms-length bargaining by well 
informed buyers and sellers. 

c. The goods or services shall be those which 
commonly are obtained by institutions such as the 
provider from other organizations and are not a 
basic element of patient care ordinarily furnished 
directly to patients by such institutions. This 
requirement means that institutions such as the 
provider typically obtain the good or services from 
outside sources rather than producing the item 
internally. 

d. The charge to the provider is in line with the 
charge for such services, or supplies in the open 
market and no more than the charge made under 
comparable circumstances to others by the 
organization for such goods or services. The phrase 
"open market" takes the same meaning as "open, 
competitive market" in subdivision b above. 

3. Where all of the conditions of this exception are 
met, the charges by the supplier to the provider for 
such goods or services shall be allowable as costs. 

4. This exception does not apply to the purchase, lease 
or construction of assets such as property, buildings, 
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fixed equipment or major movable equipment. The 
terms "goods and services" may not be interpreted or 
construed to mean capital costs associated with such 
purchases, leases, or construction. 

E. Three competitive bids shall not be required for the 
building and fixed equipment components of a construction 
project outlined in ~ 2.2. Reimbursement shall be in 
accordance with ~ 2.10 A with the limitations stated in § 
2.2 B. 

§ 2.11. Administrator/owner compensation. 

A. Administrators' compensation, whether administrators 
are owners or non-owners, shall be based on a schedule 
adopted by DMAS and varied according to facility bed 
size. The compensation schedule shall be adjusted annually 
to reflect cost-of-living increases and shall be published 
and distributed to providers annually. The administrator's 
compensation schedule covers only the position of 
administrator and assistants and does not include the 
compensation of owners employed in capacities other than 
the NF administrator (see VR 460-03-4.1943, Cost 
Reimbursement Limitations). 

B. Administrator compensation shall meaw remuneration 
paid regardless of the form in which it is paid. This 
includes, but shall not be limited to, salaries, professional 
fees, insurance premiums (if the benefits accrue to the 
employer I owner or his beneficiary) director fees, personal 
use of automobiles, consultant fees, management fees, 
travel allowances, relocation expenses in excess of IRS 
guidelines, meal allowances, bonuses, pension plan costs, 
and deferred compensation plans. Management fees, 
consulting fees, and other services performed by owners 
shall be included in the total compensation if they are 
performing administrative duties regardless of how such 
services may be classified by the provider. 

C. Compensation for all administrators (owner and 
nonowner) shall be based upon a 40 hour week to 
determine reasonableness of compensation. 

D. Owner /administrator employment documentation. 

1. Owners who perform services for a NF as an 
administrator and also perform additional duties must 
maintain adequate documentation to show that the 
additional duties were performed beyond the normal 
40 hour week as an administrator. The additional 
duties must be necessary for the operation of the NF 
and related to patient care. 

2. Services provided by owners, whether in employee 
capacity, through management contracts, or through 
home office relationships shall be compared to the 
cost and services provided in arms-length transactions. 

3. Compensation for such 
where such compensation 
arms-length transactions 

services shall be adjusted 
exceeds that.-..paid in such 
or where there is a 
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duplication of duties normally rendered by an 
administrator. No reimbursement shall be allowed for 
compensation where owner services cannot be 
documented and audited. 

* 2.12. Depreciation. 

The allowance for depreciation shall be restricted to the 
straight line method with a useful life in compliance with 
AHA guidelines. If the item is not included in the AHA 
guidelines, reasonableness shall be applied to determine 
useful life. 

§ 2.13. Rent/Leases. 

Rent or lease expenses shall be limited by the 
provisions of VR 460-03-4.1942, Leasing of Facilities. 

§ 2.14. Provider payments. 

A. Limitations. 

l. Payments to providers, shall not exceed charges for 
covered services except for (i) public providers 
furnishing services free of charge or at a nominal 
charge (H) nonpublic provider whose charges are 60% 
or less of the allowable reimbursement represented by 
the charges and that demonstrates its charges are less 
than allowable reimbursement because its customary 
practice is to charge patients based on their ability to 
pay. Nominal charge shall be defined as total charges 
that are 60% or less of the allowable reimbursement 
of services represented by these charges. Providers 
qualifying in this section shall receive allowable 
reimbursement as determined in this Plan. 

2. Allowable reimbursement in excess of charges may 
be carried forward for payment in the two succeeding 
cost reporting periods. A new provider may carry 
forward unreimbursed allowable reimbursement in the 
five succeeding cost reporting periods. 

3. Providers may be reimbursed the carry forward to 
a succeeding cost reporting period (i) if total charges 
for the services provided in that subsequent period 
exceed the total allowable reimbursement in that 
period (ii) to the extent that the accumulation of the 
carry forward and the allowable reimbursement in 
that subsequent period do not exceed the providers' 
direct and indirect care operating ceilings plus 
allowable plant cost. 

B. Payment for service shall be based upon the rate in 
effect when the service was rendered. 

C. For cost reports filed on or alter August l, 1992, an 
interim settlement shall be made by DMAS within 180 
days after receipt and review of the cost report. The 
180~day time frame shall similarly apply to cost reports 
filed but not interim settled as of August 1, 1992. The 
word "review," for purposes of interim settlement, shall 

include verification that all financial and other data 
specifically requested by DMAS is submitted with the cost 
report. Review shall also mean examination of the cost 
report and other required submission for obvious errors, 
inconsistency, inclusion of past disallowed costs, unresolved 
prior year cost adjustments and a complete signed cost 
report that conforms to the current DMAS requirements 
herein. 

However, an interim settlement shall not be made when 
one of the following conditions exists. 

1. Cost report filed by a terminated provider; 

2. Insolvency of the provider at the time the cost 
report is submitted; 

3. Lack of a valid provider agreement and 
decertification; 

4. Moneys owed to DMAS; 

5. Errors or inconsistencies in the cost report; or 

6. Incomplete/nonacceptable cost report. 

§ 2.15. Legal fees/accounting. 

A. Costs claimed for legal/accounting fees shall be 
limited to reasonable and customary fees for specific 
services rendered. Such costs must be related to patient 
care as defined by Medicare principles of reimbursement 
and subject to applicable regulations herein. 
Documentation for legal costs must be available at the 
time of audit. 

B. Retainer fees shall be considered an allowable cost 
up to the limits established in VR 460-03-4.1943, Cost 
Reimbursement Limitations. 

C. As mandated by the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation 
Act of 1990, effective November 5, 1990, reimbursement of 
legal expenses for frivolous litigation shall be denied if the 
action is initiated on or after November 5, 1990. Frivolous 
litigation is any action initiated by the nursing facility that 
is dismissed on the basis that no reasonable legal ground 
existed for the institution of such action. 

§ 2.16. Documentation. 

Adequate documentation supporting cost claims must be 
provided at the time of interim settlement, cost settlement, 
audit, and final settlement. 

§ 2.17. Fraud and abuse. 

Previously disallowed costs which are under appeal and 
affect more than one cost reporting period shall be 
disclosed in subsequent cost reports if the provider wishes 
to reserve appeal rights for such subsequent cost reports. 
The reimbursement effect of such appealed costs shall be 
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computed by the provider and submitted to DMAS with 
the cost report. Where such disclosure is not made to 
DMAS, the inclusion of previously disallowed costs may be 
referred to the Medicaid Fraud Control Unit of the Office 
of the Attorney GeneraL 

Article 4. 
New Nursing Facilities. 

~ 2.18. Interim rate. 

A. For all new or expanded NFs the 95% occupancy 
requirement shall be waived for establishing the first cost 
reporting period interim rate. This first cost reporting 
period shall not exceed 12 months from the date of the 
NF's certification. 

B. Upon a showing of good cause, and approval of the 
DMAS, an existing NF that expands its bed capacity by 
50% or more shall have the option of retaining its 
prospective rate, or being treated as a new NF. 

C. The 95% occupancy requirement shall be applied to 
the first and subsequent cost reporting periods' actual costs 
for establishing such NF's second and future cost reporting 
periods' prospective reimbursement rates. The 95% 
occupancy requirement shall be considered as having been 
satisfied if the new NF achieved a 95% occupancy at any 
point in time during the first cost reporting period. 

D. A new NF's interim rate for the first cost reporting 
period shall be determined based upon the lower of its 
anticipated allowable cost determined from a detailed 
budget (or pro forma cost report) prepared by the 
provider and accepted by the DMAS, or the appropriate 
operating ceilings or charges. 

E. On the first day of its second cost reporting period, a 
new nursing facility's interim plant rate shall be converted 
to a per diem amount by dividing it by the number of 
patient days computed as 95% of the daily licensed bed 
complement during the first cost reporting period. 

F. Any NF receiving reimbursement under new NF 
status shall not be eligible to receive the blended phase-in 
period rate under § 2.8. 

G. During its first semiannual period of operation, a 
newly constructed or newly enrolled NF shall have an 
assigned Sll based upon its peer group's average SII for 
direct patient care. An expanded NF receiving new NF 
treatment shall receive the SII calculated for its last 
semiannual period prior to obtaining new NF status. 

§ 2.19. Final rate. 

The DMAS shall reimburse the lower of the appropriate 
operating ceilings, charges or actual allowable cost for a 
new NF's first cost reporting period of operation, subject 
to the procedures outlined above in § 2.18 A, C, E, and F. 
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Upon determination of the actual allowable operating 
cost for direct patient care and indirect patient care the 
per diem amounts shall be used to determine if the 
provider is below the peer group ceiling used to set its 
interim rate. If costs are below those ceilings, an 
efficiency incentive shall be paid at settlement of the first 
year cost report. 

This incentive will allow a NF to be paid up to 25% of 
the difference between its actual allowable operating cost 
and the peer group ceiling used to set the interim rate. 
(Refer to * 2.7 F.) 

Article 5. 
Cost Reports. 

§ 2.20. Cost report submission. 

A. Cost reports are due not later than 90 days after the 
provider's fiscal year end. If a complete cost report is not 
received within 90 days after the end of the provider's 
fiscal year, it is considered delinquent. The cost report 
shall be deemed complete for the purpose of cost 
settlement when DMAS has received all of the following, 
with the exception that the audited financial statements 
required by subdivisions 3 a and 6 b of this subsection 
shall be considered timely filed if received not later than 
120 days after the provider's fiscal year end: 
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I. Completed cost reporting form(s) provided by 
DMAS, with signed certification(s); 

2. The provider's trial balance showing adjusting 
journal entries; 

3. a. The provider's audited financial statements 
including, but not limited to, a balance sheet, a 
statement of income and expenses, a statement of 
retained earnings (or fund balance), a statement of 
cash flows, the auditor's report in which he expresses 
his opinion or, if circumstances require, disclaims an 
opinion based on generally accepted auditing 
standards, footnotes to the financial statements, and 
the management report. Multi~facility providers shall 
be governed by s 2.20 A 6; 

b. Schedule of restricted cash funds that identify the 
purpose of each fund and the amount; 

c. Schedule of investments by type (stock, bond, 
etc.), amount, and current market value; 

4. Schedules which reconcile financial statements and 
trial balance to expenses claimed in the cost report; 

5. Depreciation schedule; 

6. NFs which are part of a chain organization must 
also file: 

a. Home office cost report; 
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b. Audited consolidated financial statements of the 
chain organization including the auditor's report in 
which he expresses his opinion or, if circumstances 
require, disclaims an opinion based on generally 
accepted auditing standards, the management report 
and footnotes to the financial statements; 

c. The NFs financial statements including, but not 
limited to, a balance sheet, a statement of income 
and expenses, a statement of retained earnings (or 
fund balance), and a statement of cash flows; 

d. Schedule of restricted cash funds that identify the 
purpose of each fund and the amount; 

e. Schedule of investments by type (stock, bond, 
etc.), amount, and current market value; and 

7. Such other analytical information or supporting 
documentation that may be required by DMAS. 

B. When cost reports are delinquent, the provider's 
interim rate shall be reduced by 20% the first month and 
an additional 20% of the original interim rate for each 
subsequent month the report has not been submitted. 
DMAS shall notify the provider of the schedule of 
reductions which shall start on the first day of the 
following month. For example, for a September 30 fiscal 
year end, notification will be mailed in early January 
stating that payments will be reduced starting with the 
first payment in February. 

C. After the overdue cost report is received, desk 
reviewed, and a new prospective rate established, the 
amounts withheld shall be computed and paid. If the 
provider fails to submit a complete cost report within 180 
days after the fiscal year end, a penalty in the amount of 
10% of the balance withheld shall be forfeited to DMAS. 

§ 2.21. Reporting form. 

All cost reports shall be submitted on uniform reporting 
forms provided by the DMAS, or by Medicare if 
applicable. Such cost reports, subsequent to the initial cost 
report period, shall cover a 12-month period. Any 
exceptions must be approved by the DMAS. 

* 2.22. Accounting method. 

The accrual method of accounting and cost reporting is 
mandated for all providers. 

S 2.23. Cost report extensions. 

A. Extension for submission of a cost report may be 
granted if the provider can document extraordinary 
circumstances beyond its controL 

B. Extraordinary circumstances do not include: 

1. Absence or changes of chief finance officer, 

controller or bookkeeper; 

2. Financial statements not completed; 

3. Office or building renovations; 

4. Home office cost report not completed; 

5. Change of stock ownership; 

6. Change of intermediary; 

7. Conversion to computer; or 

8. Use of reimbursement specialist. 

§ 2.24. Fiscal year changes. 

All fiscal year end changes must be approved 90 days 
prior to the beginning of a new fiscal year. 

Article 6. 
Prospective Rates. 

§ 2.25. Time frames. 

A. For cost reports filed on or after August 1, 1992, a 
prospective rate shall be determined by DMAS within 90 
days of the receipt of a complete cost report (See § 2.20 
A.) The !80-day time frame shall similarly apply to cost 
reports filed but for which a prospective rate has not been 
set as of August 1, 1992. Rate adjustments shall be made 
retroactive to the first day of the provider's new cost 
reporting year. Where a field audit is necessary to set a 
prospective rate, the DMAS shall have an additional 90 
days to determine any appropriate adjustments to the 
prospective rate as a result of such field audit. This time 
period shall be extended if delays are attributed to the 
provider. 

B. Subsequent to establishing the prospective rate DMAS 
shall conclude the desk audit of a providers' cost report 
and determine if further field audit activity is necessary. 
The DMAS will seek repayment or make retroactive 
settlements when audit adjustments are made to costs 
claimed for reimbursement. 

Article 7. 
Retrospective rates. 

§ 2.26. The retrospective method of reimbursement shall 
be used for Mental Health/Mental Retardation facilities. 

§ 2.27. (reserved) 

Article 8. 
Record Retention. 

§ 2.28. Time frames. 

A. All of the NF's accounting and related records, 

Virginia Register of Regulations 

5680 



including the general ledger, books of original entry, and 
statistical data must be maintained for a minimum of five 
years, or until all affected cost reports are final settled, 

B. Certain information must be maintained for the 
duration of the provider's participation in the DMAS and 
until such time as all cost reports are settled. Examples of 
such information are set forth in § 2.29. 

§ 2.29. Types of records to be maintained. 

Information which must be maintained for the duration 
of the provider's participation in the DMAS includes, but is 
not limited to: 

1. Real and tangible property records, including leases 
and the underlying cost of ownership; 

2. Itemized depreciation schedules; 

3. Mortgage documents, loan agreements, and 
amortization schedules; 

4. Copies of all cost reports filed with the DMAS 
together with supporting financial statements. 

§ 2.30. Record availability. 

The records must be available for audits by DMAS staff. 
Where such records are not available, costs shall be 
disallowed. 

Article 9. 
Audits. 

9 2.31. Audit overview. 

Desk audits shall be performed to verify the 
completeness and accuracy of the cost report, and 
reasonableness of costs claimed for reimbursement. Field 
audits, as determined necessary by the DMAS, shall be 
performed on the records of each participating provider to 
determine that costs included for reimbursement were 
accurately determined and reasonable, and do not exceed 
the ceilings or other reimbursement limitations established 
by the DMAS. 

§ 2.32. Scope of audit. 

The scope of the audit includes, but shall not be limited 
to: trial balance verification, analysis of fixed assets, 
indebtedness, selected revenues, leases and the underlying 
cost of ownership, rentals and other contractual 
obligations, and costs to related organizations. The audit 
scope may also include various other analyses and studies 
relating to issues and questions unique to the NF and 
identified by the DMAS. Census and related statistics, 
patient trust funds, and billing procedures are also subject 
to audit. 

9 2.33. Field audit requirements. 
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Field audits shall be required as follows: 

1. For the first cost report on all new NF's. 

2. For the first cost report in which costs for bed 
additions or other expansions are included. 

3. When a NF is sold, purchased, or leased. 

4. As determined by DMAS desk audit. 

§ 2.34. Provider notification. 

The provider shall be notified in writing of all 
adjustments to be made to a cost report resulting from 
desk or field audit with stated reasons and references to 
the appropriate principles of reimbursement or other 
appropriate regulatory cites. 

§ 2.35. Field audit exit conference. 

A. The provider shall be offered an exit conference to 
be executed within 15 days following completion of the 
on·site audit activities, unless other time frames are 
mutually agreed to by the DMAS and provider. Where two 
or more providers are part of a chain organization or 
under common ownership, DMAS shall have up to 90 days 
after completion of all related on-site audit activities to 
offer an exit conference for all such NFs. The exit 
conference shall be conducted at the site of the audit or 
at a location mutually agreeable to the DMAS and the 
provider. 

B. The purpose of the exit conference shall be to enable 
the DMAS auditor to discuss such matters as the auditor 
deems necessary, to review the proposed field audit 
adjustments, and to present supportive references. The 
provider will be given an opportunity during the exit 
conference to present additional documentation and 
agreement or disagreement with the audit adjustments. 

C. All remaining adjustments, including those for which 
additional documentation is insufficient or not accepted by 
the DMAS, shall be applied to the applicable cost report(s) 
regardless of the provider's approval or disapprovaL 

D. The provider shall sign an exit conference form that 
acknowledges the review of proposed adjustments. 

E. After the exit conference the DMAS shall perform a 
review of all remaining field audit adjustments. Within a 
reasonable time and after all documents have been 
submitted by the provider, the DMAS shall transmit in 
writing to the provider a final field audit adjustment 
report (FAAR), which will include all remaining 
adjustments not resolved during the exit conference. The 
provider shall have 15 days from the date of the letter 
which transmits the F AAR, to submit any additional 
documentation which may affect adjustments in the FAAR. 

§ 2.36. Audit delay. 
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In the event the provider delays or refuses to permit an 
audit to occur or to continue or otherwise interferes with 
the audit process, payments to the provider shall be 
reduced as stated in § 2.20 B. 

§ 2.37. Field audit time frames. 

A. If a field audit is necessary after receipt of a 
complete cost report, such audit shall be initiated within 
three years following the date of the last notification of 
program reimbursement and the on site activities, 
including exit conferences, shall be concluded within 180 
days from the date the field audit begins. Where audits 
are performed on cost reports for multiple years or 
providers, the time frames shall be reasonably extended 
for the benefit of the DMAS and subject to the provisions 
of § 2.35. 

B. Documented delays on the part of the provider will 
automatically extend the above time frames to the extent 
of the time delayed. 

C. Extensions of the time frames shall be granted to the 
department for good cause shown. 

D. Disputes relating to the timeliness established in §§ 
2.35 and 2.37, or to the grant of extensions to the DMAS, 
shall be resolved by application to the Director of the 
DMAS or his designee. 

PART III. 
APPEALS. 

§ 3.1. Dispute resolution for nonstate operated nursing 
facilities. 

A. NF's have the right to appeal the DMAS's 
interpretation and application of state and federal 
Medicaid and applicable Medicare principles of 
reimbursement in accordance with the Administrative 
Process Act, § 9-6.14.1 et seq. and § 32.1-325.1 of the Code 
of Virginia. 

B. Nonappealable issues. 

1. The use of state and federal Medicaid and 
applicable Medicare principles of reimbursement. 

2. The organization of participating NF's into peer 
groups according to location as a proxy for cost 
variation across facilities with similar operating 
characteristics. The use of individual ceilings as a 
proxy for determining efficient operation within each 
peer group. 

3. Calculation of the initial peer group ceilings using 
the most recent cost settled data available to DMAS 
that reflects NF operating costs inflated to September 
30, 1990. 

4. The use of the moving average of the Skilled 

Nursing Facility market basket of routine service 
costs, as developed by Data Resources, Incorporated, 
adjusted for Virginia, as the prospective escalator. 

5. The establishment of separate ceilings for direct 
operating costs and indirect operating costs. 

6. The use of Service Intensity Indexes to identify the 
resource needs of given NFs patient mix relative to 
the needs present in other NFs. 

7. The development of Service Intensity Indexes based 
on: 

a. Determination of resource indexes for each 
patient class that measures relative resource cost. 

b. Determination of each NF's average relative 
resource cost index across all patients. 

c. Standardizing the average relative resource cost 
indexes of each NF across all NF's. 

8. The use of the DMAS Long Term Care Information 
System (LTCIS), assessment form (currently DMAS-95), 
Virginia Center on Aging Study, the State of Maryland 
Time and Motion Study of the Provision of Nursing 
Service in Long Term C:ue Facilities, and the KPMG 
Peat Marwick Survey of Virginia long·term care NF's 
nursing wages to determine the patient class system 
and resource indexes for each patient class. 

9. The establishment of payment rates based on 
service intensity indexes. 

§ 3.2. Conditions for appeal. 

An appeal shall not be heard until the following 
conditions are met: 

1. Where appeals result from desk or 
adjustments, the provider shall have 
notification of program reimbursement 
writing from the DMAS. 

field audit 
received a 

(NPR) in 

2. Any and all moneys due to DMAS shall be paid in 
full, unless a repayment plan has been agreed to by 
the Director of the Division of Cost Settlement and 
Audit. 

3. All first level appeal requests shall be filed in 
writing with the DMAS within 90 business days 
following the date of a DMAS notice of program 
reimbursement that adjustments have been made to a 
specific cost report. 

§ 3.3. Appeal procedure. 

A. There shall be two levels of administrative appeaL 

B. Informal appeals shall be decided by the Director of 
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the Division of Cost Settlement and Audit after an 
informal fact finding conference is held. The decision Ot 
the Director of Cost Settlement and Audit shall be sent in 
writing to the provider within 90 business days following 
conclusion of the informal fact finding conference. 

C. If the provider disagrees with such initial decision the 
provider may, at its discretion, file a notice of appeal to 
the Director of the DMAS. Such notice shall be in writing 
and filed within 30 business days of the date of the initial 
decision. 

D. Within 30 business days of the date of such notice of 
appeal, the director shall appoint a hearing officer to 
conduct the proceedings, to review the issues and the 
evidence presented, and to make a written 
recommendation. 

E. The director shall notify the provider of his final 
decision within 30 business days of the date of the 
appointed hearing officer's written recommendation, or 
after the parties have filed exceptions to the 
recommendations, whichever is later. 

F. The director's final written decision shall conclude 
the provider's administrative appeal. 

§ 3.4. Formal hearing procedures. 

Formal hearing procedures, as developed by DMAS, 
shall control the conduct of the fprmal administrative 
proceedings. 

§ 3.5. Appeals time frames. 

Appeal time frames noted throughout this section may 
be extended for the following reasons; 

A. The provider submits a written request prior to the 
due date requesting an extension for good cause and the 
DMAS approves the extension. 

B. Delays on the part of the NF documented by the 
DMAS shall automatically extend DMAS's time frame to 
the extent of the time delayed. 

C. Extensions of time frames shall be granted to the 
DMAS for good cause shown. 

D. When appeals for multiple years are submitted by a 
NF or a chain organization or common owners are 
coordinating appeals for more than one NF, the time 
frames shall be reasonably extended for the benefit of the 
DMAS. 

E. Disputes relating to the time lines established in § 3.3 
B or to the grant of extensions to the DMAS shall be 
resolved by application to the Director of the DMAS or his 
designee. 

§ 3.6. Dispute resolution for state-operated NFs. 
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A. Definitions. 

"DMAS" means the Department of Medical Assistance 
Services. 

"Division director" means the director of a division of 
DMAS. 

"State-operated provider" means a provider of Medicaid 
services which is enrolled in the Medicaid program and 
operated by the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

B. Right to request reconsideration. 

l. A state-operated provider shall have the right to 
request a reconsideration for any issue which would 
be otherwise administratively appealable under the 
State Plan by a nonstate operated provider. This shall 
be the sole procedure available to state-operated 
providers. 

2. The appropriate DMAS division must receive the 
reconsideration request within 30 business days after 
the date of a DMAS Notice of Amount of Program 
Reimbursement, notice of proposed action, findings 
letter, or other DMAS notice giving rise to a dispute. 

C. Informal review. 

The state-operated provider shall submit to the 
appropriate DMAS division written information specifying 
the nature of the dispute and the relief sought. If a 
reimbursement adjustment is sought, the written 
information must include the nature of the adjustment 
sought; the amount of the adjustment sought; and the 
reasons for seeking the adjustment. The division director 
or his designee shall review this information, requesting 
additional information as necessary. If either party so 
requests, they may meet to discuss a resolution. Any 
designee shall then recommend to the division director 
whether relief is appropriate in accordance with applicable 
law and regulations. 

D. Division director action. 

The division director shall consider any recommendation 
of his designee and shall render a decision. 

E. DMAS director review. 

A state-operated provider may, within 30 business days 
after the date of the informal review decision of the 
division director, request that the DMAS Director or his 
designee review the decision of the division director. The 
DMAS Director shall have the authority to take whatever 
measures he deems appropriate to resolve the dispute. 

F. Secretarial review. 

If the preceding steps do not resolve the dispute to the 
satisfaction of the state-operated provider, within 30 
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business days after the date of the decision of the DMAS 
Director, the provider may request the DMAS director to 
refer the matter to the Secretary of Health and Human 
Resources and any other cabinet secretary as appropriate. 
Any determination by such secretary or secretaries shall 
be final. 

PART IV. 
INDIVIDUAL EXPENSE LIMITATION. 

In addition to operating costs being subject to peer 
group ceilings, costs are further subject to maximum 
limitations as defined in VR 460-03-4.1943, Cost 
Reimbursement Limitations. 

PART V. 
COST REPORT PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS. 

Instructions for preparing NF cost reports will be 
provided by the DMAS. 

PART VI. 
STOCK TRANSACTIONS. 

§ 6.1. Stock acquisition. 

The acquisition of the capital stock of a provider does 
not constitute a basis for revaluation of the provider's 
assets. Any cost associated with such an acquisition shall 
not be an allowable cost The provider selling its stock 
continues as a provider after the sale, and the purchaser 
is only a stockholder of the provider. 

§ 6.2. Merger of unrelated parties. 

A. In the case of a merger which combines two or more 
unrelated corporations under the regulations of the Code 
of Virginia, there will be only one surviving corporation. If 
the surviving corporation, which will own the assets and 
liabilities of the merged corporation, is not a provider, a 
Certificate of Public Need, if applicable, must be issued to 
the surviving corporation. 

B. The nonsurviving corporation shall be subject to the 
policies applicable to terminated providers, including those 
relating to gain or loss on sales of NFs. 

§ 6.3. Merger of related parties. 

The statutory merger of two or more related parties or 
the consolidation of two or more related providers 
resulting in a new corporate entity shall be treated as a 
transaction between related parties. No revaluation shall 
be permitted for the surviving corporation. 

PART VII. 
NURSE AIDE TRAINING AND COMPETENCY 

EVALUATION PROGRAM AND COMPETENCY 
EVALUATION PROGRAMS (NATCEPs). 

§ 7 .I. The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1989 

(OBRA 89) amended § 1903(a)(2)(B) of the Social Security 
Act to fund actual NATCEPs costs incurred by NFs 
separately from the NF's medical assistance services 
reimbursement rates. 

§ 7.2. NATCEPs costs. 

A. NATCEPs costs shall be as defined in VR 
460-03-4.1941. 

B. To calculate the reimbursement rate, NATCEPs costs 
contained in the most recently filed cost report shall be 
converted to a per diem amount by dividing allowable 
NATCEPs costs by the actual number of NF's patient days. 

C. The NATCEPs interim reimbursement rate 
determined in § 7.2 B shall be added to the prospective 
operating cost and plant cost components or charges, 
whichever is lower, to determine the NF's prospective 
rate. The NATCEPs interim reimbursement rate shall not 
be adjusted for inflation. 

D. Reimbursement of NF costs for training and 
competency evaluation of nurse aides must take into 
account the NF's use of trained nurse aides in caring for 
Medicaid, Medicare and private pay patients. Medicaid 
shall not be charged for that portion of NATCEPs costs 
which are properly charged to Medicare or private pay 
services. The final retrospective reimbursement for 
NATCEPs costs shall be the reimbursement rate as 
calculated from the most recently filed cost report by the 
methodology in § 7.2 B times the Medicaid patient days 
from the DMAS MMR-240. 

E. Disallowance of nonreimbursable NATCEPs costs shall 
be reflected in the year in which the nonreimbursable 
costs were claimed. 

F. Payments to providers for allowable NATCEPs costs 
shall not be considered in the comparison of the lower 
allowable reimbursement or charges for covered services, 
as outlined in § 2.14 A. 

PART VIII. 
CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECKS FOR NURSING 

FACILITY EMPLOYEES. 

§ 8.1. Criminal records checks. 

A. This section implements the requirements of § 
32.1-126.01 of the Code of Virginia and Chapter 994 of the 
Acts of Assembly of 1993 (Item 313 T). 

B. A licensed nursing 
compensated employment 
convicted of: 

I. Murder; 

facility shall not hire for 
persons who have been 

2. Abduction for immoral purposes as set out in § 
18.2-48 of the Code of Virginia; 
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3. Assaults and bodily woundings as set out in Article 
4 (§ 18.2-51 et seq.) of Chapter 4 of Title 18.2 of the 
Code of Virginia; 

4. Arson as set out in Article 1 (§ 18.2-77 et seq.) of 
Chapter 5 of Title 18.2 of the Code of Virginia; 

5. Pandering as set out in § 18.2-355 of the Code of 
Virginia; 

6. Crimes against nature involving children as set out 
in § 18.2-361 of the Code of Virginia; 

7. Taking indecent liberties with children as set out in 
§§ 18.2-370 or 18.2-370.1 of the Code of Virginia; 

8. Abuse and neglect of children as set out in § 
18.2-371.1 of the Code of Virginia; 

9. Failure to secure medical attention for an injured 
child as set out in § 18.2-314 of the Code of Virginia; 

10. Obscenity offenses as set out in § 18.2-374.1 of the 
Code of Virginia; or 

11. Abuse or neglect of an incapacitated adult as set 
out in § 18.2-369 of the Code of Virginia. 

C. The provider shall obtain a sworn statement or 
affirmation from every applicant disclosing any criminal 
convictions or pending criminal charges for any of the 
offenses specified in subsection B regardless of whether 
the conviction or charges occurred in the Commonwealth. 

D. The provider shall obtain an original criminal record 
clearance or an original criminal record history from the 
Central Criminal Records Exchange for every person 
hired. This information shall be obtained within 30 days 
from the date of employment and maintained in the 
employees' files during the term of employment and for a 
minimum of five years after employment terminates for 
whatever reason. 

E. The provider may hire an applicant whose 
misdemeanor conviction is more than five years old and 
whose conviction did not involve abuse or neglect or 
moral turpitude. 

F. Reimbursement to the provider will be handled 
through the cost reporting form provided by the DMAS 
and will be limited to the actual charges made by the 
Central Criminal Records Exchange for the records 
requested. Such actual charges will be a pass-through cost 
which is not a part of the operating or plant cost 
components. 

PART IX. 
USE OF MMR-240. 

All providers must use the data from computer printout 
MMR-240 based upon a 60-day accrual period. 
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PART X. 
COMMINGLED INVESTMENT INCOME. 

DMAS shall treat funds commingled for investment 
purposes in accordance with PRM·15, § 202.6. 

PART XL 
PROVIDER NOTIFICATION. 

DMAS shall notify providers of State Plan changes 
affecting reimbursement 30 days prior to the enactment of 
such changes. 

PART XII. 
START-UP COSTS AND ORGANIZATIONAL COSTS. 

§ 12.1. Start-up costs. 

A In the period of developing a provider's ability to 
furnish patient care services, certain costs are incurred. 
The costs incurred during this time of preparation are 
referred to as start-up costs. Since these costs are related 
to patient care services rendered after the time of 
preparation, they shall be capitalized as deferred charges 
and amortized over a 60-month time frame. 

B. Start-up costs may include, but are not limited to, 
administrative and nursing salaries; heat, gas, and 
electricity; taxes, insurance; employee training costs; 
repairs and maintenance; housekeeping; and any other 
allowable costs incident to the start-up period. However, 
any costs that are properly identifiable as operating costs 
must be appropriately classified as such and excluded 
from start-up costs. 

C. Start-up costs that are incurred immediately before a 
provider enters the Program and that are determined by 
the provider, subject to the DMAS approval, to be 
immaterial need not be capitalized but rather may be 
charged to operations in the first cost reporting period. 

D. Where a provider incurs start-up costs while in the 
Program and these costs are determined by the provider, 
subject to the DMAS approval, to be immaterial, these 
costs shall not be capitalized but shall be charged to 
operations in the periods incurred. 

§ 12.2. Applicability. 

A. Start-up cost time frames. 

1. Start-up costs are incurred from the time 
preparation begins on a newly constructed or 
purchased building, wing, floor, unit, or expansion 
thereof to the time the first patient (whether Medicaid 
or non-Medicaid) is admitted for treatment, or where 
the start-up costs apply only to nonrevenue producing 
patient care functions or nonallowable functions, to the 
time the areas are used for their intended purposes. 

2. If a provider intends to prepare all portions of its 
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entire facility at the same time, startwup costs for all 
portions of the facility shall be accumulated in a 
single deferred charge account and shall be amortized 
when the first patient is admitted for treatment. 

3. If a provider intends to prepare portions of its 
facility on a piecemeal basis (Le., preparation of a 
floor or wing of a provider's facility is delayed), 
start-up costs shall be capitalized and amortized 
separately for the portion or portions of the provider's 
facility prepared during different time periods. 

4. Moreover, if a provider expands its NF by 
constructing or purchasing additional buildings or 
wings, start-up costs shall be capitalized and amorllzed 
separately for these areas. 

B. Depreciation time frames. 

1. Costs of the provider's facility and building 
equipment shall be depreciated using the straight line 
method over the lives of these assets starting with the 
month the first patient is admitted for treatment. 

2. Where portions of the provider's NF are prepared 
for patient care services after the initial start-up 
period, those asset costs applicable to each portion 
shall be depreciated over the remaining lives of the 
applicable assets. If the portion of the NF is a 
nonrevenue-producing patient care area or 
nonallowable area, depreciation shall begin when the 
area is opened for its intended purpose. Costs of 
major movable equipment, however, shall be 
depreciated over the useful life of each item starting 
with the month the item is placed into operation. 

§ 12.3. Organizational costs. 

A. Organizational costs are those costs directly incident 
to the creation of a corporation or other form of business. 
These costs are an intangible asset in that they represent 
expenditures for rights and privileges which have a value 
to the enterprise. The services inherent in organizational 
costs extend over more than one accounting period and 
thus affect the costs of future periods of operations. 

B. Allowable organizational costs shall include, but not 
be limited to, legal fees incurred in establishing the 
corporation or other organization (such as drafting the 
corporate charter and by-laws, legal agreements, minutes 
of organizational meeting, terms of original stock 
certificates), necessary accounting fees, expenses of 
temporary directors and organizational meetings of 
directors and stockholders and fees paid to states for 
incorporation. 

C. The following types of costs shall not be considered 
allowable organizational costs: costs relating to the issuance 
and sale of shares of capital stock or other securities, such 
as underwriters fees and commissions, accountant's or 
lawyer's fees, cost of qualifying the issues with the 

appropriate state or federal authorities, stamp taxes, etc. 

D. Allowable organization costs shall generally be 
capitalized by the organization. However, if DMAS 
concludes that these costs are not material when 
compared to total allowable costs, they may be included in 
allowable indirect operating costs for the initial cost 
reporting period. In all other circumstances, allowable 
organization costs shall be amortized ratably over a period 
of 60 months starting with the month the first patient is 
admitted for treatment. 

PART XIII. 
DMAS AUTHORIZATION. 

§ 13.1. Access to records. 

A. DMAS shall be authorized to request and review, 
either through a desk or field audit, all information 
related to the provider's cost report that is necessary to 
ascertain the propriety and allocation of costs (in 
accordance with Medicare and Medicaid rules, regulations, 
and limitations) to patient care and nonpatient care 
activities. 

B. Examples of such information shall include, but not 
be limited to, all accounting records, mortgages, deeds, 
contracts, meeting minutes, Jalary schedules, home office 
services, cost reports, and financial statements. 

C. This access also applies to related organizations as 
defined in § 2.10 who provide assets and other goods and 
services to the provider. 

PART XIV. 
HOME OFFICE COSTS. 

§ 14.1. General. 

Home office costs shall be allowable to the extent they 
are reasonable, relate to patient care, and provide cost 
savings to the provider. 

§ 14.2. Purchases. 

Provider purchases from related organizations, whether 
for services, or supplies, shall be limited to the lower of 
the related organizations actual cost or the price of 
comparable purchases made elsewhere. 

§ 14.3. Allocation of home office costs. 

Home office costs shall be allocated in accordance with 
§ 2150.3, PRM-15. 

§ 14.4. Nonrelated management services. 

Home office costs associated with providing management 
services to nonrelated entities shall not be recognized as 
allowable reimbursable cost. 
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~ 14.5. Allowable and nonallowable home office costs. 

Allowable and nonallowable home office costs shall be 
recognized in accordance with j 2150.2, PRM-15. 

~ 14.6. Equity capital. 

Item 398 D of the 1987 Appropriation Act (as amended), 
effective April 8, 1987, eliminated reimbursement of return 
on equity capital to proprietary providers for periods or 
portions thereof on or after July 1, 1987. 

PART XV. 
REFUND OF OVERPAYMENTS. 

~ 15.1. Lump sum payment. 

When the provider files a cost report indicating that an 
overpayment has occurred, full refund shall be remitted 
with the cost report. In cases where DMAS discovers an 
overpayment during desk audit, field audit, or final 
settlement, DMAS shall promptly send the first demand 
letter requesting a lump sum refund. Recovery shall be 
undertaken even though the provider disputes in whole or 
in part DMAS' determination of the overpayment. 

~ 15.2. Offset. 

If the provider has been overpaid for a particular fiscal 
year and has been underpaid for another fiscal year, the 
underpayment shall be offset against the overpayment. So 
long as the provider has an overpayment balance, any 
underpayments discovered by subsequent review or audit 
shall be used to reduce the balance of the overpayment. 

§ 15.3. Payment schedule. 

A. If the provider cannot refund the total amount of the 
overpayment (i) at the time it files a cost report 
indicating that an overpayment has occurred, the provider 
shall request in writing an extended repayment schedule 
at the time of filing, or (ii) within 30 days after receiving 
the DMAS demand letter, the provider shall promptly 
request in writing an extended repayment schedule. 

B. DMAS may establish a repayment schedule of up to 
12 months to recover all or part of an overpayment or, if 
a provider demonstrates that repayment within a 12-month 
period would create severe financial hardship, the Director 
of DMAS may approve a repayment schedule of up to 36 
months. 

C. A provider shall have no more than one extended 
repayment schedule in place at one time. If subsequent 
audits identify additional overpayment, the full amount 
shall be repaid within 30 days unless the provider submits 
further documentation supporting a modification to the 
existing extended repayment schedule to include the 
additional amounts. 

D. If, during the time an extended repayment schedule 
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is in effect, the provider ceases to be a participating 
provider or fails to file a cost report in a timely manner, 
the outstanding balance shall become immediately due and 
payable. 

E. When a repayment schedule is used to recover only 
part of an overpayment, the remaining amount shall be 
recovered from interim payments to the provider or by 
lump sum payments. 

§ 15.4. Extension request documentation. 

In the written request for an extended repayment 
schedule, the provider shall document the need for an 
extended (beyond 30 days) repayment and submit a 
written proposal scheduling the dates and amounts of 
repayments. If DMAS approves the schedule, DMAS shall 
send the provider written notification of the approved 
repayment schedule, which shall be effective retroactive to 
the date the provider submitted the proposal. 

§ 15.5. Interest charge on extended repayment 

A Once an initial determination of overpayment has 
been made, DMAS shall undertake full recovery of such 
overpayment whether or not the provider disputes, in 
whole or in part, the initial determination of overpayment. 
If an appeal follows, interest shall be waived during the 
period of administrative appeal of an initial determination 
of overpayment 

B. Interest charges on the unpaid balance of any 
overpayment shall accrue pursuant to § 32.1-313 of the 
Code of Virginia from the date the director's 
determination becomes finaL 

C. The director's determination shall be deemed to be 
final on (i) the due date of any cost report filed by the 
provider indicating that an overpayment has occurred, or 
(ii) the issue date of any notice of overpayment, issued by 
DMAS, if the provider does not file an appeal, or (iii) the 
issue date of any administrative decision issued by DMAS 
after an informal fact finding conference, if the provider 
does not file an appeal, or (iv) the issue date of any 
administrative decision signed by the director, regardless 
of whether a judicial appeal follows. In any event, interest 
shall be waived if the overpayment is completely 
liquidated within 30 days of the date of the final 
determination. In cases in which a determination of 
overpayment has been judicially reversed, the provider 
shall be reimbursed that portion of the payment to which 
it is entitled, plus any applicable interest which the 
provider paid to DMAS. 

PART XVI. 
REVALUATION OF ASSETS. 

~ 16.1. Change of ownership. 

A. Under the Consolidated Omnibus 
Reconciliation Act of 1985, Public Law 

Budget 
99-272, 
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reimbursement for capital upon the change of ownership 
of a NF is restricted to the lesser of: 

1. One-half of the percentage increase (as measured 
from the date of acquisition by the seller to the date 
of the change of ownership), in the Dodge 
Construction Cost Index applied in the aggregate with 
respect to those facilities that have undergone a 
change of ownership during the fiscal year, or 

2. One-half of the percentage increase (as measured 
from the date of acquisition by the seller to the date 
of the change of ownership) in the Consumer Price 
Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) applied in the 
aggregate with respect to those facilities that have 
undergone a change of ownership during the fiscal 
year. 

B. To comply with the provisions of COBRA 1985, 
effective October I, 1986, the DMAS shall separately apply 
the following computations to the capital assets of each 
facility which has undergone a change of ownership: 

1. One-half of the percentage increase (as measured 
from the date of acquisition by the seller to the date 
of the change of ownership), in the Dodge 
Construction Cost Index, or 

2. One-half of the percentage increase (as measured 
from the date of acquisition by the seller to the date 
of the change of ownership) in the Consumer Price 
Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U). 

C. Change of ownership is deemed to have occurred 
only when there has been a bona fide sale of assets of a 
NF (See s 2.5 B 3 for the definition of "bona fide" sale). 

D. Reimbursement for capital assets which have been 
revalued when a facility has undergone a change of 
ownership shall be limited to the lesser of: 

1. The amounts computed in subsection B above; 

2. Appraised replacement cost value; or 

3. Purchase price. 

E. Date of acquisition is deemed to have occurred on 
the date legal title passed to the seller. If a legal titling 
date is not determinable, date of acquisition shall be 
considered to be the date a certificate of occupancy was 
issued by the appropriate licensing or building inspection 
agency of the locality where the nursing facility is located. 

NOTICE: The forms used in administering the Nursing 
Home Payment System are not being published due to the 
large number; however, the name of each form is listed 
below. The forms are available for public inspection at the 
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad 
Street, Richmond, Virginia, or at the Office of the 
Registrar of Regulations, General Assembly Building, 2nd 

Floor, Room 262, Richmond, Virginia. I 
(PIRS 1090 Series) 

Schedule A - Facility Description and Statistical Data 

Schedule A-1 - Certification by Officer or Administrator of 
Provider 

Schedule A-2 - Certification by Officer or Administrator of 
Provider 

Schedule A-3 Computation of Patient Intensity 
Reimbursement System Base Operating Costs 

Schedule A-4 - Computation of Direct Patient Care Nursing 
Service Costs 

Schedule B - Reclassification and Adjustment of Trial 
Balance of Expenses 

Schedule B-1 · Reclassifications 

Schedule B-2 - Analysis of Administrative and General -
Other 

Schedule B-4 - Adjustment to Expenses 

Schedule B-5, Part I - Cost Allocation - Employee Benefits 

Schedule B-5, Part II - Cost Allocation - Employee Benefits 
- Statistical Basis 

Schedule C - Computation of Title XIX Direct Patient Care 
Ancillary Service Costs 

Schedule D - Statement of Cost of Services From Related 
Organizations 

Schedule E - Statement of Compensation of Owners 

Schedule F - Statement of Compensation of Administrators 
and/or Assistant Administrators 

Schedule G - Balance Sheet 

Schedule G-1 - Statement of Patient Revenues 

Schedule G-2 - Statement of Operations 

Schedule H, Part I - Computation of Title XIX Base Costs 
and Prospective Reimbursement Rate 

Schedule H, Part II - Discontinued 

Schedule H, Part III - Discontinued 

Schedule H-1 - Computation of Prospective Direct and 
Indirect Patient Care Profit Incentive Rates 

Schedule J Calculation of Medical Service 

Virginia Register of Regulations 

5688 



Reimbursement Settlement 

Schedule J. Part I • Discontinued 

Schedule J, Part II · Computation of Nursing Facility 
Medical Service Potential Prospective Reimbursement 

Schedule J, Part lli · Settlement Computations 

Schedule J, Part IV · Analysis of Nursing Facility Interim 
Payments for Title XIX Services 

Schedule J, Part V · Analysis of Quarterly Title XIX 
Patient Days 

Schedule J, Part VI • Accumulation of Title XIX Charges 

Schedule J-1 - Calculation of NATCEPs Reimbursement 
Account 

Schedule J-2 · Calculation of Criminal Record Check Costs 
Reimbursement 

Schedule K - Debt and Interest Expense 

Schedule L - Limitation on Federal Participation for 
Capital Expenditures Questionnaire 

Schedule N · Nurse Aide Training and Competency 
Evaluation Program Costs and Competency Evaluation 
Programs (NATCEPs) 

(HCFA-2540 Worksheets) 

Worksheet S-3 · Nursing facility statistical data 

Worksheet A · Reclassification and adjustment of trial 
balances of expenses 

Worksheet A-6 · Reclassifications 

Worksheet A-8 · Adjustments to Expenses 

Supplemental Worksheet A-8-1 · Statement of Costs of 
Services from related organizations 

Worksheet B, Part I · Cost Allocation - General Service 
Costs 

Worksheet B-1 · Cost Allocation · Statistical Basis 

Worksheet B. Part II · Allocation of Capital Related Costs 

Worksheet C . Departmental Cost Distribution 

Worksheet G · Balance Sheet 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-1131; Filed July 20, 1994, 11:17 a.m. 
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Proposed Regulations 

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES (STATE BOARD 
OF) 

Title Qf_ Regulation: VR 615·01·29. Aid to Families with 
Dependent Children (AFDC) Program • Disregarded 
Income and Resources. 

Statutory Authority: 9 63.1-25 of the Code of Virginia. 

Public Hearing Date: N/A - Written comments may be 
submitted through October 7, 1994. 

(See Calendar of Events section 
for additional information) 

Basis: The proposed regulation has been developed 
pursuant to 9 63.1-25 of the Code of Virginia. This section 
gives the State Board of Social Services authority to make 
rules and regulations deemed necessary or desirable to 
carry out the true purpose and intent of Title 63.1 of the 
Code of Virginia. Sections 45 CFR 233.20(a)(3)(iv)(B) and 
45 CFR 233.20(a)(3) (xxi) also provide a basis for the 
proposed regulation. 

This regulation identifies additional types of income and 
resources which must be disregarded in determining 
eligibility and the benefit amount in the Aid to Families 
with Dependent Children (AFDC) Program. 

Purpose: Final federal regulations published February 2, 
1994, amend the existing regulations concerning treatment 
of loans in relation to the financial eligibility of families 
applying for or receiving AFDC benefits. The purpose of 
this regulation is to bring Virginia's Aid to Families with 
Dependent Children (AFDC) Program requirements into 
compliance with amended federal regulations in the area 
of income and resources and to establish what constitutes 
a bona fide loan. 

Substance: The amended regulations require that, in 
evaluating income and resources to be counted in the 
AFDC Program, states must disregard bona fide loans 
regardless of their source or intended use. The disregard 
is limited to the principal of the loan. If the loan is 
placed in a financial instrument which accrues interest, 
the interest is not covered by the disregard provision and 
must be treated as income to the AFDC family. If the 
money borrowed is used to make a purchase, the item 
purchased is then evaluated as a resource. The regulations 
also require each state to establish criteria for identifying 
a bona fide loan. 

Under existing regulations, loans obtained for current 
living costs may be counted as income in the eligibility 
and benefit determinations. The effect of other loans on a 
family's eligibility depends upon the source of the loan 
and the purpose for which the loan was received and 
used. Generally, educational loans are totally disregarded 
for both income and resource purposes or, at a minimum, 
the portion used to meet educational expenses is 
disregarded. 
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Issues: Money received as a loan must be repaid. The 
duty to repay distinguishes it from all other forms of 
income. Since the borrower must repay the loan principal 
in its entirety, the loan must not be treated as income for 
AFDC purposes. If a loan is used to purchase a resource, 
that loan is considered totally encumbered and, therefore, 
is not a resource. The disregard does not extend to 
interest earned on a loan while held by the borrower, or 
purchases made with the proceeds of a loan. 

The proposed regulation has no advantages or 
disadvantages for the general public. For AFDC applicants 
and recipients, however, the change is advantageous since 
money received as a loan will no longer be counted in the 
evaluation of eligibility or calculation of monthly benefits. 
Local departments of social services will also find the 
regulation advantageous since it makes policies in the 
Food Stamp Program and AFDC Program more alike. This 
contributes to ease in administration. Since the proposed 
regulation is, in part, federally mandated, it will also 
assure that the program remains in compliance with 
federal law and regulations. This change will not impact 
local governments. There are no disadvantages to this 
change. 

Imoact: The regulation's fiscal impact cannot be 
determined as data specific to loans is not available from 
which to make an accurate projection of the cost. The 
following factors suggest, however, that the cost may be 
small: (i) educational loans are already disregarded in 
most instances. if not totally then at least the portion used 
for school or school-related expenses; (ii) not all loans are 
now being reported; and (iii) the irregular receipt of loans 
to help with current living expenses often precludes 
anticipating their receipt. thus limiting the number of 
loans counted under current policy. 

Based on a snapshot of the AFDC caseload in January 
1994. cash and other contributions were counted in .84% 
of the cases. We believe the number that were actually 
loans constituted only a very small percentage of those 
cases. If, however, all are treated as loans, the state's 
share of the increased cost in AFDC benefits for FY 1995, 
which is 50% of the total cost. would be $32,382.50 
monthly, or $194.295, if implemented in January 1995. 
Using the same monthly amount for FY 1996. the state's 
AFDC benefit costs would be increased by $388,590. No 
increase in administrative costs is anticipated. 

Similarly, the agency believes that the increase in 
Medicaid costs will be negligible; however, data is also 
unavailable for an accurate estimate in this program. 

Summary: 

According to amended federal regulations in the Aid 
to Families with Dependent Children ( AFDC) Program. 
states are mandated to count income and resources of 
an AFDC family unless specifically identified as 
disregarded. The proposed regulation adds bona fide 
loans to the types of income and resources which 

shall be disregarded. The proposed disregard applies 
to the principal of the loan only. If a loan is placed 
in a bank account or other financial instrument, any 
interest earned is not exempt under this disregard 
and shall be treated according to existing rules in the 
AFDC Program applicable to treatment of interest. In 
addition to mandating this disregard, amended federal 
regulations require states to establish criteria to 
determine whether a loan is bona ftde. In response to 
this requirement, the proposed regulations indicate, 
for purposes of Virginia"s AFDC Program. what 
constitutes a bona fide loan. 

VR 615-01-29. Aid to Families with Dependent Children 
(AFDC) Program - Disregarded Income and Resources. 

PART I. 
DEFINITIONS. 

§ 1.1. Definitions. 

The following words and terms, when used in these 
regulations, shall have the following meaning unless the 
context clearly indicates otherwise: 

"Agent Orange payments" means any payment from the 
Agent Orange Settlement Fund or any other fund 
established pursuant to the Agent Orange product liability 
litigation, M.D.L. No. 381 (E.D.N.Y.). 

"Aid to Families with Dependent Children ( AFDC) 
Program" means the program administered by the Virginia 
Department of Social Services, through which a relative 
can receive monthly cash assistance for the support of his 
eligible children. 

"Allowable reserve" means the type and amount of real 
and personal property. including cash and liquid assets. 
which may be retained by the assistance unit without 
affecting eligibility for financial assistance. 

"Assistance unit" means those persons who have been 
determined categorically and financially eligible to receive 
an assistance payment. 

"Attendance costs" means tuition and fees normally 
assessed a student carrying the same academic workload 
as determined by the institution, and including costs for 
rental or purchase of any equipment, materials, or 
supplies required of all students in the same course of 
study; and an allowance for books, supplies, transportation, 
dependent care, and miscellaneous personal expenses for a 
student attending the institution on at least a half-time 
basis, as determined by the institution. 

"Emergency" means any occasion or instance for which, 
in the determination of the President, federal assistance is 
needed to supplement state and local efforts and 
capabilities to save lives and to protect property and 
public health and safety, or to lessen or avert the threat 
of a catastrophe in any part of the United States. 
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"Major disaster" means any natural catastrophe 
(including any hurricane, tornado, storm, high water, 
winddriven water, tidal wave, tsunami, earthquake, 
volcanic eruption, landslide, mudslide, snowstorm, or 
drought), or regardless of cause, any fire, flood, or 
explosion, in any part of the United States, which in the 
determination of the President causes damage of sufficient 
severity and magnitude to warrant major disaster 
assistance under the Disaster Relief Act to supplement the 
efforts and available resources of states, local 
governments, and disaster relief organizations in alleviating 
the damage, loss, hardship or suffering caused thereby. 

"Native Corporation" means regional, village, urban or 
group corporations organized under the laws of the State 
of Alaska as a business for profit or nonprofit corporation 
to bolo. !nwst, manage, or distribute lands, funds, and 
other rights and assets for or on behalf of members of a 
native group in accordance with the Alaska Native Claims 
Settlement Act. 

PART II. 
DISREGARDED INCOME AND RESOURCES. 

* 2.1. Disregarded income. 

A. The following income of members of the assistance 
unit, a parent not included in the assistance unit or 
anyone whose income is used in determining eligibility or 
the amount of assistance in the Aict to Families with 
Dependent Children (AFDC) program, shall be disregarded. 

B. Income which is disregarded under the following 
provisions shall not be counted in determining the need 
for assistance of any individual under any other federal 
assistance program: 

1. Home produce of the assistance unit utilized for 
their own consumption; 

2. The value of food coupons under the Food Stamps 
program; 

3. The value of foods donated under the U.S.D.A. 
Commodity Distribution Program, including those 
furnished through school meal programs; 

4. Payments received under Title II of the Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policies Act of 1970; 

5. Benefits received under Title VII, Nutrition 
Program for the Elderly, of the Older Americans Act 
of 1965, as amended; 

6. Grants or loans to any undergraduate students for 
educational purposes made or insured under any 
program administered by the U.S. Cemmissieeer 
Secretary of Education. 

Programs that are administered by the U.S. 
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Cemmissieeer SecretarJ' of Education include: Pell 
Grant, Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant, 
Perkins Loan, Guaranteed Student Loan (including the 
Virginia Education Loan), PLUS Loan, Congressional 
Teacher Scholarship Program, College Scholarship 
Assistance Program, and the Virginia Transfer Grant 
Program; 

7. Funds derived from the College Work Study 
Program; 

8. A scholarship ; Iooft; or grant obtained and used 
under conditions which preclude its use for current 
living costs; 

9. Training allowance (transportation, books, required 
training expenses, and motivational allowance) 
provided by the Department of Rehabilitative Services 
(DRS) for persons participating in Rehabilitative 
Services Programs. This disregard is not applicable to 
the allowance provided by DRS to the family of the 
participating individual; 

10. Any portion of an SSI payment or Auxiliary Grant; 

II. Payments to VISTA Volunteers under Title I, when 
the monetary value of such payments is less lfte than 
minimum wage as determined by the Director of the 
Action Office, and payments for services of 
reimbursement for out·Of·pocket expenses made to 
individual volunteers serving as foster grandparents, 
senior health aides, or senior companions, and to 
persons serving in the Service Corps of Retired 
Executives (SCORE) and Active Corps of Executives 
(ACE) and other programs pursuant to Titles II and 
III, of Public Law 93-13, the Domestic Volunteer 
Service Act of 1973; 

12. The Veterans Administration educational amount 
for the caretaker 18 or older is to be disregarded 
when it is used specifically for educational purposes. 

Any additional money included in the benefit amount 
for dependents is to be counted as income to the 
assistance unit; 

13. Foster care payments received by anyone in the 
assistance unit; 

14. Unearned income received from Title IV, Part B 
(Job Corps) of the Job Training Partnership Act 
(JTPA) by an eligible child is to be disregarded as an 
incentive payment. However, any payment received by 
any other Job Corps participant or any payment made 
on behalf of the participant's eligible child(ren) is to 
be counted as income to the assistance unit; 

15. Income tax refunds including earned income tax 
credit advance payments and refunds; 

16. Payments made under the Fuel Assistance 
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program; 

17. The value of supplemental food assistance received 
under the Child Nutrition Act of 1966. This includes 
all school meal programs; the Women, Infants, and 
Children (WIC) program; and the Child Care Food 
program; 

18. HUD Section 8 and Section 23 payments; 

19. Unearned income received by an eligible child 
under Title II, Parts A and B, and Title IV, Part A, of 
the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA) is to be 
disregarded; 

20. Funds distributed to, or held in trust for, members 
of any Indian tribe under Public Laws 92-254, 93-134, 
94-540, 97-458, 98-64, 98-123, or 98-124. Additionally, 
interest and investment income accrued on such funds 
while held in trust, and purchases made with such 
interest and investment income, are disregarded; 

21. The following types of distributions received from 
a Native Corporation under the Alaska Native Claims 
Settlement Act (Public Law 100-241): 

a. Cash (including cash dividends on stock received 
from a Native Corporation) to the extent that it 
does not, in the aggregate, exceed $2,000 per 
individual per year; 

b. Stock (including stock issued or distributed by a 
Native Corporation as a dividend or distribution on 
stock); 

c. A partnership interest; 

d. Land or an interest in land (including land or an 
interest in land received from a Native Corporation 
as a dividend or distribution on stock); and 

e. An interest in a settlement trust. 

22. Income derived from certain submarginal land of 
the United States which is held in trust for certain 
Indian tribes (Public Law 92-114); 

23. The first $50 of total child or spousal support 
payments received each month by an assistance unit 
prior to the issuance of the first ongoing check; 

24. Payments sent to the recipient by the 
Commonwealth which are identified as disregarded 
support; 

25. Federal major disaster and emergency assistance 
provided under the Disaster Relief and Emergency 
Assistance Amendments of 1988, and disaster 
assistance provided by state and local governments 
and disaster assistance organizations (Public Law 
100-707); 

26. Payments received by individuals of Japanese 
ancestry under the Civil Liberties Act of 1988, and by 
Aleuts under the Aleutian and Pribilof Islands 
Restitution Act (Public Law 100-383); 

27. Agent Orange payments; 

28. Payments received by individuals under the 
Radiation Exposure Compensation Act (Public Law 
101-426); 

29. Funds received pursuant to the Maine Indians 
Claims Settlement Act of 1980 (Public Law (96-420) 
and the Aroostook Band of Micmacs Settlement Act 
(Public Law 102-171); 

30. Student financial assistance received under Title IV 
of the Higher Education Amendments of 1992 (Public 
Law 102-325); 

31. Student financial assistance received under the 
Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology 
Education Act made available for attendance costs 
(Public Law 101-392); all<! 

32. Student financial assistance received under the 
Bureau of Indian Affairs student assistance programs -: 
;and 

33. All bona fide loans. The loan may be for any 
purpose and may be from a private individual as well 
as from a commercial institution. The dz:c;regard Lc; 
limited to the principal of a loan. A simple statement 
signed by both parties indicating that the payment is 
a loan and must be repaid is sufficient to verify that 
a loan is bona fide. Interest earned on the proceeds 
of a loan while held in a savings or checking account 
or other financial instrument shall be counted as 
income in the month received and as a resource 
thereafter. Purchases made with a loan are counted 
as resources. 

§ 2.2. Disregarded resources. 

In determining eligibility for financial assistance for the 
Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC) program, 
all resources shall be considered in relation to the $1,000 
allowable reserve, except as specifically disregarded below. 
These resources shall be disregarded as long as they are 
kept separate from the allowable reserve. In the event any 
funds derived from subdivisions 3 through J.ii 21 of this 
section are combined with other resources, they shall be 
considered in determining eligibility. 

I. The value of the food coupons under the Food 
Stamp Program; 

2. The value of foods donated under the U.S.D.A. 
Commodity Distribution Program; 

3. Payments received under Title II of the Uniform 
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·Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policies Act of 1970; 

4. Benefits received under Title VII, Nutrition 
Program for the Elderly, of the Older Americans Act 
of 1965, as amended; 

5. Grants or loans to undergraduate students for 
educational purposes, made or insured under any 
program administered by the U.S. CemmissieneF 
Secretary of Education. 

Programs that are administered by the U.S. 
CemffiissieH:eF Secretary of Education include: Pell 
Grant, Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant, 
Perkins Loan, Congressional Teacher Scholarship 
Program, College Scholarship Assistance Program, and 
the Virginia Transfer Grant Program; 

6. The value of supplemental food assistance received 
under the Child Nutrition Act of 1966. This includes 
all school meal programs, the Women, Infants, and 
Children (WIC) program, and the Child Care Food 
program; 

7. Payments to VISTA volunteers under Title I, when 
the monetary value of such payments is less than 
minimum wage as determined by the director of the 
Action Office, and payments for services of 
reimbursement for out-of-pocket e~penses made to 
individual volunteers serving as foster grandparents, 
senior health aides, or senior companions, and to 
persons serving in the Service Corps of Retired 
Executives (SCORE) and Active Corps of Executives 
(ACE) and other programs pursuant to Titles II and 
III, of Public Law 93-113, the Domestic Volunteer 
Service Act of 1973; 

8. Funds distributed to, or held in trust for, members 
of any Indian tribe under Public Law 92-254, 93-134, 
94-540, 97-458, 98-64, 98-123, or 98-124. Additionally, 
interest and investment income accrued on such funds 
while held in trust, and purchases made with such 
interest and investment income, are disregarded; 

9. The following types of distributions received from a 
Native Corporation under the Alaska Native Claims 
Settlement Act (Public Law 100-241): 

a. Cash (including cash dividends on stock received 
from a Native Corporation) to the extent that it 
does not, in the aggregate, exceed $2,000 per 
individual per year; 

b. Stock (including stock issued or distributed by a 
Native Corporation as a dividend or distribution on 
stock); 

c. A partnership interest; 

d. Land or an interest in land (including land or an 
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interest in land received from a Native Corporation 
as a dividend or distribution on stock); and 

e. An interest in a settlement trust. 

10. Income derived from certain submarginal land of 
the United States which is held in trust for certain 
Indian tribes (Public Law 94-114); 

1 1. Disregarded support payments which were sent to 
the recipient by the Virginia Department of Social 
Services or determined to be a disregard by the 
eligibility worker; 

12. Tools and equipment belonging to a temporarily 
disabled member of the assistance unit during the 
period of disability, when such tools and equipment 
have been and will continue to be used for 
employment; 

13. Federal major disaster and emergency assistance 
provided under the Disaster Relief and Emergency 
Assistance Amendments of 1988, and disaster 
assistance provided by state and local governments 
and disaster assistance organizations (Public Law 
100-707); 

14. Payments received by individuals of Japanese 
ancestry under the Civil Liberties Act of 1988, and by 
Aleuts under the Aleutian and Pribilof Island 
Restitution Act (Public Law 100-383); 

15. Agent Orange payments; 

16. Payments received by individuals under the 
Radiation Exposure Compensation Act (Public Law 
101-426); 

17. Funds received pursuant to the Maine Indians 
Claims Settlement Act of 1980 (Public Law (96-420) 
and the Aroostook Band of Micmacs Settlement Act 
(Public Law 102-171); 

18. Student financial assistance received under Title IV 
of the Higher Education Amendments of 1992 (Public 
Law 102-325); 

19. Student financial assistance received under the 
Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology 
Education Act made available for attendance costs 
(Public Law 101-392); aft<! 

20. Student financial assistance received under the 
Bureau of Indian Affairs student assistance programs ~ 

; and 

21. All bona fide loans. The loan may be for any 
purpose and may be from a private individual as well 
as from a commercial institution. The disregard is 
limited to the principal of a loan. A simple statement 
signed by both parties indicating that the payment is 
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a loan and must be repaid is sufficient to verify that 
a loan is bona fide. interest earned on the proceeds 
of a loan while held in a savings or checking account 
or other financial instrument shall be counted as 
income in the month received and as a resource 
thereafter. Purchases made with a loan are counted 
as resources. 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-lll6; Filed July 15, 1994, 4:00p.m. 

VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

Tille Qf_ Regulation: VR 672-20-20. Regulation Governing 
Management of Coal Combustion BynProducts. 

Statutory Authority: § 10.1-1402 of the Code of Virginia. 

Public Hearing Dates: 
September 7, 1994 - 7 p.m. 
September 8, 1994 - 7 p.m. 
Written comments may be submitted through October 
7, 1994. 

(See Calendar of Events section 
for additional information) 

Basis: Section 10.1-1402 of the Code of Virginia authorizes 
the Virginia Waste Management Board to issue regulations 
as may be necessary to carry out its powers and duties 
required by the Act. Section 10.1-1408.1 of the Code of 
Virginia specifically authorizes the state to properly 
manage the disposal, treatment or storage of nonhazardous 
solid wastes in the Commonwealth in order to protect the 
public health, safety, and welfare, and the natural 
resources of the state. Section 10.1-1402(5) of the Virginia 
Waste Management Act authorizes the Virginia Waste 
Management Board to promote the development of 
resource conservation and recovery systems. 

The proposed regulation will provide for the proper 
disposal of coal combustion by-products, or coal ash, which 
is one of the numerous solid wastes covered in the 
Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulation, VR 672-20-10. 

Purpose: The purpose of the proposed regulation is to 
provide for alternatives to the traditional disposal of coal 
ash in landfill facilities. The proposed regulation is not 
required to protect the health, safety or welfare as that is 
provided for by the Solid Waste Management Regulation. 
However, the proposal will provide an alternative disposal 
method for coal ash which is environmentally sound. It 
will also provide for the efficient and economical 
performance of an ongoing governmental function by 
streamlining compliance and administrative procedures 
associated with coal ash disposal. 

Substance and Issues: Coal ash is produced in the 
Commonwealth in large volumes as a result of energy 
generation. It forms a category of solid wastes that 
exhibits low environmental impact when it is handled 
properly, especially when the residuals are not codisposed 

with municipal solid wastes. The proposed regulation 
establishes certain uses for coal ash and appropriate 
standards for siting, design, construction, operation, and 
administrative procedures pertaining to the use, reuse or 
reclamation of coal ash. It will apply to all persons who 
~se, reuse, or reclaim coal ash by applying it to or placing 
1t on land and to owners or operators of coal mining 
facilities that accept coal ash for mine land reclamation 
on sites permitted by the Department of Mines, Minerals 
and Energy. 

The proposed regulation also eliminates the permit 
application review and approval process, eliminates the 
requirements for lining a project site with soil and 
synthetic liners and the requirements to perform 
groundwater monitoring and post-closure care activities. 

There are no perceived disadvantages to the public or 
agency should the proposed regulation be adopted. The 
proposed regulation should result in advantages to the 
public in that it will streamline procedures and provide 
for cost savings for the public which must comply with 
solid waste disposal regulations and will provide a more 
environmentally beneficial alternative to landfill disposal of 
coal ash. Furthermore, the proposed regulation will aid in 
extending the life of landfills statewide. Additionally, the 
proposed regulation will provide an advantage to the 
agency and state by prov;ding for the efficient and 
economical performance of an ongoing governmental 
function by streamlining compliance and administrative 
procedures associated with coal ash disposal. 

Impact: The development of regulations setting up 
appropriate standards for the use of the residuals in 
structural fills and in mine reclamation would enable their 
placement in specifically designed structures and would 
substantially conserve the scarce and expensive landfill 
space. Because the proposed regulation is designed to 
encourage new uses rather than codisposal, the number 
and type of the facilities availing themselves of the 
regulatory and administrative relief is unknown. However, 
based on the applications pending before the department, 
it is expected that the volume of residuals that may be 
managed under this regulation may exceed I 00,000 cubic 
yards annually. 

In addition to impact on the conservation of natural 
resources, substantial economic benefits are expected from 
the reduction of the disposal and land reclamation costs. 
The promulgation of the proposed regulation would also 
reduce the compliance and the administrative costs to the 
department by streamlining the administrative procedures. 

Because the proposed regulation provides regulatory relief 
rather than placing additional burden on the industry, it is 
expected that substantial savings will result when 
compared to the present management requirements. 

The costs of disposal of solid wastes vary considerably 
from facility to facility and depend significantly on the 
type of the wastes managed and the age of the facility. A 
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listing of the tipping fees charged by the municipal and 
commercial disposal sites is attached. Absent from that list 
are the disposal casts at the sites operated by the 
industrial waste generators for their own use. Such -costs 
are treated as confidential and are not available to the 
department. However, it may be surmised that the disposal 
costs of such proprietary sites are comparable in their 
magnitude: while savings might be achieved through lack 
of transportation costs, the economy of scale might not be 
favorable. For the purpose of the impact estimation, it 
would be safe to assume that the disposal cost for 
industrial waste may amount to about $17 pee ton 
delivered at the site. 

The costs associated with the sites allowed by the 
proposed regulation can only be estimated on the basis of 
lessened construction and operating requiremtmts because 
no such sites currently exist. Because the regulation deals 
with reuse and reclamation, the estimates should also take 
into account tbe avoided costs for such materials as fill 
dirt and the costs of site acquisition. For this reason, one 
may use the differential cost between the use of 
conventional construction materials and techniques and the 
use of those for coal combustion by-products. The 
by-products will require additional care in ·construction of 
runoff and runon control systems and the construction of 
the infiltration and erosion layers during the site closure 
step. These differential costs should nat exceed $5.00 per 
ton of material. 

Based an the pending requests before the department, it is 
conservatively expected that during the initial years close 
to 200,000 cubic yards of by-products will be reused in 
structural fills. Additional materials will be used in mine 
land reclamation; however, the amount will be heavily 
dependent an lang-distance hauling of the by-products and 
will, therefore, be difficult to predict. If substantial 
contractual pressure will be exerted on Virginia coal 
mines to receive the by-products generated by their 
customers, the use of by-products will be an order of 
magnitude higher. 

Taking into account only structural fills, it is expected that 
the proposed saving to the energy producers will amount 
to approximately $4.8 million. Additional small savings 
would accrue from elimination of the need to pay 
permitting fees amounting to $17,000 per project. 

The proposed regulation does not impose requirements on 
the public to dispose of coal ash in any particular manner. 
It encourages new or alternative uses for coal ash rather 
than codisposal with municipal wastes in landfill facilities. 
Therefore, the number and type of the facilities availing 
themselves of the regulatory and administrative relief is 
unknown. However, based on the applications pending 
before the Department of Environmental Quality, it is 
expected that the volume of ash that may be managed 
under this regulation may exceed l 00,000 cubic yards 
annually. There is no cost of implementation involved with 
the regulation. 
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Federal Requirement: There are no federal laws, 
regulations or other requirements specific to the disposal 
of coal ash. 

Localities Affected: There are no known localities which 
will be particularly affected by the proposed regulation. 

Summary: 

This regulation provides for the use of coal 
combustion by~products and establishes appropriate 
standards for siting. design, construction, operation. 
and administrative procedures pertaining to their use. 
reuse. or reclamation. 

The proposed regulation allows for the use of 
by-products zn structural fills and mine land 
reclamation projects. It applies to all persons who 
use, reuse, or reclaim the by-products by applying 
them to or placing them on land and to the owners 
or operators of the coal mining facilities that accept 
the by-products for mine land reclamation on sites 
permitted by the Virginia Department of Mines, 
Minerals and Energy. 

The regulation contains provisions regarding the siting 
of projects, the design and construction of runoff and 
cover systems, and closure of projects. It also 
provides minimum requirements for the operation of 
the site. 

Preface: 

This regulation provides for reasonable exemptions 
from the permitting requirements contained in Part 
VII of the Virginia Solid Waste Management 
Regulations (VR 672-20-10) and certain substantive 
facility standards contained in § 5.3 of VR 672-20-10, 
in order to promote the development of resource 
conservation and resource recovery systems as 
required by§ 10.1-1402(5) of the Code of Virginia. 

VR 672-20-20. Regulation Governing Management of Coal 
Combustion By-Products. 

PART I. 
DEFINITIONS. 

§ 1.1. Definitions as established in VR 672-20-10, Virginia 
Solid Waste Management Regulations. 

The definitions set out in Part I of the Virginia Solid 
Waste Management Regulations (VR 672-20-10) are 
incorporated by reference. 

§ 1.2. Definitions. 

In addition to the definitions incorporated by reference, 
the following words and terms shall have, for the purpose 
of this regulation. the following meaning: 
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"ASTM" means the American Society for Testing and 
Materials. 

''CCB" means coal combustion by-products. 

''CCB site'' means all land and structures, other 
appurtenances, and improvements thereon used to manage 
CCB by the methods included in either § 2.3 A or § 2.3 
B. 

"Closure" means the act of securing a CCB site 
pursuant to the requirements of this regulation. 

"Director" means the Director of the Department of 
Environmental Quality or the Director of the Department 
of Mines, Minerals and Energy depending on the context. 

"Perennial stream" means a stream or part of a stream 
that flows continuously during all of the calendar year as 
a result of groundwater discharge or surface runoff. 

"Speculatively accumulated material" means any 
material that is accumulated before being used, reused, or 
reclaimed or in anticipation of potential use, reuse, or 
reclamation. CCB are not being accumulated speculatively 
when they can be used, reused, or reclaimed, have a 
feasible means of use, reuse, or reclamation available and 
75% of the accumulated CCB are being removed from the 
storage annually. 

"TCLP" means a chemical analytical procedure 
described in the Virginia Hazardous Waste Management 
Regulations (VR 672-10-1). 

PART II. 
PURPOSE AND APPLICABILITY.. 

§ 2.1. Purpose. 

The purpose of this regulation is to provide for the use 
of coal combustion by-products (CCB) and to establish 
appropriate standards for siting, design, construction, 
operation, and administrative procedures pertaining to 
their use. reuse. or reclamation. 

§ 2.2. Applicability. 

A. This regulation applies to all persons who use, reuse, 
or reclaim CCB by applying them to or placing them on 
land in a manner other than addressed in § 3.2 or § 3.3 
of the Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulations (VR 
672-20-10). 

B. This regulation establishes minimum standards for 
the owners or operators of coal mining facilities that 
accept CCB for mine reclamation or mine refuse disposal 
on a mine site permitted by the Virginia Department of 
Mines, Minerals and Energy (DMME) unless otherwise 
exempt under § 3.3 B of the Solid Waste Management 
Regulations (VR 672-20-10). If the permit issued by the 
DMME in accordance with the Virginia Surface Mining 

Regulations (VR 480-03-19) specifies the 
conditions set forth in Parts III and IV of this 
the permittee is exempt from this regulation. 

C. Conditions of applicability are as follows. 

applicable 
regulation, 

I. Persons using CCB other than in a manner 
prescribed under this regulation shall manage their 
waste in accordance with all provisions of the 
Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulations (VR 
672-20-10); 

2. Materials which are accumulated speculatively, 
materials which are not utilized in a manner 
described in the operation plan required by § 3.3 of 
this regulation, and off-speczfication materials which 
cannot be utilized or reprocessed to make them 
usable shall be managed in accordance with all 
appropriate provisions of the Virginia Solid Waste 
Management Regulations (VR 672-20-10); and 

3. Storage, stockpiling, and other processing or 
handling of CCB, which may need to occur prior to 
their final placement or use, reuse, or reclamation, 
shall be in a manner necessary to protect human 
health and safety and the environment. For projects 
permitted by the DMME, the storage. stockpiling, or 
handling of CCB shall be managed in accordance with 
the Virginia Surface Mining Regulations (VR 
480-03-I9). 

§ 2.3. Relationship to other regulations. 

This regulation does not affect the Virginia Solid Waste 
Management Regulations (VR 672-20-10) or other pertinent 
regulations of the department or other agencies of the 
Commonwealth, except that persons subject to and in 
compliance with this regulation are exempt from the 
Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulations (VR 
672-20-10) and the Financial Assurance Regulations for 
Solid Waste Facilities (VR 672-20-1) for those activities 
covered by this regulation. 

§ 2.4. Enforcement and appeals. 

A. All administrative enforcement and appeals taken 
from actions of the director relative to the provisions of 
this regulation shall be governed by the Virginia 
Administrative Process Act (§ 9-6.14:1 et seq. of the Code 
of Virginia). 

B. The owner or operator of the CCB site who violates 
any proviSion of this regulation will be considered to be 
operating an unpermitted facllity as prov1ded for in § 2.7 
of the Solid Waste Management Regulations (VR 
672-20-10) and shall be required to either obtain a permit 
as required by Part VII or close under Part V of those 
regulations. 

C. The requirement to obtain a permit or to close the 
project shall not preclude additional action for 
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remediation or enforcement, including (without limitations) 
the assessment of civil charges or civil penalties, as is 
otherwise authorized by law. 

PART Ill. 
MANAGEMENT STANDARDS. 

Article 1. 
Locational Restrictions. 

§ 3.1. Locational restrictions. 

Coal combustion by-products used, reused, or reclaimed 
on or below ground shall not be placed: 

1. in areas subject to base floods unless 1t can be 
shown that CCB can be protected from inundation or 
washout and that flow of water is not restricted; 

2. With the vertical separation between the CCB and 
the maximum seasonal water table or bedrock less 
than two feet: 

3. Closer than: 

a. 100 feet of any perennial stream, 

b. 100 feet of any water well (other than a 
monitoring well) in existence at the onset of the 
project. 

c. 25 feet of a bedrock outcrop, unless the outcrop 
is properly treated to minimize infiltration into 
fractured zones, 

d. 100 feet of a sinkhole, or 

e. 25 feet from any property boundary or, in the 
case of projects permitted by the DMME, 25 feet 
from the permit boundary. 

(NOTE All distances are to be measured 1n the 
horizontal plane) 

4. In wetlands, unless applicable federal, state and 
local permits are obtained; 

5. On the site of an active or inactive dump, 
unpermitted landfill, lagoon, or similar facllity, even if 
such facility is closed. 

Article 2. 
Design and Construction. 

§ 3.2. Design and construction. 

This section prescribes design and construction 
standards for CCB sites. The owner or operator of such a 
site shall prepare appropriate design plans and a design 
report that address. at a minimum, the requirements 
contained in this section. 
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1. A survey benchmark shall be identified and its 
location referenced on drawings and maps of the site. 

2. During construction and filling. oft-site runoff shall 
be diverted around the use. reuse or reclamation 
areas. The uncovered active CCB fill areas shall be 
graded to a maximum slope of 5.0% and a smooth 
surface maintained to provide for sheet flow runoff 
and to prevent dusting. Runoff from the use, reuse or 
reclamation area shall be controlled and contained by 
use of diversion ditches, sediment traps, berms or 
collection ponds in accordance with the site erosion 
control plan. The use, reuse. or reclamation projects 
shall be designed to divert surface water runon from 
a 25-year, 24-hour storm event. For projects permitted 
by the DMME. the standards for runon, grading. and 
runoff shall be in accordance with the Coal Surface 
Mining Reclamation Regulations (VR 480-03-19). 

3. Finished side slopes shall be stable and be 
configured to adequately control erosion and runoff. 
Side slopes of 33% will be allowed provided that 
adequate runoff controls are established. Steeper side 
slopes may be considered t/ supported by necessary 
stabllity calculations and appropriate erosion and 
runoff control features. All finished slopes and runoff 
management units shall be supported by necessary 
calculations and included in the design report. 

4. The finished top slope shall be at least 2.0% to 
prevent ponding of water, except where covered by a 
building. a paved roadway, a paved parking surface, 
paved walkways or sidewalks. or simllar structures. 

5. Upon reaching the final grade, the placed material 
shall be covered in accordance with the requirements 
of Article 4 of this part. 

§ 3.3. Operations. 

Article 3. 
Operations. 

The owner or operator of a CCB site shall prepare an 
operation plan. At a minimum, the plan shall address the 
requirements contained in this section. 

1. Tracking of mud or CCB onto public roads from 
the site shall be controlled at all times to minimize 
nuisances. 

2. The addition of any solid waste including but not 
limited to hazardous, infectious, construction, debris, 
demolition, industrial, petroleum-contaminated soil, or 
municipal solid waste to CCB is prohibited. This 
prohibition does not app(v to solid wastes from the 
extraction. beneficiation and processing of ores and 
minerals conditionally exempted under § 3.3 A 2 of 
the Solid Waste Management Regulations. 

3. Fugitive dust shall be controlled at the site so it 
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does not constitute nuisances or hazards. 

4. After preparing the subbase. CCB shall be placed in 
no greater than 12-inch layers. The CCB shall then be 
compacted to a minimum 95% of the maximum dry 
density achievable at its optimum moisture content in 
accordance with the Standard Proctor method, ASTM 
test designation D 698, or to a minimum of 80% 
relative density as determined by ASTM test 
designation D 4254 for coal combustion bottom ash 
and boiler slag. Field compaction tests shall be taken 
for each 5,000 cubic yards placed. The placement and 
compaction of CCB on coal mine sites shall be subject 
to the applicable requirements of the Coal Surface 
Mining Reclamation Regulations (VR 480-03-19). 

5. A surface runon and runoff control program shall 
be implemented to control and reduce the infiltration 
of surface water through the CCB and to control the 
runoff from the placement area to other areas and to 
surface waters. 

6'. Runoff shall not be permitted to drain or discharge 
into surface waters except when authorized under a 
VPDES Permit 1ssued pursuant to the State Water 
Control Board regulation, VR 680-14-D 1, or otherwise 
approved by the department. 

7. CCB site development shall be in accordance with 
the Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control Regulations 
(VR 625-02-00) or the Coal Surface Mining 
Reclamation Regulations (VR 480-03-19), as applicable. 

§ 3.4. General. 

Article 4. 
Closure. 

Upon reaching the final grade, the owner or operator of' 
a CCB site shall close his project in a manner that 
minimizes the need for further maintenance. 

§ 3.5. Exemptions from the closure requirements. 

A. An owner or operator of a site that constructs a 
bwlding, a paved roadway, a paved parking surface, 
paved walkways and sidewalks, or other similar structures 
on top of the flll within a reasonable time period of 
reaching the final grade not to exceed 12 months shall be 
exempt from the requirements of thiS article for the 
portions of the CCB site directly under the construction 
area. 

B. An operator of a coal mine site permitted by the 
DMME who is reclaiming a site in conformance with the 
Coal Surface Mining Reclamation Regulations (VR 
480-03-19) shall be exempt from the closure requirements 
contained in the section. 

§ 3.6. Closure criteria. 

A. The owner or operator shall install a final cover 
system that is designed and constructed to: 

1. Minimize infiltration through the closed CCB site 
by the use of an infiltration layer that contains a 
minimum 12 inches of earthen material, and 

2. Minimize erosion of the final cover by the use of 
an erosion control layer that contains a minimum of 
six inches of earthen material and is capable of 
sustaining the growth of indigenous plant species or 
plant species adapted to the area. 

B. The use of the property after closure shall not 
disturb the integrity of the final cover, unless the purpose 
of the disturbance is to construct buzldings, paved 
roadways, paved parking surfaces, paved walkways and 
sidewalks, or other similar factlities. 

C. Within 90 days after placement of the final cover is 
complete, the owner or operator shall submit: 

1. To the local land recording authority, a survey plat 
prepared by a professional land surveyor registered by 
the Commonwealth, indicating the location and 
dimensions of the placement areas. The plat filed with 
the local land recording authority shall contain a 
note, prominently displayed, which states the owner's 
or operator's future obligation to restrict disturbance 
of the site. 

2. To the department, a statement signed by a 
registered professional engineer that construction has 
been completed in accordance with the design plans 
and report prepared to satisfy the requirements of § 
3.2 and closure has been performed in accordance 
with closure plan prepared under § 3.7. 

§ 3.7. Closure plan and amendment of plan. 

A. The owner or operator of the CCB site shall have a 
written closure plan. This plan shall identify the steps 
necessary to completely close the site. The plan shall 
include, at least, a schedule for final closure including, as 
a minimum, the anticipated date when CCB will no 
longer be received, the date when completion of final 
closure is anticipated, and intervening milestone dates. 

B. The owner or operator may amend his plan at any 
time during the active life of the project. The owner or 
operator shall so amend his plan an_v time changes in 
operating plans or project design affect the closure plan. 

C. At any time during the operating life of the project, 
the plan shall be made available to the department upon 
request of the director. 

§ 3.8. Time allowed for closure. 

The owner or operator shall complete closure activities 
in accordance with the closure plan and within six 
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months after receiving the final volume of CCB. The 
director may approve a longer closure period if the owner 
or operator can demonstrate that the required or planned 
closure activities wlll, of necessity, take longer than six 
months to complete; and that he has taken all necessary 
steps to eliminate any sigmficant threat to human health 
and the environment from the unclosed but inactive 
project. 

PART IV. 
ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS. 

§ 4. I. General. 

Notwithstanding any provisions of Part VII of the 
Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulations (VR 
(]72-:JO-IO). the owner or operator of a site which manages 
only CCB allowed under § 2.3 of this regulation shall not 
be required to have a solid waste management facility 
permit, neither must a CCB facility operator certified by 
the Board for Waste Management Facility Operators 
directly supervise operations at the site, tf the owner or 
operator at least 30 days prior to initial placement of 
CCB: 

1. Provides the director a cerllfication that he has 
legal control over the CCB site for the project lzfe 
and the closure period. For the purposes of this 
section, on a coal mine site permitted by the DMME, 
demonstration of legal right tQ enter and begin 
surface coal mining and reclamation operations shall 
constitute compliance with the provisions of this 
section. 

2. With the exception of projects permitted by the 
DMME, provides the director the certzjication from 
the governing body of the county, city, or town in 
which the CCB site is to be located that the location 
and operation of the CCB site are consistent with all 
applicable ordinances. 

3. Provides the director with a general descriptiOn of 
the intended use, reuse, or reclamation of CCB. Such 
description will include: 

a. A description of the nature, purpose and location 
of the CCB site, including a topographic map 
showing the site area and available soils. and 
geological maps. The description shall include an 
explanation of how CCB will be stored prior to use, 
reuse or reclamation, if applicable. 

b. The estimated beginning and ending dates for the 
operation. 

c. An estimate of the volume of the CCB to be 
utilized. 

d. A description of the proposed type of CCB to be 
used, reused or reclaimed. including physical and 
chemical characteristics of the CCB. The chemical 
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description shall contain the results of TCLP 
analyses for the constituents shown in Table 1. The 
description shall also contain a statement that the 
project wzll not manage CCB that contain any 
constituent at a level exceeding those shown in the 
table. 

TABLE I. 
LIST OF CONSTITUENTS AND MAXIMUM LEVELS. 

Constituent 

Arsenic ... 

Barium 

Cadmium 

Chromium 

Lead ... 

Mercury 

Selenium 

Silver 

Level. 
mg//it 

5.0 

IOO 

I.O 

5.0 

5.0 

0.2 

I.O 

5.0 

4. Provides the director with a certrfication by a 
professional engineer licensed to practice by the 
Commonwealth that the project meets the locational 
restrictions of § 3.1 of this regulation. Such certificate 
shall contain no quallfications or exemptions from the 
requirements. 

5. Furnishes to the director a certrficate signed by a 
professional engineer licensed to practice by the 
Commonwealth that the project has been designed in 
accordance with the standards of § 3.2 of this 
regulation, t/ applicable. Such certificate shall contain 
no qualifications or exceptions from the requirements 
and plans. 

6. Submits to the director an operational plan 
descnbing how the standards of § 3.3 will be met. 

7. Submits to the director a closure plan describing 
how the standards of Article 4 of Part III will be met, 
if applicable. 

8. Submits to the director a signed statement that the 
owner or operator shall allow authorized 
representatives of the Commonwealth, upon 
presentation of appropriate credentials, to have access 
to areas in which the activities covered by this 
regulation wtll be, are being, or have been conducted 
to ensure compliance. 

§ 4.2. Project modtfications. 
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The owner or operator of a CCB site may modify the 
design and operation of the project by furnishing the 
department a new certificate required by subdivision 6 of 
§ 4.1 and a new operational plan required by subdivision 
7 of § 4.1. Whenever modifications in the design or 
operation of the project affect the provisions of the 
closure plan, the owner or operator shall prepare an 
amended plan in accordance with the requirements of 
Article 4 of Part Ill. 

PART V. 
VARIANCES. 

§ 5.1. Applicability. 

The director may grant a variance from any 
requirement contained in Part Ill of this regulation to the 
owner or operator of the CCB site t/ he demonstrates to 
the satisfaction of the director that granting the variance 
will not result in an additional risk to the public health 
or the environment beyond the risk which would be 
imposed without the variance. 

§ 5.2. Administrative procedures. 

The administrative procedures associated with the 
submission of the variance petition, its processing and 
resolution will be accomplished in accordance with the 
requirements of § 9.6 of the Solid Waste Management 
Regulations (VR 672-20-10). 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-ll34; Filed July 20, 1994, 11:40 a.m. 

******** 

REGISTRAR'S NOTICE: The Virginia Waste Management 
Board has claimed an exemption from the Administrative 
Process Act in accordance with § 9-6.14:4.1 B 4 of the 
Code of Virginia, which exempts regulations relating to 
grants of state or federal funds or property. 

Title Q1 Regulation: VR 672-60-1. Waste Tire End User 
Reimbursement. 

Statutory Authority: §§ 10.1-1402.11, 10.1-1422.3, and 
10.1-1422.4 of the Code of Virginia. 

Public Hearing Date: August 30, 1994 - 10 a.m. 
Written comments may be submitted until September 
8, 1994. 

(See Calendar of Events section 
for additional information) 

Basis: Sections 10.1-1422.3 and 10.1-1422.4 of the Code of 
Virginia authorize the Department of Environmental 
Quality to provide a partial reimbursement to end users of 
Virginia waste tires and requires the development of 
regulations that stipulate the types of uses eligible, 
procedures for applying for and processing of 
reimbursements, and amount of reimbursement. 

Purpose: Section I 0.1-1422.4 states that the purpose of this 
partial reimbursement of costs is to promote the use of 
waste tires by enhancing markets for waste tires, chips or 
similar materials. Enhanced markets can make it easier 
and less expensive to direct waste tires to processing areas 
other than landfills. There are over 700 piles containing 
over 17,000,000 waste tires scattered across Virginia. These 
piles represent a significant threat to the environment 
because of the potential for fire. Many piles exist because 
of the high cost of proper disposal. 

Substance: The regulation defines the eligible end users, 
eligible uses, amount of reimbursement and procedures for 
applying for and processing of the reimbursement. 

Eligible end users are persons who can show that they 
used Virginia generated waste tires in an eligible end use. 

Eligible end uses are those that are beneficial and 
consistent with all local, state and federal regulations. 
Three distinct categories of use have been established, 
reflecting the waste management hierarchy: use 
constituting disposal; energy recovery; and material 
recovery. 

The amount of reimbursement is a partial reimbursement 
of the purchase price or the cost of use of the waste tires, 
chips or similar materials. 'Yhere is a maximum rate for 
each category of use. 

An application for reimbursement is made on a form 
requiring information of the type of use, amount of 
material used, cost of use or purchase price, and a 
signature from the person certifying that the material was 
used according to the regulations. 

Issues: Advantages to the public and the agency of 
implementing the regulation: 

The public will have more options for disposal of tires 
and the cost of disposal can be reduced. Increased 
waste tire management options would conserve the 
scarce and expensive landfill space. 

Additional markets can enhance the private and public 
options for waste tire management without controlling 
the choices of the public to deal with their waste 
tires. 

Disadvantages to the public and the agency of 
implementing the regulation: 

The end users of the waste tires will be forced to ask 
the persons who dispose of waste tires to document 
that the waste tires were generated in Virginia. 

The agency can expect increased calls from interested 
parties. There could potentially be up to 400 requests 
for reimbursement each year. It will take the majority 
of the time of the three current employees to handle 
information calls and process the requests for 
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reimbursement. 

Impact: There are up to 4,000 tire dealers and over 700 
owners of tire piles that may be asked to document the 
origin of tires. Persons who handle the tires before they 
reach the end user will be asked to carry forward this 
documentation. The agency provides forms that may be 
used for this purpose. 

The end users of waste tires will have to request the 
reimbursement and maintain the documentation on the use 
of the waste tires and the origin of the tires for five years 
after the reimbursement. 

Summary: 

This reg~lation provi<!es the guidelines for the partial 
reimbursement, from the Waste Tire Trust Fund, of 
the cost of purchasing waste tires or chips or sinular 
materials to the end users of Virginia generated waste 
tires. 

VR 672-60-l. Waste Tire End User Reimbursement. 

PART I. 
DEFINITIONS. 

§ 1.1. Definitions. 

A. The definitions set out in Part I of the Virginia Solid 
Waste Management Regulations (VR 672-20-10) are 
incorporated by reference. 

B. The following words and terms, when used in these 
regulations shall have the following meaning, unless the 
context clearly indicates otherwise: 

"Amount of funds available" or "available funds" means 
for a given calendar year a maximum of 75% of the 
previous year's collection of the waste tire tax. 

"Applicant" means any person or persons seeking 
reimbursement under these regulations. 

"Asphalt pavement containing recycled rubber" means 
any hot mix or spray applied binder in asphalt paving 
mixture that contains rubber from waste tires which is 
used for asphalt pavement base, surface course or 
interlayer, or other road and highway related uses. 

"Authorized signature" means the signature of an 
individual who has authority to s1gn on behalf of. and 
bind. the applicant. 

"Burning" means the controlled burning of waste tires 
or chips or similar materials for the purpose of energy 
recovery. 

"Cost of use" means the equipment, leasehold 
improvements, bwldings, land, engineering, transportation, 
operating, taxes, interest. and depreciatiOn or replacement 

Vol. 10, Issue 23 

Proposed Regulations 

costs of using waste tires, chips or similar materials 
incurred by the end user after· deducting any tipping fee 
received by the end user. 

"Daif.v cover" means using tires as an alternate cover 
placed upon exposed solid waste to control disease 
vectors. fires. odors. blowing litter and scavenging without 
presenting a threat to human health and the environment. 

''Department'' means the Department of Environmental 
Quality. 

"Director" means the Director of the Department of 
Environmental Quality or the director's designee. 

"Embankment" means a raised earthen structure to 
carry a roadway. 

"End user" means: 

1. For energy recovery: the person who utilizes the 
heat content or other forms of energy from the 
incineration or pyrolys1~<> of waste tires, chips or 
similar materials: 

2. For other eligible uses of waste tires: the last 
person who uses the tires, chips, or simllar materials 
to make a product with economic value. If the waste 
tire is processed by more than one person in 
becoming a product. the "end user" is the iast person 
to use the tire as a tire, as tire chips, or as similar 
materials. A person who produces tire chips or similar 
materials and gives or sells them to another person to 
use is not an end user. 

"Energy recovery" means utilizing the heat content or 
other forms of energy from the incineration or pyrolysis of 
waste tires, chips or similar materials. 

"Fill material for construction" means the material is 
used as a base or sub~base under the footprint of a 
structure, a paved parking lot, sidewalk, walkway or 
simllar application. 

"Generator" means any person whose act or process 
produces waste tires or whose act first causes a tire to 
become sofld waste. 

"Hauler" means a person who picks up or transports 
waste tires for the purpose of removal to a permitted 
storage, processing or disposal facility. 

"Partial reimbursement" means reimbursement that does 
not exceed 90% of the amount spent to purchase waste 
tires. chips or simzlar materials or 90% of the cost of use 
if the waste tires. chips or similar materials were not 
purchased. 

"Passenger tire equivalent" means a measure of 
passenger, truck tires. and oversize tires where: One 
passenger car tire equalc; 20 pounds or 1!100 ton, one 
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truck tire 20 to 24-inch rim equals 100 pounds or 1/20 ton 
and an over 24-inch rim equals 200 pounds or greater as 
computed by the end user. 

"Processor" means a person engaged in the processing 
of waste tires by stamping. stripping, shredding or 
crumbing; that operates under a permit issued by the 
local, state, or federal government; or is exempt from 
permit requirements. 

"Pyrolysis" means thermal treatment of a waste tire to 
separate it into other components with economic value. 

"Reclamation" means the process by which a material 
is processed or reprocessed to recover a usable product or 
is regenerated to a usable form. 

"Retreading" means reclaiming a waste tire by 
attaching a new tread to make a usable tire. 

"Road bed base" means the foundation of a road 
prepared for surfacing. 

"Similar materials" means waste tires processed by size 
reduction, other than tire chips. 

"Tipping fee" means a fee charged to a person for 
disposal of a waste tire. 

"Tire" means a continuous solid or pneumatic rubber 
covering encircling the wheel of a vehicle in which a 
person or property is transported, or by which they may 
be drawn on a highway. 

"Tire chips" means waste tires processed by size 
reduction. 

"Tire pzle" means an accumulation of waste tires that 
violates the Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulations 
(VR 672-20-10). 

"Used or reused waste tires, chips, or similar material" 
means having once been waste and being: 

1. Employed as an ingredient (including use as an 
intermediate) in a process to make a product, 
excepting those materials possessing distinct 
components that are recovered as separate end 
products; or 

2. Employed in a particular function or application as 
an effective substitute for a commercial product or 
natural resource. 

"Waste tire" means a tire that has been discarded 
because it is no longer suitable for its original intended 
purpose because of wear, damage or defect. 

"Waste Tire Trust Fund" means the nonreverting fund 
set up by § 10.1-1422.3 of the Code of Virginia in which 
proceeds from the waste tire tax are deposited. 

PART II. 
GENERAL INFORMATION. 

§ 2.1. Purpose of regulations. 

The purpose of these regulations is to define the types 
of uses eligible for partial reimbursement, to establish the 
procedures for application and processing of 
reimbursement, and to establish the amount of 
reimbursement. 

§ 2.2. Regulation rev1ew. 

These regulations will be reviewed annually by the 
director to determine whether they should be continued, 
amended, or terminated based on the intent to enhance 
markets for waste tires, chips, or similar material<; that is 
speczfied in the authorizing legislation. 

PART Ill. 
ELIGIBILITY FOR REIMBURSEMENT. 

§ 3.1. End uses of waste tires eligible for reimbursement. 

The following uses of waste tires, chips or Similar 
materials will be eligible for the reimbursement zf the use 
complies with applicable local ordinances and regulations 
and the Virginia Solld WGste Management Regulations 
(VR 672-20-10) or the equivalent regulations in another 
state: 

1. Category 1: Use Constituting Disposal. Category 1 
use shall include using tires, chips or similar materials 
in a manner constituting disposal by being applied to 
or placed on the land; or used to produce products 
that are applied to or placed on the land or are 
otherwise contained in products that are applied to or 
placed on the land. Category I uses include, but are 
not limited to, the use of waste tires, chips or similar 
materials for: 

a. Road bed base and embankments; 

b. Fill material for construction projects; and 

c. Dazly cover at a permitted solid waste facility l/ 
the facility's permit is so modified. 

2. Category II: Energy Recovery. Category II uses 
shall include burning of waste tires, chips or similar 
materials for energy recovery or pyrolysis. Category II 
uses include. but are not limited to: 

a. Burning for energy recovery; 

b. Pyrolysis. 

3. Category III· Material Recovery. Category III uses 
shall include use, reuse, and reclamation of waste 
tires, chips. or similar materials to make products of 
economic value. Category III uses include, but are not 
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limited to: 

a. Waste tires, chips, or similar materials physically 
or chemically bonded to form another product: 

b. Asphalt pavement containing recycled rubber. 

4. Uses that are not eligible for reimbursement: 

a. Reuse as a vehicle tire,· 

b. Retreading; 

c. Incineration without energy recovery; and 

d. Landfilling, except use as daily cover, 

§ 3.2. Eligible end users. 

A. To be eligible for the reimbursement, the user shall 
be the end user of the waste tires, chips, or similar 
materials as defined in Part I of these regulations. The 
end user need not be located in Virginia. 

B. To be eligible for the reimbursement, the waste tires, 
chips or similar materials utilized by the end user must 
be: 

1. Waste tires, chips or simllar materials from waste 
tirf!S generated in Virginia and !Je (jqcumented as 
such according to the requirements in Part V of these 
regulations; and 

2. Used, reused or reclaimed through a method 
specified in § 3.1 of these regulations. 

PART IV. 
REIMBURSEMENT RATES. 

§ 4.1. Amount of reimbursement for purchased material. 

As a partial reimbursement. the amount reimbursed 
shall be 90% of the amount spent to purchase the waste 
tires, chip~ or similar materials with maximum 
reimbursement rates listed in § 4.3. 

§ 42. Amount of reimbursement for material used but not 
purchased. 

As a partial reimbursement, the amount reimbursed 
shall be 90% of the cost of use of waste tires, chips or 
similar materials with maximum reimbursement listed in § 
4.3. 

§ 4.3. Maximum rates of reimbursement. 

A. The maximum amount of the reimbursement for 
Category I use shall be $15 per ton. 

B. The maximum amount of the reimbursement for 
Category II use shall be $30 per ton. 
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C. The maximum amount of the reimbursement for 
Category III use shall be $32 per ton. 

§ 4.4. Available funds. 

Applicants approved for reimbursement will be 
reimbursed their qualifying amount until such time as 
available funds are exhausted for the calendar year. If 
available funds for a calendar year are exhausted, no 
further reimbursement will be made for utilization of tires 
in that calendar year. Applications will be considered in 
order of receipt. 

PART V. 
VIRGINIA GENERATED WASTE TIRES. 

§ 5.1. Qualification as Virginia generated waste tires. 

A Virginia generated waste tire is a waste tire that is: 

1. Discarded as the result of a sale, trade. or 
exchange in Virginia; 

2. From a Virginia waste tire pzle that existed prior 
to the effective date of these regulations; or 

3. From a Virginia waste tire pile that was created 
without the land owner's knowledge or permission. 

§ 5.2. Documentation. 

To be considered as Virginia generated waste tires 
eligible for reimbursement, the waste tires must be 
documented as such in a manner acceptable to the 
director. Acceptable documentation must provide at a 
minimum a certzfying statement signed by the end user 
stating that the waste tires are Virginia generated in 
accordance with the requirements of § 5.1 of these 
regulations. One type of acceptable documentation iS form 
DEQ-WTC, completed in the following manner: 

I. Completion of Part I by the generator. The 
generator, who has the waste tires for disposal, must 
fill in all pertinent information in Part I and sign the 
statement certifying that the waste tires are Virginia 
generated in accordance with the requirements of § 
5.1 of these regulations. When the generator is not 
known, the property owner is the generator. 

2. Completion of Part II by the hauler. The hauler 
must fill in all pertinent information in Part II -and 
sign the statement certifying that he accepted the 
waste tires, chips or similar materials in the amounts 
indicated from the generator in Part I. 

3. Completion of Part III by the collector, if 
applicable. The collector must fill in all pertinent 
information in Part III and sign the statement 
certzfying that he accepted the waste tires, chips or 
similar materials in the amounts indicated from the 
hauler. 
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4. Completion of Part IV by the processor. The 
processor must fill in all pertinent information and 
sign the statement certifying that he accepted the 
waste tires, chips or similar materials in the amounts 
indicated in Part II from the hauler or an amount of 
waste tires, chips or similar materials equal to the 
amounts indicated in Part III from the collector. 

PART VI. 
APPLICATION PROCEDURES. 

§ 6.1. Application for reimbursement. 

A. A person may apply to the director for 
reimbursement from the Waste Tire Trust Fund for 
utilizing waste tires, chips or similar materials zf the 
request for reimbursement is complete and complies with 
other provisions of these regulations. 

B. The minimum application amount is 10,000 passenger 
tire equivalents or 100 tons of waste tires, chips or 
similar materials used. 

C. In order to apply for reimbursement, the utilization 
of the waste tires, chips or similar mqterials must occur 
after the effective date of these regulations. 

D. An applicant for reimbursement must file form 
DEQ-EURR with the director, providing at a minimum: 

1. Applicant's name and address; 

2. Name and location of facility where end use 
occurs; 

3. A description of the end use; 

4. A statement of the purchase cost of the waste 
tires, chips or similar materials or, zf the waste tires, 
chips or similar materials were not purchased, the 
cost of use; 

5. An authorized signature on the certzfication 
statement. 

E. Application for reimbursement will be accepted up to 
the last business day of the month following a calendar 
quarter. Applications received after the one month 
deadline will be considered late and reimbursement will 
not be considered for that calendar quarter. Such a late 
application will be considered in the following calendar 
quarter unless the application has missed the deadline for 
the last quarter of the calendar year, in which case the 
utilization of waste tires, chips or similar materials will 
not be reimbursed. 

F. An applicant for a reimbursement for utilization of 
waste tires, chips or simzlar materials is subject to audit 
by the director. Applicants shall allow access to all 
records related to waste tire management activities during 
normal business hours for the purpose of determining 

compliance with these regulations for up to five years 
from the date of reimbursement. 

G. In addition to any other penalty imposed by law, 
any person who knowingly or intentionally provides false 
information to the director in claiming a reimbursement 
shall be ineligible to receive any reimbursement under 
these regulations. 

PART VII. 
PROCESSING OF APPLICATIONS. 

§ 7.1. Review of application. 

A. The director shall review a reimbursement 
application form for completeness and eligibility. 

B. If an application is not complete as required in § 6.1 
D, the director may requiTe the applicant to submit 
missing information. The director may delay 
reimbursement until the information is received. 

C. The director will process for payment all requests for 
reimbursement that are complete and in compliance with 
the regulations up to the amount of funds available, but 
in no case more than 75% of the previous year's tax 
collection as certzfied by the Department of Taxation. The 
complete applications will be processed in the order 
received and until available funds are exhausted. 

D. The first time applications can be submitted is after 
the effective date of these regulations. The first payment 
will be processed in the calendar quarter following the 
effective date. Subsequently, applications are received and 
processed as specified in § 6.1 E of these regulations. 

E. When an applicant believes an error has been made 
in the review of or response to his application, he shall 
notify the director in writing within 30 days of receiving 
the director's response. The notice shall contain a copy of 
the application and the director's response, a brief 
statement describing the believed error, and copies of any 
documents supporting the statement. 

The director shall review the notice and attached 
documents and may further investigate the matter. The 
director shall advise the applicant in writing in due 
course of his response to the applicant's notice of error. 

If the director concludes that an error has been made, 
he shall reinstate the application and act on it. If the 
available funds are exhausted, and would not have been 
had the director acted correctly on the application 
originally, the reinstated application shall be carried over 
to the next year and paid from funds available then. 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94·1133; Filed July 20, 1994, 11:43 a.m. 
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APPENDIX A 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
WASTE TIRE CERTIFICATION 

IPART [- GENERAT6R CERTIFiCATION ' ... 
jt certify under penalty of law that the infom1ation contained on this form is to the best of my 

knowledge and beltef, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are s•gn•ficant 

penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of a fine and 1mpnsonment 

for willful violations. I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, all the waste 

tires identified by me on this Waste Tire Certification and delivered to the hauler below were 

generated in the Commonwealth of Virginia in accordance of 5_1 of the Waste Tire End User 
Reimbursement Regulations (VR 672-60-1} 

S1gnat~re_ car or l1gh\ truck tires ~~~­

truck tires Company Name ____________ -··-··---·-----~~~~~~-

off road tires --====:-tons of tire material 
Address 

~~~--~~-~~--- ---------·---
City Slat': __ -~~'"~'~~~~ 

PART !1- HAULER CERTJFJCAiJON 
I certify that the waste tires, chips, or similar materials were recetved from the generator 

lin the amounts indicated, to the best of my knowledge and belief 

car or l1ght truck tires ~-~­
truck tires 

off road tires --====:-tons of tire material 

PART nr- COLLECTo"R CERTIF.I_C.ATiprii-

Signature ---------
------·-~-

Company Name ----~~~--~-- -~-~ 

"' --------------

·---": _:...._.;.;,·.:;". 
I cert1fy lhat the Wa!ite tires, chips, or stmilar matenals were rece1ved from the hauler or generator 

'in the amounts indicated, to the best of my knowledge and belief 

car or ILghttruck ltres ~~~­

truck !Ires 

off road ltres --====:-tons of tire matenal 

PART IV- PROCESSOR CERTIFICATION 

SLg~_ature __ ~---~- __ 

Compa~y Name _ 

m 

I certify that the waste tires, chrps, or srmtlar materrats were rece1vell from the collector, hauler, or generator 

1n the amounts mdtcated. to the best of my knowledge and bet1ef 

car or l1ghl trl.lck t1res ~~~­

truck t.res 

off road t1res 

Srqnature 

Comr.1ny N~m~ 

ID" tons of l<re matenal -~~~--­
Department of Env•ronmenlal Oual•ly, Waste Tire Program_ 629 E':.ost Moun Street Kl(:hmond V:1 23219 

DFQ-WTC 

APPENDIX B 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
END USER REIMBURSEMENT 

AOq_~£:.§9 .. ~-----~ 

rnY _______ ~---------------··· ------- ____ STf'I:!E. ___ ____ ZlcP~~~--

PHONE 

LOCATION OF USE~~-----------~~--~~~-

1) ~~~- Documentatwn 1s avarlable at our office that shows lhat I he wasle tires were generale<! 1n VLrg1n1a or the ch1p5 

or s1milar malenal5 were made from Virgtnia generated tlfes 

2<) ~~-Purchase rece1pts for the waste tires, chips. or simiiJr materrals are avarlabte in our office: or 

l2b) ~~- The waste trres. chips, or similar materials were not purchased but were used and the cost of use is computed below 

Total co;t of use 0 perton 

Certifiable use_~~~~~~~~~- Minus t1pping fee •-~~--per ton 

Tons of material used-~~~~~~~-

Total Purchase orice or cost of use Net cost of use '-~~~_perlon 

I cerllfy lhat the wa>te !<rES, ch:ps, or s1m1lar matEnals werE rece1ved 111 the amounts 'Micated, during IM perrod spec•f1ed, 

;and to the besl of my knowledge ana belief, the cost of usmg t.'1e matenal and \he docum~n\at1on I hat the tlfes were Vtrg'n1a generated 

'•> presented according to the Woste Tire End User Rermbursemenl Regula\Eons IVR 6/2-60-11 

s•qnalure ,f.,:~ 

For DEQ Use Only 
U>e Rate Tons CJIClliCIILOn Arnounl Due 

Approved for Payment Process1ng Date 

Tnt1l 

Ma11 by the last d:Jy of the month followmq the end of ;J calendar qu:JrWr wlih lhe r"<l""cd documcnt:JiLon 
Department of Enwonmcntal Oual1ty, W0ste Tore Pro'lram 629 East Ma1n Street, l'1chrnond. \JA 23219 

DEO-LUim 
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FINAL REGULATIONS 

For information concerning Final Regulations, see information page. 

Symbol Key 
Roman type indicates existing text of regulations. Italic type indicates new text. Language which has been stricke 
indicates text to be deleted. [Bracketed language] indicates a substantial change from the proposed text of the 
regulations. 

STATE AIR POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD 

Title Qj' Regulation: VR 120·01. Regulations lor the 
Control and Abatement oi Air Pollution (Revision HH 
Rule 5~6, Regulated Medical Waste Incinerators). 

Statutory Authority: § 10.1-1308 of the Code of Virginia. 

Effective Date: September 15, 1994. 

Summary: 

The regulation contains provisions covering standards 
of performance for regulated medical waste 
incinerators. The regulation will require owners of 
regulated medical waste incinerators to limit emissions 
of dioxins/furans, particulate matter, carbon monoxide, 
hydrogen chloride, and visible emissions to specified 
levels necessary to protect public health and welfare. 
This will be acccomplished through the establishment 
of emissions limits and process parameters based on 
control technology, and monitoring, testing, and record 
keeping to assure compliance with the limits. 

Substantive amendments that were adopted by the 
board include: 

1. The particulate matter standard for units with a 
rated capacity equal to or greater than 1000 pph was 
changed from 0. 010 gr I dscf to 0. 015 gr I dscf. 

2. The carbon monoxide standard for units with a 
rated capacity equal to or greater than 500 pounds 
per hour was changed from 25 ppmvd to 50 ppmvd. 

3. The hydrogen chloride standard was changed from 
a ppmvd limit to a percent reduction rate standard: 
90% reduction for medium units; 95% for large units. 

4. The dioxin/luran standard was changed to allow the 
option of either meeting the 8 gr/dscf emission limit 
or a 1:100,000 risk demonstration. 

5. The opacity standard was changed from 5.0% to 
10%. 

6. Most compliance provisions related to design and 
operation were eliminated, including: 

a. final particulate matter control device inlet 
temperature, 

b. burn-down cycle control, 

c. rated capacity limitation, 

d. flue gas temperature at the outlet of the final 
control device, 

e. operator certification requirements, 

f. operator training requirements, and 

g. monitoring and notification, records and reporting 
requirements associated with the above. 

Summary Qf Public Comment and Agency Resoonse: A 
summary of comments made by the public and the 
agency's response may be obtained from the promulgating 
agency or viewed at the office of the Registrar of 
Regulations. 

Agency Contact: Copies of the regulation may be obtained 
from Cindy M. Berndt, Regulatory Coordinator, State Air 
Pollution Control Board, 629 East Main Street, Richmond, 
VA 23219, telephone (804) 762-4378. There may be a 
charge for copies. 

VR 120-01. Regulations for the Control and Abatement of 
Air Pollution (Revision HH - Rule 5-6, Regulated Medical 
Waste Incinerators). 

PART V. 
STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR REGULATED 

MEDICAL WASTE INCINERATORS. 
(RULE 5-6). 

§ 120-05-0601. Applicability and designation of affected 
facility. 

A. Except as provided in subsections C and D of this 
section, the affected facility to which the provisions of this 
rule apply is each regulated medical waste incinerator. 

B. The provisions of this rule apply throughout the 
Commonwealth of Virginia. 

C. The provisions of this rule do not apply to 
incinerators the construction or modification of which as 
defined in Part VIII commenced prior to September 1, 
1993. 

D. The proviswns of this rule do not apply to 
combustion units or incinerators burning materials that do 
not include regulated medical waste. 

§ 120-05-0602. Definitions. 
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A. For the purpose of these regulations and subsequent 
amendments or any orders issued by the board, the words 
or terms shaiJ have the meaning given them in subsection 
C of this section. 

B. As used in this rule, all terms not defined herein 
shall have the meaning given them in Part I, unless 
otherwise required by context. 

C. Terms defined. 

"Commercial regulated medical waste incinerator" 
means any regulated medical waste incinerator that burns 
regulated medical waste if more than 25% of such waste 
is generated off-site. 

~<continuous emission monitoring system" means a 
monitoring system for continuously measuring the 
emissions of a pollutant from an affected facility. 

"Dioxins" and "furans" means tetra- through 
octachlorinated dibenzo-p-dioxins and dibenzofurans. 

"Four-hour block average" means the average of all 
hourly emission rates or temperatures when the affected 
facility is operating and combusting regulated medical 
waste measured over four-hour periods of time from 
midnight to 4 a.m., 4 a.m. to 8 a.m., 8 a.m. to noon, noon 
to 4 p.m., 4 p.m. to 8 p.m., 8 p.m. to midnight. 

"Incinerator" means any furnace or device used in the 
process of burning any type of waste for the primary 
purpose of destroying matter or reducing the volume of 
the waste by removing combustible matter or both. 

[ "_.UBJfiffll:lR'l defflBEJ.Sh=ated f'B~-tiCI:l!Bte matter -eeatfel 

deWee .ffllet temperatl:lre" merms -the ma:x-iml:lm fel:lrhBI:lF 
l7fflelf B\'Erage !empel'tlture measured at H>e fiool 
partieuiflte matter eootrel tleviee ffll&t tltJrfflg H>e fflB5t 
reeeEJ.i c#BJliR/ii:J:raR -test dCfflBEJ.Stratiag eemp.':iaEJ.eC wit# fhe 
emission standard iff § 120 0§ OliOii. lf mere flltm ooe 
partieulate matter ee&trel tleviee is llSetl iff n series at H>e 
afieeted /aeility, the fflB:Jil-iffll:lffl fBI:lF BBI:lF .Bleelf a\·erage 
temperature is measured at H>e fiool pa"tieuifl!e matter 

- tJeviee, l 
"On-site" means (i) the same or geographically 

contiguous property which may be divided by a public or 
private right-of-way, provided the entrance and exit 
between the properties are at a crossroads intersection 
and access is by crossing, as opposed to going along, the 
right-of-way or (ii) noncontiguous properties owned by the 
same person but connected by a right-of-way controlled by 
the same person and to which the public does not have an 
access. 

"Off-site" means any site that does not meet the 
definition of on-site. 

"Pathological waste" means a solid waste that is human 
tissues, organs, body parts, fetuses, placentas, effluences or 
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similar material, and animal tissue, organs, body parts, 
fetuses, placentas, effluence or similar material from 
animals exposed to human pathogens for purposes of 
testing or experimentation. 

[ "Potential hydrogen chloride emission rate" means the 
hydrogen chloride emission rate that would occur from the 
combustion of regulated medical waste in the absence of 
any hydrogen chloride emissions control. ] 

"Rated capacity" means the waste charging rate 
expressed as the maximum capacity guaranteed by the 
equipment manufacturer or the maximum normally 
achieved during use, whichever is greater. 

"Regulated medical waste" means any solid waste 
identified or suspected by the health care profession as 
being capable of producing an infectious disease in 
humans. A waste shall be considered to be capable of 
producing an infectious disease if it has been or is likely 
to have been contaminated by an organism likely to be 
pathogenic to humans, such organism is not routinely and 
freely available in the community, and such organism has 
a significant probability of being present in significant 
quantities and with sufficient virulence to transmit disease. 
In addition, regulated medical waste shall include the 
following: 

1. Discarded cultures, stocks, specimens, vaccines, and 
associated items likely to have been contaminated with 
organisms likely to be pathogenic to humans, 
discarded etiologic agents, and wastes from production 
of biologicals and antibiotics likely to have been 
contaminated by organisms likely to be pathogenic to 
humans; 

2. Wastes consisting of human blood, human blood 
products, and items contaminated by free-flowing 
human blood; 

3. Pathological wastes; 

4. Used sharps likely to be contaminated with 
organisms that are pathogenic to humans, and all 
sharps used in patient care; 

5. The carcasses, body parts, bedding material, and all 
other wastes of animals intentionally infected with 
organisms likely to be pathogenic to humans for 
purposes of research, in vivo testing, production of 
biological materials or any other reason, when 
discarded, disposed of, or placed in accumulated 
storage; 

6. Any residue or contaminated soil, water, or debris 
resulting from cleanup of a spill of any regulated 
medical waste; and 

7. Any waste contaminated by or mixed with regulated 
medical waste. 
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Regulated medical waste shall not include: 

1. Wastes contaminated only with organisms which are 
not generally recognized as pathogenic to humans, 
even if those organisms cause disease in other plants 
or animals, and which are managed in complete 
accord with all regulations of the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture and the Virginia Department of Agriculture 
and Consumer Services; 

2. Meat or other food items being discarded because 
of spoilage or contamination, unless included in 
subdivisions 1 through 7 above; 

3. Garbage, trash, and sanitary waste from septic 
tanks, single or multiple residences, hotels, motels, 
bunkhouses, ranger stations, crew quarters, 
campgrounds, picnic grounds, and dayMuse recreation 
areas, except for waste generated by provision of 
professional health care services on the premises, 
provided that all medical sharps shall be placed in a 
container with a high degree of puncture resistance 
before being mixed with other wastes or discarded; 

4. Used products for personal hygiene, such as 
diapers, facial tissues, and sanitary napkins; and 

5. Material, not including sharps, containing small 
amounts of blood or body fluids, and no free-flowing 
or unabsorbed liquid. 

"Regulated medical waste incinerator" means any 
incinerator used in the process of burning regulated 
medical waste. 

"Sharps" means needles, scalpels, knives, broken glass, 
syringes, pasteur pipettes and similar items having a point 
or sharp edge. 

"Solid waste" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in 
§ 10.1-1400 of the Code of Virginia. However, for purposes 
of this rule, the following materials are not solid wastes: 

1. Domestic sewage, including wastes that are not 
stored and are disposed of in a sanitary sewer system 
(with or without grinding); 

2. Any mixture of domestic sewage and other wastes 
that pass through a sewer system to a wastewater 
treatment works permitted by the State Water Control 
Board or the Department of Health; 

3. Human remains under the control of a licensed 
physician or dentist, when the remains are being used 
or examined for medical purposes and are not 
abandoned materials; and 

4. Human remains properly interred in a cemetery or 
in preparation by a licensed mortician for such 
interment or cremation. 

§ 120-05-0603. Standard tor particulate matter. 

No owner or other person shall cause or permit to be 
discharged into the atmosphere from any regulated 
medical waste incinerator any particulate emissions in 
excess of the following limits: 

1. For incinerators with a rated capacity equal to or 
greater than 1000 pounds per hour: [ iYY(} 0.015 ] 
grains per dry standard cubic foot of exhaust gas 
corrected to 7.0% oxygen (dry basis). 

2. For incinerators with a rated capacity equal to or 
greater than 500 pounds per hour and less than 1000 
pounds per hour: 0.03 grains per dry standard cubic 
foot of exhaust gas corrected to 7.0% oxygen (dry 
basis). 

3. For incinerators with a rated capacity less than 500 
pounds per hour: 0.10 grains per dry standard cubic 
foot of exhaust gas corrected to 7.0% oxygen (dry 
basis). 

§ 120-05-0604. Standard for carbon monoxide. 

No owner or other person shall cause or permit to be 
discharged into the atmosphere from any regulated 
medical waste incinerator any carbon monoxide emissions 
in excess of [ #te fallowing -. 

lo FfH' ineinemwrs with a fflletJ eapaeity eq!ltll te & 

grealet' t1itH! 5IJI} pa!Hlds per l!ooF. ;!§ 50 ] parts per 
million [ by ] volume dry average per operating cycle 
or per day, whichever is less in duration, corrected to 
7.0% oxygen (dry basis). An operating cycle shall be 
the period of time from the initial loading of waste 
into the incinerator through the burn-down cycle. 

[ ;!, FfH' ineineraw:-s with a fflletJ eBfJaeity less tlitH! 

/j(}(} pa!Hlds per - {j/} jfflffs per - - dry 
mte ifflHr a '"'rage eerreeted te HI% m<ygeH fdzy 
hesisf, l 

§ 120-05-0605. Standard for hydrogen chloride. 

No owner or other person shall cause or permit to be 
discharged into the atmosphere from any regulated 
medical waste incinerator any hydrogen chloride emissions 
in excess of [ ;liJ jfflffs per ffliHioR dry '"'l"ffle, eeffeeted 
te HI% m<ygeH fdzy hesisf, the following limits: 

1. For incinerators with a rated capacity equal to or 
greater than 500 pounds per hour and less than 1000 
pounds per hour: 10% of the potential hydrogen 
chloride emission rate (90% reduction by weight or 
volume). 

2. For incinerators with a rated capacity equal to or 
greater than /000 pounds per hour: 5.0% of the 
potential hydrogen chloride emission rate (95% 
reduction by weight or volume). ] 
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§ 120-05-0606. Standard for dioxins and furans. 

A No owner or other person shall cause or permit to 
be discharged into the atmosphere from any regulated 
medical waste incinerator with a rated capacity equal to 
or greater than 500 pounds per hour any total dioxin or 
luran emissions in excess of 8 grains per billion dry 
standard cubic feet corrected to 7.0% oxygen (dJY basis). 

B. [ Ne """""" & &~her peF.fflH - ettt/5€ & pet'fflil fB 
he diseharged - the atmesphe."'e /ram lfflY regulated 
medica:.' waste iBeiBereter ftfiY ~ & flfFttB: emissions 
#tat will resttJt: ffl a maJiim l:lm tHtRHal rislf ffl fflfeesS ei .f. 
iH l,eee,eee. ,omhieat air eaaeeatrntiaas £tad -
BSSCSSfflCEJ.fs slta.Jl -be dCfc~""ffliBed HSffig &if' f]tJft::l#y BRB.')'s-is 
teehaiqHes £tad HJethads aeeeplahle ffi the -. A waiver 
from the provisions of subsection A of this section may be 
obtained from the board upon a demonstration to the 
board's satisfaction that the maximum annual risk does not 
exceed 1 in 100,000. Ambient air concentrations and risk 
assessments shall be determined using air quality analysis 
techniques and methods acceptable to the board. ) 

§ 120-05-0607. Standard for visible emissions. 

A. The provisions of Rule 5-1 (Emission Standards for 
Visible Emissions and Fugitive Dust/Emissions) apply 
except that the provisions in subsection B of this section 
apply instead of § 120-05-0103 A of Rule 5-1. 

B. No owner or other person shall cause or permit to 
be discharged into the atmosphere from any regulated 
medical waste incinerator any visible emissions which 
exhibit greater than [ M% 10% ) opacity. Failure to meet 
the requirements of this section because of the presence 
of water vapor shall not be a violation of this section. 

§ 120-05-0608. Standard for fugitive dust/emissions. 

The provisions of Rule 5-l (Emission Standards for 
Visible Emissions and Fugitive Dust/Emissions) apply. 

§ 120-05-0609. Standard for odor. 

The provisions of Rule 5-2 (Emission Standards for 
Odor) apply. 

§ 120-05-0610. Standard for toxic pollutants. 

The provisions of Rule 5-3 (Emission Standards for 
Toxic Pollutants) apply, including those provisions that 
apply to emissions of hydrogen chloride, except that the 
provisions of § 120-05-0606 apply to emissions of dioxins 
and furans. 

§ 120-05-0611. Standard for radioactive materials. 

Radioactive materials shall be handled in accordance 
with the regulations of the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency, the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, and the 

· Virginia Department of Health. 
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§ 120-05-0612. Compliance. 

A. In addition to the provisions of § 120-05-02 
(Compliance), the provisions of subsections B through [ l 
D ] of this section apply. 

B. The owner of an affected facility shall operate the 
facility within parameters as specified below in accordance 
with methods and procedures acceptable to the board. 

[ -h Fer iReiaeroteFs witi1 a ffifetl eBpaeity equal le er 
gt'ffiteF tiffiR §1}1} ptJffflds per hmw; the teHlpemt•re. 
meas•red at the fiHat partieuiBte matter eenlffll devfee 

iHlet; sOOII Hat &teeed JIJ.£F a1>1we the maximum 
t!eHJBRstmted parlieHiate matter eaatreJ tleviee iHlet 
iempeffil/:11'€. 

-2-: 1. ] The minimum primary chamber temperature 
shall be 1400°F or the manufacturer's recommended 
operating temperature, whichever is higher, tor a 
period of time needed to achieve complete pyrolysis. 

[ "' 2. ) A secondaJY combustion chamber with 
afterburner is required. The minimum secondal}' 
chamber temperature shall be [ ~ 1800°F ] or 
the manufacturer's recommended operating 
temperature, whichever is higher, for a period of no 
less than two seconds. 

[ +. 3. ) Combustion [ control systems shaii include ) 
chamber thermostats [ are ffi igR#e £tad fire to ensure 
that ) the auxiliary burners automaticaiiy [ ignite and 
fire ] in order to maintain the primal}' and secondal}' 
chamber temperatures. 

[ 5o 4. ) An interlock system to prevent incinerator 
feeding prior to attaining the minimum secondal}' 
chamber temperature is required. 

[ & Rte """'dawn eyele sOOII he aHiamatieally 
eeafFelfefi fHtti #te minimum burn fiewR .eyele fiffle 
shttH Be set Bi Hte manufaetli~""'CF's reeemmeafied fiffle.: 

h Ne iaeiReroler sOOII he eha.-ged HJ&e tiffiR ils Fa!etl­
eapaeit}. 

& Fer iReiaeFBiars witi1 a ffifetl eapaeity ff/ttal ffi & 

gt'ffiteF - §/}/} ptJffflds j>e1' hmw; the iltJe gas 
teHlpeFatHre at the ootiat ef the fiHat eenlffll devfee 

sOOII Hal &teeed JI}(}.QF tmless a demeastrntiaa is 
mtttle #tttt an efJI:li\'BfeRt eelleetieR -ef eeHclensi:B.'e 
hetwy met&ls £tad t&fte arganies eaa he aehie<<ed at a 
higher teHlpe:11tHFC. 

I* Fer ineiReFBiars witi1 a ffifetl eapaeity ff/ttal ffi & 

gt'ffiteF - §/}/} ptJffflds per - £tad less - M(}(} 
ptJffflds per hmw; hydregen ehlaride eHJissiBRS sOOII he 
eantralled I>}' a seruooer sysleffl eapahie ef reHJa<'ing 
at least IIi!% I>}' weighl &f the hydrogen eh!eFide 
etJtering f.lte seruhbe~- sysfeHt: 

Monday, August 8, 1994 

5709 



Final Regulations 

i/h FM ineinemlars wiflt a roted eapaeily '*fHt!l ffi M 
gret>ter tht!t! fiJI!il petmtJs per ~><Hi£; hydrogen ehlef'ide 
emissioos siWH he eontroHed ey a serohhe£ eapal>le eJ 
l'CIHOI'ing fli Jeasi !)§% fty weight M the l!;)'fffflgeR 
ehftJriele enfef'iflg #re SCf'HhBer systeHr.-

.ft.:- 5. ] The minimum sorbent injection rate, expressed 
in pounds per hour of active neutralizing agent, shall 
be calculated as follows: 

Slmin ~ 1.2 (Sitest)(% ANA) 

where: 

S!min minimum sorbent injection rate (pounds 
per hour). 

Sltest ~ pounds per hour of sorbent injected during 
the performance test, while the hydrogen chloride 
inlet concentration was highest. 

% ANA ~ percent by weight of active neutralizing 
agent in the sorbent. 

C. An owner may request that compliance with the 
applicable emission limit be determined using carbon 
dioxide measurements corrected to an equivalent of 7.0% 
oxygen. The relationship between oxygen and carbon 
dioxide levels for the affected facility shall be established 
during the initial performance tests. In such cases, the 
applicable emission limit shall be corrected to the 
established percentage of carbon dioxide without the 
contribution of auxiliary fuel carbon dioxide when using a 
fuel other than natural gas or Iiquified petroleum gas. 

[ D. Ail facilities are required to meet the compliance 
requirements of Part VII of the Virginia Waste 
Management Board's Regulated Medical Waste 
Management Regulations (VR 672-40-01:1). ] 

[ l"J: E£:teh -ehief iBe-iBCfflfBF Bf3CFBffif' and sltift Slij:iCPlisaf' 

siWH - tfflfi 1<eep et1F1'Cflf e#her n pre1'isiooal M 
BfJ& .. BfBF ecrlifiCB:tian m aeeafifi.aaee wiflr the eerlifieatian 
Feljl:liFCfflCfits fJf -¥R 671 91 92, fi2'8B'1Hlgated By fhe '/frgifliB 
lletffll fer Waste :AanngeHwnt Fttei!ity Opemt&s, M Bfl 

eqHimlenl eeffifieatien acceptable ffi the -. 

Be Ne ewtrer siWH Bifflw tlfl affected ftteilily ffi epemle 
ni aey #me wit/toot a certified 5ltilt seperviS8r, as 
pro •·i<ietl ey sHhseetiaB -9 eJ l1lis seelieR, oo <1tJfy ni the 
affeeletl ~ 

F. The ewtrer eJ "" Bffeeted ftteilily siWH tJe•·elep tfflfi 
npdnie, oo a yearljf OOsis, a site speeifie opemting fflflfHHtl 
fhBI sl>all, ni a miBifflum, adtlress the ieHe~'ing eieiHeRts 
ttl regHlakt! ffletiiea.' waste ineincratar BfJCFBtian: 

t s"'""'"fJ' eJ the applicable stafldartls; 

:2:- BeseriptieB ef haste eefflhastioo tltetHy BfJp.'-ieahle ie 
a ~"egl:lfatetl ffleti-iea.' waste inein&atar; 

J:- PFBeetll:lFes .fer reeewmg, handling, -aBfi .feed.iHg 

."'efiHiateti medieal ·wt!Siei 

4:- Proeetll:H'Cs .fer :-eglilaktl mctiieal waste iaeineraffir 
siHrlttp; sHHttiO~'fl, tfflfi fflBifiJHe/iaa; 

£ 2roecdll:Fes fur maintaining fJffJPff eaiHB !fStian air 
tmppJy levels; 

& .OF8eedH~ fer operating the regHialed medieal 
waste iBCitJeFBfBF wftltiH the em.issi8B Sf:antJaf'tis ttfid 
epe.-atieflal paFameters eslahlislled !fflder l1lis ffiie; 

!f.c fl."'Beedu-."€5 fer ."'tY.lpanding ffi pe<iedie -upset M 

effspeeifieatiaR eanditioos; 

& PFeeeflHres .fer fflinimiiring pal'ticHlatc -mtttter 
CB:f"fj'6V£f'; 

!* PF8eedures fer IHaaiteFiflg the degree eJ rng•lated 
metliea! waste hliffieat; 

-/:-1-; PreeetliH'CS feF msnifBriB:g reg1:1lated metl-iea.l wasfe 
iflei:Berater effiissians; tHffl 

.J.& Proeedl:lFCS ieF reporting aHd reearrRweping. 

Go The ewHe£ eJ Bfl affeeted ftteilily shall esteblish a 
pregram leT reviewing fhe aperating maH-Hal ammally w#h­
eaeh pet'S8tl wJw has responsibilities affeeting the 
operetiea eJ tlfl affeeted ftteilily iaeludiflg, l>ttl oot Hffliied 

ffl; eltief ftteilily operoters, 5ltilt sepervisaFS, eeniF9I fflfJlH 

BperBffi.Fs, eslJ liBBtllCFS, fflBiBkRBBCe fJCFSBRBcl, arui 
eFBne:/ltJatl handlers. 

ll; -Bfe ffliti8l review ef flre &peFBting fflBBHBl, ttS 

speeilied !fflder sHbseetioo G at l1lis seelieR, siWH he 
eood1:1etetl pFi6F -ffi ass11mpti&B ef respaRSibilifies afieetiltg 
ifieffleFBtM Bf:JeFBtiBB by HB;Y perstffl Feljl:liFed -ffi l:lBti:CFgB 
lfflifling !fflder suhseetian G ef this seetitmo Subsequmt 
re¥iews eJ the fflflfHHtl siWH he eaffietl oot aanually ey 

eaeh - peFSt7fr. 

f, The operoting fflflfHHtl siWH he lfept ffi a re&tlll;y 
aeeessiBle ltJeatian fur aR peFS&BS ref.juircd ie untlcrga 
!FaiRing !fflder suhseetioo G eJ l1lis seetitmo The operating 
fflflfHHtl tffld reeart1s eJ tr11iaing siWH he available fer 
iflspeetiaa ey the hanrtl npoo request. ] 

§ 120-05-0613. Test methods and procedures. 

A. In addition to the provisions of § 120-05-03 
(Performance testing), the provisions of subsections B 
through E of this section apply. 

B. The owner of an affected facility shall conduct 
performance tests and reduce associated data as specified 
below in accordance with methods and procedures 
acceptable to the board. 
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1. For aJJ incinerators: particulate matter, carbon 
monoxide and visible emissions. 

2. For all incinerators with a rated capacity equal to 
or greater than 500 pounds per hour: hydrogen 
chloride emissions and control efficiency of [ any ] 
scrubber [ systeffls fer system used to control 1 
hydrogen chloride emissions. Hydrogen chloride 
performance tests shall begin no earlier than one hour 
after the initial loading of waste into the incinerator. 
Hourly feed rate during hydrogen chloride 
performance tests shall be determined as the total 
amount of waste loaded into the incinerator between 
the beginning of the first sampling run of the day and 
the end of the last sampling run of the day, divided 
by the total numl;!er of hours elapsed. 

3. For all incinerators with a rated capacity equal to 
or greater than 500 pounds per hour: dioxin and luran 
emissions. 

C. Frequency of testing as required in subsection B of 
this section shall be required as follows. 

1. For all incinerators: onMsite initial performance tests. 

2. For incinerators with a rated capacity equal to or 
greater than 1000 pounds per hour: on-site annual 
performance tests [ for dioxins and furans ] . 

D. Regulated medical waste incinerators which are of 
standardized manufacture and are shipped as assembled 
incinerators from the factory of manufacture may be 
exempt from on-site initial particulate matter and carbon 
monoxide performance testing, provided that: 

1. The incinerator has a rated capacity of Jess than 
100 pounds per hour; 

2. The manufacturer has obtained a satisfactory test 
on a identical incinerator of similar size and design 
certified by a registered engineer; 

3. The test has been certified for the same type of 
waste as designated for the incinerator subject to the 
permit; and 

4. The test results are submitted to the board and 
found acceptable (waste type, incinerator design, 
acceptable feed range, equivalent operating 
parameters, equivalent auxiliary fuel, acceptable 
methodology). 

E. Required on-site testing shall be done while the 
incinerator is operated at 90% or greater of the rated 
capacity and operated by trained plant personnel only. 

§ 120·05-0614. Monitoring. 

A. In addition to the provisions of § 120-05·04 
(Monitoring), the provisions of subsection B of this section 
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apply. 

B. The owner of an affected facility shall install, 
calibrate, maintain and operate equipment for continuously 
monitoring and recording emissions or process parameters 
or both as specified below in accordance with methods 
and procedures acceptable to the board. 

1. For all incinerators with a rated capacity equal to 
or greater than 500 pounds per hour, continuous 
measurement and display is required for primary and 
secondary chamber temperatures. Thermocouples shall 
be located at or near the primary and secondary 
chamber exits. 

2. For all incinerators with a rated capacity equal to 
or greater than 1000 pounds per hour, continuous 
recording is required for the secondary chamber 
temperature. 

3. For all incinerators with a rated capacity equal to 
or greater than 1000 pounds per hour, continuous 
measurement, display and recording is required for 
opacity, with the output of the system recording on a 
six-minute average basis. 

[ +. Fer all lnelneFBIB:s with a ffifefJ eapaeity eqtHt! ie 
or greale£ thml HllliJ f'fHH'tlS fret' ht>tlr; eentinueliS 
ffleBSUFeRWBt, tHsp/ey tffifi FeeeFdiag -is FefjUit=ed ie£ 
illfe gas slreaffl iempeFatuFe at the iHiat ie the !'ffial 
paFtleu:aie fflatleF eootrel ~ Femperotures s1tat1 
he ealeulatcd ffl fBUF fiBUF bJeek BFitJ.lffletie Bt'CFEtges. 

~ 4. ] For all incinerators with a rated capacity equal 
to or greater than 1000 pounds per hour, continuous 
measurement, display and recording is required for 
carbon monoxide emissions, with carbon dioxide or 
oxygen diluent monitor. 

[ 5o 5. 1 A pH meter is required for each wet scrubber 
system. 

[ 1c 6. 1 A flow meter to measure the sorbent injection 
rate is required for each wet scrubber system. 

§ 120-05·0615. Notification, records and reporting. 

A. In addition to the provisions of § 120-05-05 
(Notification, records and reporting), the provisions of 
subsections B through F of this section apply. 

B. Following initial notification as required under § 
120-05-05 A 3, the owner of an affected facility shall 
submit the initial performance test data [ ; and 1 the 
performance evaluation of the continuous emission 
monitoring systems using the applicable performance 
specifications in 40 CFR Part 60 Appendix B [ ; tmd the 
fflB.Xifflum defflenstFated pa~-tieulate fflfrtter -e&BtrtH tJe¥i.ee 
iHiat iemperoture estahH5/Jed ffifflflg the - tmd itmm 
test 1 . 
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C. Following initial notification as required under § 
120-05-05 A 3, the owner of an affected facility shall 
submit quarterly compliance reports for hydrogen chloride, 
carbon monoxide, [ and ] secondary combustion chamber 
temperature [ 8fft'l ma1limum tlemenstraterl pa~-=tiel:lfate 

ffltlttff eoolfflJ devff!e ffllet temperat"·" ] to the board 
containing the information for each applicable pollutant or 
parameter. The hourly average values recorded under 
subdivision F 2 of this section are not required to be 
included in the quarterly reports. Such reports shall be 
postmarked no later than the 30th day following the end 
of each calendar quarter. 

D. The owner of an affected facility shall submit 
quarterly excess emission reports, as applicable, for 
opacity. The quarterly excess emission reports shall 
include all information recorded under this subsection 
which pertains to opacity, and a listing of the six~minute 
average opacity levels recorded under this subsection for 
all periods when such six~minute average levels exceeded 
the opacity limit under § 120-05-0607. The quarterly report 
shall also list the percentage of the affected facility 
operating time for the calendar quarter during which the 
opacity continuous emission monitoring system was 
operating and collecting valid data. Such excess emission 
reports shall be postmarked no later than the 30th day 
following the end of each calendar quarter. 

E. The owner of an affected facility shall submit reports 
to the board of all annual performance tests for [ 
particH}Bte ffiB#eF; €fH"lJtm meRax-itle, ] dioxins and furans [ 
, tmt1 hydragea ehieritie, as app:ieahie, ] from the affected 
facility. [ Far eaeh IHlftfffll tJifflfffi tmt1 fHrtm peFfBFIHBBee 
fest, ffi.e maxim Hffl defflenstml£d paffleH.'-ate ffltt#eF -eooffe:l 

devff!e ffllet tempeFBt"re sltall i>e reported. ] Such reports 
shall be submitted when available but in no case later 
than the date of the required submittal of the quarterly 
report specified under subsection C of this section covering 
the calendar quarter following the quarter during which 
the test was conducted. 

F. The owner of an affected facility shall maintain and 
make available to the board upon request records of the 
following information for a period of at least five years: 

1. Dates of emission tests and continuous monitoring 
measurements. 

2. The emission rates and parameters measured using 
performance tests or continuous emission or parameter 
monitoring, as applicable, as follows: 

a. The following measurements shall be recorded in 
computer~readable format and on paper: 

(1) The six-minute average opacity levels; 

(2) All one-hour average hydrogen chloride emission 
rates at the inlet and outlet of the acid gas control 
device ( # ceBifJ.'ianee is ltased fffl a pereentage 
• "'CtlHctiaB ffflti etlilet emissien -limit ] ; and 

(3) All one-hour average carbon monoxide emission 
rates [ , and ] secondary combustion chamber 
temperatures [ tmt1 lifffll paFtie"}ate ffltlttff eoolfflJ 
devff!e ffllet tempe:at"res ] . 

b. The following average rates shall be computed 
and recorded: 

(1) All 24-hour daily [ geemet:te arithmetic ] 
average percentage reductions in hydrogen chloride 
emissions and all 24-hour daily [ geemetFie 
arithmetic ] average hydrogen chloride emission 
rates; 

(2) All [ feHF he"F Neeif operating cycle ] or 24-hour 
daily arithmetic average carbon monoxide emission 
rates, as applicable; and 

(3) All four-hour block arithmetic average secondary 
combustion chamber temperatures [ tmt1 lifffll 
pa.'tie"/ate ffltlttff eoolfflJ devff!e ffllet tempeFat"res 
l . 

3. Identification of the operating days when any of the 
average emission rates, percentage reductions, or 
operating parameters specified under this subsection 
or the opacity level have exceeded the applicable 
limi~ with reasons for such exceedances as well as a 
description of corrective actions taken. 

4. Identification of operating days for which the 
minimum number of hours of emissions rate or 
operational data have not been obtained, including 
reasons for not obtaining sufficient data and a 
description of corrective actions taken. 

5. Identification of the times when emissions rate ( er 
eperatieaa} ] data have been excluded from the 
calculation of average emission rates or parameters 
and the reasons for excluding data. 

6. The results of daily carbon monoxide continuous 
emission monitor system drift tests and accuracy 
assessments as required under 40 CFR Part 60, 
Appendix F, Procedure 1. 

7. The results of all applicable performance tests 
conducted to determine compliance with the 
particulate matter, carbon monoxide, dioxins and 
furans, and hydrogen chloride limits. [ Far all 
BfJtJHeBhie tJifflfffi tmtl fHrtm tests, the maKim""' 
demonstrated partie"late ffltlttff eoolfflJ devff!e ffllet 
tefflperat"re sltall i>e reea."t!ed ahfflg wifh S"fltlel'ting 
eale"latiel¥.l. ] 

8. Records of continuous emission or parameter 
monitoring system data for opacity, carbon monoxide, 
[ and ] secondary combustion chamber temperature [ 
tmtl /fflal paFtie"late ffltlttff eoolfflJ devff!e ffllet 
temperat"re -dttfB ] . 
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[ {}, ReeaFtls sllawieg fit€ ffBffleS 8f fit€ peFSBRS w1>e 
htwe eampleted review 8f fit€ BjJC£BtiBg fflfriHI1li BBd 
fit€ dBie 8f fit€ ffliiittl review fiBd Bl/ SHbseqHeBI 
tHffitlttl FB\'iews. 

fO:- 9. ] For commercial regulated medical waste 
incinerators, records of the amount and types of waste 
brought in from off-site. 

§ 120-05-0616. Registration. 

The provisions of § 120-02-31 (Registration) apply. 

§ 120-05-0617. Facility and control equipment maintenance 
or malfunction. 

The provisions of § 120-02-34 (Facility and control 
equipment maintenance or malfunction) apply. 

§ 120-05-0618. Permits. 

A permit may be required prior to beginning any of the 
activities specified below if the provisions of Part V (New 
and Modified Sources) and Part VIII (Permits for 
Stationary Sources) apply. Owners contemplating such 
action should review those provisions and contact the 
appropriate regional office for guidance on whether those 
provisions apply. 

1. Construction of a facility. 

2. Reconstruction (replacement of more than half) of 
a facility. 

3. Modification (any physical change to equipment) of 
a facility. 

4. Relocation of a facility. 

5. Reactivation (re-startup) of a facility. 

VA.R. Doc. No. R9Hl37; Filed July 20, 1994, 11:41 a.m. 

BOARD OF AUDIOLOGY AND SPEECH-LANGUAGE 
PATHOLOGY 

Title Qf Regulation: VR 155·01-2:1. Regulations ol the 
Board ol Audiology and Sj>eeel> Speech-Language 
Pathology. 

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-2400 and 54.1-2600 et seq. of 
the Code of Virginia. 

Ellective Date: September 7, 1994. 

Summary: 

The final regulations are designed to (i) amend 
language to comply with legislative mandate; (ii) 
delete obsolete licensure requirements that were 
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effective through December 31, 1992; (iii) modify the 
license endorsement and the education/examination 
requirements to avoid the inequitable, double standard 
used in granting a license to those members of the 
American Speech-Language and Hearing Association 
who hold a Certificate of Clinical Competence over 
those who do not join the association; (iv) replace the 
provision that allows applicants for licensure to meet 
different, rather than uniform, qualification 
requirements to ensure objective assessment and 
issuance of license; (v) delete the text of public 
participation guidelines promulgated under separate 
cover; and (vi) require disclosure of the use of 
unlicensed assistants and clarify supervision 
requirements. 

Summary Qf Public Comment and Agency Response: A 
summary of comments made by the public and the 
agency's response may be obtained from the promulgating 
agency or viewed at the office of the Registrar of 
Regulations. 

Agency Contact: Copies of the regulation may be obtained 
from Meredyth P. Partridge, Executive Director, Board ol 
Audiology and Speech-Language Pathology, 6606 West 
Broad Street, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 
662-9111. There may be a charge lor copies. 

VR 155-01-2:1. Regulations of the Board ol Audiology and 
Speech-Language Pathology. 

PART I. 
GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

Article l. 
Definitions. 

§ 1.1. The following words and terms, when used in these 
regulations, shall have the following meanings, unless the 
context clearly indicates otherwise: 

"Audiologist" means any person who a-eeepts­
eem]3eRsatieR fer- euamiRiRg, testiftg;- evaiHatiRg, tFeatiRg &F 

eeHnseliag f>C£S6flS llavlng "' sus~eelee af llavlng eisereeFS 
&F eeaditieas affeetiRg fteariRg afttl: retated eemmHRieative 
eisereeFS 9l' wile assists j>C£S6HS ffi 1M ~eree~lien af S&llilt!­
aftt! is H6l authorized by flfl6llter regHiatery & health 
regHlatery fteaffi ttt peFfBFm aey Stteft serviees engages in 
the practice of audiology . 

"Advertisement" means any information disseminated or 
placed before the public. 

"Applicant" means a person applying for licensure by 
the board. 

"Board" means the Board ol Audiology and Sjleeelt 
Speech-Language Pathology. 

"Department" means the Department ol Health 
Professions. 
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"Educational standards board" means the clinical 
certification board of the American Speech-Language and 
Hearing Association. 

"Executive director" means the board administrator for 
the Board of Audiology and 5jleeelt Speech-Language 
Pathology. 

"Practice of audiology"' & speeeh pathology"' meiHlS tile 
perfermanee fer eamJ3eRsatiaR sf any RBH:ffie8ieal serviee; 
oot aHthari•ea by ftfl6!liff regHiatary 8f l!ealtl! regHiatary 
haaffi; rela!H!g ta tile preveatiaa, aiagaesis, evaiHatiea ana 
treatment sf aiseraers 8f impairments sf speeelr, langHage, 
V6iee 8f hearing, whether sf 8fgftfl.le 8f ReRergaRie 8figin 
means the practice of conducting measurement, testing and 
evaluation relating to hearing and vestibular systems, 
including audiologic and electrophysiological measures, and 
conducting programs of identification, hearing conservation, 
habilitation, and rehabilitation for the purpose of 
identifying disorders of the hearing and vestibular systems 
and modifying communicative disorders related to hearing 
Joss including but not limited to vestibular evaluation, 
electrophysiological audiometry and cochlear implants . 
Any person offering services to the public under any 
descriptive name or title which would indicate that 
pre!essiaRal audiology sr speech patlielegy services are 
being offered shall be deemed to be practicing audiology 
ana speech pathelegy . 

"Practice of speech-language pathology" means the 
practice of facilitating development and maintenance of 
human communication through programs of screening, 
identifying, assessing and interpreting, diagnosing, 
habilitating and rehabilitating speech-language disorders 
including, but not limited to: 

1. Providing alternative communication systems and 
instruction and training in the use thereof; 

2. Providing aural habilitation, rehabilitation and 
counseling services to hearing·impaired individuals and 
their families; 

3. Enhancing speech·language proficiency and 
communication effectiveness; and 

4. Providing audiologic screening. 

Any person offering services to the public under any 
descriptive name or title which would indicate that 
professional speech·language pathology services are being 
offered shall be deemed to be practicing speech-language 
pathology. 

"Speech·language disorders" means disorders in fluency, 
speech articulation, voice, receptive and expressive 
language (syntax, morphology, semantics, pragmatice), 
swallowing disorders, and cognitive communication 
functioning. 

"Speeel• pathelegist" "Speech-language pathologist" 

means any person who aeeejHs- eempeasatiaR ffif. 
e!fBffilfliBg, tesaRg; e7aluatiag, -treaffi.tg er eaHftseliag 
j>CfSOOS ha¥iRg 8f SHSpee!efl sf ha¥iRg <lls8f<!eFS 8f 

eaa<litieRs afleeling speeelr, V6iee 8f laaguage ana is oot 
aH!Iieri•ea by ftfl6!liff regulatory 8f l!ealtl! regalatery 
booffi fa perfaFm aey SH€fl- serviees engages in the 
practice of speech-language pathology . 

Article 2. 
Legal Base. 

§ 1.2. The following legal base describes the responsibility 
of the Board of Audiology and 5jleeelt Speech-Language 
Pathology to promulgate regulations governing the 
licensure of audiologists and speech speech-language 
pathologists in the Commonwealth of Virginia: 

Title 54.1: 

Chapter 1 (§§ 54.1-100 through 54.4-114); 

Chapter 24 (§§ 54.1-2400 through 54.1-2402.1): 

Chapter 25 (§§ 54.1-2500 through 54.1-2510); and 

Chapter 26 (§§ 54.1-2600 through 54.1-2603) of the 
Code of Virginia. 

Article 3. 
Purpose. 

§ 1.3. These regulations establish the standards for 
training, examination, licensure, and practice of persons as 
audiologists and speech speech-language pathologists in the 
Commonwealth of Virginia. 

Article 4. 
Applicability. 

§ 1.4. Individuals subject to these regulations are (i) 
audiologists and (ii) speech speech-language pathologists. 

Exemptions: The provisions of these regulations shall not 
prevent (i) any persons employed by a federal, state, 
county or municipal agency, or an educational institution 
as a ~ speech·language or hearing specialist or 
therapist from performing the regular duties of his office 
or position; (ii) any student, intern, or trainee in audiology 
or speech speech-language pathology, pursuing a course of 
study at an accredited university or college, or working in 
a recognized training center, under the direct supervision 
of a licensed or certified audiologist or speech 
speech-language pathologist from performing services 
constituting a part of his supervised course of study; (iii) a 
licensed audiologist or speech speech-language pathologist 
from employing or using the services of unlicensed 
persons as necessary to assist him in his practice. 

Affiele 5-c 
PttbHe PaFtiei~atiea GuiEleliaes. 

Virginia Register of Regulations 

5714 



1'lte exeeHiive aireeter of the l>ooftl s!taH - a li& 
of jlffSOOS aaa ergani2atioHs w1ta will be mailed the 
fellewing EleeHments as -they fre€eme availaBle: 

to Ntltiee of lRteffi le premalgate regalatieas; 

t:- Neflee ef f*.l"bHe lieariags er iafennatieaal 
~re eee<liags, the !ffibjeet of wl>i€ft is propose<! e< 
e><istiftg regalatieas; aa!l 

&. FlHal regalatiens wbeft atlepte<l. 

~ Hh ,',fi!litieas aaa <lelelieas le ffiftiliftg listo 

It Awt j)efS6ft wis!>ffig le be pJaee<l an the ffiftiliftg list 

- lHwe his ftftfflC ru!<le<l by WFiliHg le the -

flo 1'lte l>ooftl FHey; iH Hs <lisereliea, a<!<! le the list any 
j}efS6ft;" erganizatieR, er ~ it believes will serve 
tfte ~ese- ef resr.:ensible fJBFtieif)atien ffi the fermatiea 
& f)FBHll:llgatien ef regHlatisas. 

&. These 6H the H& perie<lieally may be re~aeste<l le 
iaEl:ieate tfl.e.i:T tlestre ta eentinae te- reeei-ve ElaeHments M 

le be delete<! - the -

Bo Wl>eft raail is retmaea as aa<leliveraale, jlffSOOS sJ;aH, 

be delete<! - the -

It AI least 3G days prler le pablieatioa of the ooliee le 
een8:1:1et aft iafermatienal f)reeeefling as re€}HireEl by- -§-
9 6.!4:7.1 of the EOOe of Virgiaia, the l>ooftl sltall j>Hblislt & 

ooliee of-

flo Rte ooliee s!taH eeataiH a lfflef aaa eeB€ise 
statement of the possible regalation e< the problem the 
regalalioa Wffilltl a<l<lress aaa Hwile any j)efS6ft le ~ 
wrltteft eommenl 6H the !ffibjeet matter. 

&. 1'lte ooliee s!taH be traasmitte<l le the Registrar of 
Reg1:1la-tiens ffif inell:lsiea ffi tfte Virginia Register ef 
RegtJ:latieRS. 

~ Hh Ialorffialioaal preeee<liags e< pHblie hearings lM 
e><istiftg Rile& 

1r. AI least ooee eaelt aieaaiHffi, the l>ooftl s!taH eeaaaet 
aa iafermatieaal f!FeeeeEling, wfl.-i-e-l::l may -talre tlte ferffi ef 
a pHblie lleariag, le Fe€ei¥e pHblie eoffimeal &a e><istiftg 
regalatiens. 1'lte parpese of the preeee<liag will fie to 
selieit pHblie eeffiffieat ea all e><istiftg regalatioas as to 
thei-F effectiveness, effieieney, aeeessity, eJ.aFi.ty, arui- eest ef 
eemf)liaaee. 

flo Ntltiee of Sl!€h proeee<liag sltall be traasffiiHe<l to the 
Registrar &f RegHlatieas fflT iaeiHsieH ffi the VirgiHia 
Register of Regalatieas. 
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&. ~ preeeeEling may be ftekl: sef:)arately er i-R 
eeRjHRetiea wi-tit e-fue-r iflfermatienal Pffl€€e€lir.gs. 

~ Hh PelHi&a lor raleffialtiag. 

It Awt j)efS6ft may jlciltiea the !taar6 to atl<lfll; &mefttl; 
or <1e1ete any regalatioe. 

& Awf peliliea received wHhffi .J4 days prler to a ltaar8 
meeting - awear &a the age&8a of lltat !fleeting of !be -

&. 1'lte !taar6 s!taH !ta¥e sole aatliarity le <Hspese of the 
~etitian. 

~ 84 Ntltiee of lormalatioa aaa adoption. 

PriM to any meetiag of the l>ooftl e< sal>eaffimittee of 
the l>ooftl at wl>i€ft the l't>rnmlalioo or ade~tian of 
regalatiaas is to 6€ellF, the !ffibjeet matte< s!taH fie 
transmitted te- the Registrar ef Regulatieas fur iaeltisien ift 
the Virgiaia Register 6f RegHlatiafl:S. 

-§- t-1+;- Advisery eemmittees. 

1'lte l>ooftl may aw<>1e1 advisory eammittees as it may 
tleem Reeessary ffi ~ ffif- eiti.z.eft ftfttl: prefessieHal 
partieipatieH in- -the fermatiaa, J3FBmHlgatien, aEleJ:ltiaa, a-rul 
review ef regulatiens. 

PART II. 
OPERATIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES. 

Article l. 
Posting of License. 

§ 2.1. Each licensee shall post his license in a main 
entrance or place conspicuous to the public in the facility 
in which the licensee is practicing. 

§ 2.2. A licensee shall be able to produce this wallet 
license upon request. 

Article 2. 
Records. 

§ 2.3. Accuracy of information. 

A. All changes of mailing address or name shall be 
furnished to the board within five days after the change 
occurs. 

B. All notices required by law and by these regulations 
to be mailed by the board to any registrant or licensee 
shall be validly given when mailed to the latest address on 
file with the board. 

PART Ill. 
FEES. 

Article l. 

Monday, August 8, 1994 

5715 



Final Regulations 

Initial Fees. 

§ 3.!. The following fees shall be paid as applicable for 
licensure: 

I. Application for audiology license ............... $I25 

2. Application for ,eee~t speech-language pathology 
license .............................................. $125 

3. Verification of licensure requests from other states 
...................................................... $~ 

Article 2. 
Renewal Fees. 

§ 3.2. The following annual fees shall be paid as 
applicable for license renewal: 

I. Audiology license renewal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 55 

2. Speeeli- Speech·language pathology license renewal 
...................................................... $ 55 

Article 3. 
Reinstatement Fee. 

§ 3.3. In addition to all back renewal fees, the following 
fee shall be paid for reinstatement of license for each 
year up to three years following expiration (see § 4.4): 

Reinstatement fee per year of expiration 

§ 3.4. Duplicates. 

Article 4. 
Other Fees. 

.. .... .. $100 

Duplicate wall certificates shall be issued by the board 
after the licensee submits to the board a signed affidavit 
that a document has been lost, destroyed, or the applicant 
has had a name change. 

Duplicate wall certificates ......................... $ 50 

§ 3.5. Other fee information. 

lc A. There shall be a fee of $25 for returned checks. 

:!o B. Fees shall not be refunded once submitted. 

PART IV. 
RENEWALS. 

Article I. 
Expiration Dates. 

§ 4.!. The following licenses shall expire on December 31 
of each calendar year: 

I. Audiologist; and 

2. bj>eeffi Speech-language pathologist. 

§ 4.2. A licensee who fails to renew his license by the 
expiration date shall have an invalid license. 

Article 2. 
Renewal. 

§ 4.3. A person who desires to renew his license for the 
next year shall, not later than the expiration date: 

l. Return the renewal notice and applicable renewal 
fee; 

2. Notify the board of any changes in name and 
address. 

Article 3. 
Reinstatement. 

§ 4.4. Reinstatement. 

A. When a license is not renewed by the expiration 
date, the board may consider reinstatement of a license 
up to three years of expiration. See § 3.3. 

B. A licensee who does not reinstate within three years 
as prescribed by subsection A of this section shall reapply 
for licensure as prescribed by Part V and meet the 
qualifications for licensure in effect at the time of the 
new application . 

PART V. 
REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSURE. 

Article I. 
Licensure. 

§ 5.!. The board may grant a license to any applicant who 
meets one of the following sets of requirements for 
licensure: 

I. Endorsement. 

"' 'file beaffi may gfftftt a lleea5e wl!ltool 
elfamiRatieR te aR:Y a~~lieaRt woo ii&IEis a ffiH'i'eRt 
"Certifieate af Clinieal CempeteRee," ift the area ift 
wltieft tltey see!< lieeRsure - by the l<fRerieaR 
S13eeell Laag1:1age Ileariag AssseiatieR; ar 

lr. 'file beaffi may lssHe a lleea5e te aR:Y ap~lieaRt 
by eR<lersemeRt wl>eft the j>eFS6fr. 

fl7 HeMs a etlffeil! UReReumaerea lleea5e from aR:Y 
state er the ~ af Celumaia; arul 

~ Has ~raetieea auaielegy 6F Sjleeell patlielegy fer 
eHe yeaF er liM me! the re~uiremeRts af the 
regulatieRs af the beaffi l'6r lieeRsure af aueielegists 
arul speeeJr patlielegists er ~>a<; eaueatieR, 
exflerieaee, ltRewle8:ge, slHHs; aHft a13ilities BEfuivaleH:t 
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16 ll1e regulatieas et ll1e l>aaffi ffiF lieeasare ftfttl fta5 
{3f6Vitlefl Sl:lffieieRt wfi..tteft CVifl:CH:CC ef tfl.-ese 
~aalilieatieas al ll1e time et applieatisa; ftfttl 

f.» Has J*!BSet1 a ~aali!yiag eJ<amiaatiea approved 
by ll1e-

Any applicant who holds a license from another state 
or the District of Columbia or has ever been licensed 
by another state or the District of Columbia shall 
apply tor licensure under this section and may be 
granted a license by the board when the applicant: 

a. Holds a current unencumbered license from any 
state(s) or the District of Columbia and verifies 
such on a form prescribed by the board. If the 
license is not current, documentation shall be 
provided on a form prescribed by the board of the 
reason; and 

b. Meets one combination of qualifications 
prescribed in subdivisions 1 b (1) and 1 b (2) of 
this section or subdivisions 1 b (3) and 1 b ( 4) of 
this section. If the applicant does not meet one of 
the combinations of qualifications prescribed in this 
subdivision, the applicant who is or has been 
licensed in another state or the District of Columbia 
shall quaHfy under subdivision 1 c of this section: 

(1) Holds a current and unrestricted Certificate of 
Clinical Competence in the area in which he seeks 
licensure issued by the American Speech~Language 
Hearing Association. Verification of currency shall 
be in the form of a certified Jetter from the 
American Speech~Language Hearing Association 
issued within six months prior to [ apfJ}ieatieR 
licensure ] ; and 

(2) Has held employment in the area for which he 
seeks licensure for one of the past three consecutive 
years or two of the past five consecutive years; or 

(3) Holds a current and unrestricted Certificate of 
Clinical Competence in the area in which he seeks 
licensure issued by the American Speech-Language 
Hearing Association. Verification of currency shall 
be in the form of a certified letter from the 
American Speech-Language Hearing Association 
issued within six months prior to [ B:fJfllieaf:ien 
licensure ] ; and 

( 4) Has passed a qualifying examination approved 
by the board that was taken and passed within 
three years preceding the date of [ appliealieR 
licensure ] ; or 

c. Meets the requirements of the regulations of the 
board for licensure of audiologists and 
speech-language pathologists under subdivision 3 of § 
5.1. 
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2. Certificate or clinical competence. This subdivision 
2 applies to all applicants who are not currently 
licensed in another state or the District of Columbia 
or who have not previously been licensed in another 
state or the District of Columbia. The applicant shall 
meet one combination of qualifications prescribed in 
subdivisions 2 a and 2 b of this section or subdivisions 
2 c and 2 d of this section. If the applicant does not 
meet one of the combinations of qualifications 
prescribed in this subdivision 2, the applicant shall 
qualify under subdivision 3 of § 5.1. The board may 
grant a license if the applicant: 

a. Holds a current and unrestricted Certificate of 
Clinical Competence in the area in which he seeks 
licensure issued by the American Speech-Language 
Hearing Association. Verification of currency shall 
be in the form of a certified letter from the 
American Speech-Language Hearing Association 
issued within six months prior to [ a-pp.'ieatian 
licensure ] ; and 

b. Has held employment in the area for which he 
seeks licensure for one of the past three consecutive 
years or two of the past five consecutive years; or 

c. Holds a current and unrestricted Certificate of 
Clinical Competence in the area in which he seeks 
licensure issued by the American Speech-Language 
Hearing Association issued within six months prior 
to [ application licensure ] ; and 

d. Has passed a qualifying examination approved by 
the board that was taken and passed within three 
years preceding the date of [ awUeatiafl licensure ] 
; or 

e. Meets the requirements of the board for licensure 
of audiologists and speech-language pathologists 
under subdivision 3 of § 5.1. 

i!-:- EElaeatiea arul- eJcamiaatien. +bese reEJHiremefl:ts 
awlY lliFffilgl> Deeeraeer M, -

It EJEaffiiaalien. +lle applieaat sl>ali !lflSS a ~Halifying 
eJramiaatien af.!flFevea by- th-e b-e-a-rfr:- T-fte 
examiaatien sl>ali IHwe beeft f*lSS"d - !!tree 
yeBfS preeediag ll1e dale et applieatiea. 

Exeef.ltien: Ne furtftef examinatian will be reEJ:HireH 
ffiF applieaats ll.aviag J*!BSet1 ll1e l>aaffi a~prsve<l 
eJEamiaatiea at ""l' time j'H'le< 16 s~~lieatiea if ll1ey 
IHwe beeft aetlvely engaged iR ll1e respeeti•te 
prefessiea Ell!ffi;g ll1e :!4 meatl>s immediately 
preeediog ll1e dale et applieatiea. 

b-: Degree and eat~rse'Nerlr eEJ:1:livaleney. 

fB +lle ap~lieaat sl>ali IHwe eem~leted al least W 
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semester fiffiH's aprr8'1ee by tile boorii !rem a 
ee11ege er -ffiy whase aueialagy aae SJ*'€eh 
~ragram is aeere<litee by tile Edueatiaaal Staaeards 
Boord eJ' tile Amerieaa Sjleeeh Laaguage aae 
HeariRg Asseeiatiea B:F- an- CEJ:Hivalent aeereciitatien. 

~ At least 34 eJ' tile 6G semester fiffiH's sftall he ift 
€OOf'SeS heyaafl tile aaefielar's flegree aae aeeeptallle 
taware a graeuale flegree by tile eellege er 
uaiversity wllere tllese €OOf'SeS are tal<"ffi aae -
be applieallle ta tile HeM l6r - lieeasure is 
~ See AppeaeiK h 

e-: SHf.!ervised etifltetH experieH:ee. ~ B:f:IJ3lieaat sft.a:H 
lHwe eampletee 300 etaelt fiffiH's eJ' E1ireet elieat 
eefliftet fiffiH's wi!li iHtlivitluals preseatiag a variety 
ef EliSBfflCFS 6f CBRlffil:lfliCB:tiBR. This CK[3CFiCBCC sfl.aH. 
hH¥e been - tile ee11ege '* uRi<·ersity atteaaetl 
by tile applieaat er - a elffiieal traisiag 
program aeeef')taBle te tfte ft6ftf.tt A minim1:1m ef ~ 
etae1t fiffiH's sftall be ift tile pralessiaaal area ift 
- lieeasure is soogl!t; the! is; ift either autlialagy 
er Sj>eeeh pathalagy. 

3. Education and examination. These reEJ.airemeat:s are 
elfeeti 0 e January h m 

a. Examination. The applicant shall pass a qualifying 
examination approved by the board. The 
examination shall have been passed within three 
years preceding the date of [ appHealiaa licensure ]. 

Exception: No further examination will be required 
for applicants having passed the board approved 
examination at any time prior to [ Bj)j:Jl-ieatien 
licensure ) if they have been actively engaged in the 
respective profession during the 24 months 
immediately preceding the date of application. 

b. Degree and coursework equivalency. 

(1) Degree. The applicant shall hold a Master's 
degree or its equivalent from a college or university 
whose audiology and speeelr speech-language 
program is accredited by the Educational Standards 
Board of the American Speech-Language and 
Hearing Association or an equivalent accreditation: 

(2) Coursework (all candidates). The applicant shall 
have completed at least 75 semester hours of 
coursework. Twenty-seven of the 75 semester hours 
shall be in basic science and 36 of the 75 semester 
hours shall be in professional coursework. See 
Appendices H ftft<l IH I and II . 

(3) Supervised clinical experience (all candidates). 

(a) The applicant shall complete 375 clock hours of 
supervised clinical observation and supervised 
clinical practicum combined. The clock hours of 
supervised clinical experience shall be provided by 
a college or university whose audiology and ~ 
speech-language pathology program is accredited by 
the Educational Standards Board of the American 
Speech-Language and Hearing Association or an 
equivalent accreditation. See Appendix !¥ III . 

(b) The supervision for the practicum and 
observation shall be provided by a person who is 
licensed by the board eJ' AHdielogy aafl Sj>eeeh 
Pathology in the appropriate area of practice, 

4. Clinical observation. Twenty-five of the 375 clock 
hours (see § 5.1 3 b(3)) shall be in clinical 
observation prior to beginning clinical practicum. 

5. Clinical practicum. Three hundred fifty of the 375 
clock hours (see § 5.1 3 b(3)) shall be in a clinical 
practicum. At least 250 .of those 350 clock hours shall 
be in clinical hours &t the graduate level in the area 
in which the license is sought. At least 50 of the 350 
clock hours shall be in each of three types of clinical 
settings such as, but not limited to, public schools, 
private practice, free clinic, hospital setting. 

For a specific breakdown of the clinical clock hours 
required for both speeelt/laBgl:lage speech-language 
and audiology applicants, see Appendix !¥ III . 

Article 2. 
Application Process. 

§ 5.2. Prior to seeking licensure as an audiologist or 
speeeh speech-language pathologist, an applicant shall 
submit: 

1. A completed and signed application; 

2. The applicable fee prescribed in § 3.1; and 

3. Additional documentation as may be required by 
the board to determine eligibility of the applicant. 

§ 5.3. All required parts of the application shall be 
submitted at the same time. An incomplete application 
package shall be returned. 

Exception: Some schools require that certified transcripts 
be sent directly to the licensing authority. That policy is 
acceptable to the board. 

National examination scores also will be accepted from 
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the examining authority. 

PART VI. 
STANDARDS OF PRACTICE. 

Article I. 
General. 

§ 6"1. There shall be separate licenses for the practice of 
audiology and Speeelt speech-language pathology" 

§ 6"2" It is prohibited for any person to practice as an 
audiologist or Sj}eeeh- speech~Ianguage pathologist unless 
such person has been issued a license in the appropriate 
classification. 

§ 6"3" The titles of audiologist and Speeelt speech-language 
pathologist shall be reserved under law for the use by 
licensed practitioners only. 

§ 6.4. No person unless otherwise licensed to do so, shall 
prepare, order. dispense, alter or repair hearing aids or 
parts of or attachments to hearing aids for consideration. 
However, audiologists licensed under this chapter may 
make earmold impressions and prepare and alter earmolds 
for clinical use and research. 

§ 6.5. Every licensed audiologist and speech-language 
pathologist shall be held fully responsible for the 
performance and activities of [ all their ] unlicensed 
assistants [ aHd tHties ] " 

Article 20 
Core of Knowledge 

§ ~ 6060 An audiologist and speeelt speech-language 
pathologist shall be able to demonstrate knowledge, skills, 
and abilities as relevant to his specific practice in the 
following areas: 

1. Psychological and sociological aspects of human 
development; 

2" Anatomical, physiological, 
psychological, and physical bases of 
hearing and language; 

neurological, 
speech, voice, 

3. Genetic and cultural aspects of speech and language 
development; 

4. Current principles, procedures, techniques, and 
instruments used in evaluating the speech, language, 
voice, and hearing of children and adults; 

5. Various types of disorders of speech, language, 
voice, and hearing classifications, causes and 
manifestations; 

6. Principles, remedial procedures, hearing aids, 
tinnitus devices, and other instruments used in the 
habilitation and rehabilitation for those with various 
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disorders of communication; 

7. Relationships among speech, language, voice, and 
hearing problems, with particular concern for the 
child or adult who presents multiple problems; 

8. Organization and administration 
designed to provide direct service 
disorders of communications; 

of programs 
to those with 

9. Theories of learning and behavior in their 
application to disorders of communication; 

10. Services available from related fields for those 
with disorders of communication; and 

11. Effective use of information obtained from related 
disciplines about the sensory, physical, emotional, 
social, and intellectual status of a child or an adult; 

~ && 61 In addition, the audiologist shall be able to 
demonstrate knowledge, skills, and abilities relevant to the 
specific practice as follows: 

1. Conducting evaluation of the function of the 
auditory and vestibular systems, including the use of 
electrophysiological techniques and the evaluation of 
tinnitus; 

2. Evaluation of auditory processing; and 

3. Principles, procedures, and techniques of organizing 
and administering industrial hearing conservation 
programs, including noise surveys, the use of hearing 
protective devices, and the training and supervising of 
audiometric technicians. 

~ 6+ 6.8. In addition, the speeelt speech-language 
pathologist shall be able to demonstrate knowledge, skills, 
and abilities relevant to the specific practice in the 
following: 

l. Evaluation and treatment of disorders of the oral 
and pharnyngeal mechanism as they relate to 
communication, including but not limited to dysphagia; 
and 

2. Use of alternative communication devices and 
appliances facilitating communication. 

PART VIL 
REFUSAL, SUSPENSION, REVOCATION, AND 

DISCIPLINARY ACTION. 

Article L 
Unprofessional Conduct. 

§ 7 .1. The board may refuse to issue a license or approval 
to any applicant, and may suspend for a stated period of 
time or indefinitely, or revoke any license or approval, or 
reprimand any person, or place his license on probation 
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with such terms and conditions and for such time as it 
may designate, or impose a monetary penalty for any of 
the following causes: 

1. Guaranteeing the results of any speech, voice, 
language, or hearing consultative or therapeutic 
procedure; 

2. Diagnosis or treatment of speech, voice, language, 
and hearing disorders by correspondence, provided 
this shall not preclude; 

a. Follow~up correspondence of individuals 
previously seen, or 

b. Providing the persons served professionally with 
general information of an educational nature. 

3. Revealing to unauthorized persons confidential 
patient information obtained from the individual he 
serves professionally without the permission of the 
individual served; 

4. Exploitation of persons served professionally by 
accepting them for treatment when benefit cannot 
reasonably be expected to occur, or by continuing 
treatment unnecessarily; 

5. Incompetence or negligence in the practice of the 
profession [ where as well as 1 failure to disclose use 
and identity of [ unlicensed 1 assistants [ is ea&Bit!eret! 
oeg!-igeoee 1 (see § 6-Jj 6. 7) [ ; The disclosure and 
the identity of the unlicensed assistant shall be in 
writing and provided to the client prior to treatment. 
The disclosure shall be made a part of the client's file 
and shall be signed by the client or the client's 
representative. ] 

6. Failing to recommend a physician consultation and 
examination for any communicatively impaired person 
(before the fitting of a new or replacement prosthetic 
aid on such person) not referred or examined by a 
physician within the preceding six months; 

7. Failing to refer a client to a physician when there 
is evidence of an impairment that might respond to 
medical treatment. Exception: This would not include 
communicative disorders of nonorganic origin. 

8. Failing to supervise persons who assist them in the 
practice of speeelt speech-language pathology and 
audiology without being present at all times within the 
same building when unlicensed supportive personnel 
are delivering services. 

9. Conviction of a felony related to the practice for 
which the license is granted; 

10. Failure to comply with federal, state, or local laws 
and regulations governing the practice of audiology 
and speeelt speech-language pathology; 

11. Failure to comply with any regulations of the 
board; 

12. Inability to practice with skill and safety because 
of physical, mental, or emotional illness, or substance 
abuse; 

13. Making, publishing, disseminating, circulating, or 
placing before the public, or causing directly or 
indirectly to be made, an advertisement of any sort 
regarding services or anything so offered to the public 
which contains any promise; assertion; representation; 
or statement of fact which is untrue, deceptive, or 
misleading; [ lHl<i 1 

14. Exceeding the scope of practice [ , ; and 

15. Aiding and abetting unlicensed activity. 1 

APPENDIX 10 
CeHFsewerlr Tl>reHgl> BeeemeeF a±, m. 

The applieant sllall !lave eempleletl at least iHl semester 
hoofs apprevetl l>y tile - l"ffifH a eallege & aaiveFsity 
wl>ese aatlielegy lHl<i speeelt p<egmm is aeeFetlited l>y !be 
EElueatieaal Staaeanls Be-6:-rtt e-f Hte l~merieaa 
Sf)eeell Laaguage fHT€1. Hearing z\sseeiatiea 6f' aft EEfliivaleat 
aeereEl:itatiea. 

Elf !be iHl semester l>ffilrs, at least 3!1 semesteF hoofs sllall 
be ffi ffilH'SeS 1>eye00 !be eael!eler's degree aoo aeeeptaele 
!ewaffl a gFadaate degree l>y !be eallege '*" HHiversity 
wbere tbese ffilH'SeS are talreH lHl<i sllall be applieaB!e !a 
!be HeM l6l" wl>iel> lieeasaFe is ~ tsee % H ~ !>} 

The iHl semesteF hoofs sllall be lffl>l<eft tlewft as ~ 

1-c H semester hoofs ffi ffilH'SeS t11at l'ftWi<le 
fllatlameatal l<aewleElge applieaele !a !be ft6i'ffial 
develepmeat aoo ase al SJ*"'f'lr, 'ffllee; beaffi>g aoo 
laBgaage; lHl<i 

l: 42- semester ftetH:s- ifl: eettrSeS ifl: fue maRagemeat ef 
Sj>ee€lr, 'ffllee; beaffi>g lHl<i Iaaguage EliseFtlem, arul 
ialeFmatiea sapplemeBla<y !a Sll€lt fieltl& Elf tbese 4;>, 

semester ftffiH:s.:. 

.r. AI least 6 semesteF hoofs sllall be ffi aHdielegy 
l6l" tbese desiring a lieense as a speee1t pathelegist, 
er ffi speeelt pathelegy l6l" t1tese desiring a lieense 
as an aaElielegisl; 

Jr. Ne mere tl>aft 6 semesteF hoofs may be ffi 
ffilH'SeS tllat l'ftWi<le aeaElemie eFe<tit l6l" elinieal 
praetiee; 

eo AI least M semesteF l>ffilrs, iaelatliag oo mere 
tl>aft tilFee semester hoofs al eFe<tit l6l" tbeffis er 
tlissertatiea, sllall be ffi !be HeM ffi wl>iel> !be 
lieense is~ 
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6-;- 6 semester ft.e.l.tfs fitBJ" be ffi electives H fl.es.i.retl­
"" a!l<lilisaal eettfSe WfH'lt fl'lflY be lal<eft - ~ 
ftftd ~ ab<Weo 

&;- £- semester ft.e.H.fs ffiftJ" ae ffi electives. 

APPENDIX H I . 
Basic Science Coursework. 
Efleetive Jaaaary f., M!);l, 

A Master's degree or its equivalent from a college or 
university whose audiology and speeelt speech-language 
program is accredited by the Educational Standards Board 
of the American Speech~Language and Hearing Association 
or an equivalent accreditation is required. 

The applicant shall have completed at least 75 semester 
hours of coursework. 

1. Basic science coursework. 

At lease 27 of the 75 semester hours shall be in basic 
science coursework as follows: 

a. 6 semester hours in biological/physical sciences 
and mathematics; 

b. 6 semester hours in behavioral and/ or social 
sciences; and 

c. 15 semester hours in basic human communication 
processes to include the anatomic and physiologic 
basis, the physical and psychophysical bases, and the 
linguistic and psycholinguistic aspects. 

APPENDIX IH II . 
Professional Coursework. 

Elfeelive Jaaaary f., M!);l, 

A Master's Degree or its equivalent from a college or 
university whose audiology and ~ speech~language 
program is accredited by the Educational Standards Board 
of the American Speech-Language and Hearing Association 
or an equivalent accreditation is required. 

The applicant shall have completed at least 75 semester 
hours of coursework which includes basic science 
coursework (see Appendix II I ) and professional 
coursework. At least 36 of the 75 semester hours shall be 
in professional coursework. 

A. Speech and language candidates. 

1. At least 30 of the 36 semester hours of professional 
coursework shall be in courses for which graduate 
credit was received. 

a. Six of the 30 semester hours of graduate credit 
shall be required in audiology. 

(1) 3 semester hours in hearing disorders and 
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hearing evaluation; and 

(2) 3 semester hours in habilitative/rehabilitative 
procedures. 

b. At least 21 of the 30 semester hours of graduate 
credit shall be in the professional area in which 
licensure is sought. 

(1) 6 semester hours in speech disorders; 

(2) 6 semester hours in language disorders; and 

(3) 9 semester hours in electives in speech and 
language. 

c. Three of the 30 semester hours of graduate credit 
may be electives in speech, language or audiology 
graduate study. 

2. Six of the 36 semester hours of professional 
coursework may be at the undergraduate level. 

B. Audiology candidates. 

1. At least 30 of the 36 semester hours of professional 
coursework shall be in courses for which graduate 
credit was received. 

a. At least 6 of the 30 graduate credits shall be 
required in speech-language pathology, not associated 
with hearing impairment, as follows: 

(1) 3 semester hours in speech disorders; and 

(2) 3 semester hours in language disorders. 

b. At least 21 of the 30 semester hours shall be in 
the professional area in which licensure is sought 

(1) 6 semester hours in hearing disorders and 
hearing evaluation; 

(2) 6 semester hours in habilitative/rehabilitative 
procedures; and 

(3) 9 semester hours in electives in audiology. 

c. 3 of the 30 semester hours prescribed above shall 
be electives in an area of graduate credit 
(audiology, speech, or language). 

2. Six of the 36 semester hours of professional 
coursework may be at the undergraduate level. 

APPENDIX W III . 
Clinical Practicum. 

Ef!eeth e JaHuary f., M!);l, 

The applicant shall complete 375 clock hours of supervised 
clinical observation (25 hours) and supervised clinical 
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practicum (350 hours) combined. 

The applicant shall gain experience by working in at least 
three types of clinical settings such as, but not limited to, 
public schools, private practice, nursing homes, free 
clinics, hospital settings, etc. At least 50 hours shall be 
served in each of the three types of settings. (See % H & 
.! 5.1 3 b (5) ) 

A. Speech and language candidates. 

1. For the clinical practicum, 250 of the 350 clock 
hours shall be at the graduate level in the area in 
which the license is sought. 

a. At least 160 of the 250 graduate clock hours shall 
be in each of the following eight categories: 

(1) 20 clock hours in evaluation: speech disorders in 
children; 

(2) 20 clock hours in evaluation: speech disorders in 
adults; 

(3) 20 clock hours in evaluation: language disorders 
in children; 

( 4) 20 clock hours in evaluation: language disorders 
in adults; 

(5) 20 clock hours in treatment: speech disorders in 
children; 

(6) 20 clock hours in treatment: speech disorders in 
adults; 

(7) 20 clock hours in treatment: language disorders 
in children; and 

(8) 20 clock hours in treatment: language disorders 
in adults. 

b. Up to 20 of the 250 graduate clock hours shall be 
in related disorders in the major professional area. 

c. At least 35 of the 250 graduate clock hours shall 
be in audiology. 

(1) 15 clock hours in evaluation/screening 

(2) 15 clock hours in habilitation/rehabilitation. 

(3) 5 clock hours in audiology electives. 

d. 35 of the 250 graduate clock hours shall be in 
electives if desired or additional hours work may be 
taken under subdivisions 1 a and 1 c above. 

2. 100 of the 250 clock hours may be at the 
undergraduate level. 

B. Audiology candidates. 

1. For the clinical practicum, 250 of the 350 clock 
hours shall be at the graduate level in the area in 
which the license is sought. 

a. At least 160 of the 250 graduate clock hours shall 
be in the following: 

(1) 40 clock hours in evaluation: hearing in 
children; 

(2) 40 clock hours in evaluation: hearing in adults; 

(3) 40 clock hours in selection and use: 
amplification and assistive devices tor children; and 

( 4) 40 clock hours in selection and use: 
amplification and assistive devices for adults. 

b. At least 20 of the 250 graduate clock hours shall 
be in treatment: hearing disorders in children and 
adults. 

c. Up to 20 of the 250 graduate clock hours shall be 
in related disorders in the major professional area. 

d. At !east 35 of the 250 graduate clock hours shall 
be in speech-language pathology unrelated to hearing 
impairment as follows; 

(1) 15 graduate clock hours in evaluation/screening; 

(2) 15 graduate clock hours in treatment; and 

(3) 5 graduate clock hours in electives. 

e. 15 of the 250 graduate clock hours shall be in 
electives if desired or additional course work may 
be taken under ±.a-e subdivisions 1 a through 1 c 
above. 

2. 100 of the 350 clock hours may be at the 
undergraduate level. 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-lll7; Filed July 15, 1994, 3:37p.m. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
Board of Audiology and Speech-Language Pathology 

Department of Health Professions 
6606 West Broad Street, 4th Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23230-1717 

:APPLICATION FOR LICENSURE 
~hke check payable to Treasurer of V!.rgl.n.!a. F~ are non-refu.nd2ble. 

(804) 662 9907 

I. IDEI"t'TIFYL'iG Th"FOR-\L\TIO:"l' 
Na:ne in full {Pie<-Se print or type) 

urt '"" :\Uddle.F.'\b.ldou 

Home .Addt-us City St... It Zip Cod~ 

Soci..I S<-<:urity :\umber D~le of Birth AI= Code Uld Home Tclcpbon~ ~o. 

\Vork Tt!epbone :-;'o. 

,_ 
IT A.PPLICATIO:"l Th'"FOR\L.\TI0?-1' (Check all U....t .::.ptJly) 

[ ] Application for audiology licer.se ($125.00) 

[ ] Application for speech-language pathology license (Sl25.00) 

Any applica."t who holds a license from 2.110ther st?.te or 1.he District of Columbia or h2.s eva been licensed by a:;o:..ber state 
or the District of Culumbia shall apply for licer.sure Uilder this section. See Part VI for required documentation. 

{ ] I hold a current unencumbered license in 2.nOiher state(s). 

State Date of Initial License # ProfessionU 
Licensure Area 

State Date of Inil.ial License # Profession2l 
Licensure Area 

{ ] I hold a current Cercificate of Clinical Com;xtence from ASHA, a.'"Jd 

[ ] I bve practiced audic!ogy 2.nd/or speech·lar.guage pathology for one year of L~e past three coc.secdve yem or 
t\1'0 of the past five co='SeCUtiYe yem. OR 

[ 1 I hold a cment Cer.ifiwe of Clinica.l Com;.e;ence from ASHA, 2:d 

[ I I hzve passed U:e Natio:-s.l Exa..Unatio:1: 
Date Score 

Vol. 10, Issue 23 Monday, August 8, 1994 

5723 



Final Regulations 

Should the ~tatus of your Audiology and Spce<:b.-Language Patholo~y lJccnsc(s) ln another jurlsd.!ctlon th!!.Dge 
pending consldcratlon of thl:> appUcat1on, you are required to inform this board In de! aU 1m mediately. The !allure 
to do so may constitute grounds for re\'Ocatlon nr the same. 

IV UCENSURE THROUGH CERTIFICATE OF CLC\1CAL CO:."tfPETE..'""CE 
All applicmts who G..."e not cUI7ently licensed in wolher state or the District of Columbia or who have 
not previously been licensed in another state of the District of Columbia apply for licensure under this 
section. See Section Vl for required documentation. 

[ I I hold a current Certificate of Clinid Competence from ASHA. and 

[ ] I have p:-.;.cticed Audiology Z.."ld1or Speech-L2.J1g\l<.ge Patbology for one of the past 
three consecuti\'e years or m·o of the past five consecutive years. 

OR 

[ I I hold a Current Certificate of Clinic2.l Competence fro.:n ASHA., and 

[ I I have p<-Ssed the } . .'ational Exa.m.ination 
Dc..te Score 

V UCL"\SURE THROT.;GH EDVCATIO:\IE..X...L\fiJ'{ATIO~ 
lf you are applying for licensure through educationlexarniru:tion, complete the appllcable parts in llris 
section. See P2rt VI for required documentation. 

[ 1 I have passed LIJe National Examimtio:1 
Date Score 

OR 

[ I I have been actively engaged in audiology andfor speech·language pathology for the past 
-z4 montru. 

Date Began Professional Area 

[ ] I bold a Master's Degree or its equiv2.lent. 

[ ] I have completed 75 semester hours of coursework 

[ ] 27 serneS1er hours were in basic science 

[ ] 36 serneS1er hours were in professiotl2.1 coursework 

[ I I have completed 375 clock hours of supervised clinic-al observation and super.ised clinical 
practicum combined within the program of the college or university I anended. 

[ ] My supenisor was 
Name 
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[ 1 I have CO:Y.ple:ed 25 ho:..:i'S i:-J clio.ic:d observ2li0:1 ?rior 10 bq:;in.'lir:g cEriccJ rr..cucur:l 

[ 1 I have co::-.pleted 3:50 clock ho:..:.ts in a clin.ical p:acticmn 

[ ] I haxe completed 250 hours at the gra.duate level in the uea i:1 which licensure is so~ght 

[ 1 I have co::1pleted 50 clock hours in three types of clinic2.l senir.gs such as, but not limited 
to, public schools, private p:actice, free clinic, hospital setting 

VI REQUIRED DOCU~IE:-.o.'TATIO~ The foUowing shill be sub:nined with tl:lls z.pplicat.ion: 

A. EndorsementlCertificate of Clinical Compcl<'nte 

1. Aruched E:1dorsement Cenificatio:t completed by each St<:.te where you are currently licensed 
or h;;xe ever held a license. 

2. Ar.. ORJG]).'A.L LETITR fro::~ the Americ~ ... .''l Speech-Language Pathology Hearing Associatio:J. 
certifying t!le 2pplicant holds a Cmificate of Clinical Competence, is in good m.nding, and 
remains on current status. Lener must be prepaed within six months of filing the applic~lion. 

3. Verific~tion of employme:Jt (if cpplying through endorsement) thct yiicmt has p:c..cticed for 
one of the pa.st three tO:'.sen.:tiYe yeu-s or tv.·o of L1e pa.st five consec\.:liYe yem prior to 
application. 

4. NG.tiom.l exo.mimtion scores. (Certified Results) 

B. Education!Exaroi.nation 

1. National ex::..rn.b.ation. scores. (Cer'Jfied Results) 

2. Verification of employment for the past 24 montJ-..s, if examination d.:ite preceded date of this 
application by more tha..• th.--ee yec.rs. 

3. Official undergnduate md grdlu;:.xe transcripts. 

4. Verificaio:1. of dock hours \.\ith m original sigrurure. 

C. Reinstatemtnt 

1. Verification of employment for o:Je of the past th.'"Ce years. 

2. An ORIGD'{!U. LETTER f:u:n L1e Americ:o.tl Sp-eech-L2.11guage P2.LI)o!ogy Hearing Association 
certif}~ng the ;:,pplicmt balds a Certificate of CUnlca.l Competence, is b good st2ncling, :::..nd 
remains on C'JJTCnt mrus. Letter must be prepc.:ed \.\ithin six months of fiJing the applicatio:l.. 

3. Nztional ex2.mination scores. (Cer'Jfied Results) 

Vll I:>!P AlRED PRACTICE 

Vol. 10, Issue 23 

a. Have you ever been co:nictcd of <:.."ly cri::-Jnal offense o:.her tr.z.Il minor tr.:..ffic \iolations? Yes 
l\o If yes, expl:?.in: 

b. Have you ever h:o.d a license l<:pse, volu..;12...rily S'..lJTCndered placed on prob:::.tio:J., suspended Te\'Oked. or 
b.zve you be.en oilierv.~se disciplined, or en~r been the subject of 2.n invcstigalio:1 by 2.ny Board t}.2J. 

rtgulates audiology ~'lei speech·l2.I1gu2ge p:<.thology? Yes ____ No ____ . If yes, please 
explain in detail ct the end of this ap;:::lic<..tion. 
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VII AFFIDAVIT 

AFFIDAVIT 
(To be completed by a Notary Public) 

State of ______________ County/City of•---------------

I, am requesting to be licensed 10 practice A\Jdiology and 
Speech-Language Pathology in the Commonwealth of Virginia. I v.ill at all times abide by the laws of tho 
Commonwealth, and Rules, Regulations and Bylaws of the Board of A\ldlology and Speec:h-1-ang-u:age P;;\.hology. I 
understa."ld thc.l should I \iolate any of these Jaws or the rules and regulations, action \\'ill be taken against my license 
by due process. 

I hereby certify that all stater;;ents cont2ined in this application, and all representations a:1d documents presented by me 
in con..'lection v.1th this application are true and correct. I further agree to submit to questioning by the Boani or any 
member or agent thereof, O...'ld to subs12ntiate any statement to l.he Board or its agent as it deems necessary. 

Signature of Applica:~t 

Subscribed and swam to before me this ____ day of--------- 19 ___ . 

My Commis~ion expires ----------------~ 

SEAL Not2.ry Public 
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
Board of Audiology and Speech-Language Pathology 

Department of Health Professions 
6606 West Broad Street, 4th Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23230-1717 

ENDORSEI\lENT CERTIFICATION FORM 

{804) 652 9907 

Applicant please complete the top portion only and send form to the Audiology and Speech· 
Language Pathologv rel!ulatorv board in the state(s) from which you ~ne or have been licensed. 

Name: _________________________ :Soci~l Security Number _________ _ 

Address: ______________________________________ _ 

(City) ( St:>tc) (Zip Code) 

I hereby authorize the release of the following inforr:J:!tion to the Virginia I3o.:!rd of Audiology and Speech-Language 
Pathology and authorize the Baud to secure additional information concerning me or any statement in this 2pplication, 
from any person or source the Bo;:rd may require. I funher agree to submit to questioning by the Board or any member 
or agent thereof, and to substantiate any statement to the Board or ils agent as it deems necessary. 

Signature of applicant D:He 

Name of State: ________________ _ 

BOARD: Please provide information below and return to the Virginia Board of Audiology and Speech­
Langu2ge Pathology. 

Applicant's Full Name:_;--,--------------;::---,-----------:-:-;-:--::--,:-:-:-;---
L2n First Middle/Maiden 

Audiology license rmmber: ___________________ was gr2nted on, ______ _ 
Date 

Speech-Lw_suage Pathology License Nu:nber:: _________ was grmtcd on _________ _ 
Date 

Check whether this license '.>.'2S issued by reciFfOCity _____ , endorsement _____ or as a prir.nry 
(original) license ___ _ 

Status of License: [ 1 Curent ( ] ln2cti\·e [ 1 Expir;:tion Date _______ _ 
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Has this licensee ever been su~pended, revoked, or othenvise disciplined? Yes ____ No ___ . lf 
yes, please explain (end of form). Is there a probationary period in force? Yes No ___ . lf 
yes, please explain below. 

I certify that the informatioo conlained in this Endorsement Certification Form is 
true in eYery respect in accordance with the records on file with: 

(State and Official Name of Board) 

Exect~tive Offh:er 
SEAL 

Title 

Date 

EXPLANATIOI'\S: 
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
Board of Audiology and Speech~Language Pathology 

Department of Health Professions 
6605 \'/sst Broad Street, 4th Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23230-1717 

LICENSURE RE!l'<STATEl\IENT 
~h.ke check payable to TreasUier of Vl.rg1nl:~. Fe<:"S are non-rcfund~ble. 

For required documcntat1on SC<l page 3 

I. IDEm!.FYTI"\G Th'FOR.'\L\TIO::-\ 
Name in full (Plec.se print or type) 

L•rt Flnt 

Howe Add..n-~ CHy SL>!~ 

(804) 662 9907 

:O.Uddle/~bJdon 

Zlp Code 

Soci.:U SK:urity l\l$lbcr I "'''"'Birth A.rc.-. Codt .nd Home Tclcphon~ 

Vl'ork Td•pbo~e 

. II APPLICATIO>l' Th"FOR.\L\TI0:--1' (Check 2.11 that .:.pply) 

[ 1 Reinstatement of audiology licer.se (SIOO.OO per year since c:rpiration) 

[ ] Reinstatement of speech-h ... ;guage pathology license (SIOO.OO per year since c::rpir:ation plus back renewal ft('s) 

ill LICEi'\SliRE. ThTORMATI0:."1 

Former License N\!!Tlber: ----------------------

Date of Expiration: ----------:---------------

N2.I:'le at Tlme of Initiz.l Lice~--e: ------------------

IV UPDATE 

A. I have passed the N2.tio:1L.l Ex:: .. ;·;Jr:ation: 
D<.te Score 

B .. Please list all employmer,t si:1ce licep.sure expir<..tio:1 chte: 

I 

!.. Co~~~y. ------------------- Dcte of Er:-.p~oy;:Jer.t --------

Job Res)Xlr.sibilities: -----------------------------------
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2. Co~.Jl:o.:-.y: ---------------------­

Job Rcs~:-.slbilitics: 

3. Comp~y. ------------------------------------­
Job Res?(lnsibilities: 

4. Compzny: 

Job Respo!".sibilities: 

V IMP AIRED PRACTICE 

Date of Employment: ---------

Date of Emplo)ment: ---------

a.. Have you ever been comicted of any criminal offense other than minor traffic >iol;;.tior.s? Yes 

explain: 

No___ If yes, 

b. Have you ever hzd a license l<.pse, voluntarily surrendered, placed o:t probation, suspended, revoked. or haYe you been 
otherv:ise disciplined, or eYer lxen the subject of a.'l investigation by any Bo2rd tha reg-.J.lates audiology <-TJd 
speech-h .. 1'1guage pathology? Yes No _____ . If yes, please explain in det2.il at the end of this application. 

Vll AFFIDAVIT 

AFFIDAVIT 
(To be co:npleted by a Notary Public) 

Stale of, __________________________ _ County/Gty of: ______________ _ 

I, :<m requesting to be licensed to practice Audiology and 
Speech-Ungu<.ge Pathology in the Commonwealth of Virginia. I v.'ill at all times <.bide by the laws of the 
Commonwe:Jth. and Rules, Regulations and Bylaws of the Board of Audiology and Speech-Language Pa.lhology. 1 
underst:<nd th:=.t S!ibuld I '\iolate :<.ny of these Jaws or t.be rules and regulations, action w:ill be tz.ken aglinst my license 
by due process. 

I hereby certify that all statements contained in this application. and all representations and dc..'\lments presented by me 
in con:1ection v.ith this application are true and correct. I further agree to submit to questioning by the Board or 2-'lY 
member or 2.gent l.bereof, -and to subsi2.ntiate any statement to l.be Board or its agent as it deems necessazy. 

Si~ of Applicant 

Subscribed G.nd sworn to before me this ________ d.ay of--------------- 19 __ . 

My Commission expires -------~-----------------------

SEAL Notary Public 
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DEPARTMENT OF GAME AND INLAND FISHERIES 
(BOARD OF) 

NOTICE: The Board of Game and Inland Fisheries is 
exempt from the Administrative Process Act pursuant to § 
9-6.14:4.1 A of the Code of Virginia when promulgating 
wildlife management regulations, including the length of 
seasons, bag limits and methods of take set on the wildlife 
resources within the Commonwealth of Virginia; however, 
it is required by § 9-6.14:22 to publish all proposed and 
final regulations. 

Title Qf Regulations: VR 325·02. Game. 
VR 325·02·1. In General. 
VR 325-02·6. Deer. 

Statutory Authority: §§ 29.1·501 and 29.1·502 of the Code of 
Virginia. 

Effective Date: September 8, 1994. 

Summary: 

Summaries are not provided since, in most instances, 
the summary would be as long as or longer than the 
full text. 

VR 325-02. GAME. 

VR 325-02·1. In General. 

§ I. Hunting in the snow. 

Except as otherwise provided in VR 325-02-17, § 5, it 
shall be lawful to hunt game birds and game animals in 
the snow. 

§ 2. Hunting with crossbows, arrows to which any drug, 
chemical or toxic substance has been added or 
explosiveMhead arrows prohibited. 

A. Generally. 

Except as otherwise provided by law or regulation, it 
shall be unlawful to use a crossbow, arrows to which any 
drug, chemical or toxic substance has been added or 
arrows with explosive heads at any recorded or 
electrically amplified imitation of animal or bird calls or 
sounds; provided, that time for the purpose of hunting wild 
birds or wild animals. A crossbow is defined as any bow 
that can be mechanically held in the drawn or cocked 
position. 

B. Crossbows permitted for persons with permanent 
physical disabilities. 

( For the purposes of this section ] any person, [ lJP8fl 

reeeit'-ifl.g possessing ] a medical doctor's written statement 
based on a physical examination [ ;- -tmtJ ffl eaEB:fJfi:BB.ee 
with wffilefl effleffl1 as prtwided l>y t1te Departmeat ei 
Gitffle &Hd lHJef>d Fishe:ies, ] declaring [ that ] such 

Vol. 10, Issue 23 

Final Regulations 

person [ i>a¥iHg has a ] permanent physical [ disabilities 
wlHeh j}f'eVefil #>em disability that prohibits the person 
from holding the mass weight of a conventional bow and 
arrow at arm's length perpendicular to the body, or 
drawing or pulling or releasing the bow string of a 
conventional bow, and thus prevents that person ] from 
hunting with conventional archery equipment, may hunt 
with a crossbow on [ #tffl his ] own property during 
established special archery seasons. The doctor's written 
statement must be [ tm /Hei-r carried by the ] person while 
hunting [ and a copy of the doctor's written statement 
must be provided to the department on a form provided 
by the department, prior to hunting ] with a crossbow [ 
and the department's verification form shall be presented 
upon demand to any officer whose duty it is to enforce 
the game and inland fish laws ] . 

§ 3. Recorded wild animal or wild bird calls or sounds 
prohibited in taking game; coyotes and crows excepted. 

It shall be unlawful to take or attempt to take wild 
animals and wild birds, with the exception of coyotes and 
crows, by the use or aid of recorded animal or bird calls 
or sounds or electronic calls may be used on private lands 
for hunting coyotes with the written permission of the 
landowner. 

§ 4. Live birds or animals as decoys prohibited. 

Game birds and game animals shall not be taken by the 
use or aid of live birds or animals as decoys. 

§ 5. Poisoning of wild birds and wild animals prohibited; 
certain control programs excepted. 

It shall be unlawful to put out poison at any time for 
the purpose of killing any wild birds and wild animals, 
provided that rats and mice may be poisoned on one's 
own property. The provisions of this section shall not 
apply to the Commissioner of Agriculture and Consumer 
Services, or his representatives or cooperators, and those 
being assisted in a control program following procedures 
developed under the "Virginia Nuisance Bird Law." 

S 6. Hunting with dogs or possession of weapons in certain 
locations during closed season. 

A. National forests and departmentMowned lands. 

It shall be unlawful to have in possession a bow or a 
gun which is not unloaded and cased or dismantled, in the 
national forests and on departmentMowned lands and on 
lands managed by the department under cooperative 
agreement except during the period when it is lawful to 
take bear, deer, grouse, pheasant, quail, rabbit, raccoon, 
squirrel, turkey, waterfowl, in all counties west of the Blue 
Ridge Mountains and on national forest lands east of the 
Blue Ridge Mountains and migratory game birds in all 
counties east of the Blue Ridge Mountains. The provisions 
of this section shall not prohibit the conduct of any 
activities authorized by the board or the establishment and 
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operation of archery and shooting ranges on the 
above~mentioned lands. The use of firearms and bows in 
such ranges during the closed season period will be 
restricted to the area within established range boundaries. 
Such weapons shall be required to be unloaded and cased 
or dismantled in all areas other than the range 
boundaries. The use of firearms or bows during the closed 
hunting period in such ranges shall be restricted to target 
shooting only and no birds or animals shall be molested. 

B. Certain counties. 

Except as otherwise provided in VR 325-02-l, § 6-l, it 
shall be unlawful to have either a shotgun or a rifle in 
one's possession when accompanied by a dog in the 
daytime in the fields, forests or waters of the counties of 
Augusta, Clarke, Frederick, Page, Shenandoah and Warren, 
and in the counties east of the Blue Ridge Mountains, 
except Patrick, at any time except the periods prescribed 
by law to hunt game birds and animals. 

C. Meaning of "possession" of bow or firearm. 

For the purpose of this section the word "possession" 
shall include, but not be limited to, having any bow or 
firearm in or on one's person, vehicle or conveyance. 

D. It shall be unlawful to chase with a dog or train dogs 
on national forest lands or department-owned lands except 
during authorized hunting, chase, or training seasons that 
specifically permit these activities on these lands. 

E. It shall be unlawful to possess or transport a loaded 
gun in or on any vehicle at any time on national forest 
lands or department-owned lands. For the purpose of this 
section a "loaded gun" shall be defined as a firearm in 
which ammunition is chambered or loaded in the 
magazine or clip, when such magazine or slip is found 
engaged or partially engaged in a firearm. The definition 
of a loaded muzzleloading gun will include a gun which is 
capped or has a charged pan. 

§ 6-l. Open dog training season. 

A. Private lands and certain military areas. 

It shall be lawful to train dogs during daylight hours on 
rabbits and nonmigratory game birds on private lands, 
Fort A.P. Hill and Fort Pickett. Participants in this dog 
training season shall not have any weapons other than 
starter pistols in their possession, must comply with all 
regulations and laws pertaining to hunting and no game 
shall be taken; provided, however, that weapons may be in 
possession when training dogs on captive waterfowl and 
pigeons so that they may be immediately shot or 
recovered, except on Sunday. 

B. Designated portions of certain department-owned 
lands. 

It shall be lawful to train dogs on quail on designated 

portions of the Amelia Wildlife Management Area, Chester 
F. Phelps Wildlife Management Area, Chickahominy 
Wildlife Management Area and Dick Cross Wildlife 
Management Area from September l to the day prior to 
the opening date of the quail hunting season, both dates 
inclusive. Participants in this dog training season shall not 
have any weapons other than starter pistols in their 
possession, shall not release pen-raised birds, must comply 
with all regulations and laws pertaining to hunting and no 
game shall be taken. 

§ 7. Quantico Marine Reservation; training or running 
dogs. 

It shall be unlawful to train deer dogs at any time, or 
to train or run any dogs in the designated hunting areas 
between March I and September I, both dates inclusive, 
within the confines of Quantico Marine Reservation. 

§ 8. Quantico Marine Reservation; hunting after sunset 
prohibited. 

It shall be unlawful to hunt with any firearm or bow 
and arrow after sunset on any day within the confines of 
Quantico Marine Reservation. 

§ 9. Hog Island Wildlife Management Area; waterfowl 
refuge established. 

Hog Island, in Surry County, and all of the waters of the 
James River within a radius of 1,000 yards contiguous 
thereto is hereby declared a waterfowl refuge for the 
purpose of developing a feeding and resting area for such 
birds. 

s I 0. Hog Island Wildlife Management Area; hunting, 
trapping, etc., prohibited; exception. 

It shall be unlawful to hunt, shoot, kill, trap or molest 
or attempt to hunt, shoot, kill, trap or molest at any time 
any waterfowl including ducks, geese, brant, or coot, or to 
hunt, shoot, kill, trap, molest, or attempt to hunt, shoot, 
kill, trap, or molest any other birds or anim!ll~ on or in 
the area described in § 9. of this regulation, except at 
designated times from waterfowl blinds established by the 
department, provided that the department may, when 
deemed necessary for the better development of said 
refuge, remove by trapping or otherwise any birds or 
animals as would not be beneficial to the purposes for 
which such refuge is established. 

§ ll. Hog Island Wildlife Management Area; possession of 
loaded gun prohibited; exception. 

It shall be unlawful to have in possession at any time a 
gun which is not unloaded and cased or di~mantled on 
that portion of the Hog Island Wildlife Management Area 
bordering on the James River and lying north of the Surry 
Nuclear Power Plant, except while hunting deer or 
waterfowl in conformity with a special permit issued by 
the department. 
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§ 12. Disturbing waterfowl adjacent to Lands End 
Waterfowl Management Area. 

It shall be unlawful to take, attempt to take, pursue or 
disturb waterfowl within the public waters adjacent to the 
Lands End Waterfowl Management Area located in King 
George County for such distance offshore as may be 
established by the board and properly posted so as to give 
adequate notice to the public. 

§ 13. Hunting, etc., prohibited on Buggs Island and certain 
waters of the Gaston Reservoir. 

It shall be unlawful to hunt or have in one's possession 
a loaded gun on Buggs Island or to shoot over or have a 
loaded gun upon the water on Gaston Reservoir (Roanoke 
River) from a point beginning at High Rock and extending 
to the John H. Kerr Dam. 

§ 14. Trapping prohibited except by permit on certain 
wildlife management areas. 

It shall be unlawful to trap except by department permit 
on the Chicahominy, Barbour's Hill, Briery Creek, Hog 
Island, Lands End, Pocahontas-Trojan, Powhatan and Saxis 
Wildlife Management Areas. 

§ 15. Molesting, damaging, removing or disturbing traps 
prohibited; release of game from lawful traps prohibited. 

It shall be unlawful to willfully molest, damage or 
remove any trap, or any lawfully caught bird or animal 
therefrom, or in any way disturb traps or snares legally 
set by another person. 

§ 16. Marking of traps by person setting. 

Any person setting or in possession of a steel leghold or 
body gripping trap or snare shall have it marked by 
means of nonferrous metal tag bearing his name and 
address. This requirement shall not apply to landowners 
on their own land, nor to a bona fide tenant or lessee 
within the bounds of land rented or leased by him, nor to 
anyone transporting any such trap from its place of 
purchase. 

§ 17. Trapping fur-bearing animals damaging property 
during closed season. 

When fur-bearing animals are doing damage to crops or 
other property, the game warden of the county may issue 
a permit to the landowner or his lessee to trap such 
fur-bearing animals as are doing damage. Where such a 
permit is obtained by a landowner or a lessee, it shall be 
lawful during the closed season to trap such animals as 
are doing damage. 

§ 18. Restricted use of body-gripping traps in excess of 
7-1/2 inches. 

The use of body-gripping traps with a jaw spread in 
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excess of 7-1/2 inches is prohibited except when such 
traps are covered by water. 

* 19. Restricted use of above ground body-gripping traps in 
excess of five inches. 

It shall be unlawful to set above the ground any 
body-gripping trap with a jaw spread in excess of five 
inches baited with any lure or scent likely to attract a 
dog. 

§ 20. Restricted use of certain steel leg-hold traps. 

It shall be unlawful to set above the ground any steel 
leg-hold trap with teeth set upon the jaws or with a jaw 
spread exceeding 6-1/2 inches. 

§ 21. Use of deadfalls prohibited; restricted use of snares. 

It shall be unlawful to trap, or attempt to trap, on land 
any wild bird or wild animal with any deadfall or snare; 
provided, that snares with loops no more than 12 inches in 
diameter and with the top of the snare loop set not to 
exceed 12 inches above ground level may be used with 
the written permission of the landowner. 

§ 22. Dates for setting traps in water. 

It shall be unlawful to set any trap in water prior to 
December 1. 

§ 23. Animal population control. 

Whenever biological evidence suggests that populations 
of game animals may exceed or threaten to exceed the 
carrying capacity of a specified range, or whenever the 
health or general condition of a species, or the threat of 
human public health and safety indicates the need for 
population reduction, the director is authorized to issue 
special permits to obtain the desired reduction during the 
open season by licensed hunters on areas prescribed by 
wildlife biologists. Designated game species may be taken 
in excess of the general bag limits on special permits 
issued under this section under such conditions as may be 
prescribed by the director. 

§ 24. Wanton waste. 

No person shall kill or cripple and knowingly allow any 
nonmigratory game bird or game animal to be wasted 
without making a reasonable effort to retrieve the animal 
and retain it in their possession. Nothing in this section 
shall permit a person to trespass or violate any state, 
federal, city or county law, ordinance or regulation. 

§ 25. Sunday hunting on controlled shooting areas. 

A. Except as otherwise provided in the sections 
appearing in this regulation, it shall be lawful to hunt 
pen-raised game birds seven days a week as provided by § 
29.1-514. The length of the hunting season on such 
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preserves and the size of the bag limit shall be in 
accordance with rules of the board. For the purpose of 
this regulation, controlled shooting areas shall be defined 
as licensed shooting preserves. 

B. It shall be unlawful to hunt pen-raised game birds on 
Sunday on controlled shooting areas in those counties 
having a population of not less than 54,000, nor more than 
55,000, or in any county or city which prohibits Sunday 
operation by ordinance. 

VR 325·02·6. Deer. 

§ I. Open season; generally. 

Except as otherwise provided by local legislation and 
with the specific exceptions provided in the sections 
appearing in this regulation, it shall be lawful to hunt deer 
from the third Monday in November through the first 
Saturday in January, both dates inclusive. 

§ 2. Open season; cities and counties west of Blue Ridge 
Mountains and certain cities and counties or parts thereof 
east of Blue Ridge Mountains. 

It shall be lawful to hunt deer on the third Monday in 
November and for 11 consecutive hunting days following 
in the cities and counties west of the Blue Ridge 
Mountains (except on the Radford Army Ammunition Plant 
in Pulaski County), and in the counties (including cities 
within) of Amherst (west of U.S. Route 29), Bedford, 
Campbell (west of Norfolk Southern Railroad except in the 
City of Lynchburg), Franklin, Henry, Nelson (west of 
Route 151), Patrick and Pittsylvania (west of Norfolk 
Southern Railroad), and on the Chester F. Phelps and G. 
Richard Thompson Wildlife Management areas. 

§ 2·1. Open season; cities of Virginia Beach, Chesapeake 
and Suffolk east of Dismal Swamp Line. 

It shall be lawful to hunt deer from October I through 
November 30, both dates inclusive, in the cities of Virginia 
Beach, Chesapeake, and Suffolk east of the Dismal Swamp 
Line. 

§ 2·2. (Repealed.) 

§ 2·3. Open season; Back Bay National Wildlife Refuge and 
False Cape State Park. 

It shall be lawful to hunt deer on the Back Bay 
National Wildlife Refuge and on False Cape State Park 
from October I through October 31. 

§ 3. (Repealed.) 

§ 4. Bow and arrow hunting. 

A. Early special archery. 

It shall be lawful to hunt deer with bow and arrow 

from the first Saturday in October through the Saturday 
prior to the third Monday in November, both dates 
inclusive, except where there is a closed general hunting 
season on deer. 

B. Late special archery season west of Blue Ridge 
Mountains and certain cities and counties east of Blue 
Ridge Mountains. 

In addition to the season provided in subsection A of 
this section, it shall be lawful to hunt deer with bow and 
arrow from the Monday following the close of the general 
firearms season on deer west of the Blue Ridge Mountains 
through the first Saturday in January, both dates inclusive, 
in ali cities and counties west of the Blue Ridge Mountains 
and in the counties of (including cities within) Amherst 
(west of U.S, Route 29), Bedford, Campbell (west of 
Norfolk Southern Railroad), Franklin, Henry, Nelson (west 
of Route 151), Patrick and Pittsylvania (west of Norfolk 
Southern Railroad) and from December I through the first 
Saturday in January, both dates inclusive, in the cities of 
Chesapeake, Suffolk (east of the Dismal Swamp line) and 
Virginia Beach. 

C. Either-sex deer hunting days. 

Deer of either sex may be taken full season during the 
special archery seasons as provided in subsections A and 
B of this section. 

D. Carrying firearms prohibited. 

It shall be unlawful to carry firearms while hunting with 
bow and arrow during the special archery season. 

E. Requirements for bow and arrow. 

Arrows used for hunting big game must have a 
minimum width head of 7/8 of an inch and the bow used 
for such hunting must be capable of casting a broadhead 
arrow a minimum of 125 yards. 

F. Use of dogs prohibited during bow season. 

It shall be unlawful to use dogs when hunting with bow 
and arrow from the se€Bflti. first Saturday in October 
through the Saturday prior to the seeoo<l third Monday in 
November, both dates inclusive. 

G. Crossbows permitted for persons with permanent 
physical disabilities. 

As provided in § 2 B of VR 325-02-1, it shall be lawful 
for persons whose permanent physical disabilities prevent 
them from hunting with conventional archery equipment to 
hunt deer with a crossbow on their own property as 
provided in subsections A, B, C, D, and F of this section. 

§ 5. Muzzleloading gun hunting. 

A. Early special muzzleloading season. 

Virginia Register of Regulations 

5734 



It shall be lawful to hunt deer with muzzleloading guns 
from the first Monday in November through the Saturday 
prior to the third Monday in November, both dates 
inclusive, in all cities and counties where hunting with a 
rifle or muzzleloading gun is permitted, except in the 
cities of Chesapeake, Suffolk (east of the Dismal Swamp 
Line) and Virginia Beach. 

B. Late special muzzleloading season west of Blue Ridge 
Mountains and in certain cities and counties east of Blue 
Ridge Mountains. 

It shall be lawful to hunt deer with muzzleloading guns 
from the third Monday in December through the first 
Saturday in January, both dates inclusive, in all cities and 
counties west of the Blue Ridge Mountains, and east of the 
Blue Ridge Mountains in the counties of (including the 
cities within) Amherst (west of U.S. Route 29), Bedford, 
Campbell (west of Norfolk Southern Railroad), Franklin, 
Henry, Nelson (west of Route 151), Patrick and 
Pittsylvania (west of Norfolk Southern Railroad). 

C. Either-sex deer hunting days. 

Deer of either sex may be taken during the entire early 
special muzzleloading season in all cities and counties east 
of the Blue Ridge Mountains (except on national forest 
lands, state forest lands, state park lands, 
department-owned lands and Philpott Reservoir) and on 
the first Saturday only in all cities and counties west of 
the Blue Ridge (except Buchanan, Dickenson, Lee, Russell 
(except the Clinch Mountain Wildlife Management Area), 
Scott, Tazewell (except the Clinch Mountain Wildlife 
Management Area), Washington (except the Clinch 
Mountain Wildlife Management Area), Wise and on 
national forest lands in Page, Rockingham, Shenandoah, 
and Smyth) and on the Clinch Mountain Wildlife 
Management Area and east of the Blue Ridge Mountains 
on national forest lands, state forest lands, state park 
lands, department-owned lands and on Philpott Reservoir. 
It shall be lawful to hunt deer of either sex during the 
last six days of the late special muzzleloading season in all 
cities and counties west of the Blue Ridge Mountains 
(except Buchanan, Dickenson, Lee, Russell, Scott, Tazewell, 
Washington, Wise and on national forest lands in Smyth 
and on the Clinch Mountain Wildlife Management Area) 
and in the counties (including cities within) or portions of 
counties east of the Blue Ridge Mountains listed in 
subsection B of this section. Provided further it shall be 
lawful to hunt deer of either sex during the last day only 
of the last special muzzleloading season in the cities and 
counties within Dickenson (north of Pound River and west 
of Russell Fork River), Lee, Russell, Scott, Tazewell, 
Washington, Wise and on national forest lands in Smyth 
and on the Clinch Mountain Wildlife Management Area. 

D. Use of dogs prohibited. 

It shall be unlawful to hunt deer with dogs during any 
special season for hunting with muzzleloading guns. 
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E. Muzzleloading gun defined. 

A muzzleloading gun, for the purpose of this regulation, 
means a single shot flintlock or percussion weapon, 
excluding muzzleloading pistols, .45 caliber or larger, firing 
a single lead projectile or sabot (with a .38 caliber or 
larger nonjacketed lead projectile) of the same caliber 
loaded from the muzzle of the weapon and propelled by at 
least 50 grains of black powder (or black powder 
equivalent). Open or peep sights only (iron sights) are 
permitted during special muzzleloading seasons. 

F. Unlawful to have other firearms in possession. 

It shall be unlawful to have in immediate possession any 
firearm other than a muzzleloading gun while hunting with 
a muzzleloading gun in a special muzzleloading season. 

§ 6. Bag limit; generally; bonus deer permits and tag 
usage. 

The bag limit for deer statewide shall be two a day, 
three a license year, one of which must be antlerless. 
Antlerless deer may be taken only during designated 
either-sex deer hunting days during the special archery 
season, special muzzleloading seasons, and the general 
firearms season. Bonus deer permits shall be valid on 
private land in counties and cities where deer hunting is 
permitted and on Fort Belvior and other special deer 
problem and harvest management areas identified and so 
posted by the Department of Game and Inland Fisheries 
during the special archery, special muzzleloading gun and 
the general firearms seasons. Deer taken on bonus permits 
shall count against the daily bag limit but are in addition 
to the seasonal bag limit. 

§ 7. General firearms season either-sex deer hunting days; 
Saturday following third Monday in November and last two 
hunting days. 

During the general firearms season, deer of either sex 
may be taken on the Saturday immediately following the 
third Monday in November and the last two hunting days 
only, in the counties of (including cities within) Alleghany, 
Augusta, Bath, Bland, Carroll, Craig, Giles, Grayson, 
Highland, Montgomery, Page (except on national forest 
lands), Pulaski (except on the Radford Army Ammunition 
Plant), Roanoke, Rockbridge, Rockingham (except national 
forest lands), Shenandoah (except national forest lands), 
Smyth (except on national forest lands and Clinch 
Mountain Wildlife Management Area), Wythe and on 
Fairystone Farms Wildlife Management Area, Fairystone 
State Park, Philpott Reservoir, and Turkeycock Mountain 
Wildlife Management Area. 

§ 8. (Repealed) 

§ 9. (Repealed) 

§ 10. General firearms season either-sex deer hunting 
days; full season. 
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During the general firearms season, deer of either sex 
may be taken full season, in the counties of (including 
cities within) Amherst (west of U.S. Route 29, except on 
national forest lands), Bedford, Botetourt (except on 
national forest lands), Campbell (west of Norfolk Southern 
Railroad and in the City of Lynchburg only on private 
lands for which a special permit has been issued by the 
chief of police), Clarke, Fairfax (restricted to certain 
parcels of land by special permit), Floyd, Franklin (except 
Philpott Reservoir and Turkeycock Mountain Wildlife 
Management Area), Frederick (except on national forest 
lands), Henry (except on Fairystone Farms Wildlife 
Management Area, Fairystone State Park, Philpott 
Reservoir, and Turkeycock Mountain Wildlife Management 
Area), Loudoun, Nelson (west of Route 151, except on 
national forest lands), Patrick (except Fairystone Farms 
Wildlife Management Area, Fairystone State Park and 
Philpott Reservoir), Pittsylvania (west of Norfolk Southern 
Railroad), Warren (except on national forest lands) and on 
Back Bay National Wildlife Refuge, Fort A.P. Hill, Caledon 
Natural Area, Camp Peary, Cheatham Annex, Chincoteague 
National Wildlife Refuge, Dahlgren Surface Warfare Center 
Base, Dam Neck Amphibious Training Base, Dismal 
Swamp National Wildlife Refuge, Eastern Shore of Virginia 
National Wildlife Refuge, False Cape State Park, Fentress 
Naval Auxiliary Landing Field, Fisherman's Island National 
Wildlife Refuge, Fort Belvoir, Fort Eustis, Fort Lee, Fort 
Pickett, Harry Diamond Laboratory, Langley Air Force 
Base, Naval Air Station Oceana, Northwest Naval Security 
Group, Presquile National Wildlife Refuge, Quantico 
Marine Corps Reservation, Radford Army Ammunition 
Plant, Sky Meadows State Park, York River State Park, 
Yorktown Naval Weapons Station and Hog Island Wildlife 
Management Area (except on the Carlisle Tract). 

§ 11. General firearms season either-sex deer hunting 
days; first Saturday immediately following third Monday in 
November and last six days. 

During the general firearms season, deer of either sex 
may be taken the Saturday immediately following the third 
Monday in November in the counties (including cities 
within) of Lee, Russell, Scott, Tazewell, Washington, Wise, 
and on the Clinch Mountain Wildlife Management Area, 
Buckingham-Appomattox State Forest, Cumberland State 
Forest and Pocahontas State Forest, Prince Edward State 
Forest and on national forest lands in Frederick, Page, 
Shenandoah, Smyth, Rockingham and Warren counties. 

§ 12. (Repealed.) 

§ 13. General firearms season either-sex deer hunting 
days; first Saturday immediately following third Monday in 
November and last six days. 

During the general firearms season, deer of either sex 
may be taken on the first Saturday immediately following 
the third Monday in November and the last six hunting 
days, in the counties of (including cities within) Middlesex, 
Mathews, Warren and York (except on Camp Peary, 
Cheatham Annex and Naval Weapons Station) and on the 

Horsepen Lake Wildlife Management Area, James River 
Wildlife Management Area, Occoneechee State Park, 
Amelia Wildlife Management Area, Briery Creel< Wildlife 
Management Area, Dick Cross Wildlife Management Area, 
White Oak Mountain Wildlife Management Area and 
Powhatan Wildlife Management Area and on national 
forest lands in Amherst, Botetourt and Nelson counties ; 
and in the Cities of Chesapeai<e (except on Dismal Swamp 
National Wildlife Refuge, Fentress Naval Auxiliary Landing 
Field and on the Northwest Naval Security Group), and 
Virginia Beach (except on Back Bay National Wildlife 
Refuge, Dam Neck Amphibious Training Base, Naval Air 
Station Oceana and, False Cape State Park and Fentress 
Naval Auxiliary Landing Field), 

§ 14. General firearms season either-sex deer hunting 
days; first three Saturdays following third Monday in 
November and last 24 bUnting days. 

During the general firearms season, deer of either sex 
may be taken on the first three Saturdays immediately 
following the third Monday in November and on the last 
24 hunting days, in the counties of (including cities within) 
Accomack (except Chincoteague National Wildlife Refuge), 
Greensville, Isle of Wight, Northhampton (except Eastern 
Shore of Virginia National Wildlife Refuge and 
Fisherman's Island National Wildlife Refuge), Southampton, 
Surry (except Hog Island Wildlife Management Area), and 
Sussex, and in the City q( Suffolk (except on the Dismal 
Swamp Natiqnal Wildlife Refuge). 

§ 14.1. General firearms season either-sex deer hunting 
days; first two Saturdays immediately following third 
Monday in November and last 12 hunting days. 

During the general firearms season, deer of either sex 
may be taken on the first two Saturdays immediately 
following the third Monday in November and on the last 
12 hunting days, in the counties of (including the cities 
within) Albemarle, Amelia (except Amelia Wildlife 
Management Area), Amherst (east of U.S. Route 29), 
Appomattox (except Buckingham-Appomattox State Forest), 
Brunswick (except Fort Pickett), Buckingham (except on 
Buckingham-Appomattox State Forest and Horsepen Lake 
Wildlife Management Area, Campbell (east of Norfolk 
Southern Railroad except City of Lynchburg), Caroline 
(except Fort A.P. Hill), Charles City (except on 
Chickahominy Wildlife Management Area), Charlotte, 
Chesterfield (except Pocahontas State Forest and Presquile 
National Wildlife Refuge), Culpeper (except on Chester F. 
Phelps Wildlife Management Area), Cumberland (except on 
Cumberland State Forest), Dinwiddie (except on Fort 
Pickett), Essex, Fauquier (except on the G. Richard 
Thompson and Chester F. Phelps Wildlife Management 
Areas, Sky Meadows State Park and Quantico Marine 
Reservation), Fluvanna, Gloucester, Goochland, Greene, 
Halifax, H~mpton (except on Langley Air Force Base), 
Hanover, Henrico (except Presquile National Wildlife 
Refuge), James City (except York River State Park), King 
and Queen, King George (except Caledon Natural Area 
and Dahlgren Surface Warfare Center), King William, 
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Lancaster, Louisa, Lunenburg, Madison, Mecklenburg 
(except Dick Cross Wildlife Management Area, 
Occoneechee State Park), Nelson (east of Route 151 except 
James River Wildlife Management Area), New Kent, 
Newport News (except Fort Eustis), Northumberland, 
Nottoway (except on Fort Pickett), Orange, Pittsylvania 
(east of Norfolk Southern Railroad except White Oak 
Mountain Wildlife Management Area), Powhatan (except 
Powhatan Wildlife Management Area), Prince Edward 
(except on Prince Edward State Forest and Briery Creek 
Wildlife Management Area), Prince George (except on 
Fort Lee), Prince William (except on Harry Diamond 
Laboratory and Quantico Marine Reservation), 
Rappahannock, Richmond, Spotsylvania, Stafford (except on 
Quantico Marine Reservation), Westmoreland, and York 
(except on Camp Peary, Cheatham Annex and Yorktown 
Naval Weapons Station). 

§ 14.2. General firearms season; bucks only. 

During the general firearms season, only deer with 
antlers visible above the hairline may be taken in that 
portion of Dickenson County lying north of the Pound 
River and west of the Russell Fork River and on the 
Chester F. Phelps Wildlife Management Area, G. Richard 
Thompson Wildlife Management Area, Chickahominy 
Wildlife Management Area and on the Carlisle Tract of 
Hog Island Wildlife Management Area. 

§ 15. Tagging deer and obtaining official game tag; by 
licensee. 

A. Detaching game tag from license. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to detach the game 
tag from any license to hunt deer prior to the killing of a 
deer and tagging same. Any detached tag shall be subject 
to confiscation by any representative of the department. 

B. Immediate tagging of carcass. 

Any person killing a deer shall, before removing the 
carcass from the place of kill, detach from his special 
license for hunting deer the appropriate tag and shall 
attach such tag to the carcass of his kill. Place of kill 
shall be defined as the location where the animal is first 
reduced to possession. 

C. Presentation of tagging carcass for checking; obtaining 
official game check card. 

Upon killing a deer and tagging same, as provided 
above, the licensee shall, upon vehicle transport of the 
carcass or at the conclusion of legal hunting hours, 
whichever occurs first, and without unnecessary delay, 
present the tagged carcass to an authorized checking 
station or to an appropriate representative of the 
department in the county or adjoining county in which the 
deer was killed. At such time, the tag attached to the 
carcass shall be exchanged for an official game check 
card, which shall be securely attached to the carcass and 
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remain attached until the carcass is processed. 

D. Destruction of deer prior to tagging; forfeiture of 
untagged deer. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to destroy the 
identity (sex) of any deer killed unless and until tagged 
and checked as required by this section. Any deer not 
tagged as required by this section found in the possession 
of any person shall be forfeited to the Commonwealth to 
be disposed of as provided by law. 

§ 16. Tagging deer and obtaining official game tag; by 
person exempt from license requirement. 

Upon killing a deer, any person exempt from license 
requirement as prescribed in § 29.1-301 of the Code of 
Virginia, or issued a complimentary license as prescribed 
in § 29.1-339, or the holder of a permanent license issued 
pursuant to ~ 29.1-301 E, shall, upon vehicle transport of 
the carcass or at the conclusion of legal hunting hours, 
whichever occurs first, and without unnecessary delay, 
present the carcass to an authorized checking station or to 
any appropriate representative of the department in the 
county or adjoining county in which the deer was killed. 
At such time, the person shall be given an official game 
check card furnished by the department, which shall be 
securely attached to the carcass and remain attached until 
the carcass is processed. 

§ 17. Hunting prohibited in certain counties. 

It shall be unlawful to hunt deer at any time in the 
counties of Arlington, Buchallan and in that portion of 
Dickenson County south of the Pound River and east of 
the Russell Fork River. 

§ 18. Hunting with dogs prohibited in certain counties and 
areas. 

A. Generally. 

It shall be unlawful to hunt deer with dogs in the 
counties of Amherst (west of U.S. Route 29), Bedford, 
Campbell (west of Norfolk Southern Railroad, and in the 
City of Lynchburg), Fairfax, Franklin, Henry, Loudoun, 
Nelson (west of Route 151), Northampton, Patrick and 
Pittsylvania (west of Norfolk Southern Railroad); and on 
the Amelia, Chester F. Phelps, G. Richard Thompson and 
Pettigrew Wildlife Management Areas. 

B. Special provision for Greene and Madison counties. 

It shall be unlawful to hunt deer with dogs during the 
first 12 hunting days in the counties of Greene and 
Madison. 

§ 19. Hunting with dogs or drives prohibited on Quantico 
Marine Reservation. 

It shall be unlawful to use dogs or to organize drives for 
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the purpose of hunting deer within the confines of 
Quantico Marine Reservation. 

§ 20. Sale of hides. 

It shall be lawful to sell hides from any legally taken 
deer. 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-1136; Filed July 20, 1994, 11:53 a.m. 

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES 
(BOARD OF) 

REGISTRAR'S NOTICE: The following regulatory action is 
exempt from the Administrative Process Act in accordance 
with § 9-6.14:4.1 C 4 (b) of the Code of Virginia, which 
excludes regulations that are required by order of any 
state or federal court of competent jurisdiction where no 
agency discretion is involved. The Department of Medical 
Assistance Services will receive, consider and respond to 
petitions by any interested person at any time with respect 
to reconsideration or revision. 

Title Qf Regulation: VR 460-04-8.7. Client Appeals 
Regulations. 

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia. 

Effective Date: October 1, 1994. 

Summary: 

The purpose of this action is to amend the 
Commonwealth's regulations concerning Client Appeals 
(VR 460-04-8. 7) due to the order of the U.S. District 
Court (Civil Action No. 92-00072) for the Western 
District of Virginia. 

DMAS is required by Title 42 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 431 Subpart E to provide to 
applicants for and recipients of medical assistance the 
right to appeal denied eligibility and denied services. 
DMAS fulfills this requirement through its process of 
client appeals, as contained in its regulations Client 
Appeals (VR 460-04-8. 7) as administered by the 
Division of Client Appeals (via hearing officers) and 
the Medical Assistance Appeals Panel (MAAP). 

The present DMAS administrative appeals process 
involves two levels. The first level permits the client 
who is dissatisfied with the agency decision denying or 
reducing eligibility or services, to appeal the decision 
to the department. A hearing officer conducts a fair 
hearing and issues a binding decision. Hearing officers 
are empowered to consider all issues that may be 
raised in the course of an appeal - factual, procedural, 
and legal. If a hearing officer determines that an 
eligibility policy is in clear conflict with state or 
federal law and that the law establishes a clear 
course of conduct which must be followed, the officer 

must apply the controlling Jaw to the case under 
review without regard to policy conflicts. 

The second level of appeal is the MAAP consisting of 
three administrative law judges. This affords· an 
additional level of appeal that other public assistance 
clients do not have. 

In 1989, the U.S. District Court for the Western 
District of Virginia decided in Mowbray v. Kozlowski 
that Virginia was not applying the contiguous property 
rules correctly. As part of the decision, the court 
ordered DMAS' hearing officers to allow appellants to 
present argument on issues of state or federal law 
without undue interference. The decision concerning 
contiguous property was appealed to the Court of 
Appeals for the Fourth Circuit and subsequently 
overturned. However, the Issue of hearing officers 
determining questions of law was not appealed. 

Since the 1989 decision in the Mowbray v. Kozlowski 
case, hearing officers have been applying the 
controlling law when the policy is in clear conflict 
with the Jaw. 

Since this action only provides for the addition of 
clarifying language to the existing regulations and no 
substantive policy changes are being made, there are 
no advanta/les or qisadvantages to either applicants for 
or recipl~nts ot medical assistance services, nor to 
providew of those services. 

Since this action is a clarification of existing policy, 
there is no fiscal or budget impact. Since the clarified 
policy applies statewide, there are no specific locality 
impacts. 

Agency Contact: Copies of the regulation may be obtained 
from Victoria Simmons, Department of Medical Assistance 
Services, 600 East Broad Street, Richmond, VA 23219, 
telephone (804) 786-7933. 

VR 460-0H.7. Client Appeals Regulations. 

§ 1.1. Definitions. 

PART I. 
GENERAL. 

Article l. 
Definitions. 

The following words and terms, when used in these 
regulations, shall have the following meanings unless the 
context clearly indicates otherwise: 

"Agency" means: 

l. An agency which, on the department's behalf, 
makes determinations regarding applications for 
benefits provided by the department; and 
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2. The department itself. 

"Appellant" means an applicant for or recipient of 
medical assistance benefits from the department who seeks 
to challenge an adverse action regarding his benefits or 
his eligibility for benefits. 

"Department" means the Department of Medical 
Assistance Services. 

"Division" means the department's Division of Client 
Appeals. 

"Final decision" means a written determination by a 
hearing officer which is binding on the department, unless 
modified on appeal or review. 

"Hearing" means the evidentiary hearing described in 
this regulation, conducted by a hearing officer employed 
by the department. 

"Panel" means the Medical Assistance Appeals Panel. 

"Representative" means an attorney or agent who has 
been authorized to represent an appellant pursuant to 
these regulations. 

Article 2. 
The Appeal System. 

§ 1.2. Division of Client Appeals. 

The division maintains an appeals system for clients to 
challenge adverse actions regarding services and benefits 
provided by the department: 

1. Hearing officer review. Appellants shall be entitled 
to a hearing before a hearing officer. See Part II of 
these regulations. 

2. Medical Assistance Appeals Panel Review. An 
appellant who believes the hearing officer's decision is 
incorrect may, at his option, appeal to the Medical 
Assistance Appeals Panel for review. See Part III of 
these regulations. 

§ 1.3. Time limitation for appeals. 

Hearing officer appeals shall be scheduled and 
conducted to comply with the 90-day time limitation 
imposed by federal regulations, unless waived in writing 
by the appellant or the appellant's representative. Any 
further review by the panel shall not be considered 
subject to the 90-day limitation. 

§ 1.4. Judicial review. 

An appellant who believes a final decision as defined 
herein or a decision of the Medical Assistance Appeals 
Panel is incorrect may seek judicial review of either 
pursuant to § 9-6.14:1 et seq. of the Code of Virginia and 
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Part 2A, Rules of the Virginia Supreme Court. 

Article 3. 
Representation. 

§ 1.5. Right to representation. 

An appellant shall have the full right to representation 
by an attorney or agent at all stages of appeal. 

§ 1.6. Designation of representative. 

A. Agents. 

An agent must be designated in a written statement 
which is signed by the appellant. If the appellant is 
physically or mentally unable to sign a written statement, 
the division may allow a family member or other person 
acting on appellant's behalf to represent the appellant. 

B. Attorneys. 

If the agent is an attorney or a paralegal working under 
the supervision of an attorney, a signed statement by such 
attorney or paralegal that he is authorized to represent the 
appellant prepared on the attorney's letterhead, shall be 
accepted as a designation of representation. 

C. Substitution. 

A member of the same law firm as a designated 
representative shall have the same rights as the designated 
representative. 

D. Revocation. 

An appellant may revoke representation by another 
person at any time. The revocation is effective when the 
department receives written notice from the appellant. 

Article 4. 
Notice and Appeal Rights. 

§ 1. 7. Notification of adverse agency action. 

The agency which makes an initial adverse 
determination shall inform the applicant or recipient in a 
written notice: 

I. What action the agency intends to take; 

2. The reasons for the intended action; 

3. The specific regulations that support or the change 
in law that requires the action; 

4. The right to request an evidentiary hearing, and the 
methods and time limits for doing so; 

5. The circumstances under which benefits are 
continued if a hearing is requested (see § 1.10); and 
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6. The right to representation. 

§ 1.8. Advance notice. 

When the agency plans to terminate, suspend or reduce 
an individual's eligibility or covered services, the agency 
must mail the notice described in § 1.7 at least 10 days 
before the date of action, except as otherwise permitted 
by federal law. 

§ 1.9. Right to appeal. 

An individual has the right to file an appeal when: 

l. His application for benefits administered by the 
department is denied. However, if an application for 
State Local Hospitalization coverage is denied because 
of a lack of funds which is confirmed by the hearing 
officer, there is no right to appeal. 

2. The agency takes action or proposes to take action 
which will adversely affect, reduce, or terminate his 
receipt of benefits; 

3. His request for a particular medical service is 
denied, in whole or in part; 

4. The agency does not act with reasonable 
promptness on his application for benefits or request 
for a particular medical service; or 

5. Federal regulations require that a fair hearing be 
granted. 

§ 1.10. Maintaining services. 

A. If the agency mails the 10-day notice described in § 
1.8 and the appellant files his Request for Appeal before 
the date of action, his services shall not be terminated or 
reduced until the hearing officer issues a final decision 
unless it is determined at the hearing that the sole issue is 
one of federal or state law or policy and the appellant is 
promptly informed in writing that services are to be 
terminated or reduced pending the final decision. 

B. If the agency's action is sustained on appeal, the 
agency may institute any available recovery procedures 
against the appellant to recoup the cost of any services 
furnished to the appellant, to the extent they were 
furnished solely by reason of § 1.10 A of these regulations. 

Article 5. 
Miscellaneous Provisions. 

§ 1.11. Division records. 

A. Removal of records. 

No person shall take from the division's custody any 
original record, paper, document, or exhibit which has 
been certified to the division except as the Director of 

Client Appeals authorizes, or as may be necessary to 
furnish or transmit copies for other official purposes. 

B. Confidentiality of records. 

Information in the appellant's record can be released 
only to a properly designated representative or other 
person(s) named in a release of information authorization 
signed by an appellant, his guardian or power of attorney. 

C. Fees. 

The fees to be charged and collected for any copies will 
be in accordance with Virginia's Freedom of Information 
Act or other controlling law. 

D. Waiver of fees. 

When copies are requested from records in the division's 
custody, the required fee shall be waived if the copies are 
requested in connection with an individual's own review or 
appeal. 

§ 1.12. Computation of time limits. 

A. Acceptance of postmark date. 

Documents postmarked O!l or before a time limit's 
expiration shall be &ecepted as timely. 

B. Computation of time limit. 

In computing any time period under these regulations, 
the day of the act or event from which the designated 
period of time begins to run shall be excluded and the 
last day included. If a time limit would expire on a 
Saturday, Sunday, or state or federal holiday, it shall be 
extended until the next regular business day. 

PART II. 
HEARING OFFICER REVIEW. 

Article l. 
Commencement of Appeals. 

§ 2.1. Request for appeal. 

Any written communication from an appellant or his 
representative which clearly expresses that he wants to 
present his case to a reviewing authority shall constitute 
an appeal request. This communication should explain the 
basis for the appeal. 

§ 2.2. Place of filing a Request for Appeal. 

A Request for Appeal shall be delivered or mailed to 
the Division of Client Appeals. 

§ 2.3. Filing date. 

The date of filing shall be the date the request is 
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postmarked, if mailed, or the date the request is received 
by the department, if delivered other than by maiL 

§ 2.4. Time limit for filing. 

A Request for Appeal shall be filed within 30 days of 
the appellant's receipt of the notice of an adverse action 
described in § 1.7 of these regulations. It is presumed that 
appellants will receive the notice three days after the 
agency mails the notice. A Request for Appeal on the 
grounds that an agency has not acted with reasonable 
promptness may be filed at any time until the agency has 
acted. 

§ 2.5. Extension of time for filing. 

An extension of the 30-day period for filing a Request 
for Appeal may be granted for good cause shown. 
Examples of good cause include, but are not limited to, 
the following situations: 

l. Appellant Was seriously ill and was prevented from 
contacting the division; 

2. Appellant did not receive notice of the agency's 
decision; 

3. Appellant sent the Request for Appeal to another 
government agency in good faith within the time limit; 

4. Unusual or unavoidable circumstances prevented a 
timely filing. 

§ 2.6. Provision of information. 

Upon receipt of a Request for Appeal, the division shall 
notify the appellant and his representative of general 
appeals procedures and shall provide further detailed 
information upon request. 

Article 2. 
Prehearing Review. 

§ 2.7. Review. 

A hearing officer shall initially review an assigned case 
for compliance with prehearing requirements and may 
communicate with the appellant or his representative and 
the agency to confirm the agency action and schedule the 
hearing. 

§ 2.8. Medical Assessment. 

A. A hearing officer may order an independent medical 
assessment when: 

1. The hearing involves medical issues such as a 
diagnosis, an examining physician's report, or a 
medical review team's decision; and 

2. The hearing officer determines it necessary to have 
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an assessment by someone other than the person or 
team who made the original decision, for example, to 
obtain more detailed medical findings about the 
impairments, to obtain technical or specialized medical 
information, or to resolve conflicts or differences in 
medical findings or assessments in the existing 
evidence. 

B. A medical assessment ordered pursuant to this 
regulation shall be at the d~partment's expense and shall 
become part of the record. 

§ 2.9. Prehearing action. 

A. Invalidation. 

A Request for Appeal may be invalidated if it was not 
filed within the time limit imposed by § 2.4 or extended 
pursuant to ~ 2.5. 

1. If the hearing officer determines that the appellant 
has failed to file a timely appeal, the hearing officer 
shall notify the appellant and the appellant's 
representative of the opportunity to show good cause 
for the late appeal. 

2. If a factual dispute exists about the timeliness of 
the Request for Appeal, the hearing officer shall 
receive evidence or testimony on those matters before 
taking final action. 

3. If the individual filing the appeal is not the 
appellant or an authorized representative of the 
appellant under the provisions of § 1.6 A, the appeal 
shall be determined invalid. 

4. If a Request for Appeal is invalidated, the hearing 
officer shall issue a decision pursuant to § 2.24. 

B. Administrative dismissal. 

A Request for Appeal may be administratively dismissed 
without a hearing if the appellant has no right to appeal 
under § 1.9 of these regulations. 

I. If the hearing officer determines that the appellant 
does not have the right to an appeal, the hearing 
officer shall issue a final decision dismissing the 
appeal and notify the appellant and appellant's 
representative of the opportunity to appeal to the 
Medical Assistance Appeals Panel or seek judicial 
review. 

2. If a Request for Appeal is administratively 
dismissed, the hearing officer shall issue a decision 
pursuant to ~ 2.24. 

C. Judgment on the record. 

If the hearing officer determines from the record that 
the agency's determination was clearly in error and that 
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the case should be resolved in the appellant's favor, he 
shall issue a decision pursuant to § 2.24. 

D. Remand to agency. 

If the hearing officer determines from the record that 
the case might be resolved in the appellant's favor if the 
agency obtains and develops additional information, 
documentation, or verification, he may remand the case to 
the agency for action consistent with the hearing officer's 
written instructions. The remand order shall be sent to the 
appellant and any representative. 

E. Removal to the Medical Assistance Appeals Panel. 

In cases where the sole issue is one of state or federal 
law or policy, the case may, with the appellant's approval, 
be removed to the Medical Assistance Appeals Panel. The 
panel shall render a decision on the merits of the appeal 
solely upon the facts as stipulated to by the appellant and 
the hearing officer. Otherwise, said cases shall proceed 
according to the provisions of Part III of these regulations. 

I. Before such removal, the hearing officer will send 
the appellant a statement of undisputed facts and 
identify the legal questions involved. 

2. If the appellant accepts the hearing officer's 
statement of facts and legal questions involved, he 
may agree to removal to the panel. 

3. If appellant disputes any facts, wants to present 
additional evidence, or desires a face-to-face hearing, 
removal is inappropriate, and a hearing must be held. 

Article 3. 
Hearing. 

§ 2.10. Evidentiary hearings. 

A hearing officer shall review all agency determinations 
which are properly appealed; conduct informal, 
fact-gathering hearings; evaluate evidence presented; and 
issue a written final decision sustaining, reversing, or 
remanding each case to the agency for further 
proceedings. 

§ 2.11. Scheduling. 

To the extent possible, hearings will be scheduled at the 
appellant's convenience, with consideration of the travel 
distance required. 

§ 2.11:1. Rescheduling. 

A hearing shall be rescheduled at the claimant's request 
no more than twice unless compelling reasons exist. 

§ 2.12. Notification. 

When a hearing is scheduled, the appellant and his 

representative shall be notified in writing of its time and 
place. 

§ 2.13. Postponement. 

A hearing may be postponed for good cause shown. No 
postponement will be granted beyond 30 days after the 
date of the Request for Appeal was filed unless the 
appellant or his representative waives in writing the 90-day 
deadline for the final decision. 

§ 2.14. Location. 

The hearing location shall be determined by the 
division. If for medical reasons the appellant is unable to 
travel, the hearing rnay be conducted at his residence. 

The agency may respond to a series of inqividual 
requests for hearings by conducting a single group hearing: 

1. Only in cases in which the sole issue involved is 
one of federal or state law or policy; and 

2. Each person must be permitted to present his own 
case or be represented by his authorized 
representative. 

§ 2.15. Client access to records. 

Upon the request of the appellant or his representative, 
at a reasonable time before the date of the hearing, as 
well a$ during t)le hearing, the appellant and his 
representative may examine the content of appellant's case 
file and all documents and records the agency will rely on 
at the hearing. 

§ 2.16. Subpoenas. 

Appellants who require the attendance of witnesses or 
the production of records, memoranda, papers, and other 
documents at the hearing may request issuance of a 
subpoena in writing. The request must be received by the 
division at Iea~t five business days before the hearing is 
scheduled. Such request must include the witness' name, 
home and work address, county or city of work and 
residence, and idep.tify the sheriff's office which will serve 
the subpoena. 

§ 2.17. Role of the hearing officer. 

The hearing officer shall conduct the hearing, decide on 
questions of evidence fHHI. , procedure and law , question 
witnesses, and assure that the hearing remains relevant to 
the issue or issues being appealed. The hearing officer 
shall control the conduct of the hearing and decide who 
may participate in or observe the hearing. 

§ 2.18. Informality of hearings. 

Hearings shall be conducted in an informal, 
nonadversarial manner. The appellant or his representative 
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has the right to bring witnesses, establish all pertinent 
facts and circumstances; present an argument without 
undue interference, and question or refute the testimony 
or evidence, including the opportunity to confront and 
cross-examine adverse witnesses. 

§ 2.19. Evidence. 

The rules of evidence shall not strictly apply. All 
relevant, nonrepetitive evidence may be admitted, but the 
probative weight of the evidence will be evaluated by the 
hearing officer. 

§ 2.20. Record of hearing. 

All hearings shall be recorded either by court reporter, 
tape recorders, or whatever other means the agency 
deems appropriate. All exhibits accepted or rejected shall 
become part of the hearing record. 

§ 2.21. Oath or affirmation. 

All witnesses shall testify under oath which shall be 
administered by the court reporter or the hearing officer, 
as delegated by the department's director. 

§ 2.22. Dismissal of Request for Appeal. 

Request for Appeal may be dismissed if: 

1. The appellant or his representative withdraws the 
request in writing; or 

2. The appellant or his representative fails to appear 
at the scheduled hearing without good cause, and does 
not reply within 10 days after the hearing officer 
mails an inquiry as to whether the appellant wishes 
further action on the appeal. 

§ 2.23. Post-hearing supplementation of the record. 

A. Medical assessment. 

Following a hearing, a hearing officer may order an 
independent medical assessment as described in § 2.8. 

B. Additional evidence. 

The hearing officer may leave the hearing record 
opened for a specified period of time in order to receive 
additional evidence or argument from the appellant. If the 
record indicates that evidence exists which was not 
presented by either party, with the appellant's permission, 
the hearing officer may attempt to secure such evidence. 

C. Appellant's right to reconvene hearing or comment. 

If the hearing officer receives additional evidence from 
a person other than the appellant or his representative, 
the hearing officer shall send a copy of such evidence to 
the appellant and his representative and give the appellant 
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the opportunity to comment on such evidence in writing or 
to reconvene the hearing to respond to such evidence. 

D. Any additional evidence received will become a part 
of the hearing record, but the hearing officer must 
determine whether or not it will be used in making the 
decision. 

§ 2.24. Final decision. 

After conducting the hearing and- , reviewing the record 
and deciding questions of law , the hearing officer shall 
issue a written final decision which either sustains or 
reverses the agency action or remands the case to the 
agency for further action consistent with his written 
instructions. The hearing officer's final decision shall be 
considered as the agency's final administrative action 
pursuant to 42 CFR, 431.244(f). The final decision shall 
include: 

1. A description of the procedural development of the 
case; 

2. Findings of fact which identify supporting evidence; 

3. Citations to supporting regulations and law; 

4. Conclusions and reasoning; 

5. The specific action to be taken by the agency to 
implement the decision; and 

6. Notice of further appeal rights to the Medical 
Assistance Appeals Panel or state ·court. This notice 
shall include information about the right to 
representation, time limits for requesting review, the 
right to submit written argument and the right to 
present oral argument. 

7. The notice shall state that a final decision may be 
appealed directly to circuit court as provided in § 
9-6.14:16 B of the Code of Virginia and § 1.4 of these 
regulations. If an optional appeal is taken to the 
panel, judicial review shall not be available until the 
panel has acted under Part III. 

§ 2.25. Transmission of the hearing record. 

The hearing record shall be forwarded to the appellant 
and his representative with the final decision. 

PART Ill. 
MEDICAL ASSISTANCE APPEALS PANEL. 

Article I. 
General. 

§ 3.1. Composition of the Medical Assistance Appeals 
Panel. 

The panel shall consist of a senior administrative law 
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judge and two administrative law judges who are 
appointed by the director of the department and shall 
serve at his pleasure. 

§ 3.2. Function of the panel. 

The panel shall review and decide appeals from hearing 
officers' decisions by evaluating the evidence in the record 
and any written and oral argument submitted, consistent 
with relevant federal and state law, regulations, and 
policy. 

Article 2. 
Commencement of Panel Review. 

§ 3.3. Commencing panel review. 

An appeal is commenced when the appellant or his 
representative files a Request for Review, or another 
written statement indicating the appellant's belief that the 
hearing officer's decision is incorrect which includes a 
written acknowledgement that the 90~day requirement set 
forth in 42 C.F.R. § 431.244(1) does not apply. 

§ 3.4. Place of filing Request for Review and 
Acknowledgement. 

The Request for Review and Acknowledgement shall be 
filed with the Medical Assistance Appeals Panel, 
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad 
St. Richmond, VA 23219. 

§ 3.5. Time limit for filing. 

A Request for Review shall be filed within 12 days from 
the date the hearing officer's decision is mailed. 

§ 3.6. Extension of time for filing. 

An extension of the 12-day period for filing a Request 
for Review may be granted for good cause shown. A 
request for an extension shall be in writing and filed with 
the panel. The request shall include a complete 
explanation of the reasons that an extension is needed. 
Good cause includes unusual or unavoidable circumstances 
which prevented a timely appeal (see § 2.5). 

§ 3. 7. Dismissal. 

A. A Request for Review shall be dismissed if an 
Acknowledgement is not executed or if the request was 
not filed within the time limit imposed by § 3.5 or 
extended pursuant to § 3.6. If a factual dispute exists 
about the timeliness of the Request for Review and 
Acknowledgement, the panel shall receive evidence or 
testimony on those matters before taking final action. 

B. A dismissal shall constitute the panel's final 
disposition of the appeal. 

C. Judgment on the record. 

If the panel determines from the evidence in the record 
that the hearing officer's decision was clearly in error and 
that the case should be resolved in the appellant's favor, 
the panel may issue a final decision without receiving 
written or oral argument from appellant. 

Article 3. 
Written Argument. 

§ 3.8. Right to present written argument. 

An appellant may file written argument to present 
reasons why the hearing officer's decision is incorrect. 

§ 3,9. Time limitation, 

Written argurnent by the appellant, if any, shall be filed 
with the panel within 10 days after the Request for 
Review is filed. 

§ 3.10. Extension. 

An extension of the time limit for filing written 
argument may be granted for good cause shown. 

§ 3.11. Evidence. 

No additional evidence shall be accepted with the 
written argument unless it is relevant, nonrepetitive and 
not reasonablY available at the hearing level tnmugh the 
exercise of due dili~ence. 

Article 4. 
Oral Argument. 

§ 3.12. Requesting oral argument. 

An appellant or his representative may ask for a 
hearing to present oral argument with the Request for 
Review. 

§ 3.13. Place of hearing. 

Hearings sh&U be held at the Department of Medical 
Assistance Servjces' central office in Richmond, 600 E. 
Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, Virginia 23219. 

§ 3.14. Notice of hearing. 

A. Scheduling the hearing. 

Unless judgment on the record is issued pursuant to § 
3. 7 C, a hearing will be set, and, to the extent possible, 
scheduled at the appellant's convenience. 

B. Notification. 

As soon as a bearing is scheduled, the person requesting 
it will be notified at least seven days in advance. 

C. Postponement. 
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A hearing may be postponed by the appellant or his 
representative for good cause shown. 

§ 3.15. Function of the senior administrative law judge. 

The senior administrative law judge shall be the 
presiding member of the panel and shall issue all 
decisions on behalf of the panel. If the senior 
administrative law judge is absent, the director shall 
appoint one of the administrative law judges to assume the 
duties of the senior administrative law judge. 

§ 3.16. Recorded hearing. 

The hearing shall be tape recorded. 

§ 3.17. Evidence. 

No additional evidence will be accepted at the oral 
argument unless it meets the requirements of § 3.11 and is 
presented to the panel in advance of the hearing. 

§ 3.18. Disposition. 

A. Vote. 

Article 5. 
Disposition. 

The panel decision is made by majority vote, and the 
decision may be to sustain, reverse or remand the hearing 
officer's decision. 

B. Summary affirmance. 

By majority vote the panel may summarily affirm the 
hearing officer's decision by adopting the hearing officer's 
decision as its own. 

C. Content of decisions. 

Decisions shall be in writing and shall consist of an 
opinion stating facts with supporting evidence, reasons and 
conclusions, citations to supporting law and regulations, 
and an order describing the specific action to be taken to 
implement the decision. Information about further appeal 
rights will also be provided. 

D. Remand to hearing officer. 

A remand order shall clearly state the panel's 
instructions for further development of the evidence or the 
legal or policy interpretation to be applied to the facts on 
record. 

E. The panel decision shall be sent to appellant and his 
representative and the agency. This shall constitute the 
panel's final disposition of the appeal. 

Article 6. 
Reconsideration. 
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S 3.19. When reconsideration is accorded. 

A decision unfavorable to the appellant may be 
reconsidered by the panel on its own motion or upon 
motion by the appellant or his representative alleging 
error of fact or application of law or policy. 

§ 3.20. Filing and content. 

Appellant's motion for reconsideration must be filed 
within 12 days after entry of the panel's decision. This 
motion shall set forth clearly and specifically the alleged 
error(s) in the panel's decision. 

§ 3.21. Review. 

The administrative law judge who wrote the majority 
opinion shall review the sufficiency of the allegations set 
forth in the motion and may reque...:;t additional written 
argument from the appellant. 

§ 3.22. Disposition. 

The ruling on the motion for reconsideration shall be in 
writing and entered as the final order in the case. If the 
motion is granted, a new decision will be issued in 
accordance with § 3.!8. 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94·1119; Filed July 19, 1994, 9:55a.m. 
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STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION 

BUREAU OF INSURANCE 

July 5, 1994 

ADMINISTRATIVE LETTER 1994-7 

TO: ALL COMPANIES LICENSED TO WRITE 
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY AND AUTOMOBILE PHYSICAL 
DAMAGE INSURANCE IN VIRGINIA 

RE: MANDATORY OFFER OF RENTAL 
REIMBURSEMENT COVERAGE 

For policies effective on and after July l, 1994, § 38.2-2230 
of the Code of Virginia states: 

Every insurer issuing a new or renewal policy of 
motor vehicle insurance, as defined in § 38.2-2212, 
which provides comprehensive or collision coverage, 
shall offer in writing to the named insured the option 
of purchasing rental reimbursement coverage. 

The purpose of this letter is to inform each company 
licensed to write automobile liability and automobile 
physical damage insurance of the application of § 
38.2-2230. 

§ 38.2-2230 applies to all policies subject to the provisions 
of § 38.2-2212 of the Code of Virginia. The offer of rental 
reimbursement coverage must be made by every insurer 
issuing a new or renewal "policy of motor vehicle 
insurance," as defined in § 38.2-2212 which provides 
comprehensive or collision coverage. Subsection A of § 
38.2-2212 states the following: 

"Policy of motor vehicle insurance or policy means a 
policy or contract for bodily injury or property damage 
liability insurance issued or delivered in this 
Commonwealth covering liability ansmg from the 
ownership, maintenance, or use of any motor vehicle, 
insuring as the named insured one individual or husband 
and wife who are residents of the same household, and 
under which the insured vehicle designated in the policy 
is either: 

a. A motor vehicle of a private passenger, station 
wagon, or motorcycle type that is not used 
commercially, rented to others, or used as a public 
or livery conveyance where the terms public or 
livery conveyance do not include car pools, or 

b. Any other four-wheel motor vehicle which is not 
used in the occupation, profession, or business, other 
than farming, of the insured, or as a public or 
livery conveyance, or rented to others. The term 
policy of motor vehicle insurance or policy does not 
include (i) any policy issued through the Virginia 
Automobile Insurance Plan, (ii) any policy covering 
the operation of a garage, sales agency, repair shop, 
service station, or public parking place, (iii) any 
policy providing insurance only on an excess basis, 

or (iv) any other contract providing insurance to the 
named insured even though the contract may 
incidentally provide insurance on motor vehicles." 

Commercial automobile policies endorsed to provide 
coverage for individual named insureds may also be 
subject to the provisions of § 38.2-2230. Rental 
reimbursement coverage must be offered when a 
commercial automobile policy provides comprehensive or 
collision coverage for automobiles of the private passenger 
type or motorcycles when such vehicles are subject to the 
provisions of § 38.2-2212. Commercial automobile policies 
written to provide coverage for individual named insureds 
are subject to the provisions of § 38.2-2212 when a risk 
meets the definition of "policy of motor vehicle 
insurance." 

§ 38.2-2230 requires a positive offer, in writing, with each 
new or renewal policy. Insurers have flexibility as to the 
manner in which the offer is given; however, the offer 
must not be ambiguous or obscure and must be given not 
later than at the time the new or renewal policy is 
delivered. 

The attached example may be of help in determining the 
kind of notice or offer that a company should use in 
order to comply with § 38.2-2230. Notices used by 
individual insurers are not Jubject to our approval, and 
should not be filed with the Bureau of Insurance; however, 
future market conduct examinations will include a 
determination of whether companies are complying with 
the statute. 

Insurers whose filings do not include provisions for 
accommodating the provisions of § 38.2-2230 should submit 
the appropriate rule and, if applicable, rate filings as soon 
as possible in order to comply with the July l, 1994, 
effective date. 

Questions regarding § 38.2-2230 may be directed to the 
Bureau of Insurance, Property and Casualty Division, at 
(804) 371-9965. 

/s/ Steven T. Foster 
Commissioner of Insurance 

NOTICE: 

ADDITIONAL COVERAGE AVAILABLE 

FOR POLICIES THAT PROVIDE COMPREHENSIVE OR 
COLLISION COVERAGES, COVERAGE MAY NOW BE 
ADDED FOR THE REIMBURSEMENT OF RENTAL 
VEHICLE EXPENSES. 

WHEN THE VEHICLE YOU OWN IS DAMAGED 
BECAUSE OF A LOSS OR AN ACCIDENT AND 
WITHDRAWN FROM NORMAL USE, THIS ADDITIONAL 
COVERAGE PROVIDES FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF 
EXPENSES INCURRED FOR THE RENTAL OF A 
SUBSTITUTE VEHICLE OF EQUIVALENT TYPE AND 
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PURPOSE. 

CONTACT YOUR AGENT OR COMPANY 
REPRESENTATIVE IF YOU WISH TO ADD THIS 
COVERAGE OR NEED ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-II09; Filed July 14, 1994, 4:39p.m. 
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STATE LOTTERY DEPARTMENT 

DIRECTOR'S ORDER NUMBER TWENTY-ONE 00 

VIRGINIA'S SECOND ON-LINE 
"LOTTO," FINAL RULES FOR 
THIRD REVISION 

GAME LOTTERY; 
GAME OPERATION; 

In accordance with the authority granted by Section 
58.1-4006A of the Code of Virginia, I hereby promulgate 
the revised rules for game operation in Virginia's second 
on-line game lottery, "Lotto." These rules amplify and 
conform to the duly adopted State Lottery Board 
regulations for the conduct of on-line game lotteries. 

The rules are available for inspection and copying 
during normal business hours at the State Lottery 
Department headquarters, 2201 West Broad Street, 
Richmond, Virginia, and at each of the State Lottery 
Department regional offices. A copy may be requested by 
mail by writing to: Marketing Division, State Lottery 
Department, P. 0. Box 4689, Richmond, Virginia 23220. 

This Director's Order supersedes Director's Order 
Number Thirty-Two (90), issued October 31, 1990. This 
Order becomes effective on the date of its signing and 
shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or 
rescinded by further Director's Order. 

/S/ Richard G. Wilkinson 
Acting Director 
Date: June 23, 1994 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-lll0; Filed July 14, 1994, 1:09 p.m. 

DIRECTOR'S ORDER NUMBER TWENTY-FIVE 00 

VIRGINIA'S FORTY-THIRD INSTANT GAME LOTTERY. 
"GOLD RUSH," FINAL RULES FOR GAME OPERATION. ' 

In accordance with the authority granted by Section 
58.1-4006A of the Code of Virginia, I hereby promulgate 
the final rules for game operation in Virginia's forty-third 
instant game lottery, "Gold Rush." These rules amplify and 
conform to the duly adopted State Lottery Board 
regulations for the conduct of instant game lotteries. 

The rules are available for inspection and copying 
during normal business hours at the State Lottery 
Department headquarters, 2201 West Broad Street, 
Richmond, Virginia, and at each of the State Lottery 
Department regional offices. A copy may be requested by 
mail by writing to: Marketing Division, State Lottery 
Department, P. 0. Box 4689, Richmond, Virginia 23220. 

This Director's Order becomes effective on the date of 
its signing and shall remain in full force and effect unless 
amended or rescinded by further Director's Order. 

/s/ Richard G. Wilkinson 
Acting Director 
Date: July I, 1994 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-llll; Filed July 14, 1994, 1:09 p.m. 

DIRECTOR'S ORDER NUMBER TWENTY-SIX 00 

"GOLD RUSH"; PROMOTIONAL GAME AND DRAWING 
RULES 

In accordance with the authority granted by Section 
58.1-4006A of the Code of Virginia, I hereby promulgate 
the "Gold Rush" promotional game and drawing rules for 
the Instant Game 43 kickoff events which will be 
conducted at various lottery retailer locations throughout 
the Commonwealth on Thursday, July 28, 1994. These rules 
amplify and conform to the duly adopted State Lottery 
Board regulations for the conduct of lotteries. 

The rules are available for inspection and copying 
during normal business hours at the State Lottery 
Department headquarters, 220 I West Broad Street, 
Richmond, Virginia, and at each of the State Lottery 
Department regional offices. A copy may be requested by 
mail by writing to: Marketing Division, State Lottery 
Department, P. 0. Box 4689, Richmond, Virginia 23220. 

This Director's Order becomes effective on the date of 
its signing and shall remain in full force and effect until 
July 31, 1994, unless otherwise extended by the Director. 

/s/ Richard G. Wilkinson 
Interim Director 
Date: July 13, 1994 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-1112; Filed July 14, 1994, 1:10 p.m. 

DIRECTOR'S ORDER NUMBER TWENTY-SEVEN 00 

SOUTHSIDE SPEEDWAY PROMOTION RAFFLE 
DRAWING RULES 

In accordance with the authority granted by Section 
58.1-4006A of the Code of Virginia, I hereby promulgate 
the Southside Speedway Promotion Raffle Drawing Rules 
for the raffle drawings which will be conducted during the 
Southside Speedway event which will take place in 
Richmond on Friday, July 8, 1994. These rules amplify 
and conform to the duly adopted State Lottery Department 
regulations for the conduct of lotteries. 

The rules are available for inspection and copying 
during normal business hours at the State Lottery 
Department headquarters, 2201 West Broad Street 
Richmond, Virginia, and at each of the State LotterY 
Department regional offices. A copy may be requested by 
mail by writing to: Marketing Division, State LotterY 
Department, P. 0. Box 4689, Richmond, Virginia 23220. 

This Director's Order becomes effective on the date of 
its signing and shall remain in full force and effect until 
July 31, 1994, unless otherwise extended by the Director. 
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/s/ Richard G. Wilkinson 
Interim Director 
Date: July 8, 1994 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-lll3; Filed July 14, 1994, UO p.m. 

DIRECTOR'S ORDER NUMBER TWENTY-EIGHT 00 

RACING PROMOTIONS RAFFLE DRAWING RULES 

In accordance with the authority granted by Section 
58.1-4006A of the Code of Virginia, I hereby promulgate 
the Racing Promotions Raffle Drawing Rules for the raffle 
drawings which will be conducted at various locations 
throughout the Commonwealth beginning Saturday, July 9, 
1994. These rules amplify and conform to the duly 
adopted State Lottery Department regulations for the 
conduct of lotteries. 

The rules are available for inspection and copying 
during normal business hours at the State Lottery 
Department headquarters, 2201 West Broad Street, 
Richmond, Virginia, and at each of the State Lottery 
Department regional offices. A copy may be requested by 
mail by writing to: Marketing Division, State Lottery 
Department, P_ 0. Box 4689, Richmond, Virginia 23220. 

This Director's Order becomes effective on the date of 
its signing and shall remain in full force and effect unless 
amended or rescinded by further Director's Order. 

/S/ Richard G. Wilkinson 
Interim Director 
Date: July 8, 1994 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-lll4; Filed July 14, 1994, 1:10 p.m. 

DIRECTOR'S ORDER NUMBER TWENTY-NINE 00 

CERTAIN DIRECTOR'S ORDERS RESCINDED 

In accordance with the authority granted by Section 
58.1-4006A of the Code of Virginia, I hereby rescind the 
following Director's Orders: 

Order Date 
Number Issued 

10(89) 06/14/89 

20(91) 08/09/91 

33(91) 12/16/91 

13(92) 04/06/92 

Vol. 10, Issue 23 

Subject 

Virginia's Sixth Instant Game 
Lottery; ''Photo Finish,'' Final 
Rules for Game Operation. 

Virginia's Sixth Instant Game 
Lottery; ''Photo Finish,'' End 
of Game. 

Virginia's Twenty-Second Instant 
Game Lottery; ''Wild Card,'' 
Final Rules for Game Operation. 

Virginia's Twenty-Sixth Instant 
Game Lottery; ''Cash Vault,'' 

18(92) 

25(93) 

33(93) 

10(94) 

14(94) 

State Lottery Department 

Final Rules for Game Operation. 

07/27/92 Virginia's Twenty-Eighth Instant 
Game Lottery; ''Money Tree,'' 
Final Rules for Game Operation. 

08/26/93 Virginia's Twenty-Second Instant 
Game Lottery; ''Wi 1d Card,'' End 
of Game. 

11/12/93 Virginia's Twenty-Sixth Instant 
Game Lottery, ''Cash Vault,'' 
and Virginia's Twenty-Eighth 
Instant Game Lottery, ''Money 
Tree'': End of Game. 

03/01/94 Virginia's "Cash 5" Free 
Ticket Giveaway Game; Final 
Rules for Game Operation; 
Revised. 

03/18/94 "Winner's Circle"; Virginia 
Lottery Retailer Promotional 
Program Rules. 

This Director's Order becomes effective on the date of 
its signing and shall remain in full force and effect unless 
amended or rescinded by further Director's Order. 

/s/ Richard G. Wilkinson 
Interim Director 
Date: July 12, 1994 

VA.R. Doc. No. R94-1115; Filed July 14, 1994, 1:10 p.m. 
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JULY 1,1994 

VIRGINIA TAX BULLETIN 

INTEREST RATES 

THIRD QUARTER 1994 

94-8 

Rates changed: State and certain local interest rates are s1,1bject to change every quarter 
based on changes in the federal rates established pursuant to LR.C. § 6621. Tire fer;Leral 
rates for the third quarter of 1994 will be 8% for tax underpayr:p.ents (assessmet:~ts)~ 7% 
for tax overpayments (refunds), and 10% for "large corporate underpayments" as deffued 
in LR.C. § 6621(c). Va. Code § 58.1-15 provides that the underpayment rate for Virginia 
taxes will be 2% higher than the corresponding federal rates. Accordingly, the Virginia 
rates for the third quarter of 1994 will be I 0% for tax underpayments, 7% for tax 
overpayments. and 12% for "large corporate underpayments". 

Rate for Addition to Tax for Underpayments of Estimated Tax 

Taxpayers whose taxable year ends on March 31, 1994: For the purpose of computing 
the addition to the tax for underpayment of Virginia estimated income taxes on Form 
760C (for individuals, estates and trusts), Form 760F (for farmers and fishermen) or 
Form SOOC (for corporations), the second quarter 9% und~rNyment rate will apply 
through the due date of the return, July 15, 1994. 

Taxpayers whose taxable year ends on June 30, 1994: For the purpose of computing 
the addition to the tax for underpayment of Virginia estimated income taxes on Form 
760C (for individuals, estates and trusts) or Form 760F (for farmers and fishermen), the 
third quarter 10% underpayment rate will apply through the due date of the return, 
October 15, 1994. 

Local Tax 

Assessments: Localities assessing interest on delinquent taxes pursuant to Va. Code 
§ 58.1-3916 may impose interest at a rate not to e;weed lO% for the first year of 
delinquency, and at a rate not to exceed 10% or the federal underpayment rate in effect 
for the applicable quarter, whichever is greater, for the second and subsequent years of 
delinquency. For the third quarter of 1994, the federal underpayment rate is 8%. 

Refunds: Localities which have provided for refund of erroneously assessed taxes may 
provide by ordinance that such refund be repaid with interest at a rate which does not 
exceed the rate imposed by the locality for delinquent taxes. 
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Virginia Tax Bulletin 94-8 
Page 2 

Virginia Tax Bulletin 

Recent Interest Rates 

Accrual Period 
Beginning Throu2h 
1-Jan-87 30-Sep-87 
1-0ct-87 31-Dec-87 
1-Jan-88 31-Mar-88 
1-Apr-8 8 30-Sep-88 
1-0ct-88 31-Mar-89 
1-Apr-89 30-Sep-89 
1-0ct-89 31-Mar-91 
1-Apr-91 30-Jun-91 
1-Jul-91 31-Dec-91 
1-Jan-92 31-Mar-92 
1-Apr-92 30-Sep-92 
1-0ct-92 30-Jun-94 
1-Jul-94 3 0-Sep-94 

Overpayment 
(Refund) 

8% 
9% 
10% 
9% 
10% 
11% 
10% 
9% 
9% 
8% 
7% 
6% 
7% 

Underpayment 
(Assessment} 

9% 
10% 
11% 
10% 
11% 
12% 
11% 
10% 
12% 
11% 
10% 
9% 
10% 

Large Corporate 
Underpavment 

14% 
13% 
12% 
11% 
12% 

For additional information: Contact the Taxpayer Assistance Section, Office of 
Taxpayer Services, Virginia Department of Taxation, P. 0. Box 1880, Richmond, Virginia 
23282-1880, or call the following numbers for additional information about interest rates 
and penalties. 
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The 

'VIIHSINIA DIVISION OF BEGISLAIIVE SERVICES 

Coal and Energy Commission 

June 21, 1994, Abingdon 

The Virginia Coal and Energy Commission met to examine 
declining Virginia coal exports and to dctcnnine whether the 
commission could provide any assistance in addressing a 
problem currently costing Southwest Virginia's economy mil­
lions ofdollars. Testimony from coal industry otlicials revealed 
that the problem's primary source is the downward spiral in 
international coal prices. 
Fierce competition in the 
overseas market tfom lo\ver­
cost t(Jreign competitors~ 
principally Australia­
coupled with technological 
advances and declining coal 
consumption worldwide have 
caused prices to drop precipi­
tously. Few Virginia coal 
companies can etTectively 
compete iOrintemational coal 
sales at current prices, the 
commission \Vas told. 

International Market 

Since 1982 the market 
price for metallurgical coal 
has dropped $20.85, with 
nearly one-third of that re­
duction occurring within the 
past three years. As a conse­
quence, since 1990over 1,000 
mining production jobs were 
eliminated; at the same time, 

coal production tonnage skidded from nearly 4 7 million tons in 
1990 to just over 40 million in 1993. The export of Virginia 
metallurgical (or ''met") coal is critical to the Commonwealth ·s 
coal indu .. <;hy. According to the Virginia Center for Coal and 
Energy Research, in 1992 nearly 40 percent of Virginia-mined 
coal was sold in the international export market, and nearly 80 
percent of that tonnage was metallurgical grade. 

According to a Pittston Company official, plummeting 
intemational market prices for met coal has resulted in the 
closure of five Pittston mines ·within the past nine months. 
Pittston estimates that these mine closures will result in nearly 
$40 million in economic losses to Dickenson. Tai'".cwcll, and 
Wise Counties (Figure I). 'The 478 jobs lost through the 
shutdovms, and the $18.5 mi11ion in annual V-lages associateJ 
\Vith these jobs, figure he{l.vily in the regional economic impaGL 
Virginia's railroad companies \villlosc out on an estimated $30 
million in annual transportation revenue associated with the 
five mines' previous production output. 

Japanese industry. the largest purchaser of met coal in the 
international market, dominates the overseas market and estab-

lishes the market price for met C<)aL Australia's proximity to 
Japan has provided its coal industry a tremendOLL'> advantage in 
the \vorld"s numbt..'f one coal export market; its shipping costs 
to Japan are sub;;tantially lower than those incurred by produc­
ers in the U.S., Canada, and the fonner Soviet Union. Am;tra­
lian producers have also invested heavily in high-technology 
mining equipment, thereby lovvering labor costs, and the Aus-

Virginia Register of Regulations 

5752 



2 THE LEGISLATIVE RECORD .ll'L Y 1 0()-! 

Figure 1. Pittston Mine Shutdown: 
Economic Impact 

Payroll taxes lost $1.78M 

County severance tax lost $1 .06M 

County property tax lost $0.33M 

Suppliers revenue reductions $1 0.63M 

Utility revenue lost $2.47M 

Trucking revenue lost $2.24M 

,J-obs lost: 478 \ 
I 

tralian government has contributed to this industry's competi­
tiveness by eliminating export taxes on coal and by penllitting 
its currencyr to decline relative to the U.S. dollar. 

The net effect: Australia is a low-cost producer currently 
dominating the international export market for met coal (Figure 
2 ). U.S. Department ofEm .. 1gy pn~jections conclude that by the 
year 2000----despite expected declines in overall coal consump­
tion-Australia will increase its production and market share, 
selling more tonnage in the international market than the U.S., 
Canada, the fonncr So\~et Union, and all other exporters 
combined. U.S. sales are expected to continue their slide from 
a high of 63 million tons in 1990 to 40 million tons by the year 
2000. The 20 million ton drop tfom 1991 to 1993 in coal export 
shipments tfom Hampton Roads lends credence to these projec­
tions. 

Virginia's met coal industry is at a critical point; its very 
survival may be at stake. Pittston's remaining six deep mines 
and coal processing plants were operated at a $6 million loss in 
1993. These Pittston facilities prm-ide nearly 700 jobs paying 
$28 million in annual wages and account for over $2.5 million 
in county severance taxes. Noting that Virginia's steam coal 
indu..;;try· enjoys the assistance of a $3 per-ton state tax credit 
prm-id~d Vi;ginia's electrical utilities purchasing Virginia 
steam coal, Pittston suggested that reciprocal legislation for the 
met coal industry-possibly prmi.ding tonnage~ based credits to 

Vol. 10, Issue 23 

Wages lost $18.47M 

Royalties not paid $0.58M 

Rail freight not paid $29.74M 

,)'ource: Pittston Company. 

railroads transporting Virginia coal to the port.;;~oukl provide 
a vital boost to Virginia ·s met coal industry. 

Perspectives of Other Companies 

Representatives of other Southwest Virginia businesses 
echoed Pittston· s theme that the coal indu.o..;try is in need of 
assistance. However, their differing perspectives indicate that 
it may not be easy to dc\'elop a simple remedy. 

Consol Coal Group and Island Creek arc suflCring from 
export problems related to last year· s labor contract diJliculties. 
Consol is struggling to keep its Virginia mines open five days 
a \Veck while working to lind buyers fix its coal around the 
\Vorl d. It remains one of the largest exporters of coal, and sends 
Virginia coal to 21 countries, Developing a solution to the woes 
of Virginia's coal companies will be complicated by several 
factors: 

Ill The increasing use of electric ovens in steel production is 
reducing the demand for coke, which reduces the world\\i.dc 
demand t()r met coaL 

Ill While Virginia·s coal production has declined in recent 
years, national production has jumped to record levels as the 
result of increased production from Wyoming and other western 
states~ and 
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II Restrictions on nitrous oxitle (NOx) under consideration by 
the Northeast Transportation Commission could hurt the mar­
ket t()f Virginia's steam coal by making its use b!' electrical 
utilities too c;-.;pensive. 

Proposals to increase the subsidy f()r the use of Virginia coal 
in power plants could result in the closing of out-of:.state coal 
mines located closer to a Virginia power plant than any Virginia 
coalfields. Other speakers had mentioned that approximately 
25 percent of the 10 million tons of coal burned in Virginia's 
power plants is mined in the Commonwealth, notwithstanding 
the existing ta:-.: credit of three dollars per ton on Virginia coal 
burned by electric utilities. A larger tax credit was mentioned 
as a way of allowing more Virginia steam coal to be burned here 
by offsetting the cheaper transportation and production costs 
associated \Vith West Virginia coal. \Vhile transportation costs 
arc an issue, ta;..; credits t{)r railroads hauling coal \\ill not help 
all producers. Further complicating the picture is the tact that 
rebates are currently being provided by railroads to some 
compames. 

Representatives of The United Company and Amvest Cor­
poration stressed that the problems in the coal industry are not 
limited to those finns exporting met coaL United does not export 
coal, yet has had to reduce the number of its employees and 
contractors by over 50 percent in the last five years. Related 
supply businesses have abo suffered as the industry declines. 
Amvest has one export contract and is blending and selling 
much of its metallurgical-grade coal in the steam market. 

Coal exports are also threatened by the proposed increase in 
the vessel tonnage tax now pending in Congress. The measure 
would raise the cost of a ton of coal by approximately 15 cents. 
The purpose ofthe tax is to subsidize the conversion of shipyards 
from the production of military vessels to commercial vessels. 

Though the goal is laudable, the coal industry is concerned that 
hulk shippers will be put at a competitive disadvantage with 
foreign rivals. 

Reductions in coal industry employment are teit throughout 
the economics ofthc tive coal-producing countie;;; ofSouthwe~t 
Virginia. Stati~tical infonnation on the correlation between 
service indtL<>tries and the decline in the coal industry is being 
developed and will be shared \Vith the commission. 

The commission agreed to rcne\V its call for a Governor's 
Symposium on coal export issues, a recommendation of the 
study of coal exports conducted pursuant to SJR 208 (1993). 
The coal subcommittee was asked to develop appropriate 
recommendations, which are to be reviewed by the full commis­
sion prior to the 1995 Sc~sion of the General Assembly. 

Virginia CEED 

The maintenance of a viable coal industry in Virginia will 
depend on the ability of coal to remain a \·iable option f()r 
electric power production and other industrial applications. 
Ensuring that coal receives appropriate consideration as an 
energy option is the task of the Center for Energy and Economic 
Development (CEED), a national nonprofit organization dedi­
cated to educating people about the benefits of coaL 

A Vi:rginill ch;:tpter of CEED has been organized, and 
Joseph ViP~nan qf Appalachian Power Company has been 
elected af) itS presicl~nt Members ofVirginia CEED include the 
two largest e.lectrical utility companies, both major coal-haul­
ing rail companies, and all three coal associations. 

Virginia CEED pledged to take an active role in attempting 
to sideline the Connecticut proposal under consideration by the 

Northeast Transportation Commission. Though 

Figure 2. Met Coal Export Trends 
(in million tons) 

the NTC' s jurisdiction extends only to Northern 
Virginia, it would set a precedent for statewide 
expansion. Additionally, the proposal's detri-
mental effect on the demand f()r coal would 
irnp(l.ir the market fOr Virginia steam coal in the 
northeast. 
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Chairman Nolen suggested that the com­
mission may discuss at a future meeting the 
siting of additional electric generating facili­
ties, the fuels they u<;e, and the power plant 
pennitting process. Though he acknmvledged 
that the pmver companies have no plans for 
additional generating capacity, the issue is tied 
to the commission's purpose of maintaining or 
increasing the use of coal in Virginia. 

The Honorable Frank W. Nolen, Chairman 
Legislative Services contact Arlen K. Bolstad 
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SJR :17: Joint Subcommittee 
Studying Privatization of Certain 
State Govemment Functions 

June 20, 1994, Richmond 

After a general discussion of the joint subcommittee· s 1993 
work aml its interim report (Senate Document No. 64, I 994!, 
there was a discussion of this year's work plan. The joint 
subcommittee has agreed to examine the tdlowing areas: 

II Development of a state policy on privatization, 

!Ill Development of a checklist for use in e\·aluating potential 
areas of privatization, 

II Creation of a state policy regarding employees affected hy 

privati7.ation, 

llllil Creation of a mechanism to provide t()r the long-tcnn 
implementation of privatintion initiatives, and 

IIIII Study of the Qualifying Transportation Facilities Act of 
1994. 

Chainnan Stosch briefed the joint subcommittee on lhe 
\Vork of the Privatization ami Procurement Committee of the 
Governor's Strike Force, which he also chairs, and stated his 
intention to coordinate the efforts of the two groups so as to 
avoid duplication. 

The ne;.;t meeting of the joint subcommittee is scheduled for 
August 2, 1994, at 10 a.m. in Senate Room A of the General 
Assembly Building. Tills meeting will focus e:-.:clusiYely on the 
Qualii)'ing Transportation Facilities Act of 1994, which \Vas 
passed during the 1994 Session but has an ctfective date of July 
I, 1995. 

The Honorable Walter A. Stosch, C'hairman 
Legislative Services contact: Jetlrey F. Sharp 
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HJR 66: Joint Subcommittee to 
Study State and Federal law on 
Privacy, Confidentiality and 
Mandatory Disclosure of 
Information Held or Used by 
Government Agencies 

June 20, 1994, Richmond 

Delegate L. Karen Darner, subcommittee chair, outlined 
some of the basic o~jecti\·es for the study, which will undertake 
a comprehensive re\iew of confidentiality and disclosure laws 
of agencies sen ing the public. The study \\ill prm ide a l()nlm 
t()r discussions of many privacy issues relating h) the collecti<m 
of and access to personal int(mnation, such as a person ·s 
address, educational background, criminal history', employ~ 
ment record, financial position. and health status. 
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Prior Studies 

1\ number of confiJ.entiality and disclosure issues were 
unowered Juring the Commission on Youth's 1993 study on 
the conkldentiality of juvenile records. Tn recent years, there 
has been a concerted em)rt to increase interagency collabora­
tion in the delivery of sef\ ices to children aml families in order 
to eliminate duplication for the client in applying for service 
and ensure continuity' in the delivery of service. f Iowever, such 
programs also increase the need t()r the e:-.:change of''confiden­
lial" int(mnation between scnice providers, who tl-equently 
are unfamiliar \\ith the confidentiality and disclosure require~ 
ments outside their own discipline. E\·en within their own 
discipline, there are sometimes gray areas where federal and 
state laws contlict and \Vhere there are simultaneous duties to 
disclose personal int(mnation and to pro ted the privacy of the 
client. This problem is intensified becau.;;e local providers 
often receive different legal interpretations on which contlict~ 
ing lmv prevails. Another problem identified by the commis~ 
sion \Vas the ditferent e;.;pungement proceedings by third party 
recipients of int(mnation, who in many cases are not covered 
by e;.;pungement requirements governing the collecting agency. 

Some of the problems associated \Vith interagency collabo~ 
ration \Vcrc also e:-.:amined by' a !992 teleconiCrence led by 
Hmvard M. Cullum, then Sccrct.af)' of Health and Human 
Resources. The conference was instrumental in the develop~ 
ment of a universal client release t()nn that enables participat~ 
ing agencies serYing the same client to repeatedly share 
"confidential int(mnation" atlcr the client gives his initial 
consent. As a 1()!low-up, the subcommittee requested stall' to 
report at the ne;.;t meeting the status of the t(mn under the 
current administration and how \Veil it has been received by 
local pro\,iders, 

Monday, August 8, 1994 
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Federal and State Privacy Acts 

Statl brieteJ the subcommittee on the major prmi.sions of 
the Federal and State Prin1cy Acts, which prm'ide safeguards 
against the invasion of privacy through the misu~ of records by 
ttxlcral, state, aml local agencies, The acts place certain 
restrictions and requirements on the collection. maintenance, 
and dissemination of infonnation by government agencies. 
Infomwtion collected by each agency must be relevant, accu­
rate, current, and clearly necessary. No int()nnation can be 
collected except as explicitly or implicitly authori7.ed by' law. 
Individuals are entitled to learn the purpose of such collection 
and to correct inaccurate infonnation. Although the privacy 
acts restrict the collection of and access to infonnation in many 
respects, they do not make personal infonnation confidentiaL 
Whether personal infonnation mw;t be kept confidential or 
released depends upon the governing statutes and th~ regula­
tions and practices adopted by the agency. 

Work Plan and Future Meetings 

Bet()re undertaking any serious deliberations, the subcom­
mittee agreed that it needed to have a thorough understanding 
of the laws, regulations, and practices tdlowed by the various 
state agencies. To assist the subcommittee with this task, 
agencies will be asked to (i) identify applicable mandatory state 
and tCderal confidentiality and disclosure laws, (ii) detenninc 
under what circumstances disclosure laws supersede confiden­
tiality laws, and (iii) identifY existing state expungement laws 
to ascertain where third party expungcment provisions are 
necessary to ensure contidentiality beyond the origin of the 
inf(mnation. 

For its next meeting, the subcommittee plans to have the 
secretaries present a summary of their agencies' findings. In 
addition, the subcommittee will examine how other states 
handle the exchange ofint()nnation bet\veen agencies and what 
privacy issues are on the horizon in those other states. The 
subcommittee agreed to meet in late August to allmv sutllcient 
time for the agencies to compile the infonnation and t()f the 
members to review it. 

The Honorable L. Karen Darner, Chair 
Legislative Services Contact Ginny Ed\vards 

SB 411: Special Subcommittee 
Studying the Proposed Virginia 
Whistle Blower Protection Act 

June 23, 1994, Richmond 

The special subcommittee held its first meeting to consider 
the proposed Whistle Blower Protection Act (SB 411 ), which 
was carried over from the 1994 Session in the HmL'>C Committee 
on Courts of Ju'>ticc. Ini(mnation presented to the subcommit­
tee revealed that 36 states have enacted some t(mn of whistle 
blower protection statut~, including Maryland, West Virginia, 
North Carolina, South Carolina, and the District of Columbia. 
Of those states, 22 allow Gi\·il actions~ 14 allow the prevailing 
party to recover attorneys' tees. 

Fraud, Waste, and Abuse Hotline 

The proposed Whistle Blm:ver Protection Act grew out of 
the Commonwealth's Fraud, Waste, and Abuse Hotline, cre­
ated by Executive Order 57 in 1992. The lirst annual report 
from the State Internal Auditor, which covers the period 
October 1, 1992 through October 30, 1993, reveals that in the 
tirst year of operation 920 hotline calls were received, vvith 829 
investigated. Of those investigated, 211 resulted in instances 
of fraud, \Vaste, and abuse resulting in $435,151 in costs. 

Legislatively, fraud, waste, and abuse in the public sector 
have been the subject of several bills. In 1 984, a bill was passed 
requiring state agencies, courts, and local constitutional ot1ic­
ers to report to the Auditor ofPublic Accounts and State Police 
fraudulent transactions involving funds or property under their 
control (see §2.1-155.3). 

In 1993, HB 1406 exempted !Tom the Virginia Freedom of 
Infonnation Act "investigative notes, correspondence, docu­
mentation and infonnation furnished and provided to or pro­
duced by or for the Department of the State Internal Auditor 
with respect to an investigation initiated through the State 
Employee Fraud, Waste and Abuse Hotline.·· Tills bill also 
prm,ided that personal int(mnation systems maintained by the 
State Internal Auditor that deal v.·ith communication and 
investigation relating to the hotline are exempted from the 
provisions of the Privac'{ Protection Act of 1976. The intent of 
this legislation was to protect the confidentiality and privacy' 
rights of those reporting to the State Internal Auditor. 

other Commissions 

The Governor's Commission on Campaign Finance Re­
fonn, Government Accountability and Ethics was created by 
Governor Wilder through E:.;ecuti\'e Order ..J.6 in 1992. In 
December 1992, the commission issued its report, "Public 
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SerYicc, Public Trust. ·The commis;;ion \\as in ti1vorofwhistk: 

blmvcr protection due in large part to the l1C\\ state employee 
fraw.L waste. and abuse hotlinc The Joint Subcommittee 
Studying the Report or the Clon;mor's Commission on Cam­

paign Finance Reti.mn, CJm·emment Acl.'ountability and Ethics 
(SJR 217, \99.3) agreed \\ith the Gou:mor's Commission 
tavoring whistle blower protection. sn .:1.86 ( 1994 ). an 
outgrowth of the study', contained prm is ions Ji.)r the creation or 
a Virginia whistle blower protection act. l- Iowcvcr. Juring the 
courseofthe 1994 Session, the whistle blower pnAisions ofSB 

486 were removed and SB 486 ultimately tailed. 

Role of the Grievance Procedure 

The role of the grieYance procedure is important to the 
consideration of the Virginia "Whistle Blm\er Protection Act. 
since it is the current mechanism whereby a state employee may 
seek redress for an adverse job action. During the 199...J. 
Session, some questioned both the need for a separate statute 
to address \vhistle blower protection and the personnel classi­
fications (i.e., which state employees) that would be covered by 
any \Vhistle blower act. 

The status of the grievance procedure, hmvever, is chang­
ing. SB 408, passed this year, re\iscs the current grievance 
procedure but contains a reenactment clause that requires the 
bill to be reenacted by the 1995 Session in order to gointoetlCcl. 
In addition, the Department ofEmployee Relations Counselors 
is to conducting public hearings on the grievance procedure 
generally and SB 408 in particular. 

Only non-probationary, classiticJ employees are covered 
by the current grievance procedure, with part-time and con­
tract employees excluded from its protections. Additionally, 
only grievable issues (e.g., disciplinar:.: actions_ application of 
personnel polices and rules, ads of ret..1.1iation for using/ 
participating in the grievance process) arc actionable by an 
employee under the grievance procedure. 

The key changes to lhe grievance procedure oftCred in SB 
408 (as it ·will become effective if reenacted by the 1995 
Session) include streamlining management steps, requiring all 
hearings to be conducted by a hearing otficer instead of a panel, 
and placing affinnative responsibilities on state agencies for 
assuring that a climate of positive employee relations is 
instituted. Under SB ....J-08_ the Department of Employee 
Relations Counselors (DERC) would monitor the whole pro­
cess and comment on the substance of actions taken to remedy 
a particular situ.ation. 

Overview of SB 4:l1 

Generally_ SB 411 prohibits acts of retaliation against all 
public employees, including those in a temporary or part-time 
status, \Yho report improper governmental actions. As long as 
the employee acts in good tb.ith and discloses the alleged 
impropriety to the designated authority_ the hill makes retali-

Vol. 10, Issue 23 

ation against the employee illegal. To k protected. employees 
\\ ho disclose a \\ nmgdoing must do su in good h1ith ami upon 
a reasonable belief that their allegations arc accurate. 

i\n cmplo~·ee is required to give prior notification of the 
\\ rongdoing to his agency head hct(m:: disclosing it to parties 
outside or the agency, unlc:~s the agency head is the subject of 
the complaint. in \\hich case the employee notitics the agency 
head's appointing authority. 

The hill makes it illegal for an employer to discriminate or 
retaliate against any employee t()r reporting \iolations co\·ered 
by the Whistle Blo\n::r Protection Act. It also allows \\histlc 
hlmvers covered hy the grievance process to initiate a grievance. 
DERC must transmit a copy of the gricvam::c to the State 
Internal Auditor for investigation. Any employee may tllc an 
action in circuit court alleging a violation of the act. Election 
of either the grievance procedure or filing an action in circuit 
co tnt precludes the availability of the other. 
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The director of the Department of Employee Relations 
Counselors advised the subcommittee that a separate whistle 
hl<)\Vcrpn)tection act is needed because the grievance pnlccdure 
is too limited to address employees sulTering aUxcrsc job action 
caused hy their reporting instances of fraud, waste, and abuse 
to the state hothne. J\dJitionally, all employees are not covered 
by the grievance procedure and appropriate relief is an issue. 
Members of the special subcommittee suggested that t()r the 
grievance procedure to he etTecti\'C, the hearing otlicer must 
have the authority to prescribe a remedy. Hmvcver, they 
expressed concern about how such authority would tigurc into 
the orderly management of the agency. 

Subcommittee Actions 

Alter discussing the merits of the grievance procedure ami 
the Vv'histle Blmver Protection Act, the special subcommittee by 
consensus agreed to make retaliation for reporting an instance 
or tfaud, waste. or abuse a grievablc issue under the grievance 
procedure, thereby incorporating \Vhistlc blower protection 
into the grievance procedure. The special subcommittee also 
agreed to institutionali;.ing the state ifaud, waste. aml abuse 
hotline in the Code q/T"irginia, since the c;-.;ccutivc order that 
created the hotline is due to expire this fall. 

The Honorable Clitlon A. Woodrum. Chairman 
Legislative Sen ices contact: Maria J.K. Everett 
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SJR 152: Joint Commission 
on Management of the 
Commonwealth's Work Force 

June 14, 1994, Richmond 

The first meeting of 1994 included a discussion of the 
changes proposed to the state grievance procedure, an overvie\\' 
of the wmk of the Governor's Commission on Government 
Refonn as it relates to the Work Force Commission, a report by 
the Task Force on Continuous Quality Improvement, and a 
Jescription of the 1994 work plan. 

Grievance Procedure 

The Statewide Task Force on the Grievance Procedure and 
the Department ofEmployee Relations Counselors are conduct­
ing a series of public hearings concerning proposed changes to 
the state employee grievance procedure. Complaints that the 
current procedure is inetrective and does not adequately address 
employee concerns prompted the introduction ofSB 408, which 
must be re-enacted by the 1995 SessionofthcGcneralAssembly 
to become law. Proposed changes to the procedure include the 
use of mcJiation in the process, elimination of the three­
member panel, and the designation of hearing otlicers to hear 
grievances and make detenninations. In addition, the Depart­
ment of Employee Relations Counselors will monitor and 
evaluate the effectiveness of employee relations programs in 
state agencies. The department will conduct 20 public hearings 
around the state during the summer to receive comments on the 
proposed changes. 

Governor's Commission on Government Reform 

The Governor's Commission on Government Ret()nn and 
the Joint Commissi<m <m Management of the C\llnmon\Vcallh 's 
Work Force share areas of mutual interest. Among other issues, 
the Governor's Commission is examining compensation sys­
tems, retirement benefits for part-time employees, expanded 
usc of job-sharing and other family friendly policies, more 
hiring tlc:-.:ibility t()r agency heads, management training, 
cafeteria benefits, application of the Fair l...abor Standards i\ct, 
and streamlined lay-otf policies. Included in its recommenda­
tions will be "quick fix'' solutions to some problems as \Vcll as 
longer-tem1 solutions where they are more appropriate. 

Task Force on Continuous Quality Improvement 

Chainnan Hull of the Task Force on Continuous Quality 
Improvement cited seven goals that the task t()rce proposes !Or 
implementing qu .. 1.1ity management in Virginia: 

I. Pn)\ i.de access to quality management orientation ami 
training for all state employees. 
2. Fncilitatc mloptlon of quality management in all state 
agencies, including the elimination of harriers to implement<.!~ 
tion. 
3. Establish state agencies as the benchmarks for other orguni~ 
zations. 
4. Ensure that adequate preparation has occurred within state 
agencies to assure a high level of success, including implemen­
tation of a management skills development plan. 
5. Monitor, measure, and report success in all agencies 
implementing quality management. 
6. Assure long-tenn commitment to quality management 
principles in state government. 
7. Establish a pennanent network to support coordination and 
cooperation among state agencies i1npkmenting lJL41.lity nwn., 
agement. 

In addition, the task t()rce recommended an implementation 
plan that involves the Governor, the General Assembly, and the 
private sector. Statling of the initiative \Yould be provided by 
the Governor's Ofllce, a central state agency, or an office 
established f()r this purpose. 

Continuous quality improvement initiatives have already 
been successfully launched in a number of state agencies, 
including the Virginia Employment Commission, the Medical 
College of Virginia Hospitab, and the Department of Mental 
Health, MentafRetanlation and Substance Abuse Services. 

The commission agreed to include the implementation plan 
in the material that will be available !{1r public comment and to 
send a copy of the draft plan to the Governor's Commission on 
Government Refonn tOr their consideration. 

1994 Work Plan 

The commission will concentrate its etforts in tive areas 
during 1994: 

B With the assistance of a grant from the Commission on the 
State and "[.,oc~ Public Service, the commission \Vill host a one­
day t()rum in October to identit)· ideas and c:-.:emplary practice~ 
for remming barriers to a high pert()mlance work force. This 
f()rum is cosponsored by Virginia Commonwealth University, 
the Virginia Chapter of the American Society· ofPublic Admin­
istration, the Virginia Municipal League, the Virginia Associa­
tion of Counties, and the Virginia Institute on Government. 
Also participating is the Governor's Commission on Govern­
ment Refonn. Employee-management communication, re­
ward systems, retention and mobilit)' of employees, and public 
manager~ompetencies are among the issues that arc likely' to be 
discussed. 

• An inventory and e\'aluation of existing employee benelit 
programs and disability retirement will be conducted by con­
sultants to the commission. 
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Ill The 1994 Appropriation /\ct directed the commission to 
examine agency head compensation, both the kn:l and the 
manner in which increases are dctcnnimxl. 

IIIII finally, the commission intends to etlnduct public hearings 
on its ! 99:; and 1994 preliminary recommendations. 

Ill Career development, including employee mobility nnd 
training. will be rc\iC\\·eJ this year. The Ilonorahle Richard C_ l !ollamL ( 'hairman 

Legislative Services Contact: Nanc~· T ,. Roberts 
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GENERAL NOTICES/ERRATA 

Symbol Key t 
t Indicates entries since last publication of the Virginia Register 

GENERAL NOTICES 

STATE AIR POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD 

t Notice of Right to Petition for Regulation Revision HH 
Concerning Regulated Medical Waste Incinerators 

Introduction 

The 1992 General Assembly of Virginia passed legislation 
to require the promulgation of regulations concerning 
regulated medical waste by September 1, 1993. This 
legislation was resubmitted to the General Assembly in the 
1993 session; however, the deadline for promulgation of 
regulations remained September 1, 1993. Due to changes in 
the Administrative Process Act, and in order to meet the 
September 1 deadline, the board adopted an emergency 
regulation covering regulated medical waste incinerators 
which was effective June 28, 1993, and remained in effect 
for one year. In order to comply with the legislation, the 
board was required to adopt a permanent regulation. 

The law states, "The State Air Pollution Control Board and 
the Virginia Waste Management Board shall each 
promulgate regulations with respect to the permitting of 
infectious waste incinerators ... by September I, 1993, or as 
soon as practicable ·thereafter within the constraints of the 
Administrative Process Act (§ 9-6.14:1 et seq.)." 

On July 14, 1994, the State Air Pollution Control Board 
adopted final amendments to regulations entitled 
"Regulations for the Control and Abatement of Air 
Pollution" (VR 120-01), specifically, Standards of 
Performance for Regulated Medical Waste Incinerators 
(Rule 5-6). The regulation is to be effective on September 
15, 1994. 

In accordance with the Administrative Process Act, 
subsection J of § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia: 

If one or more changes with substantial impact are made to a 
proposed regulation from the time that it is published as a final 
regulation, any person may petition the agency within thirty days 
from the publication of the final regulation to request an opportunity 
for oral and written submittals on the changes to the regulation. If 
the agency receives requests from at least twenty-five persons for an 
opportunity to submit oral and written comments on the changes to 
the regulation, the agency shall suspend the regulatory process for 
thirty days to solicit additional public comment, unless the agency 
determines that the changes made are minor or inconsequential in 
their impact. Agency denial of petitions for a comment period on 

changes to the regulation shall be subject to judicial review. 

In adopting the regulated medical waste regulation, the 
board requested that notice of the right to petition be 
announced. Persons wishing to exercise their right to 
petition should follow the procedures described below. A 
copy of the final regulation has been published in the 
August 8, 1994, edition of the Virginia Register. It may 
also be obtained from the contact U~ted below. 

Procedy_~es 

All requests must be received by the department by close 
of business September 7, 1994, to be considered. Reque~ts 
may be submitted by mail, facsimile transmission (FAX 
number: 804-762-4510) or by personal delivery. All requests 
must be submitted to the Manager, Air Programs Section, 
Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, 
Richmond, Virginia 23240. Facsimile copies will be 
considered only if followed by receipt of the original 
within one week. 

The department contact for any questions about this notice 
is: 

Karen G. Sabasteanski 
Policy Analyst 

Air Programs Section 
Department of Environmental Quality 

P.O. Box 10009 
Richmond, Virginia 23240 

Phone: (804) 762-4426 

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES 

Division of Forensic Science 

Notice to the Public 

Title Qf Regulation: VR 330-02-01. Regulations for Breath 
Alcohol Testing. 

Statutory Authority: §§ 18.2-267 and 18.2-268 of the Code of 
Virginia. 

In accordance with § 3.2 of the Regulations for Breath 
Alcohol '!'e~tin~ an~ gnder the authority of § 18.2-267 of 
the Cocte Qf Virginia, the following devices are approved 
for use as preliminary breath test devices: 

1. The ALCOL YSER, manufactured by Lyon 
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Laboratories, Ltd., Cardiff, Wales, United Kingdom. 

2. The PREVENT, manufactured by BHP Diagnostix, 
West Chester, Pennsylvania. 

3. The A.L.E.R.T. (Alcohol Level Evaluation Road 
Tester), Models J2A, J3A, and J3AC, manufactured by 
Alcohol Countermeasure Systems, Inc., Port Huron, 
Michigan. 

4. The ALCO-SENSOR, 
ALCO-SENSOR III, and 
manufactured by Intoximeters, 

ALCO-SENSOR II, 
ALCO-SENSOR IV, 

Inc., St. Louis, Missouri. 

5. The CMI SD 2, manufactured by Lyon Laboratories, 
Barry, United Kingdom. 

6. The LIFE LOC PBA 3000', manufactured by Life 
Lac Inc., Wheat Ridge, Colorado. 

* When used in the direct sensing mode only. 

In accordance with § 2.6 of the Regulations for Breath 
Alcohol Testing and under the authority of § 18.2-268 of 
the Code of Virginia, the following ampuls are approved 
for use in conducting breath tests on approved breath test 
devices: 

1. Breathalyzer ampuls, manufactured by National 
Draeger, Inc., Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. 

2. Guth ampuls, manufactured by Guth Laboratories, 
Inc., Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. 

In accordance with § 2.6 of the Regulations for Breath 
Alcohol Testing and under the authority of § 18.2-268 of 
the Code of Virginia, the following breath test devices are 
approved for use in conducting breath tests: 

I. The Breathalyzer, Model 900A, manufactured by the 
Stephenson Corporation, Red Bank, New Jersey. 

2. The Breathalyzer, Model 900A, manufactured by 
Smith & Wesson, Corp., Springfield, Massachusetts. 

3. The Breathalyzer, Model 900A, manufactured by 
National Draeger, Inc., Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. 

4. The Intoximeter, Model 3000, equipped with the 
Virginia field module and external printer, 
manufactured by Intoximeters, Inc., Richmond, 
California. 

5. The Intoxilyzer, Model 5000, Series 768VA, equipped 
with the Virginia test protocol, simulator monitor, and 
external printer, manufactured by CMI, Inc., 
Owensboro, Kentucky. 

Vol. 10, Issue 23 

General Notices/Errata 

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY 

Notice to the Public 

The Virginia State Plan for the enforcement of Virginia 
Occupational Safety and Health (VOSH) laws commits the 
Commonwealth to adopt regulations identical to, or as 
effective as, those promulgated by the U.S. Department of 
Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration. 

Accordingly, public participation in the formulation of such 
regulations must be made during the adoption of such 
regulations at the federal level. Therefore, the Virginia 
Department of Labor and Industry is reissuing the 
following federal OSHA notice: 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
29 CFR Parts 1910, 1915, 1926, and 1928 
(Docket No. H-122) 

Indoor Air Quality; Proposed Rule 

Agency: Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
(OSHA) 

Action: Extension of Comment Period and Rescheduling of 
Hearing. 

Summary: The Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (OSHA) is extending the comment period 
and dates for submitting notices of intention to appear, as 
well as hearing testimony and evidence, and is postponing 
the public hearing on the proposed rule on indoor air 
quality which was published on April 5, 1994 (59 FR 
15968). The comment period was to end on June 29, 1994; 
public hearings were scheduled to begin on July 12, 1994. 
Following publication of the proposal, 13 written requests 
to extend the comment period or postpone the public 
hearing were received. As a result of these requests, OSHA 
is extending the comment period to August 13, 1994. 
Public hearings will be scheduled to begin on September 
20, 1994. 

Text: Full text of the proposed rulemaking can be found 
in Volume 59, No. 113, pg. 30560 of the Federal Register. 

Dates: Comments must be postmarked on or before August 
13, 1994. Notices of intention to appear at the public 
hearing must be postmarked on or before August 5, 1994. 
Testimony and evidence to be submitted at the hearing 
must be postmarked by August 13, !994. The hearing will 
commence at 9:30 a.m., Tuesday, September 20, 1994, in 
Washington, D.C. 

Addresses: Comments are to be submitted in quadruplicate 
or one original (hard copy) and one disk (5 l/4 or 3 1/2) 
in WP 5.0, 5.1, 6.0 or Ascii to the Docket Office, Docket 
No. H-122, Room N-2625, U.S. Department of Labor, 200 
Constitution Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20210, 
telephone (202) 219-7894. Any material not submitted on 
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disk, e.g., studies, articles, etc., must be submitted in 
quadruplicate. 

An additional copy of the comments should be submitted 
to the Director of Enforcement Policy, Virginia 
Department of Labor and Industry, 13 South 13th Street, 
Richmond, Virginia 23219. 

Notices of intention to appear and testimony and evidence 
are to be submitted in quadruplicate to Mr. Thomas Hall, 
Division of Consumer Affairs, Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration, 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., 
Room N-3649, Washington, D.C. 20210, telephone (202) 
219-8615. 

The hea.-ing will be held in the auditorium of the U.S. 
Department of Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., 
Washington, D.C. 

For further information contact: Mr. James F. Foster, 
Office of Public Affairs, OSHA, Room N-3647, U.S. 
Department of Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., 
Washington, D.C. 20210, telephone (202) 219-8151. 

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION 

NOTICE TO STATE AGENCIES 

Mailing Address: Our mailing address is: Virginia Code 
Commission, 910 Capitol Street, General Assembly Building, 
2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219. You may FAX in your 
notice; however, we ask that you 371-0169. 

FORMS FOR FILING MATERIAL ON DATES FOR 
PUBLICATION IN THE VIRGINIA REGISTER OF 

REGULATIONS 

All agencies are required to use the appropriate forms 
when furnishing material and dates for publication in The 
Virginia Register Qf Regulations. The forms are supplied 
by the office of the Registrar of Regulations. If you do not 
have any forms or you need additional forms, please 
contact: Virginia Code Commission, 910 Capitol Street, 
General Assembly Building, 2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 
23219, telephone (804) 786-3591. 

FORMS: 

NOTICE of INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION -
RROl 
NOTICE of COMMENT PERIOD - RR02 
PROPOSED (Transmittal Sheet) - RR03 
FINAL (Transmittal Sheet) - RR04 
EMERGENCY (Transmittal Sheet) - RR05 
NOTICE of MEETING - RR06 
AGENCY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE 
OR GUBERNATORIAL OBJECTIONS - RR08 
DEPARTMENT of PLANNING AND BUDGET 
(Transmittal Sheet) - DPBRR09 

Virginia Register of Regulations 

5762 



CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

Symbols Key 
t Indicates entries since last publication of the Virginia Register 
[b;] Location accessible to handicapped 
e Telecommunications Device for Deaf (TDD) /Voice Designation 

NOTICE 

Only those meetings which are filed with the Registrar 
of Regulations by the filing deadline noted at the 
beginning of this publication are listed. Since some 
meetings are called on short notice, please be aware that 
this listing of meetings may be incomplete. Also, all 
meetings are subject to cancellation and The Virginia 
Register deadline may preclude a notice of such 
cancellation. 

For additional information on open meetings and public 
hearings held by the Standing Committees of the 
Legislature during the interim, please call Legislative 
Information at (804) 786-6530. 

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION 

EXECUTIVE 

VIRGINIA AGRICULTURAL COUNCIL 

August 22, 1994 • 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Embassy Suites Hotel, 2925 Emerywood Parkway, 
Richmond, Virginia 18 (Interpreter for the deaf provided 
upon request) 

An annual business meeting. The agenda will consist 
of an annual review of finances, progress reports on 
approved projects, and general business matters. The 
council will allot 30 minutes at the conclusion of the 
business meeting for the public to appear before the 
counciL Any person who needs any accommodation in 
order to participate at the meeting should contact 
Thomas R. Yates at least 10 days before the meeting 
date so that suitable arrangements can be made for 
any appropriate accommodations. 

Contact: Thomas R Yates, Assistant Secretary, Virginia 
Agricultural Council, 1100 Bank SL, Suite 203, Richmond, 
VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6060. 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER 
SERVICES 

Virginia State Apple Board 

t August 16, 1994 • 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Graves Mountain Lodge, Route 670, Syria, Virginia. :El 

and recruitment of a new marketing director. The 
board will entertain public comment at the conclusion 
of all other business for a period not to exceed 30 
minutes. Any person who needs any accommodation in 
order to participate at the meeting should contact the 
person identified in this notice at least five days 
before the meeting date so that suitable arrangements 
can be made for any appropriate accommodation. 

Contact: Nancy Israel, Program Director, Department of 
Agriculture and Consumer Services, 1100 Bank St, 
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3952. 

Virginia Marine Products Board 

t September 6, 1994 · 5:30 p.m. - Open Meeting 
Kiln Creek and Country Club, l 003 Brick Kiln Boulevard, 
Newport News, Virginia. :fu 

The board will meet to receive reports from the 
Executive Director of the Virginia Marine Products 
Board on finance, marketing, past and future program 
planning, publicity /public relations, and old/new 
business. 

Contact: Shirley Estes, Executive Director, Virginia Marine 
Products Board, 554 Denbigh Blvd., Suite B, Newport 
News, VA 23602, telephone (804) 874·3474. 

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD 

August 8, 1994 • 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
August 22, 1994 · 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
September 7, 1994 · 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
September 19, 1994 · 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board, 2901 Hermitage Road, 
Richmond, Virginia. &: 

A meeting to receive and discuss reports and activities 
from staff members. Other matters not yet 
determined. 

Contact: Robert N. Swinson, Secretary to the Board, 
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board, 2901 Hermitage Road, 
P. 0. Box 27491, Richmond, VA 23261, telephone (804) 
367·0616. 

BOARD FOR ARCHITECTS, PROFESSIONAL 
ENGINEERS, LAND SURVEYORS AND LANDSCAPE 

ARCHITECTS 

The board will discuss finances, marketing programs, t August 30, 1994 · 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
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Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. lJ 

An informal fact~finding conference in regard to the 
Board for Architects, Professional Engineers, Land 
Surveyors and Landscape Architects v. Albert E. 
Neighbors, Jr. Persons desiring to participate in the 
meeting and requiring special accommodations or 
interpreter services should contact the department at 
(804) 367-8500. The department fully complies with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. Please notify the 
department of your request for accommodations at 
least two weeks in advance for consideration of your 
request. 

Contact: Carol A. Mitchell, Assistant Director, Board for 
Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors and 
Landscape Architects, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 
23230, telephone (804) 367-8524. 

VIRGINIA ASBESTOS LICENSING BOARD 

September 21, 1994 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
3600 W. Broad St., Conference Room 3, Richmond, Virginia 
~ 

A general meeting. 

Contact: David E. Dick, Assistant Director, Department of 
Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad 
St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8595 or (804) 
367-9753/TDD .. 

AUCTIONEERS BOARD 

September 9, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
through this date. 

September 20, 1994 - 9 a.m. - Public Hearing 
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 2, Richmond, 
Virginia. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the Auctioneers Board 
intends to repeal regulations entitled: VR 150-01-2, 
Rules and Regulations for the Virginia Board of 
Auctioneers and adopt regulations entitled: VR 
150-01-2:1. Rules and Regulations lor the Virginia 
Board of Auctioneers. The proposed regulations 
establish entry requirements for licensure of 
auctioneers and auction firms, examination for 
licensure, licensure by reciprocity, standards of 
practice regarding advertising, contract, escrow 
accounts, records and the standards of conduct for 
auctioneers. The proposed regulations are a result of 
legislative amendments enacted to § 54.1-603 of the 
Code of Virginia, which repealed the registration and 

certification program for auctioneers and established a 
single licensure program. 

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-201 and 54.1-602 of the Code of 
Virginia. 

Contact: Willie Fobbs, Assistant Director, Department of 
Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad 
St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514. 

VIRGINIA AVIATION BOARD 

t August II, 1994 - 4 p,m, - Open Meeting 
t August 12, 1994 - 8 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Sheraton Airport Inn, 4700 South Laburnum Avenue, 
Richmond, Virginia. lJ (Interpreter for the deaf provided 
upon request) 

A work session of the board and the Department of 
Aviation staff. Location accessible to the handicapped. 
Individuals with a disability should contact Nancy 
Brent 10 days prior to the meeting if assistance is 
needed. 

Contact: Nancy C. Brent, Virginia Aviation Board, 4508 S. 
Laburnum Ave., Richmond, VA 23231, telephone (804) 
236-3625. 

Virginia Aviation Conference 

t August 17, 1994 • 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
t August 18, 1994 - 9 a.m, - Open Meeting 
t August 19, 1994 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Renaissance Hotel, 13869 Park Center Road, Herndon, 
Virginia. lJ (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon 
request) 

An annual meeting jointly sponsored by the Virginia 
Aviation Board, Department of Aviation, Virginia 
Airport Operators Council and Virginia Aviation Trades 
Association. Applications for state funding will be 
presented to the board, and other matters of interest 
to the Virginia aviation community will be discussed. 
There will also be guest speakers. Location accessible 
to the handicapped. Individuals with disabilities should 
contact Nancy Brent 10 days prior to the meeting if 
assistance is needed, 

Contact: Nancy C. Brent, 4508 S. Laburnum Ave., 
Richmond, VA 23231-2422, telephone (804) 236-3625. 

BOARD FOR BARBERS 

August 8, 1994 - 9 a,m, - Open Meeting 
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
3600 West Broad Street, 4th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. ~ 

A meeting to: 
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1. Review correspondence 
2. Review examination contract 
3. Conduct review and disposition of enforcement 
cases 
4. Conduct routine board business 

A public comment period will be scheduled during the 
meeting. No public comment will be accepted after 
that period. However, the meeting is open to the 
public. Any person who needs any accommodations in 
order to participate at the meeting should contact 
Karen O'Neal at least 10 days before the meeting date 
so that suitable arrangements can be made for an 
appropriate accommodation. 

Contact: Karen O'Neal, Assistant Director, Board for 
Barbers, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, 
telephone (804) 367-0500. 

CHESAPEAKE BAY LOCAL ASSISTANCE BOARD 

Central Area Review Committee 

August 18, 1994 - 2 p.m. - Open Meeting 
September 15, 1994 - 2 p.m. - CANCELLED 
Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Department, 8th Street 
Office Building, 8th and Broad Streets, 7th Floor, 
Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. Ei (Interpreter for 
the deaf provided upon request) 

The committee will review Chesapeake Bay 
Preservation Area programs for the Central Area. 
Persons interested in observing should call the 
Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Department to verify 
meeting time, location and schedule. Public comment 
will not be received at the committee meeting. Written 
comments, however, are welcome: 

Contact: Receptionist, Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance 
Department, 805 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, 
telephone (804) 225-3440 or toll free 1-800-243-7229/TDD .,. 

Northern Area Review Committee 

August 18, 1994 • 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
September 15, 1994 - 10 a.m. - CANCELLED 
Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Department, 8th Street 
Office Building, 8th and Broad Streets, 7th Floor, 
Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. fl (Interpreter for 
the deaf provided upon request) 

The committee will review Chesapeake Bay 
Preservation Area programs for the Northern Area. 
Persons interested in observing should call the 
Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Department to verify 
meeting time, location and schedule. Public comment 
will not be received at the committee meeting. Written 
comments, however, are welcome. 

Contact: Receptionist, Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance 

Vol. 10, Issue 23 

Calendar of Events 

Department, 805 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, 
telephone (804) 225-3440 or toll free 1-800-243-7229/TDD ""' 

Southern Area Review Committee 

August 24, 1994 - !0 a.m. - Open Meeting 
September 28, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Department, 8th Street 
Office Building, 8th and Broad Streets, 7th Floor, 
Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. ~1 (Interpreter for 
the deaf provided upon request) 

The committee will review local Chesapeake Bay 
Preservation Area programs for the Southern Area. 
Persons interested in observing should call the 
Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Department to verify 
meeting time, location and schedule. Public comment 
will not be received at the committee meeting. Written 
comments, however, are welcome. 

Contact: Receptionist, Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance 
Department, 805 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, 
telephone (804) 225-3440 or toll free 1-800-243-7229/TDD .,.. 

CHILD DAY·CARE COUNCIL 

August 11, 1994 - 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Theater Row Building, 730 East Broad Street, Lower Level, 
Conference Room l, Richmond, Virginia. 6.1 (Interpreter for 
the deaf provided upon request) 

The council will meet to discuss issues, concerns and 
programs that impact child day programs, camps, 
school age programs, and preschool/nursery schools. 
The public comment period will begin at 10 a.m. 
Please call ahead of time for possible changes in 
meeting time. 

Contact: Peggy Friedenberg, Legislative Analyst, Office of 
Governmental Affairs, Department of Social Services, 
Theater Row Bldg., 730 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, 
telephone (804) 692-1820. 

COUNCIL ON CHILD DAY AND EARLY CIIILDIIOOD 
PROGRAMS 

August 9, !994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
State Capitol, Capitol Square, House Room 4, Richmond, 
Virginia. ~ (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon 
request) 

A quarterly business meeting. Public comment will not 
be accepted. 

Contact: Peggy 0. Harrelson, Acting Director, Washington 
Bldg., 1100 Bank St., Suite 1116, Richmond, VA 23219, 
telephone (804) 371-8603. 
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COMPENSATION BOARD 

August 25, 1994 - 1 p.m. - Open Meeting 
t September 28, 1994 - 1 p.m. - Open Meeting 
Ninth Street Office Building, 202 North Ninth Street. 9th 
Floor, Room 913/913A, Richmond, Virginia. l!l (Interpreter 
for the deaf provided upon request) 

A routine business meeting. 

Contact: Bruce W. Haynes, Executive Secretary, 
Compensation Board, P. 0. Box 710, Richmond, VA 
23206-0686, telephone (804) 786-3886/TDD .,.. 

BOARD FOR CONTRACTORS 

Recovery Fund Committee 

September 21, 1994 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. l!l 

A meeting to consider claims filed against the Virginia 
Contractor Transaction Recovery Fund. This meeting 
will be open to the public; however, a portion of the 
discussion may be conducted in executive session. 
Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and 
requiring special accommodations or interpretive 
services should contact Christine Martine at (804) 
367-8561. The department fully complies with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. Please notify the 
department of your request for accommodation at 
least two weeks in advance for consideration of your 
request. 

Contact: Holly Erickson, Assistant Administrator, Board for 
Contractors, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, 
telephone (804) 367-8561. 

BOARD OF CORRECTIONAL EDUCATION 

t August 19, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
James Monroe Building, 7th Floor, 101 North 14th Street, 
Richmond, Virginia. 

A monthly meeting to discuss general business of the 
department. 

Contact: Patty Ennis, Executive Secretary Sr., 101 North 
14th Street, 7th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone 
(804) 225·3314. 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS (STATE BOARD OF) 

August 17, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Drive, Boarq 
Room, Richmond, Virginia. -~l 

A meeting to discuss matters as may be presented to 
the board. 

Contact: Vivian Toler, Secretary to the Board, 6900 Atmore 
Drive, Richmond, VA 23225, telephone (804) 674-3235. 

BOARD FOR COSMETOLOGY 

t September 26, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. l!l 

A general business meeting. Persons desiring to 
participate In the meeting and requiring special 
accommodations or interpreter services should contact 
Karen O'Neal. The department fully comph~s with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. Please notify tile 
department of your request for accommodatiOns at 
least two weeks in advance for consideration of your 
request. 

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Assistant Director, Department 
of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. 
Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-0500 
or (804) 367-9753/TDD 'it 

DEPA!l.Tl\1ENT OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES 
(CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES BOARD) 

August 26, 1994 ~ Written comments may be submitted 
through this date. 

October 5, 1994 - 9 a.m. - Public Hearing 
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Street, House 
Room D, Richmond, Virginia. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the Criminal Justice 
Services Board intends to adopt regulations entitled: 
VR 240-01-15. Rules Relating to Compulsory 
Mininiuq~ Tnlining Standards For Radar Operators. 
The prppq$~4 regulatio?s include specific tra~ning 
requirements !or public law-enforcement officers 
employed by state and local law-enforcement agencies 
who operate radar as part of their assigned duties. 
These training standards include 18 performance based 
training objectives which each officer required to 
operate radar must meet prior to being able to 
operate the unit. Training for radar operators under 
the proposed regulations may be done at the 
employing agency by a certified radar operator 
instructor and records of the training provided are to 
be maintained by the employing agency. Retraining is 
required by December 31 of every third calendar year 
to ensure that the operating officer has retained 
pmliciencY in the oper&tion of the speed measurement 
device. Provisions are available for the exemption or 
partial exemption of the training requirement based 
upon previous training and experience. 
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Statutory Authority: § 9-170(3a) of the Code of Virginia. 

Written comments may be submitted through August 26, 
1994, to L.T. Eckenrode, Department of Criminal Justice 
Services, 805 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219. 

Contact: Paula Scott-Dehetre, Executive 
Department of Criminal Justice Services, 805 E. 
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-4000. 

BOARD OF DENTISTRY 

Assistant, 
Broad St., 

August 13, 1994 - Public comment may be submitted until 
this date. 

Pursuant to subsections C and D § 9-6.14:9.1 of the 
Code of Virginia, Governor George Allen has 
determined that changes with substantial impact were 
made to the proposed regulations and is suspending 
the implementation of VR 255-01-1, Virginia Board of 
Dentistry Regulations, until after an additional 30-day 
public comment period. The Governor indicated his 
concern with the large amount of opposition to the 
"licensure by endorsement" provisions of the 
regulation. 

These regulations establish continuing education for 
dentists and dental hygienists; licensure by 
endorsement for dentists and amend advertising a 
specialty. 

Contact: Marcia J. Miller, Executive Director, Board of 
Dentistry, 6606 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-1717, 
telephone (804) 662-9906. 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (STATE BOARD OF) 

t September 29, 1994 - 8:30 a.m. - Public Hearing 
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Street, Senate 
Room B, Richmond, Virginia. 

t October 7, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
through this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of 
Education intends to amend regulations entitled: VR 
270~01-0009. Regulations Governing Literary Loan 
Applications in Virginia. These regulations are being 
amended to include language required by the 1989 
and 1990 sessions of the General Assembly relating to 
the ceiling on indebtedness to the fund and 
consolidation incentives; to include changes by the 
1991 session to § 22.1-140 of the Code of Virginia; to 
include changes by the 1994 session to § 22.1-146 of 
the Code of Virginia; and to increase the maximum 
loan amount from $2.5 million to $5 million per 
project. 
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Statutory Authority: ~~ 22.1-140 and 22.1-142 et seq. of the 
Code of Virginia. 

Contact: Kathryn S. Kitchen, Division Chief, Department of 
Education, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., Richmond, 
VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2025 or toll-free 
1-800-292-3820. 

LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE -
COUNTY Of MONTGOMERY/TOWN OF BLACKSBURG 

September 13, 1994 - 3 p.m. - Open Meeting 
Montgomery County Courthouse, 3rd Floor, Board of 
Supervisors Room, Christiansburg, Virginia. :!J 

A meeting to discuss the development of a Hazardous 
Materials Emergency Response Plan for Montgomery 
County and the Town of Blacksburg. 

Contact: Steve Via, New River Valley Planning District 
Commission, P. 0. Box 3726, Radford, VA 24143, telephone 
(703) 639-9313 or FAX (703) 831-6093. 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

t August 10, 1994 - 5 p.m. - Public Hearing 
Broad Rock Library, 4820 Warwick Road, Richmond, 
Virginia. :!J 

A public hearing required for Reasonably Available 
Control Technology (RACT) determination for E.l. du 
Pont de Nemours Company in Richmond. 

Contact: Randy Montaperto, Engineer, Department of 
Environmental Quality, 9210 Arboretum Parkway, Suite 
250, Richmond, VA 23236, telephone (804) 323-2409. 

Ad Hoc Advisory Committee on an Expanded Role for 
Local Governments in the Exceptional Waters Process 

t August 17, 1994 - l p.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Environmental Quality, Innsbrook Office 
Park, 4900 Cox Road, Executive Conference Room, Glen 
Allen, Virginia, :& 

The department has established an ad hoc advisory 
committee to assist DEQ staff in drafting a regulatory 
amendment to the Water Quality Standards Regulation 
(VR 680-21-01.3 C) to increase the participation of 
local governments in the nomination and designation 
procedure process for exceptional waters. Another 
meeting of the advisory committee has been scheduled 
for September 7, 1994, at 10 a.m. at 4900 Cox Road, 
Room 1004 in the Training Room; however, this date 
is not firm. Persons interested in attending the 
meetings of this committee should confirm the date 
with the contact person below. 

Contact: Jean W. Gregory, Environmental Program 

Monday, August 8, 1994 
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Manager, Department of Environmental Quality, 4900 Cox 
Rd., Glen Allen, VA 23060, telephone (804) 527-5093. 

Hazardous Waste Technical Advisory Committee 

t August 24, 1994 • 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Environmental Quality, 4900 Cox Road, 
Glen Allen, Virginia. [!;] (Interpreter for the deaf provided 
upon request) 

The committee will meet to assist the department in 
drafting a proposed Amendment 14 to the Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulations, VR 672-10-1. The 
committee will be looking at the. changes made in 
federal regulations since July 1, 1991, as a basis for 
the Jmendment. Meetings will be held on successive 
Wednesdays at the same time and place. Before 
attending, please check with William Gilley, as the 
meeting dates and times are subject to change. 

Contact: William F. Gilley, Regulatory Service Manager, 
Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box I 0009, 
Richmond, VA 23240-0009, telephone (804) 762-4214. 

Technical Advisory Committee 

August II, 1994 . 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
September 1, 1994 • 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Environmental Quality, 629 East Main 
Street, 4th Floor Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. [!;] 

The committee will meet in three sessions to assist 
the development of amendments to Financial 
Assurance Regulations for Solid Waste Disposal 
Facilities (Sanitary Landfills), VR 672-20-1. The draft 
of amended regulations developed as a result of these 
meetings will be presented to the Virginia Waste 
Management Board for consideration. If approved by 
the board, the proposed amendments will be further 
considered in public participation proceedings in 
accord with Public Participation Guidelines, VR 
672-01-01:1. 

Contact: Wladimir Gulevich, Ph.D., P.E., ORPD, 
Department of Environmental Quality, P. 0. Box 10009, 
Richmond, VA 23240-0009, telephone (804) 762-4218 or 
(804) 762-4021/TDD .,.. 

Waste Tire End User Reimbursement Advisory 
Committee 

t August 30, 1994 • 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Environmental Quality, Innsbrook Office 
Park, 4900 Cox Road, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia. [!;] 

A presentation of the Waste Tire End User 
Reimbursement regulations. The regulations allow end 
users of Virginia waste tires to receive a partial 
reimbursement from the Waste Tire Trust Fund. The 
meeting is to receive comments on the proposed 
regulations including the costs and benefits of the 

regulation. 

Contact: Allan Lassiter, Manager, Waste Tire Program, 
Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, 629 
E. Main St., Richmond, VA 23240-0009, telephone (804) 
762-4215. 

Work Group on Detection/Quantitation Levels 

September 14, 1994 • 1:30 p.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Environmental Quality, 4949 Cox Road, Lab 
Training Room, Room ll1, Glen Allen, Virginia. 

The department has established a work group on 
detection quantitation levels lor pollutanlll in the 
regulatory and enforcement programs. Tile work grouo 
will advise tbe Director of Environmental Quauty. 
Other meetings of the work group have been 
scheduled at the same time and location for 
September 28, October 12, October 26, November 9, 
November 30, and December 14. However, these dates 
are not firm. Persons interested in the meetings of 
this work group should confirm the date with the 
contact person below. 

Contact: Alan J. Anthony, Chairman, Department of 
Environmental quality, 4900 Cox Road, Glen Allen, VA 
2306Q, telephOne (804) 52Ni070. 

Virgioia Pollution Prevention Advisory Committee 

August 18, 1994 - I p.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Environmental Quality, Innsbrook Corporate 
Center, 4900 Cox Road, Glen Allen, Virginia. 1J 

A quarterly meeting. The advisory committee has been 
established to assist the Department of Environmental 
Quality in its implementation of voluntary pollution 
prevention technical assistance throughout the 
Commonwealth. 

Contact: Bill ,Sqrnecky, Environmental Engip.eer Sep.iqr, 
Department of Environmental Quality, P. 0. Box 10009, 
Richmon!l, VA ~3240·0009, telephone (804) 762-4347. 

VIRGINIA FIRE SERVICES BOARD 

t August 18, 1994 • 7:30 p.m. - Public Hearing 
Natural Bridge Motel of Virginia, Natural Bridge, Virginia. 

A public hearing to discuss fire training and policies. 
The hearing is open to the public for their input and 
comments. 

t August 19, 1994 • 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Natural Bri<!ge Motel of Virginia, Natural Bridge, Virginia. 

An open meeting to discuss training and policies. The 
meeting is open to the public for comments and input. 
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Contact: V. Carole Necessary, Acting Secretary, Virginia 
Fire Services Board, 2807 N. Parham Rd., Suite 200, 
Richmond, VA 23294, telephone (804) 527-4236. 

Fire/EMS Education and Training Committee 

t August 18, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Natural Bridge Motel of Virginia, Natural Bridge, Virginia. 

A committee meeting to discuss fire training and 
policies. The meeting is open to the public for their 
input and comments. 

Contact: V. Carole Necessary, Acting Secretary, Virginia 
Fire Services Board, 2807 N. Parham Rd., Suite 200, 
Richmond, VA 23294, telephone (804) 527·4236. 

Fire Prevention and Control Committee 

t August 18, 1994 • 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Natural Bridge Motel of Virginia, Natural Bridge, Virginia. 

A committee meeting to discuss fire training and 
policies. The meeting is open to the public for their 
input and comments. 

Contact: V. Carole Necessary, Acting Secretary, Virginia 
Fire Services Board, 2807 N. Parham Rd., Suite 200, 
Richmond, VA 23294, telephone (804) 527-4236. 

Legislative/Liaison Committee 

t August 18, 1994 • 1 p.m. - Open Meeting 
Natural Bridge Motel of Virginia, Natural Bridge, Virginia. 

A committee meeting to discuss fire training and 
policies. The meeting is open to the public for their 
input and comments. 

Contact: V. Carole Necessary, Acting Secretary, Virginia 
Fire Services Board, 2807 N. Parham Rd., Suite 200, 
Richmond, VA 23294, telephone (804) 527-4236. 

BOARD OF GAME AND INLAND FISHERIES 

August 25, 1994 • 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
August 26, 1994 · 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
NOTE: CHANGE IN LOCATION 
Department of Environmental Quality, 4900 Cox Road, 
Richmond, Virginia. -~ 

AMENDED NOTICE 

The Board of Game and Inland Fisheries will meet to 
set the 1994-95 migratory waterfowl seasons and 
propose changes governing seasons, bag limits, 
methods of take and possession of fish and nongame 
wildlife. The board is also expected to consider 
wildlife management regulations relating to the 
following topics: (i) the possession of a validation card 
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or permit when such a card or permit is required to 
hunt and to display such a card or permit upon 
demand of any officer; (ii) permit requirements for 
wolf hybrids: (iii) providing for the transport of 
certain nuisance species by animal control officers 
and businesses that specialize in nuisance animal 
damage control; and (iv) rescinding 9 14 of VR 
325-02-27, which provides for the shooting of wild 
birds and wild animals from stationary vehicles by 
disabled persons since the Code of Virginia now 
provides for this activity. 

Administrative and procedural issues may also be 
discussed by the board. The board will also hold an 
executive session during this meeting. The appropriate 
chairmen of board committees may request committee 
meetings in conjunction with its August meeting or 
thereafter. 

Please note: The board has changed its meeting 
procedure. Public comment is now accepted on the 
first meeting day. If the board completes its meeting 
agenda on August 25, it will not convene a meeting on 
August 26. 

Contact: Belle Harding, Secretary to the Director, Board of 
Game and Inland Fisheries, 4010 W. Broad St., P.O. Box 
11104, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-1000. 

BOARD FOR GEOLOGY 

August 11, 1994 . 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 2, Richmond, 
Virginia. ;J 

August 12, 1994 · 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 3, Richmond, 
Virginia. 6 

A general meeting. 

Contact: David A. Vest, Assistant Director, Department of 
Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad 
St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8307 or (804) 
367-9753/TDD "' 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH (STATE BOARD OF) 

August 12, 1994 • II a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Health, 1500 East Main Street, Suite 214, 
Richmond, Virginia. };: (Interpreter for the deaf provided 
upon request) 

The Executive Committee will conduct a planning 
session for 94-95. 

Contact: Susan R. Rowland, MPA, Assistant to the 
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Commissioner, Department of Health, 1500 E. Main St, 
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3564. 

* * * * * * * * 

September 9, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
through this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Health 
intends to amend regulations entitled: VR 355-29-100. 
Board of Health Regulations Governing Vital 
Records. Section 32.1-273 of the Code of Virginia 
authorizes the Board of Health to prescribe a fee, not 
to exceed $5.00, for searching and certification of vital 
records of birth, death, marriage, and divorce. Senate 
Bill 402, passed by the 1994 General Assembly, raises 
the maximum limit on vital records fees to $8.00. 
Accordingly, the proposed regulations raise the current 
fee of $5.00 to the new fee of $8.00. Comments on the 
costs and benefits of the proposal are requested. 

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-273 of the Code of Virginia. 

Contact: Deborah M. Little, Director, Office of Vital 
Records and Health Statistics, P. 0. Box 1000, Richmond, 
VA 23208-1000, telephone (804) 371-6077 or FAX (804) 
371-4800. 

* * * * * * * * 

August 27, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
until this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Health 
intends to amend regulations entitled: VR 355-33-500. 
Rules and Regulations for the Licensure of Hospitals 
in Virginia. Pursuant to the Commonwealth's efforts to 
increase organ, tissue and eye donation, the routine 
contact protocol regulations are an effort to ensure all 
families of medically suitable donors are given the 
opportunity to consider organ, tissue and eye donation. 
The regulations strengthen the donor program through 
the application of uniform requirements for hospitals 
to inform families of organ donor options. 
Implementation of the proposed regulations will help 
ensure families of donor candidates are advised of the 
options available and give them the opportunity to 
make their own decisions to donate. Comments on the 
costs and benefits of the proposal are requested. 

Statutory Authority: §§ 32.1-12 and 32.1-127 of the Code of 
Virginia. 

Written comments may be submitted until August 27, 1994, 
to Nancy Hofheimer, Director, Office of Health Facilities 
Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Suite 216, Richmond, VA 
23230 or FAX (804) 367-2149. 

Contact: Carrie Eddy, Policy Analyst, Department of 

Health, Office of Health Facilities Regulation, 3600 W. 
Broad St., Suite 216, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 
367-2102 or FAX (804) 367-2149. 

* * * * * * * * 

August 27, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
until this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Health 
intends to amend regulations entitled: VR 355-33-500. 
Rules and Regulations for the Licensure of Hospitals 
in Virginia. Discharge planning services link patients 
departing the hospital with appropriate community 
resources, a service that is especially important for 
drug-exposed infants and their mothers, 
Implementation of the proposed regulations will 
strengthen hospital discharge planning for substance 
abusing postpartum women through the application of 
uniform requirements for informing substance abusing 
women of treatment services available in the 
community. Comments on the cost and benefits of the 
proposal are requested. 

Statutory Authority: §§ 32.1-12 and 32.1-!27 of the Code of 
Virginia. 

Written comments may be submitted until August 27, 1994, 
to Naqcy l!ofheimer, I)irector, Office of Health Facilities 
Regulation, 3600 W. Broa!] St., Suite 216, Richmond, VA 
23230 or PAX (804) 367-2149. 

Contact: Carrie Eddy, Policy Analyst, Department of 
Health, Office of Health Facilities Regulation, 3600 W. 
Broad St., Suite 216, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 
367-2102 or FAX (804) 367-2149. 

VIRGINIA HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COUNCIL 

August 30, 1~94 - 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Blue Cross/llrue Shield, 2015 Staples Mill Road, Richmond, 
Virginia, ~ 

A monthly meeting. 

Contact: Kim Bolden Walker, Public Relations Coordinator, 
Virginia Health Services Cost Review Council, 805 E. 
Broad St., 6th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 
786-6371. 

BOARD FOR HEARING AID SPECIALISTS 

t September 12, !994 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
3600 West llroad $treat, Richmond, Virginia. :.1 

A general business meeting, followed by examination. 
Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and 
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requiring special accommodations or interpreter 
services should contact Karen W. O'Neal. The 
department fully complies with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. Please notify the department of your 
request for accommodations at least two weeks in 
advance for consideration of your request. 

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Assistant Director, Board for 
Hearing Aid Specialists, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 
23230, telephone (804) 367-0500 or (804) 367-9753/TDD ..,. 

******** 

t September 12, 1994 • 9 a.m. - Public Hearing 

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
5th Floor, Conference Room 3, 3600 West Broad Street, 
Richmond, Virginia. 

t October 8, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
until this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the Board for Hearing 
Aid Specialists intends to amend regulations entitled: 
VR 375-0l-02. Board ol Hearing Aid Specialists 
Regulations. The proposed regulations define 
additional terminology, clarify entry criteria for 
licensure, establish examination provisions 
incorporating board policy, clarify renewal and 
reinstatement procedures and the provisions regarding 
standards of practice and conduct, and adjust licensing 
fees as needed in accordance with § 54.1-113 of the 
Code of Virginia. All other amendments are for 
clarity, simplicity and readability. 

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-201 of the Code of 
Virginia. 

Contact: Karen O'Neal, Assistant Director, Board for 
Heari!!g Airl Sr:u~cialists, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 
23230, telephone (804) 367-0500. 

COMMISSION ON THE FUTURE OF HIGHER 
EDUCATION IN VIRGINiA 

September 14, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 

General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Square, Senate 
Room A, Richmond, Virginia. 1;1 

The commission was created by SJR 139 and is 
charged with considering a variety of topics that are 
of interest to higher education in Virginia. 

Contact: Anne M. Pratt, Associate Director, 101 N. 14th St., 
9th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2629. 
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STATE COUNCIL OF HIGHER EDUCATION FOR 
VIRGINIA 

September 25, !994 - Written comments may be submitted 
until this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the State Council of 
Higher Education for Virginia intends to adopt 
regulations entitled: VR 380-04·01. Virginia 
Postsecondary Review Entity Regulations. The 
proposed regulations establish the procedures and 
standards by which the SPRE may review institutions 
participating in the Title IV, HEA programs. 

Statutory Authority: §§ 23-9.6:1 and 23-261 of the Code of 
Virginia. 

Contact: Richard Myers, State Council of Higher Education 
for Virginia, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., 
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-3189. 

DEPARTMENT OF HISTORIC RESOURCES 

State Review Board 

August 16, 1994 · 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Street, Senate 
Room A, Richmond, Virginia. ~ (Interpreter for the deaf 
provided upon request) 

A meeting to consider the nomination of the following 
properties to the National Register of Historic Places. 

1. Cumberland County Courthouse, Cumberland County 
2. Locustville, Lancaster County 
3. Norwood, Clarke County 
4. Oakton Trolley Station, Fairfax County 
5. Two-hundred Block West Franklin Street H.D. 
(boundary increase), City of Richmond 
6. Wytheville Historic District, Wytheville, Wythe 
County 

Contact: Margaret Peters, Information Director, 221 
Governor St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 
786-3143 or (804) 786-1934/TDD "" 

Board of Historic Resources 

t August 17, 1994 · 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Street, Senate 
Room A, Richmond, Virginia. 6-l (Interpreter for the deaf 
provided upon request) 

A general business meeting. 

Contact: Margaret Peters, Information Director, 221 
Governor St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 
786-3143 or (804) 786-1934/TDD ...-
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VIRGINIA IUV PREVENTION COMMUNITY PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 

August 11, 1994 - 8 a.m. - Open Meeting 
The Sheraton Inn-Richmond Airport, 4700 South Laburnum 
A venue, Richmond, Virginia. Ill (Interpreter for the deaf 
provided upon request) 

The committee 
comprehensive 
Commonwealth. 

will 
HIV 

continue 
Prevention 

to work on a 
Plan for the 

Contact: Elaine Martin, Coordinator, AIDS Education, P. 0. 
Box 2448, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 786-0877 
or toll free l-800·533-4148/TDD "" 

HOPEWELL INDUSTRIAL SAFETY COUNCIL 

September 6, 1994 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Hopewell Community Center, Second and City Point Road, 
Hopewell, Virginia. IE} (Interpreter for the deaf provided 
upon request) 

Local Emergency Preparedness Committee Meeting on 
emergency preparedness as required by SARA Title 
Ill. 

Contact: Robert Brown, Emergency Service Coordinator1 

300 North Main Street, Hopewell, VA 23860, telephone 
(804) 541-2298. 

VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

t August 16, 1994 - 11 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Virginia Housing Development Authority, 601 South 
Belvidere Street, Richmond, Virginia. ~ 

A regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of 
the Virginia Housing Development Authority to (i) 
review and, if appropriate, approve the minutes from 
the prior monthly meeting; (ii) consider for approval 
and ratification mortgage loan commitments under its 
various programs; (iii) review the authority's 
operations for the prior month; and (iv) consider such 
other matters and take such other actions as it may 
deem appropriate. Various committees of the Board of 
Commissioners may also meet before or after the 
regular meeting and consider matters within their 
purview. The planned agenda of the meeting will be 
available at the offices of the authority one week 
prior to the date of the meeting. 

Contact: J. Judson McKellar, Jr., General Counsel, Virginia 
Housing Development Authority, 601 S. Belvidere St., 
Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 782-1986. 

HJR NO. 76 INTERNET STAFF STUDY TEAM 

t August 25, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
t September 22, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Information Technology, Richmond Plaza 
Building, 3rd Floor, Richmond, Virginia. ];] 

A meeting to study whether the Commonwealth needs 
to establish protocols and guidelines regarding in-state 
access to the myriad files and components available 
through the Internet. 

Contact: Marty Gillespie, Department of Information 
Technology, Director of Security, llO S. 7th St., 3rd Floor, 
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 344-5705. 

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY 

Virginia Apprenticeship Council 

t September 1, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Capitol Building, House Room 4, Richmond, Virginia. ~ 

A regular meeting of the council to discuss and/or act 
on a schedule for future meeting dates, and update of 
Apprenticeship Council bylaws. 

Contact: Robert S. Baumgardner, Director, Apprenticeship 
Division, Virginia Department of Labor and Industry, 13 S, 
13th St., Riclnnond. VA 23219, telephone (604) 786-~38~, 

STATE LAND EVALUATION ADVISORY COUNCIL 

August 12, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
t September 20, 1994 - I p.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Taxation, 2220 West Broad Street, 
Richmond, Virginia. ~ 

A meeting to adopt suggested ranges of values for 
agricultural, horticultural, forest and open-space land 
use and the u~e-value assessment program. 

Contact: Ronal<! W. Wheeler, Executive Assistant, 
Department of Taxation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 
23219, telephone (804) 367-6920. 

STATE COUNCIL ON LOCAL DEBT 

August 17, 1994 - 11 a.m. - Open Meeting 
September 21, 1994 - 11 a.m. - Open Meeting 
James Monroe Building, lOl N. 14th Street, 3rd Floor, 
Treasury Board Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. ~ 

A regu!ar meeting subject to cancellation unless there 
are actipn ib~Jn§ requiring the council's consideration. 
Persons interested in attending should call one week 
prior to the meeting date to ascertain whether or not 
the meeting is to be held as scheduled. 
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Contact: Gary Ometer, Debt Manager, Department of the 
Treasury, P. 0. Box 1879, Richmond, VA 23215, telephone 
(804) 225-4928. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

t August 11, 1994 - l p.m. - Open Meeting 
Washington Building, 1100 Bank Street, 9th Floor 
Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. :~1 

A regular business meeting. 

Contact: Jerry Simonoff, Information Technology Manager, 
Council on Information Management, 1100 Bank St., 9th 
Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-7711 or 
(804) 225·3624/TDD ..., 

STATE LOTTERY BOARD 

t August 22, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
State Lottery Department, 2201 West Broad Street, 
Richmond, Virginia. lhl (Interpreter for the deaf provided 
upon request) 

A regular monthly meeting of the board. Business will 
be conducted according to items listed on the agenda 
which has not yet been determined. Two periods for 
public comment are scheduled. 

Contact: Barbara L. Rouertson, Lottery Staff Officer, State 
Lottery Department, 2201 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 
23220, telephone (804) 367-3!06 or (804) 367-3000/TDD ,.. 

VIRGINIA MANUFACTURED HOUSING BOARD 

August 17, 1994 - 1 p.m. - Open Meeting 
The Cavalier Hotel, Oceanfront at 42nd Street, Virginia 
Beach, Virginia. :&1 (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon 
request) 

A regular monthly meeting. 

Contact: Curtis L. Mciver, Associate Director, Department 
of Housing and Community Development, Code 
Enforcement and Manufactured Housing Office, 50! N. 2nd 
St., Richmond, VA 23219·1321, telephone (804) 371-7160 or 
(804) 371-7089/TDD ,.. 

MARINE RESOURCES COMMISSION 

t August 23, 1994 - 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Marine Resources Commission, 2600 Washington Avenue, 
4th Floor, Room 403, Newport News, Virginia. ll 
(Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request) 

The commission will hear and decide marine 
environmental matters at 9:30 a.m.; permit applications 
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for projects in wetlands, bottom lands, coastal primary 
sand dunes and beaches; appeals of local wetland 
board decisions; and policy and regulatory issues. 

The commission will hear and decide fishery 
management items at approximately noon. Items to be 
heard are as follows: regulatory proposals, fishery 
management plans, fishery conservation issues, 
licensing, and shellfish leasing. 

Meetings are open to the public. Testimony is taken 
under oath from parties addressing agenda items on 
permits and licensing. Public comments are taken on 
resource matters, regulatory issues and items 
scheduled for public hearing. 

The commission is empowered to promulgate 
regulations in the areas of marine environmental 
management and marine fishery management. 

Contact: Sandra S. Schmidt, Secretary to the Commission, 
Marine Resources Commission, P. 0. Box 756, Newport 
News, VA 23607-0756, telephone (804) 247-8088, toll free 
1-800-541-4646 or (804) 247-2292/TDD ..,. 

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES 
(BOARD OF) 

August 12, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
through this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the Department of 
Medical Assistance Services intends to amend 
regulations entitled: VR 460-03·3.UOO. Amount, 
Duration and Scope of Services; VR 460-02-3.1300. 
Standards Established and Methods Used to Assure 
High Quality of Care; VR 460-02·4.1920. Methods and 
Standards Used to Establish Payment Rates - Other 
Types of Care; and VR 460-04-3.1300. Regulations for 
Outpatient Physical Rehabilitative Services: Physical 
Therapy and Related Services. The purpose of this 
proposal is to amend the State Plan for Medical 
Assistance and VR 460-04-3.1300 concerning the 
authorization and utilization review of physical therapy 
and related services, and to provide guidelines for the 
provision of psychological and psychiatric services in 
schools. 

DMAS has provided reimbursement for physical 
therapy and related services since 1978 under two 
major programs: general physical rehabilitative and 
intensive rehabilitative services. This regulation will 
allow DMAS to categorize general physical outpatient 
rehabilitation (physical therapy, occupational therapy, 
and speech-language pathology services) into two 
subgroups. 

Physician orders are required and must be in place 
before any services are initiated. Guidelines are 
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provided when physical therapy and related conditions 
are to be considered for termination regardless of the 
already preauthorized number of visits or services. 
Guidelines are also provided for psychological and 
psychiatric services, and school divisions are added as 
an entity which can provide these services. In 
addition, revisions are made to the intensive 
rehabilitation regulations by moving detailed language 
for these services from the State Plan to state-only 
regulations. Finally. language is added to the 
reimbursement (feeMfor-service) methodology section of 
the Plan to describe payment for physical therapy and 
related services that may be provided by schools and 
home health agencies. Language was added on the 
recommendation of the Health Care Financing 
Admiristration because this area had not been 
adequately described in the Plan previously. 

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia. 

Written comments may be submitted through August 12, 
1994. to Mary Chiles, Manager, Division of Quality Care 
Assurance, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 
E. Broad St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219. 

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator, 
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad 
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 
371-8850. 

* * * * * * * * 

August 26, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
through this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the Department of 
Medical Assistance Services intends to adopt 
regulations entitled: VR 460-04-8.16. DMAS-122 
Adjustment Process. The purpose of this action is to 
establish and clarify by regulation the DMAS-122 
adjustment process for Medicaid recipients in 
long-term care facilities. Specifically, the roles of the 
Department of Medical Assistance Services and the 
Department of Social Services will be clarified. This 
process is federally mandated and is not a new 
requirement. 

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia. 

Written comments may be submitted through August 26, 
1994, to Mary Chiles, Department of Medical Assistance 
Services, 600 E. Broad St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219 

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator, 
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad 
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 
371-8850. 

******** 

August 26, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
through this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the Department of 
Medical Assistance Services intends to adopt 
regulations entitled: VR 460-10-2500. Medicaid 
Financial Eligibility Requirements - Families and 
Children. The purpose of this action is to promulgate 
state regulations which describe the methods and 
procedures to be used in setting standards and 
determining eligibility for Aid to Families With 
Dependent Children-related medical assistance. 

Because eligibility for receipt of Title XIX services is 
based on income and resources, when determining 
Medicaid eligibility it is necessary to determine the 
income and resources available to each individual in a 
family to determine whether that indiv!dual is eligible 
for Medicaid. Presently, Medicaid eligibility is 
determined in "family and children" cases by dividing 
the family unit into separate budget units when 
children have their own income to ensure that the 
income of the child is not deemed available to the 
support of his parent or his sibling. These regulations 
revise the methodologies for determining income and 
resource eligibility under Medicaid, including the 
financial responsibility of relatives, and for 
determining how the income and resources of 
members of families are to be considered during the 
determination of eligibility for Medicaid. 

These propqsed regulations track federal regulations 
published January I, 1993, except in one significant 
area, "deeming," which is specifically prohibited under 
§ 1902(a) (17) (D) of the Social Security Act. Only the 
income and resources of a parent for a child or of a 
spouse for a spouse may be deemed to be available if 
they are living together. In order to assure that the 
individual standards of Medicaid applicants are not 
reduced by the presence of any nonlegally responsible 
relative in the assistance unit, these individuals will be 
removed from the unit before the standards are 
prorated for individuals remaining in the unit. 

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia, 

Written comments may be submitted through August 26, 
1994, to Ann Cook, Eligibility Consultant, Department of 
Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad St., Suite 1300, 
Richmond, VA 23219. 

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator, 
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad 
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 
371-8850. 

******** 

September 23, l994 - Written comments may be submitted 
through this date. 
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Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the Department of 
Medical Assistance Services intends to adopt 
regulations entitled: VR 460-01-53, 460-01-53.1, 
460-01-53.2, and 460-02-4.1730. Liens and Recoveries: 
OBRA 93 Estate Recoveries. The purpose of this 
action is to amend the Plan for Medical Assistance 
concerning estate recoveries consistent with the 
requirements of OBRA 93 § 13612 and of §§ 32.1-326.1 
and 32.1-327 of the Code of Virginia. The process of 
recovering funds when they have been expended for 
persons who had their own resources, but did not use 
them for their own medical care, returns general fund 
dollars to the Commonwealth. 

Sections 32.1-326.1 and 32.1-327 of the Code of Virginia 
provide for the recovery, by the Title XIX agency, of 
expenditures for certain services from the estates of 
recipients. The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 
1993 § 13612 (OBRA 93) permitted the recovery of 
Title XIX expended funds from the estates of 
individuals for all Medicaid covered services. The 
inclusion of states' estate recovery policies in their 
state plans for medical assistance was required by the 
cited OBRA section. Since 1984, DMAS has exercised 
its authority under state law and recovered 
expenditures for all Medicaid covered services. The 
fact that the new federal law makes recovery of 
institutional payments mandatory, but this degree of 
recovery an option for states lacking similar state 
authority, is what causes this regulatory action to be 
subject to the Article 2 requirements of the 
Administrative Process Act. 

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia. 

Written comments may be submitted through September 
23, 1994, to Jesse R. Garland, Director, Fiscal Division, 
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad 
Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, Virginia 23219. 

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator, 
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad 
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 
371-8850. 

******** 

September 23, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
through this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9~6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the Department of 
Medical Assistance Services intends to amend 
regulations entitled: VR 460-02-4.1920, Methods and 
Standards lor Establishing Payment Rates-Other 
Types of Care; VR 460-03-4.1921, Fees lor Pediatric 
and Obstetric CPT Procedures; VR 460-03-4.1924, 
State Agency Fee Schedule: Resource Based Relative 
Value Scale. The purpose of this proposal is to 
implement a new medical and surgical fee schedule 
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lor the agency which is based on the federal RBRVS. 
The program reimburses fee-for-service providers the 
lower of the state agency fee schedule or their actual 
charge to the general public. The 1994 Appropriations 
Act j l-88(313)(W) directs the Board of Medical 
Assistance Services (BMAS) to develop a RBRVS-based 
physician fee schedule for approval by the HCF A. 
RBRVS-based reimbursement links the fee for a 
service to research~based estimates of the resources 
necessary to provide that service. 

Prior to January 1, 1992, HCFA also used a fee 
schedule based on provider charges to reimburse 
physicians for their services rendered to Medicare 
beneficiciries. However, HCFA concluded that the fees 
it paid for services did not have a consistent, rational 
relationship to the actual resources utilized to provide 
those services. Therefore, HCFA developed a 
RBRVS-based fee schedule. HCFA assigned a "relative 
value" to each service expressed in relative value 
units (RVUs). HCFA computes the fee for a service by 
multiplying its RVUs times one of three conversion 
factors (CFs) which it developed for different types of 
services. The Department of Medical Assistance 
Services (DMAS) is amending HCFA's RVUs for its 
RBRVS-based fee schedule. DMAS will use HCFA's CFs 
after they have been adjusted by an additional factor 
to maintain budget neutrality. DMAS may revise the 
additional factor whenever HCFA updates its RVUs or 
CFs so that no change in expenditure will result solely 
from such update. DMAS will estimate RBRVS-type 
fees for services that have no HCFA RVUs and use 
existing fees for services for which it is unable to 
estimate an RBRVS-type fee. The RBRVS-based fees 
will be effective July I, 1995, and will be phased in 
over a three-year period. There will be one fee 
schedule for the entire state with no geographic 
adjusters. 

Implementation of the RBRVS-based lee schedule will 
affect each provider differently depending on the 
types of services provided since the allowable fee will 
increase for some services and decrease for others. 
The agency projects no significant negative issues 
involved in implementing this proposed change. The 
primary advantage of this regulation is that 
reimbursement for primary care services will be 
enhanced. 

This change to the fee schedule is undertaken only 
after obtaining input from the physician community. 
During 1993, DMAS convened an advisory committee 
composed of physicians selected by professional 
societies throughout the state. After several months of 
deliberation, a majority of this group voted to 
recommend to the department that it proceed to seek 
authorization to implement a RBRVS-based fee 
schedule. The details of the present proposal are 
consistent with the recommendations of the committee. 
All physician providers and some nonphysician 
providers (such as nurse practitioners) throughout the 
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state will be affected. Provided there are no changes 
in the types of services provided as a result of the 
new fee schedule, there should be no impact on 
Medicaid recipients and the implementation of the 
new fee schedule should be budget neutral. Medicaid 
spent approximately $205 million (total funds) for 
these services in SFY 94, and expects to spend $244.8 
million (total funds) in SFY 95. There are no localities 
which are uniquely affected by these regulations as 
they apply statewide. 

Statutory Authority: § 32.1·325 of the Code of Virginia. 

Written comments may be submitted through September 
23, 1994, to Scott Crawford, Manager, Division of Cost 
Settlement and Audit, Department of Medical Assistance 
Services, 600 East Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, 
Virginia 23219. 

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator, 
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad 
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 
371·8850. 

t October 7, 1994 
through this date. 

******** 

Written comments may be submitted 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the Department of 
Medical Assistance Services intends to ame.nd 
regulations entitled: VR 460-03-4.1940:1. Nursing Home 
Payment System (Balloon Loan Financing). The 
purpose of this action is to amend the State Plan for 
Medical Assistance to specifically address existing 
reimbursement policies relating to balloon loan 
financing, in light of regulations addressing refinancing 
for nursing facilities. This amendment is the result of 
policies adopted by the Board of Medical Assistance 
Services on December 14, 1992, regarding refinancing 
of balloon loans in response to requests by providers 
that DMAS establish a policy for balloon loan 
financing based on current State Plan language. This 
action incorporates the specific language of the 
balloon loan financing policy into the State Plan. 

The Nursing Home Payment System (NHPS) provides 
that costs incurred due to a refinancing cannot exceed 
the total costs that would have been allowable had the 
refinancing not occurred. This could be interpreted to 
prohibit reimbursement for the refinancing of a 
balloon loan at the expiration of the term of the 
original note since payment of the balloon principal 
would eliminate the debt on the nursing facility and 
the associated interest cost to the Medicaid program. 
Providers were asking for a specific policy to address 
balloon loan financing due to the reluctance of 
financial institutions to make long~term loans to the 
health care industry. 

The department developed this policy in 1992 to 
accommodate the needs of the provider community at 
a minimum cost to the Medicaid program. Under this 
policy as promulgated, § 2.4 of the NHPS would 
permit the refinancing of a balloon loan as limited by 
the procedures. 

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia. 

Written comments may be submitted until October 7, 1994, 
to Richard Weinstein, Manager, Division of Cost 
Settlement, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 
East Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219. 

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator, 
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad 
Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 
37J.88:i0, 

BOARD OF MEDICINE 

Credentials Committee 

August 13, 1994 - 8:15 a,m, - Open Meeting 
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 
5th Floor, Board Rooms 3 an<l 4, Richmond, Virginia. 1iJ 

The committee will meet in open and closed session 
to conduct general business, interview and review 
medical credentials of applicants app]ying for 
licen~ure in Virginia, ami to gi~cus§ anY otller items 
which may come before the committee. The 
committee will receive public comments of those 
persons appearing on behalf of candidates. 

Contact: Eugenia K. Dorson, Deputy Executive Director of 
Discipline, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. 
Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone 
(804) 662-9923 or (804) 662-7197 /TDD ,.. 

Executive Committee 

August 12, 1994 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of !lealtll Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 
5th Floor, Board Rooms 1 and 2, Richmond, Virginia. ~ 

The committee will meet in open and closed session 
to review cases of files requiring administrative action, 
adopt amendments for approval of promulgation of 
regulations as presented. The full board may meet at 
1 p.m. to hold a formal hearing regarding a pending 
matter. The chairman will entertain public comments 
following the adoption of the agenda for 10 minutes 
on agenda items. 

Contact: Eugenia K. Dorson, Peputy Executive Director of 
Piscipline, Department of Jlealth Protessialls, 6606 w. 
Broad St., 4t!l Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone 
(804) 662-9923 or (804) 662-7197 /TDD ..,. 
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Legislative Committee 

September 9, 1994 ~ 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 
5th Floor, Board Room 3, Richmond, Virginia .. &.i 

The committee will meet to develop a 
recommendation to the full board on "short term use" 
of pharmacotherapy for weight loss; develop 
regulations for licensure by endorsement for doctors 
of chiropractic; develop regulations for implementation 
of House Bill 266 relating to unprofessional conduct; 
develop regulations for implementation of Senate Bill 
474; and such other business that may be presented. 
The chairperson will entertain public comments 
following the adoption of the agenda for I 0 minutes 
on any agenda items. 

Contact: Eugenia K. Dorson, Deputy Executive Director of 
Discipline, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th 
Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9923 
or (804) 662-7197 /TDD .,.. 

Advisory Board on Physician's Assistants 

t September 9, 1994 - 2 p.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 
5th Floor, Board Room 3, Richmond, Virginia. JJ 

The Advisory Committee on Physician's Assistants will 
(i) review the board's position on home care (house 
calls); (ii) review and adopt the additions to the list 
of approved schools; and (iii) review such other 
business that may be presented. There will be a 10 
minute period for public comments on specific agenda 
items. 

Contact: Eugenia K. Dorson, Deputy Executive Director of 
Licensing, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, 
Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9923 or 
(804) 662-7197 /TDD ..,. 

DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH, MENTAL 
RETARDATION AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

(STATE BOARD OF) 

September U, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
until this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9·6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the State Mental Health, 
Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services 
Board intends to repeal regulations entitled: VR 
470-01-01. Public Participation Guidelines and adopt 
regulations entitled: VR 470-01-01:1. Public 
Participation Guidelines. The purpose of this 
regulation is to adopt Public Participation Guidelines 
in conformance with § 9-6.14:7 .I of the Code of 
Virginia. 
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Statutory Authority: ~~ 9-6.14:7.1 and 37.1-10 of the Code of 
Virginia. 

Contact: Rubyjean Gould, Administrative Services Director, 
Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and 
Substance Abuse Services. P. 0. Box 1797, Richmond, VA 
23214, telephone (804) 786·3915. 

* * * * * * * * 

August 16, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
until this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the State Mental Health, 
Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services 
Board intends to repeal regulations entitled: VR 
470a02-03. Rules and Regulations for the Licensure of 
Private Psychiatric Hospitals; VR 470-02-07. Rules 
and Regulations for the Licensure of Correctional 
Psychiatric Facilities; VR 470-02-08. Rules and 
Regulations for the Licensure of Supported 
Residential Programs and Residential Respite 
Care/Emergency Services Facilities; VR 47Ca02-09. 
Rules and Regulations for the Licensure of 
Outpatient Facilities; VR 470a02al0, Rules and 
Regulations for the Licensure of Day Support 
Programs; and VR 470a02all, Rules and Regulations 
for the Licensure of Residential Facilities and adopt 
regulations entitled: VR 470-02-13. Regulations for the 
Licensure of Facilities and Providers of Mental 
Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse 
Services. The purpose of these regulatory actions is to 
redraft and consolidate six current licensure 
regulations for all licensable facilities except 
residential facilities for children. 

Statutory Authority: § 37.1-10(6) and Chapter 8 (§ 37.1-179 
et seq.) of Title 37 .l of the Code of Virginia. 

Written comments may be submitted until August 16, 1994, 
to Jacqueline M. Ennis, Assistant Commissioner, 
Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and 
Substance Abuse Services, P. 0. Box 1797, Richmond, VA 
23214. 

Contact: Edith Smith, Manager, Licensure Operations, 
Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and 
Substance Abuse Services, P. 0. Box 1797, Richmond, VA 
23214, telephone (804) 371-6885. 

VIRGINIA MENTAL HEALTH PLANNING COUNCIL 

t August 31, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Henrico County Mental Health and Retardation Services, 
10299 Woodman Road, Glen Allen, Virginia. ,&J (Interpreter 
for the deaf provided upon request) 

The council meets at least four times a year. Its 
mission is to advocate for a consumer and family 
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oriented, integrated and community-based system of 
mental health care of the highest quality. The council 
continuously monitors and evaluates the 
implementation of the state's mental health plan. 

Contact: Jeanette DuVal, Policy Analyst, Department of 
Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse 
Services, P.O. Box 1797, Richmond, VA 23214, telephone 
(804) 371-0359 or (804) 371-8977 /TDD "" 

STATE MILK COMMISSION 

t August 17, 1994 - 10:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Ninth Street Office Building, 200 North 9th Street, Suite 
1015, Richmond, Virginia. -~1 (Interpreter for the deaf 
provided upon request) 

A regular meeting to discuss inclustry issues, 
distributor licensing, Virginia base transfers, Virginia 
baseholding license amendments, regulations, fiscal 
matters, and to receive reports from staff of the Milk 
Commission. Additionally, the commission will review 
a request to consider amending Regulation No. 10, 
paragraph 7(G)(2) of the Rules and Regulations for 
the Control, Regulation and Supervision of the Milk 
Industry in Virginia. The commission may consider 
other matters pertaining to its responsibilities. Persons 
who require accommodations in order to participate at 
this meeting should contact Edward C. Wilson, Jr., 
Deputy Administrator, at least five days prior to the 
meeting date so that suitable arrangements can be 
made. 

Contact: Edward C. Wilson, Jr., Deputy Administrator, Milk 
Commission, 200 N. 9th St., Suite 1015, Richmond, VA 
23219-3414, telephone (804) 786-2013/TDD "" 

DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES 

Motor Vehicle Dealers' Advisory Board 

t September 7, 1994 • 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Motor Vehicles Headquarters, 2300 West 
Broad Street, Room 702, Richmond, Virginia. j;J 

A scheduled meeting of the board. No public comment 
will be received at this meeting. 

Contact: L. Stephen Stupasky, Manager, Dealer Services, 
Department of Motor Vehicles, 2300 W. Broad St., 
Richmond, VA 23269-0001, telephone (804) 367-2921 or 
(804) 367-0261. 

BOARD OF NURSING 

Nurse Aide Registry 

t August 9, 1994 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 
5th Floor, Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. 1J 
(Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request) 

t August 18, 1994 - Jl a.m. - Open Meeting 
Alcoholic Beverage Control Building, 8431 Timberlake 
Road, Suite A, Lynchburg, Virginia. j;J (Interpreter for the 
deaf provided upon request) 

A formal hearing with certified nurse aides to 
determine what, if any, action should be 
recommended to the board. Public comment will not 
be received. 

Contact: Nancy K. Durrett, R.N., M.S.N., Assistant 
Executjve Director, ),loard of Nursing, 6606 W. Broad St., 
4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 
662-9909 or (804) 662-7197 /TDD .,. 

Special Conference Committee 

t August 18, 1994 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 
5th Floor, Conference Room 3, Richmond, Virginia. j;J 

(Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request) 

A special conference committee comprised of two 
members of the Virginia Board of Nursing will 
conduct informal conferences with licensees to 
determine if any action should be recommended to 
the Board of Nursing. Public comment will not )>e 
recelve~t 

Contact: M. Teresa Mullin, R.N., Assistant Executive 
Director, Board of Nursing, 6606 W. Broad St., Richmond, 
VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9909 or (804) 662-7197/TDD .. 

BOARD OF OPTOMETRY 

t August 17, 1994 - 8 a.m. - Open Meeting 
t August 17, 1994 - 3 p.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 
4th Floor, Conference Room 4, Richmond, Virginia. j;J 

(Interpreter for the deaf provided upon reque~t) 

An informal conference meeting. Brief public comment 
will be received at the beginning of the meeting. 

t August 17, 1994 - 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 
4th Floor, Conference Room 4, Richmond, Virginia. [6] 

A general board meeting. Brief public comment will 
be received at the beginning of the meeting. 

t August 17, 1994 - 1:30 p.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of }lealth Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 
4th Floor, Conference Room 4, Richmond, Virginia. ~ 
(Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request) 
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A formal hearing. Brief public comment will be 
received at the beginning of the meeting. 

Contact: Carol Stamey, Administrative Assistant, Board of 
Optometry, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 
23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9910 or (804) 
662-7197/TDD "" 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

August 10, 1994 - 8:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 
5th Floor, Conference Room 2, Richmond, Virginia. ~~.1 

A board meeting and formal hearings. The board will 
ratify the Notice of Intent to promulgate regulations 
for foreign pharmacy graduates. This is a public 
meeting and there will be a 15 minute public 
comment period from 8:30 a.m. to 8:45 a.m. 

Contact: Scotti W. Milley, Executive Director, Board of 
Pharmacy, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 
23230, telephone (804) 662-9911. 

PROTECTION AND ADVOCACY FOR INDIVIDUALS 
WITH MENTAL ILLNESS ADVISORY COUNCIL 

August 18, 1994 - 9 a,m, - Open Meeting 
Shoney's Inn, 7007 West Broad Street, Conference Room, 
Richmond, Virginia. ~' (Interpreter for the deaf provided 
upon request) 

A regular bimonthly meeting. Time is provided for 
public comment at the start of the meeting. 

Contact: Kenneth Shores, Department for Rights of 
Virginians with Disabilities, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 
14th St., 17th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 
225-2042 Voice or TDD ,.. 

REAL ESTATE APPRAISER BOARD 

t September 20, 1994 - 10 a,m, - Open Meeting 
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. &I 

A general business meeting. Persons desiring to 
participate in the meeting and requiring special 
accommodations or interpreter services should contact 
Karen W. O'Neal. The department fully complies with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act. Please notify the 
department of your request for accommodations at 
least two weeks in advance for consideration of your 
request. 

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Assistant Director, Real Estate 
Appraiser Board, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, 
telephone (804) 367-0500 or (804) 367-9753/TDD ,.. 
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Complaints Committee 

August 31, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. •J 

A meeting to review complaints. Persons desiring to 
participate in the meeting and requiring special 
accommodations or interpretive services should contact 
Karen W. O'Neal. The department fully complies with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act. Please notify the 
department of your request for accommodation at 
least two weeks in advance for consideration of your 
request. 

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Assistant Director, Real Estate 
Appraiser Board, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, 
telephone (804) 367-0500 or (804) 367-9753/TDD e 

REAL ESTATE BOARD 

August 15, 1994 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. lJ 

A formal hearing in regard to the Real Estate Board 
v. Linda P. Hackett. File Number 93-00242. 

Contact: Barbara B. Tinsley, Legal Assistant, Real Estate 
Board, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone 
(804) 367-8589. 

August 23, 1994 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. lJ 

A formal hearing in regard to the Real Estate Board 
v. Larry J. Timbrook. File Number 93-00594. 

Contact: Barbara B. Tinsley, Legal Assistant, Real Estate 
Board, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone 
(804) 367-8589. 

STATE REHABILITATION ADVISORY COUNCIL 

September 23, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Rehabilitative Services, 8004 Franklin 
Farms Drive, Richmond, Virginia. 

A regular quarterly meeting. 

Contact: Dr. Ronald C. Gordon, Commissioner, Department 
of Rehabilitative Services, 8004 Franklin Farms Dr., 
Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-7010, toll-free 
1-800-552-5019 or (804) 662-9040/TDD e 
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VIRGINIA RESOURCES AUTHORITY 

August 9, 1994 - 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Virginia Resources Authority, The Mutual Building, 909 
East Main Street, Board Room, Suite 607, Richmond, 
Virginia. 

The board will meet to approve minutes of the 
meeting of July 12, 1994; to review the authority's 
operations for the prior months and to consider other 
matters and take other actions as it may deem 
appropriate. The planned agenda of the meeting will 
be available at the offices of the authority one week 
prior to the date of the meeting. Public comments will 
be received at the beginning of the meeting. 

Contact: Shockley D. Gardner, Jr., Virginia Resources 
Authority, 909 E. Main St., Suite 607, Richmond, VA 23219, 
telephone (804) 644-3100 or FAX (804) 644-3109. 

SEWAGE HANDLING AND DISPOSAL APPEALS 
REVIEW BOARD 

August 10, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Street, Senate 
Room A, Richmond, Virginia. :~1 

t September 21, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
County of Henrico, Administrative Building, 4301 East 
Parham Road, Board of Supervisors Board Room, 
Richmond, Virginia. ~-~~ 

A meeting to hear all administrative appeals of 
denials of onsite sewage disposal systems permits 
pursuant to §§ 32.1-166.1 et seq. and 9-6.14:12 of the 
Code of Virginia and VR 355-34-02. 

Contact: Constance G. Talbert, Secretary to the Board, 
1500 E. Main St., P.O. Box 2448, Suite 117, Richmond, VA 
23218, telephone (804) 786-1750. 

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES (STATE BOARD 
OF) 

August 13, 1994 
until this date. 

Written comments may be submitted 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Social 
Services intends to repeal regulations entitled: VR 
615-01-0l. Public Participation Guidelines. The 
purpose of this action is to repeal existing public 
participation guidelines. 

Statutory Authority: § 63.1-25 of the Code of Virginia. 

Contact: Margaret J. Friedenberg, Policy Analyst, 
Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad St., 
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1820. 

August 13, 1994 
until this date. 

* * * * * * * * 

Written comments may be submitted 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Social 
Services intends to adopt regulations entitled: VR 
615-01-01:1. Public Participation Guidelines. This 
regulation describes the ways in which the state board 
and department will solicit and consider public 
comments. 

Statutory Authority: § 63.1-25 of the Code of Virginia. 

Contact: Margaret J. Friedenberg, Policy Analyst, 
Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad St., 
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1820. 

* * * * * * * * 

t October 7, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
through this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Social 
Services intends to amend regulations entitled: VR 
615-01-29. Aid to Families with Dependent Children 
(AFDC) Program Disregarded Income and 
Resources. The proposed regulation modifies AFDC 
regulations to require that all bona fide loans be 
disregarded in the evaluation of financial eligibility for 
benefits. The regulation defines what is required for a 
loan to be considered bona fide. 

Statutory Authority: § 63.1-25 of the Code of Virginia. 

Written comments may be submitted through October 7, 
1994, to Constance 0. Hall, AFDC Program Manager, 
Division of Benefit Programs, Department of Social 
Services, 730 East Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia 
23219-1849. 

Contact: Peggy Friedenberg, Policy Analyst, Department of 
Social Services, 7 30 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 
2nl9-1849, telephone (804) 692-1820. 

VIRGINIA SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION BOARD 

September 26, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
until this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9·6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Soil and 
Water Conservation Board intends to amend 
regulations entitled: VR 625-02-00. Erosion and 
Sediment Control Regulations. Sections 10.1-502 and 
10.1-561 of the Code of Virginia authorize the Virginia 
Soil and Water Conservation Board to promulgate 
regulations to implement the Erosion and Sediment 
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. Control Law. This action is necessary to amend the 
existing regulations which became effective September 
13, 1990, due to the passage of Chapter 925 of the 
1993 Virginia Acts of Assembly and other legislative 
changes since last amendment. The regulations 
establish minimum statewide standards for the control 
of soil erosion, sediment deposition and nonagricultural 
runoff from land-disturbing activities that must be met 
in local erosion and sediment control programs, and 
also by state agencies that conduct land-disturbing 
activities. Land-disturbing activities include, but are not 
limited to, clearing, grading, excavating, transporting 
and filling of land. 

Statutory Authority: §§ 10.1-502 and 10.1-561 of the Code of 
Virginia. 

Contact: James P. Edmonds, Urban Conservation Engineer, 
Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor 
St., Suite 206, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 
786-3997 or FAX (804) 786-1798. 

* * * * * * * * 

September 26, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
until this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Soil and 
Water Conservation Board intends to adopt regulations 
entitled: VR 625-02-01. Erosion and Sediment Control 
Certification Regulations. The proposed regulations 
establish mimmum statewide standards for the 
certification of erosion and sediment control plan 
reviewers, inspectors, and program administrators. The 
regulations provide four classifications of certification: 
Program Administrator, Plan Reviewer, Inspector, and 
Combined Administrator. In addition, the regulations 
provide for eligibility requirements, fees, examinations, 
applications, and discipline of certified personnel. 
Training will be based upon the Erosion and Sediment 
Control Law and attendant regulations which establish 
minimum statewide standards for the control of soil 
erosion, sediment deposition and nonagricultural runoff 
from land-disturbing activities. Land-disturbing 
activities include, but are not limited to, clearing, 
grading, excavating, transporting and filling of land. 
Certification will be based upon completion of the 
training programs, work experience or combination 
thereof, plus obtaining a passing grade on the 
certification test. Recertification and decertification 
are also covered by the regulations. 

Statutory Authority: §§ 10.1-502 and 10.1-561 of the Code of 
Virginia. 

Contact: James P. Edmonds, Urban Conservation Engineer, 
Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor 
St., Suite 206, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 
786-3997 or FAX (804) 786-1798. 
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SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTATION 

August 10, 1994 - I p.m. - Open Meeting 
J. Sargeant Reynolds Community College, North Run 
Business Park Auditorium, Richmond, Virginia. 

The Secretary of Transportation is conducting a 
strategic planning process to develop strategies to 
improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the 
Commonwealth's transportation system. Transportation, 
business and community leaders and the public are 
asked to provide their suggestions and ideas. 

Contact: Kevin Landergan, Senior Policy Analyst, 1401 E. 
Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-7632. 

COMMONWEALTH TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

t August 17, 1994 - 2 p.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Transportation, 1401 East Broad Street, 
Richmond, Virginia. :&i (Interpreter for the deaf provided 
upon request) 

A work session of the Commonwealth Transportation 
Board and the Department of Transportation staff. 

t August 18, 1994 • 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Transportation, 1401 East Broad Street, 
Richmond, Virginia. ~, (Interpreter for the deaf provided 
upon request) 

A monthly meeting of the board to vote on proposals 
presented regarding bids, permits, additions and 
deletions to the highway system, and any other 
matters requiring board approvaL Public comment will 
be received at the outset of the meeting on items on 
the meeting agenda for which the opportunity for 
public comment has not been afforded the public in 
another forum. Remarks will be limited to five 
minutes. Large groups are asked to select one 
individual to speak for the group. The board reserves 
the right to amend these conditions. 

Contact: Robert E. Martinez, Secretary of Transportation, 
1401 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 
786-8032. 

TREASURY BOARD 

August 17, 1994 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
September 21, 1994 • 9 a.m. - Open Meeting 
James Monroe Building, 101 North 14th Street, Treasury 
Board Room, 3rd Floor, Richmond, Virginia. ill 

A regular meeting of the board. 

Contact: Gloria J. Hatchel, Administrative Assistant to the 
Treasurer, Department of the Treasury, 101 N. 14th St., 
3rd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-6011. 

Monday, August 8, 1994 
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VIRGINIA RACING COMMISSION 

t August 10, 1994 - 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
State Corporation Commission, Tyler Building, 1300 East 
Main Street, Richmond, Virginia. [] 

A regular commission meeting including a discussion 
of the review of regulations. 

t August 31, 1994 - 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting 
State Corporation Commission, Tyler Building, 1300 East 
Main Street, Richmond, Virginia. ~ 

A meeting to discuss applications to construct, own 
and operate a racetrack. 

Contact: William H. Anderson, Policy Analyst, Virginia 
Racing Commission, P.O. Box 1123, Richmond, VA 23208, 
telephone (804) 371-7363. 

VIRGINIA VOLUNTARY FORMULARY BOARD 

t September 12, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Public Hearing 
James Madison Building, 109 Governor Street, Main Floor 
Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. 

A public hearing to consider the proposed adoption 
and issuance of revisions to the Virginia Voluntary 
Formulary. The proposed revisions to the Formulary 
add and delete drugs and drug products to the 
Formulary that became effective on May 1, 1994. 
Copies of the proposed revisions to the Formulary are 
available for inspection at the Department of Health, 
Bureau of Pharmacy Services, James Madison 
Building, 109 Governor Street, Richmond, Virginia 
23219. Written comments sent to the above address 
and received prior to 5 p.m. on September 12, 1994, 
will be made a part of the hearing record. 

Contact: James K. Thomson, Bureau of Pharmacy Services, 
Virginia Voluntary Formulary Board, 109 Governor St., 
Room Bl-9, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-4326. 

VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

t September 7, 1994 - 7 p.m. - Public Hearing 
Department of Environmental Quality, Innsbrook Corporate 
Center, 4900 Cox Road, Glen Allen, Virginia. 

t September 8, 1994 - 7 p.m. - Public Hearing 
Clinch Valley Community College, Norton, Virginia. 

t October 7, 1994 - Written comments may be submitted 
through this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Waste 
Management Board intends to adopt regulations 
entitled VR 672-20-20. Regulation Governing 

Management of Coal Combustion By-Products. The 
purpose of the proposed regulation is to provide for 
the use of coal combustion by-products and to 
establish appropriate standards for siting, design, 
construction, operation and administrative procedures 
pertaining to their use, reuse, or reclamation. The 
board seeks specific comments regarding clarification 
or the need for testing schedules (frequency /volumes) 
for TCLP tests for coal combustion by-products as 
presented in § 4.1 C 4. 

Statutory Authority: § 10.1-1402 of the Code of Virginia. 

Written comments may be submitted through October 7, 
1994, to Deborah G. Pegram, Hearing Reporter, 
Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, 
Richmond, Virginia 23240-0009. 

Contact: Walt Gulevich, Office Director, Department of 
Environmental Quality, P. 0. Box 10009, Richmond, 
Virginia, 23240-0009, telephone (804) 762-4218. 

* * * * * * * * 

t August 30, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Public Hearing 
Department of Environmental Quality Board 
Innsbrook Office Park, 4900 Cox Road, Glen 
Virginia. 

Room, 
Allen, 

t September 8, 1994 - Written comments may be 
submitted until 5 p.m. on this date. 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 
of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Waste 
Management Board intends to adopt regulations 
entitled VR 672-60-1. Waste Tire End User 
Reimbursement. This regulation provides the 
guidelines for the partial reimbursement, from the 
Waste Tire Trust Fund, of the end users of Virginia 
generated waste tires. The promulgation of VR 
672-60-l is exempt from the requirements of the 
Administrative Process Act pursuant to § 9-6.14:4.1 B 
of the Act. 

Statutory Authority: §§ 10.1-1402.11, 10.1-1422.3 and 
10.1-1422.4 of the Code of Virginia. 

Contact: Allan Lassiter, Manager, Waste Tire Program, 
Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, 
Richmond, Virginia 23240-0009, telephone (804) 762-4215. 

STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD 

August 22, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Department of Environmental Quality, lnnsbrook Corporate 
Center, 4900 Cox Road, Glen Allen, Virginia. o' 

A regular meeting. 

Contact: Doneva A. Dalton, Hearings Reporter, 629 E. 
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Main St, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone 
(804) 762-4379. 

LEGISLATIVE 

HOUSE COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE 

August 24, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
August 25, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
Stratford Inn, 2500 Riverside Drive, Danville, Virginia. 

A two day retreat is scheduled beginning with 
Commissioner Courter describing possible policy 
initiatives and future plans for the agency. There will 
also be presentations by representatives of the various 
sectors of the tobacco industry. On the second day, 
there will be a tour of a tobacco farm and processing 
plant At 1:30 p.m. on the 25th, there will be a 
meeting of HJR 224 (Tobacco Farming) at the 
Stratford Inn. 

Contact: Martin Farber, Research Associate, Division of 
Legislative Services, 910 Capitol St, Richmond, VA 23219, 
telephone (804) 786-3591. 

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION 

Title 15.1 Recodification Task Force 

t August 18, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
t September 28, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
t October 20, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Street, 6th Floor 
Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. ~ 

A meeting to review working documents for Title 15.1 
recodification. 

Contact: Michelle L. Browning, Operations Staff Assistant, 
Division of Legislative Services, General Assembly 
Building, 910 Capitol St., 2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, 
telephone (804) 786-3591. 

JOINT SUBCOMMITTEE STUDYING CRIME AND 
VIOLENCE PREVENTION THROUGH COMMUNITY 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

t August I9, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Street, 6th Floor 
Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. 

The subcommittee will meet for the purpose of 
hearing recommendations. HJR 236. 

Contact: Oscar Brinson, Staff Attorney, Division of 
Legislative Services, 910 Capitol St., Richmond, VA 23219, 
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telephone (804) 786-3591. 

JOINT SUBCOMMITTEE STUDYING STATE AND 
FEDERAL LAW ON PRIVACY, CONFIDENTIALITY AND 

MANDATORY DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION IIELD 
OR USED BY GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES 

August 22, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Street, House 
Room C, Richmond, Virginia. 

The subcommittee will meet for the purpose of 
hearing recommendations. HJR 66. 

Contact: Ginny Edwards, Staff Attorney, Division of 
Legislative Services, 910 Capitol St., Richmond, VA 23219, 
telephone (804) 786-3591. 

VIRGINIA IIOUSING STUDY COMMISSION 

August 11, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Public Hearing 
Clinch Valley College, Theatre/Drama Building, Wise, 
Virginia. 

Public hearings will be held on the following issues: 

HJR 241 pursuant to the health and safety issues of 
residential rental property not covered under the 
Virginia Residential Landlord and Tenant Act. 

HJR 251 pursuant to the need for legislation to 
authorize local governments to inspect rental property 
between occupancies to ensure compliance with 
applicable state codes and their enforcement authority 
when violations are found. 

HJR 489 (1993) pursuant to blighted and deteriorated 
neighborhoods in the Commonwealth. 

HJR 163 (1992) pursuant to homelessness 
specifically, appeal bond reform (HB 
terrorized tenants (HB 1381). 

in Virginia, 
501) and 

Other issues related to affordable housing in Virginia. 

Persons wishing to speak should contact Nancy M. 
Ambler, Esquire, Executive Director, Virginia Housing 
Study Commission, 601 S. Belvidere St., Richmond, VA 
23220, telephone (804) 225-3797. 

Contact: Nancy D. Blanchard, Virginia Housing Study 
Commission, 601 S. Belvidere St., Richmond, VA 23220, 
telephone (804) 782-1986, Ext. 565. 

STATE WATER COMMISSION 

· August 8, 1994 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting 
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Street, House 

Monday, August 8, 1994 
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Room C, Richmond, Virginia. 

The commission will be reviewing options for role in 
state water development and utilization and hearing 
from some localities on their views. 

Contact: Shannon Varner, Staff Attorney, Division of 
Legislative Services, 910 Capitol Street, Richmond, VA 
23219, telephone (804) 786-3591. 

CHRONOLOGICAL LIST 

OPEN MEETINGS 

August 8 
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 
Barbers, Board for 
Water Commission, State 

August 9 
Child Day and Early Childhood Programs, Virginia 
Council on 
t Nursing, Board of 

- Nurse Aide Registry 
Resources Authority, Virginia 

August 10 
t Environmental Quality, Department of 
Pharmacy, Board of 
Sewage Handling and Disposal Appeals Review Board 
Transportation, Secretary of 
t Virginia Racing Commission 

August 11 
t Aviation Board, Virginia 
Child Day-Care Council 
Environmental Quality, Department of 

- Technical Advisory Committee 
Geology, Board for 
Health, Department of 

- HIV Prevention Community Planning Committee, 
Virginia 

t Local Government Advisory Committee 

August 12 
t Aviation Board, Virginia 
Geology, Board for 
Health, Department of 
Land Evaluation Advisory Council, State 
t Local Government Advisory Committee 
Medicine, Board of 

- Executive Committee 

August 13 
Medicine, Board of 

- Credentials Committee 

August 15 
Real Estate Board 

August 16 
t Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of 

- Virginia State Apple Board 
t Historic Resources, Department of 

- State Review Board 
t Virginia Housing Development Authority 

August 17 
t Aviation Conference, Virginia 
Corrections, Board of 
t Environmental Quality, Department of 

- Ad Hoc Advisory Committee on an Expanded Role 
for Local Governments in the Exceptional Waters 
Process 

t Historic Resources Board, Virginia 
Local Debt, State Council on 
Manufactured Housing Board, Virginia 
t Milk Commission, State 
t Optometry, Board of 
t Transportation Board, Commonwealth 
Treasury Board 

August 18 
t Aviation Conference, Virginia 
Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Board 

- Central Area Review Committee 
- Northern Area Review Committee 

Environmental Quality, Department of 
- Pollution Prevention Advisory Committee 

t Fire Services Board, Virginia 
- Fire/EMS Education and Training Committee 
- Fire Prevention and Control Committee 
- Legislative/Liaison Committee 

Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental 
Illness Advisory Council 
t Nursing, Board of 

- Nurse Aide Registry 
~ Special Conference Committee 

t Transportation Board, Commonwealth 
t Title 15.1 Recodification Task Force 

August 19 
t Aviation Conference, Virginia 
t Correctional Education, Board of 
t Crime and Violence Prevention through Community 
Economic Development, Joint _Subcommittee Studying 
t Fire Services Board, Virginia 

August 22 
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 
Agricultural Council, Virginia 
Disclosure of Information Held or Used by 
Governmental Agencies, Joint Subcommittee Studying 
State and Federal Law on Privacy, Confidentiality and 
Mandatory 
t Lottery Department, State 
Water Control Board, State 
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August 23 
t Marine Resources Commission 
Real Estate Board 

August 24 
Agriculture, House Committee on 
Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Board 

~ Southern Area Review Committee 
t Environmental Quality, Department of 

~ Hazardous Waste Technical Advisory Committee 

August 25 
Agriculture, House Committee on 
Compensation Board 
Game and Inland Fisheries, Board of 
t HJR No. 76 Internet Staff Study Team 

August 26 
Game and Inland Fisheries, Board of 

August 30 
t Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors 
and Landscape Architects, Board for 
t Environmental Quality, Department of 
Health Services Cost Review Council 

August 31 
t Mental Health Planning Council, Virginia 
Real Estate Appraiser Board 

- Complaints Committee 
t Virginia Racing Commission 

September I 
Environmental Quality, Department of 

M Technical Advisory Committee 
t Labor and Industry, Department of 

- Virginia Apprenticeship Council 

September 6 
t Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of 

- Virginia Marine Products Board 
Hopewell Industrial Safety Council 

September 7 
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 
t Motor Vehicle Dealers' Advisory Board 

September 9 
Medicine, Board of 

- Legislative Committee 
- Advisory Board on Physician's Assistants 

September 12 
t Hearing Aid Specialists, Board for 

September 13 
Emergency Planning Committee - Local, County of 
Montgomery /Town of Blacksburg 

September 14 
Environmental Quality, Department of 
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- Work Group on Detection/Quantitation Levels 
Higher Education in Virginia, Commission on the 
Future of 

September 17 
Visually Handicapped, Department for the 

- Vocational Rehabilitation Advisory Council 

September 19 
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 

September 20 
"I Real Estate Appraiser Board 
t Land Use Advisory Council, State 

September 21 
Asbestos Licensing Board, Virginia 
Contractors, Board for 
Local Debt, State Council on 
t Sewage Handling and Disposal Appeals Review 
Board 
Treasury Board 

September 22 
t HJR No. 76 Internet Staff Study Team 

September 23 
Rehabilitation Advisory Council, State 

September 26 
t Cosmetology, Board for 

September 28 
Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Board 

~ Southern Area Review Committee 
t Compensation Board 
t Virginia Code Commission 

- Title 15.1 Recodification Task Force 

October 20 
t Virginia Code Commission 

- Title 15.1 Recodification Task Force 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

August 10 
t Environmental Quality, Department of 

August II 
Housing Study Commission, Virginia 

August 18 
t Fire Services Board, Virginia 

August 30 
t Waste Management Board, Virginia 

September 7 

Monday, August 8, 1994 
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t Waste Management Board, Virginia 

September 8 
t Waste Management Board, Virginia 

September 12 
t Hearing Aid Specialists, Board for 
t Voluntary Formulary Board, Virginia 

September 20 
Auctioneers Board 

September 29 
t Education, Department of 

October 5 
Criminal Justice Services, Department of (Board) 
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